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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD

APPLICATION FOR PERMIT

RECEIVED

SEP 1 3 2010

SECTION I. IDENTIFICATION, GENERAL INFORMATION, AND CERTIFIC

This Section must be completed for all projects.

HEALTH FACILITI
Facility/Project ldentification smvm&sae&léugg:m

Facility Name: Hoopeston Community Memorial Nursing Home
Street Address: SW Corner of N. Thompson Ave & Dixie Highway

City and Zip Code: Hoopeston, IL 60942
County. Vermilion Health Service Area: 004 Health Planning Area: Vermilion County

Applicant /Co-Applicant ldentification
[Provide for each co-applicant [refer to Part 1130.220).

Exact Legal Name: Hoopeston Community Memorial Hospital

Address: 701 E. Orange Street, Hoopeston, IL 60942

Name of Registered Agent: Harry Brockus

Name of Chief Executive Officer: Harry Bockus

CEO Address: 701 E. Orange Street, Hoopeston, IL 60942

Telephone Number: 217-283-5531

Type of Ownership of Applicant/Co-Applicant See attachment 1

4 Non-profit Corporation ] Partnership
1l For-profit Corporation O Governmental
O Limited Liability Company O Sole Proprietorship d Other

o Corporations and limited liability companies must provide an lllinois certificate of good

standing.
o Partnerships must provide the name of the state in which organized and the name and address of

each partner specifying whether each is a general or limited partner.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-1 IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

Primary Contact
[Person to receive all correspondence or inquiries during the review period]

Name: Harry F. Brockus

Title: Chief Executive Officer

Company Name: Hoopeston Community Memorial Hospital

Address: 701 E. Orange Street, Hoopeston, IL 60942

Telephone Number: 217-283-8240

E-mail Address: Harry.Brockus@hoopestoncmh.org

Fax Number: 217-283-4062

Additional Contact
[Person who is also authorized to discuss the application for permit]

Name: Jackie Johnson
Title: Chief Clinical Officer

Company Name; Hoopeston Community Memorial Hospital

Address: 701 E. Orange Street, Hoopeston, IL 60942

Telephone Number: 217-283-8248
E-mail Address: Jackie.Johnson@hoopestoncmh.org

Fax Number: 217-283-4062
{
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Edition

ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD
APPLICATION FOR PERMIT
SECTION I. IDENTIFICATION, GENERAL INFORMATION, AND CERTIFICATION

This Section must be completed for all projects.

Facility/Project Identification
Facility Name: Hoopeston Community Memorial Nursing Home
Street Address: SW Corner of N. Thompson Ave & Dixie Highway

City and Zip Code: Hoopeston, IL 60942

County: Vermilion Health Service Area: 004 Health Planning Area: Vermilion County

Applicant /Co-Applicant tdentification
[Provide for each co-applicant [refer to Part 1130.220].

Exact Legal Name: Hoopeston Regional Health Center

Address: 701 E. Orange Street, Hoopeston, IL 60942

Name of Registered Agent: Harry Brockus

Name of Chief Executive Officer. Harry Bockus

CEQ Address: 701 E. Qrange Street, Hoopeston, IL 60942

Telephone Number: 217-283-5531

Type of Ownership of Applicant/Co-Applicant See attachment 1
4 Non-profit Corporation O] Partnership

L] For-profit Corporation ] Governmental

] Limited Liability Company ] Sole Proprietorship L] Other

o Corporations and limited liability companies must provide an lllinois certificate of good

standing.
o Partnerships must provide the name of the state in which organized and the name and address of
each partner specifying whether each is a general or limited partner.

' APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-1 IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM. . .

Primary Contact
[Person to receive ali correspondence or inquiries during the review period)

Name: Harry F. Brockus

Title: Chief Executive Officer

Company Name: Hoopeston Community Memorial Hospital

Address: 701 E. Orange Street, Hoopeston, IL 60942

Telephone Number, 217-283-8240

E-mail Address: Harry.Brockus@hoopestoncmh.org

Fax Number: 217-283-4062

Additional Contact
[Person who is also authorized to discuss the application for permit]

Name: Jackie Johnson

Title: Chief Clinical Officer

Company Name: Hoopeston Community Memorial Hospital
Address: 701 E. Qrange Street, Hoopeston, IL 60942

Telephone Number. 217-283-8248

E-mail Address: Jackie.Johnson@hoopestoncmh.org

Fax Number: 217-283-4062
2
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Edition

Post Permit Contact
[Person to receive all correspondence subsequent to permit issuance-THIS PERSON MUST BE

EMPLOYED BY THE LICENSED HEALTH CARE FACILITY AS DEFINED AT 20 [LCS 3960
Name: Harry F. Brockus '

Title: Chief Executive Officer

Company Name: Hoopeston Community Memorial Hospital

Address: 701 E. Orange Street, Hoopeston, IL 60942

Telephone Number: 217-283-8240

E-mail Address: Harry Brockus@hoopestoncmh.org

Fax Number: 217-283-4062

Site Ownership

[Provide this information for each applicable site] See Attachment 2

Exact Legal Name of Site Owner: Hoopeston Community Memorial Hospital dba Hoopeston
Regional Health Center

Address of Site Owner: 701 E. Qrange Street, Hoopeston, IL 60942

Street Address or Legal Description of Site: New site — Route 1 and Thompson Road (23.93
acres of farm land, more or less, located at the southwest corner of the intersection of W.
Thompson Avenue (County Road 1) and Dixie Highway (County Road 9) in Hoopeston Illinois)
Hoopeston IL 60942

Proof of ownership or control of the site is to be provided as Attachment 2. Examples of proof of ownership
are property tax statement, tax assessor's documentation, deed, notarized statement of the corporation

attesting to ownership, an option to lease, a letter of intent to lease or a lease.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-2, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM. ]

Operating ldentity/Licensee
[Provide this information for each applicable facility, and insert after this page ]

Exact Legal Name: Hoopeston Community Memorial Hospital dba Hoopeston Regional Health Center

Address: 701 E. Orange Street, Hoopeston, IL 60942

4 Non-profit Corporation ] Partnership
] For-profit Corporation ] Governmental
] Limited Liability Company ] Sole Proprietorship ] Other

o Corporations and limited liability companies must provide an lllinois Certificate of Good Standing.

o Partnerships must provide the name of the state in which organized and the name and address of
each partner specifying whether each is a general or limited partner.

o Persons with 5 percent or greater interest in the licensee must be identified with the % of

ownership.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-3, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM. )

Organizational Relationships See attachment 4

Provide (for each co-applicant) an organizational chart containing the name and relationship of any
person or entity who is related (as defined in Part 1130.140). If the related person or entity is participating
in the development or funding of the project, describe the interest and the amount and type of any
financial contribution.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-4, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.
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Flood Plain Requirements See attachment 5
[Refer to application instructions.] :

Provide documentation that the project complies with the requirements of lllinois Executive Order #2005-5
pertaining to construction activities in special flood hazard areas. As part of the flood plain requirements
please provide a map of the proposed project location showing any identified floodplain areas. Floodplain

maps can be printed at www.FEMA.gov or www.illinoisfloodmaps.org. This map must be in a
readable format. In addition please provide a statement attesting that the project complies with the

requirements of lllinois Executive Order #2005-5 (http://www.hfsrb.illinois.gov).

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT -5, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM. _ AL B =R THELA

Historic Resources Preservation Act Requirements See attachment 6
[Refer to application instructions.]

Provide documentation regarding compliance with the requirements of the Historic Resources
Preservation Act.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-6, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM. ' ' . A ' '

DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT

1. Project Classification
[Check thase applicable - refer to Part 1110.40 and Part 1120.20(b)]

Part 1120 Applicability or Classification:
Part 1110 Classification: [Check one only.]
X Substantive ] Part 1120 Not Applicable

] Category A Project
J Non-substantive & Category B Project

[0 DHS or DVA Project
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2. Narrative Description

Provide in the space below, a brief narrative description of the project. Explain WHAT is to be done in State Board
defined terms, NOT WHY it is being done. If the project site does NOT have a street address, include a legat
description of the site. Include the rationale regarding the project's classification as substantive or non-substantive.

The Hoopeston Community Memorial Nursing Home is located at 701 East Orange Street in
Hoopeston, Illinois. This Certificate of Need is for the proposed discontinuation of the existing
facility and the establishment of a replacement facility at the corner of Route 1 and Thompson
Road, a location approximately two miles from the existing facility. An abbreviated legal
description of the site is: 23.93 acres of farm land, more or less, located at the southwest comer
of the intersection of W. Thompson Avenue (County Road 1) and Dixie Highway (County Road
9) in Hoopeston Illinois.

Hoopeston Community Memorial Nursing Home is a 75 bed facility currently situated on the site
of Hoopeston Memorial Community Hospital and Country Terrace Independent Living Facility.
The hospital proposes to build a 37,047 gross square foot, single story structure to replace the
nursing home.

The replacement will provide a facility that reflects “resident-focused” philosophies in order to
improve each resident’s quality of life. The proposed facility will provide private rooms with a
two-person shared bath, administrative offices, resident and family support services, a full-
service kitchen, physical therapy and whirlpool areas, a recreation room, and a multi-purpose
dining room that also serves as a chapel. Each resident will be able to independently control the
temperature of their room. Interior finishes will be designed to complement “neighborhoods”
within the resident commons, providing home-like visual keys in the interior environment.
Exterior features will include a secured patio and landscaped reflection gardens. A covered entry
canopy will protect residents when transitioning between vehicles and the facility.

The proposed structure would be constructed on land, owned by Hoopeston Regional Health
Center, located along Illinois Route 1 in northwestern Hoopeston. The property is undeveloped
and will require only modest cut and fill adjustments.

The structure would include wood framing and sheathing, pre-engineered roof trusses, thermal
insulated windows, R-19 building insulation, and vapor transmission membranes. Asphalt
shingles, single-ply membrane roofing systems, and low-maintenance vinyl wall siding
providing the finish elements of the building envelope. The proposed facility is designed to be in
compliance with the State Energy Code (AHSRAE 90.1-2004) and other relevant codes. An
automatic file sprinkler system, in addition to a code-compliant fir alarm system, will serve the
entire building. An exterior mounted emergency generator will serve the facility.

The project is a “Substantive™ project as that term is described in Section 1110.40 of the
Planning Board rules and a “Category B” because expenditures will exceed 52 million.




ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD

Project Costs and Sources of Funds

APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Edition

Complete the following table listing all costs (refer to Part 1120.110) associated with the project. When a

project or any component of a project is to be accomplished by lease, donation, gift, or other means, the
fair market or doilar value (refer to Part 1130.140) of the component must be included in the estimated
project cost. If the project contains non-reviewable components that are not related to the provision of
health care, complete the second column of the table below. Note, the use and sources of funds must

equal.

See attachment - 7

Project Costs and Sources of Funds

USE OF FUNDS

CLINICAL

NONCLINICAL

TOTAL

Preplanning Costs

Site Survey and Soil Investigation

2,212

2288

4,500

Site Preparation

Off Site Work

New Construction Contracts

2,418,253

2,500,707

4,918,960

Modernization Contracts

Contingencies

214,247

221,553

435,800

Architectural/Engineering Fees

172,342

178,218

350,560

Consulting and Other Fees

12,780

13,215

25,995

Movable or Other Equipment (not in construction
contracts)

223,357

230,973

454 330

Bond Issuance Expense (project related)

Net Interest Expense During Construction (project
related)

Fair Market Value of Leased Space or Equipment

Other Costs To Be Capitalized

8,832

10,168

20,000

Acquisition of Building or Other Property (excluding
land)

TOTAL USES OF FUNDS

3,053,023

3,157,122

6,210,145

SOURCE OF FUNDS

CLINICAL

NONCLINICAL

TOTAL

Cash and Securities

245,809

254,191

500,000

Pledges

Gifts and Bequests

Bond Issues {project related)

Mortgages

2,807,214

2,902,931

5,710,145

Leases (fair market value)

Governmental Appropriations

Grants

Other Funds and Sources

TOTAL SOURCES OF FUNDS

3,053,023

3,167,122

6,210,145

NOTE: ITEMIZATION OF EACH LINE ITEM MUST BE PROVIDED AT ATTACHMENTwT IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER
THE LAST PAGE OF THE APPLICATION FORM. ¥
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Related Project Costs
Provide the following information, as applicable, with respect to any land related to the project that

will be or has been acquired during the last two calendar years:

Land acquisition is related to project X Yes ] No
Purchase Price:  $_200,000
Fair Market Value: $_200,000

The project involves the establishment of a new facility or a new category of service

X Yes ] No

If yes, provide the dollar amount of all non-capitalized operating start-up costs (including
operating deficits) through the first full fiscal year when the project achieves or exceeds the target
utilization specified in Part 1100.

Estimated start-up costs and operating deficit costis $ __$20,000

Project Status and Completion Schedules
Indicate the stage of the project’s architectural drawings:

[J None or not applicable [] Preliminary

[] Schematics M Final Working
Anticipated project completion date (refer to Part 1130.140): __4/30/12

Indicate the following with respect to project expenditures or to obligation (refer to Part
1130.140):

[] Purchase orders, leases or contracts pertaining to the project have been executed.
[] Project obligation is contingent upon permit issuance. Provide a copy of the
contingent “certification of obligation” document, highlighting any language related to
CON Contingencies

[ Project obligation will occur after permit issuance.

- APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT -8, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
| APPLICATION FORM. ; . .

State Agency Submittals
Are the following submittals up to date as applicable:
[] Cancer Registry N/A
[ ] APORS N/A
|Z| All formal document requests such as IDPH Questionnaires and Annual Bed Reports been
submitted
B4 All reports regarding outstanding permits
Failure to be up to date with these requirements will resuit in the application for permit being
deemed incomplete. .




ILLINO!S HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD

Cost Space Requirements

APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Edition

Provide in the following format, the department/area DGSF or the building/area BGSF and cost. The type
of gross square footage either DGSF or BGSF must be identified. The sum of the department costs
MUST equal the total estimated project costs. Indicate if any space is being reallocated for a different
purpose. Include outside wall measurements plus the department's or area's portion of the surrounding
circuiation space. Explain the use of any vacated space.

Gross Square Feet

Amount of Proposed Total Gross Square Feet

That Is:

Dept. ! Area

Cost

Existing | Proposed

New
Const.

Modernized

Asls

Vacated
Space

REVIEWABLE

Medical Surgical

intensive Care

Diagnostic
Radiclogy

MRI

Total Clinical

NON
REVIEWABLE

Administrative

Parking

Gift Shop

Total Non-clinical

TOTAL

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-8, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE

APPLICATION FORM.
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. Facility Bed Capacity and Utilization

Complete the following chart, as applicable. Complete a separate chart for each facility that is a part of
the project and insert following this page. Provide the existing bed capacity and utilization data for the
latest Calendar Year for which the data are available. Include observation days in the patient day
totals for each bed service. Any bed capacity discrepancy from the Inventory will result in the

application being deemed incomplete.

FACILITY NAME: Hoopeston Community CITY: Hoopeston, IL 60942
Memorial Hospital and Nursing Home
REPORTING PERIOD DATES: From: January 1, 2009 to: December 31, 2009
Category of Service Authorized Admissions | Patient Days | Bed Proposed
Beds Changes Beds

Medical/Surgical 0 0 0 0 0
Obstetrics 0 0 0 0 0
Pediatrics 0 0 0 0 0
Intensive Care 0 0 0 0 0
Comprehensive Physical
Rehabilitation 0 0 0 0 0

. Acute/Chronic Mental lliness | 0 0 0 0 0
Neonatal Intensive Care 0 0 0 0 0
General Long Term Care 75 26 27,216 0 75
Specialized Long Term Care | 0 0 0 0 0
Long Term Acute Care 0 0 0 0 0
Other ((identify) 0 0 0 0 0
TOTALS: 75 26 27,216 0 75

- — Page 9 e
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CERTIFICATION

The application must be signed by the authorized representative(s) of the applicant entity. The
authorized representative(s) are:

o inthe case of a corporation, any two of its officers or members of its Board of Directors;

o inthe case of a limited liability company, any two of its managers or members (or the sole
manger or member when two or more managers or members do not exist);

o in the case of a partnership, two of its general partners (or the sole general partner, when two or
more general partners do not exist);

o in the case of estates and trusts, two of its beneficiaries {or the sole beneficiary when two or more
beneficiaries do not exist); and

o inthe case of a sole proprietor, the individual that is the proprietor.

This Application for Permit is filed on the behalf of MW,P&S\‘D Commonito (Nemorial L-Lo %P.‘\T‘L\
in accordance with the requirements and procedures of the lllinois Health Facllltlés Planning Act.
The undersigned certifies that he or she has the authority to execute and file this application for
permit on behalf of the applicant entity. The undersigned further certifies that the data and
information provided herein, and appended hereto, are complete and correct to the best of his or
her knowledge and belief. The undersigned also certifies that the permit application fee required
for this application is sent herewith or will be paid upon request.

LY Y
SIGNATURE

l-\ra-vvvx. (A ecldus N\ Y2
PRINTED NAME &/ PRINTED NAME

CED RW.M@,
PRINTED TITLE PRINTED TITLE
Notanzatlon Notarization:

Sub ands fore d and sworn tg beforg me
i ooy ofW%fo m.ﬂﬁdw LI 501 0

Signature of Nota
“OFEFICIAL SEAL 4
SHIRLEY WAGONER

SHIHLEY WAGONER 1

Seal al ¥ PUBLIC
RY PUBLIC NOTAR
S#STTQ OF ILLINOIS $ STATE OF ILLINOIS !
MY COMMISSION EXPIRES 05-08-2011 MY COMMISSION EXPIRES 05-08- 2011
*Insert EXACT I€8T name of the applicant B

(O

C e e Page ] e e+ ——
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CERTIFICATION

The application must be signed by the authorized representative(s) of the applicant entity. The
authorized representative(s} are:

o in the case of a corporation, any two of its officers or members of its Board of Directors;

o in the case of a limited liability company, any two of its managers or members (or the sole
manger or member when two or more managers or members do not exist);

¢ in the case of a partnership, two of its general partners (or the sole general partner, when two or
more general partners do not exist);

o inthe case of estates and trusts, two of its beneficiaries (or the sole beneficiary when two or more
beneficiaries do not exist); and

This Application for Permit is filed on the behalf of Tlrope, o Co o n e W &g, M*Hﬂ
in accordance with the requirements and procedures of the lilinois Health Facilitie§ Planning Act.
The undersigned certifies that he or she has the authority to execute and file this application for
permit on behalf of the applicant entity. The undersigned further certifies that the data and
information provided herein, and appended hereto, are complete and correct to the best of his or
her knowledge and belief. The undersigned also certifies that the permit application fee required
for this application is sent herewith or will be paid upon request.

SIGNA SIGNATUR
I‘\'fkrv’w @rboz_;s Q W égiﬁtz_,_
PRINTED NAME PRINTED NAME
Ceo ¢
PRINTED TITLE PRINTED TITLE
Notarization: Notarization:

Sub %d and swpm, to before Su ibed and s ornt eforg me
this ?i day oféﬁM 80/0 tm% day o

Signature of Ndthry v Signature of Notary

|
IRLEY WAGONER
S‘LOTAHY PUBLIC
STATE OF ILLINOIS

SHIRLEY WAGONER
NOTARY PUBLIC

STATE OF ILLINOIS

MY COMMISSION EXPIRES 05-08- -2011 :
e

(l

B e e — e pageg — JE—
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SECTIONIl. DISCONTINUATION

This Section is applicable to any project that involves discontinuation of a health care facility or a category
of service. NOTE: If the project is solely for discontinuation and if there is no project cost, the remaining
Sections of the application are not applicable.

Criterion 1110.130 - Discontinuation See Attachment 10

READ THE REVIEW CRITERION and provide the foliowing information:;

GENERAL INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS

1.

2.

Identify the categories of service and the number of beds, if any that is to be discontinued.
Identify all of the other clinical services that are to be discontinued.

Provide the anticipated date of discontinuation for each identified service or for the entire facility.
Provide the anticipated use of the physical plant and equipment after the discontinuation occurs.

Provide the anticipated disposition and location of all medical records pertaining to the services
being discontinued, and the iength of time the records will be maintained.

For applications involving the discontinuation of an entire facility, certification by an authorized
representative that all questionnaires and data required by HFSRB or DPH (e.g., annual
questionnaires, capital expenditures surveys, etc.) will be provided through the date of
discontinuation, and that the required information will be submitted no later than 60 days following
the date of discontinuation.

REASONS FOR DISCONTINUATION

The applicant shall state the reasons for discontinuation and provide data that verifies the need for the
proposed action. See criterion 1110.130(b) for examples.

IMPACT ON ACCESS

1.

Document that the discontinuation of each service or of the entire facility will not have an adverse
effect upon access to care for residents of the facility's market area.

Document that a written request for an impact statement was received by all existing or approved
health care facilities {that provide the same services as those being discontinued) located within
45 minutes travel time of the applicant facility.

Provide copies of impact statements received from other resources or heaith care facilities
located within 45 minutes travel time, that indicate the extent to which the applicant's workload
will be absorbed without conditions, limitations or discrimination.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-10, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.
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SECTION Il - BACKGROUND, PURPOSE OF THE PROJECT, AND ALTERNATIVES -
INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS

This Section is applicable to all projects except those that are solely for discontinuation with no project
costs.

Criterion 1110.230 — Background, Purpose of the Project, and Alternatives
See Attachment 11

READ THE REVIEW CRITERION and provide the foIIowihg required information:

BACKGROUND OF APPLICANT

1. Alisting of all health care facilities owned or operated by the applicant, including iicensing, and ceification if
applicable.

2. A certified listing of any adverse aclion taken against any facility owned and/or operated by the applicant
during the three years pricr to the filing of the application.

3. Authorization permitting HFSRB and DPH access to any documents necessary to verify the information
submitted, including, but not fimited to: official records of DPH or other State agencies; the ficensing or
certification records of other states, when applicable; and the records of nationally recognized accreditation
organizations. Failure to provide such authorization shall constitute an abandonment or withdrawal
of the application without any further action by HFSRB.

4. If, during a given calendar year, an applicant submits more than one application for permit, the
documentation provided with the prior applications may be utilized to fulfill the information requirements of
this criterion. In such instances, the applicant shall attest the information has been previously provided, cite
the project number of the prior application, and certify that no changes have occurred regarding the
information that has been previously provided. The applicant is able to submit amendments to previously
submitted information, as needed, to update and/or clarify data.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-11, {IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST
PAGE OF THE APPLICATION FORM. EACH ITEM {1-4) MUST BE {DENTIFIED IN ATTACHMENT 11.

See attachment 12

PURPOSE OF PROJECT

1. Document that the project will provide health services that improve the health care or well-being of the
market area population to be served.

2. Define the planning area or market area, or other, per the applicant's definition.

3. Identify the existing problems or issues that need to be addressed, as applicable and appropriate for the
project, [See 1110.230(b) for examples of documentation.]

4. Cite the sources of the information provided as documentation.

5. Detail how the project will address or improve the previously referenced issues, as well as the population's
health status and well-being.

6. Provide goals with quantified and measurable objectives, with specific timeframes that relate fo achieving
the stated goals as appropriate.

For projects involving modernization, describe the conditions being upgraded if any. For facility projects, include
statements of age and condition and regulatory citations if any. For equipment being replaced, include repair and
maintenance records.

NOTE: Information regarding the “Purpose of the Project” will be included in the State Agency Report.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-12, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST
PAGE OF THE APPLICATION FORM. EACH ITEM {1-6) MUST BE IDENTIFIED IN ATTACHMENT 12.

(3
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See attachment 13
ALTERNATIVES
1) Identify ALL of the alternatives to the proposed project:
Alternative options must include:
A) Proposing a project of greater or lesser scope and cost;
B) Pursuing a joint venture or similar arrangement with one or more providers or

entities to meet all or a portion of the project's intended purposes; developing
alternative settings to meet all or a portion of the project's intended purposes;

C) Utilizing other health care resources that are available to serve all or a portion of
the population proposed to be served by the project; and
D)) Provide the reasons why the chosen alternative was selected.
2) Documentation shall consist of a comparison of the project to alternative options. The

comparison shall address issues of total costs, patient access, quality and financial
benefits in both the short term (within one to three years after project completion} and long
term. This may vary by project or situation. FOR EVERY ALTERNATIVE IDENTIFIED
THE TOTAL PROJECT COST AND THE REASONS WHY THE ALTERNATIVE WAS
REJECTED MUST BE PROVIDED.

3 The applicant shall provide empirical evidence, including quantified outcome data that
verifies improved quality of care, as available.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-13, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST
PAGE OF THE APPLICATION FORM.
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SECTION IV - PROJECT SCOPE, UTILIZATION, AND UNFINISHED/SHELL SPACE
Criterion 1110.234 - Project Scope, Utilization, and Unfinished/Shell Space

READ THE REVIEW CRITERION and provide the following information:

SIZE OF PROJECT:

1. Document that the amount of physical space proposed for the proposed project is necessary and not
excessive. This must be a narrative.

2. If the gross square footage exceeds the BGSF/DGSF standards in Appendix B, justify the discrepancy by
documenting one of the following::

a. Additional space is needed due to the scope of services provided, justified by clinical or operational
needs, as supporied by published data or studies;

b. The existing facility's physical configuration has constraints or impediments and requires an
architectural design that results in a size exceeding the standards of Appendix B;

c. The project involves the conversion of existing space that results in excess square footage.

Provide a narrative for any discrepancies from the State Standard. A table must be provided in the
following format with Attachment 14.

SIZE OF PROJECT
DEPARTMENT/SERVICE PROPOSED STATE DIFFERENCE MET
BGSF/DGSF STANDARD STANDARD?

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-14, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM. : . . A i Lo

See attachment 15

PROJECT SERVICES UTILIZATION:

This criterion is applicable only to projects or portions of projects that involve services, functions or
equipment for which HFSRB has established utilization standards or occupancy targets in 77 lll. Adm. Code
1100.

Document that in the second year of operation, the annual utilization of the service or equipment shall meet or exceed
the utilization standards specified in 1110.Appendix B. A narrative of the rationale that supports the projections
must be provided.

A table must be provided in the following format with Attachment 15.

UTILIZATION
DEPT./ RISTORICAL | PROJECTED | STATE MET
SERVICE | UTILIZATION | UTILIZATION | STANDARD | STANDARD?
(PATIENT DAYS)
(TREATMENTS)
ETC.

YEAR 1
YEAR 2

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT- 15, IN NUMEREC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE.
APPLICATION FORM. i _ S _

5
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See attachment 16

UNFINISHED OR SHELL SPACE:
Provide the following information:
1. Total gross square footage of the proposed shell space,

2. The anticipated use of the shell space, specifying the proposed GSF tot be allocated to each
department, area or function,

3. Evidence that the shell space is being constructed due to
a. Reqwrements of governmental or certification agencies; or
b. Experienced increases in the historical occupancy or utilization of those areas proposed
to occupy the shell space.

4. Provide:
a. Historical utilization for the area for the latest five-year period for which data are
available; and
b. Based upon the average annual percentage increase for that period, projections of future
utilization of the area through the anticipated date when the shell space will be placed
into operation.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS TT&CHMENT 16, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATIONFORM. .

See attachment 17

ASSURANCES:
Submit the following:

1. Verification that the applicant will submit to HFSRB a CON application to develop and utiiize the
shell space, regardless of the capita! thresholds in effect at the time or the categories of service
involved.

2. The estimated date by which the subsequent CON application (to develop and utilize the subject
shell space) will be submitted; and

3. The anticipated date when the shell space will be completed and placed into operation.

APPEND DOCUMENTAT!ON AS ATTACHMENT 217, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM. - 3 .
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Criterion 1110.1730 - General Long Term Care

1. Applicants proposing to establish, expand andfor modemnize General Long Term Care
must submit the following information:

Indicate bed capacity changes by Service: Indicate # of beds changed by
action(s):

# Existing # Proposed
Category of Service Beds Beds

] General Long Term
Care

1. READ the applicable review criteria outlined below and submit the required
documentation for the criteria:

See attachment 28
Defined
APPLICABLE REVIEW CRITERIA Establish Modernize | Continuum of | Population
Care- Establish
Establish or or Expand
Expand

1110.1730(b)(1) - Planning Area Need - 77 III.
Adm. Code 1100 (formula
calculation)

1110.1730(b}2) - Flanning Area Need -

Service to Planning Area
Residents
1110.1730(b)(3) - Planning Area Need -
Service Demand -
Establishment of
Category of Service
1110.1730(b)(4} - Planning Area Need -
Service Demand -
Expansion of Existing
Category of Service
1110.1730(b)(5) - Planning Area Need -
Service Accessibility
1110.1730(c)(1) - Description of Continuum
of Care
1110.1730(c}2) - Components

1110.1730c)(3) - Documentation

1110.1730(d){1) - Description of Defined
Population to be Served

1110.1730(d)(2) - Documentation of Need

1110.1730(d}(3) - Documentation Related to
Cited Problems

1110.1730(e)(1) - Unnecessary Duplication
of Services
1110.1730(2)(2) - Maldistribution

1110.1730(e)(3) - |mpact of Project on Other
Area Providers

1110.1730()(1) - Deteriorated Facilities
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Defined
APPLICABLE REVIEW CRITERIA Establish | Expand | Modernize | Continuum of | Population
Care- Establish
Establish or or Expand
Expand
1110.1730()(2) & (3) - Documentation X
1110.1730(f}(4) -  Utilization X
1110.1730(9) - Staffing Availability X X X X
1110,1730(h) - Facility Size X X X X X
1110.1730(i) - Community Related X X X X
Functions
1110.1730() - Zoning X X X X
1110.1730(k) - Assurances X X X X X

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-28, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST
PAGE OF THE APPLICATION FORM.
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VIII. - 1120.120 - Availability of Funds

The applicant shall document that financial resources shall be available and be equal to or exceed the estimated total
project cost plus any related project costs by providing evidence of sufficient financial resources from the following
sources, as applicable: Indicate the dollar amount to be provided from the following sources:

See attachment 39

a) Cash and Securities - statements (e.g., audited financiai statements, letters from financial
500,000 institutions, board resolutions) as to.

————tr AT

1) the amount of cash and securities available for the project, including the
identification of any security, its value and availability of such funds; and

2 interest to be earned on depreciation account funds or to be earned on any
asset from the date of applicant's submission through project completion;

Piedges - for anticipated pledges, a summary of the anticipated pledges showing anticipated
receipts and discounted value, estimated time table of gross receipts and related fundraising
expenses, and a discussion of past fundraising experience,

Gitts and Bequests - verification of the dollar amount, identification of any conditions of use, and
the estimated time table of receipts;

Debt - a statement of the estimated terms and conditions (including the debt time period, variable
__ 5910045 or permanent interest rates over the debt time period, and the anticipated repayment schedule) for
any interim and for the permanent financing proposed to fund the project, including:

1) For general obligation bonds, proof of passage of the required referendum or
evidence that the governmental unit has the authority to issue the bonds and
evidence of the dollar amount of the issue, including any discounting
anticipated;

For revenue bonds, proof of the feasibility of securing the specified amount and
interest rate;

For mortgages, a letter from the prospective lender attesting o the expectation
of making the foan in the amount and time indicated, including the anticipated
interest rate and any conditions associated with the mortgage, such as, but not
limited to, adjustable interest rates, balloon payments, etc.;

For any lease, a copy of the lease, including all the terms and conditions,
including any purchase options, any capital improvements to the property and
provision of capital equipment;

5) For any option to lease, a copy of the option, including ail terms and conditions.

Governmental Appropriations - a copy of the appropriation Act or erdinance accompanied by a
statement of funding availability from an official of the governmental unit. If funds are to be made
available from subsequent fiscal years, a copy of a resolution or other action of the governmental
unit attesting to this intent;

Grants — a letter from the granting agency as to the availability of funds in terms of the amount and
time of receipt;

All Other Funds and Sources - verification of the amount and type of any other funds that will be
used for the project.

6,410,045 | TOTAL FUNDS AVAILABLE

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-39, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD

X, 1120.130 - Financial Viability

All the applicants and co-applicants shall be identified, specifying their roles in the project funding or
guaranteeing the funding (sole responsibility or shared) and percentage of participation in that funding.

Financial Viability Waiver

The applicant is not required to submit financial viability ratios if:

1. All of the projects capital expenditures are completely funded through internal sources

2. The applicant's current debt financing or projected debt financing is insured or anticipated to be
insured by MBIA (Municipa! Bond Insurance Association Inc.) or equivalent

3. The applicant provides a third party surety bond or performance bond letter of credit from an A
rated guarantor.

See Section 1120.130 Financial Waiver for information to be provided

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-40, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST
PAGE OF THE APPLICATION FORM.

See Attachment - 41 i

The applicant or co-applicant that is responsible for funding or guaranteeing funding of the project shall provide
viability ratios for the latest three years for which audited financial statements are available and for the first full
fiscal year at target utilization, but no more than two years following project completion. When the applicant's
facility does not have facility specific financial statements and the facility is a member of a health care system that
has combined or consolidated financial statements, the system's viability ratios shall be provided. If the health care
system includes one or more hospitals, the system's viability ratios shall be evaluated for conformance with the
applicable hospital standards.

Provide Data for Projects Classified Category A or Category B (last three years) Category B
as: {Projected)
Enter Historical and/or Projected FY 2007 FY 2008 FY 2009 FY 2012
Years:
Current Ratio 0.21 1.15 1.61 2.97
Net Margin Percentage 2.52% 4.19% 9.38% 3.93%
Percent Debt to Total Capitalization | 82.94% 68.61% 58.57% 70.32%
Projected Debt Service Coverage 1.32 2.21 3.37 2.38
Days Cash on Hand 56.00 45.93 55.96 102.88
Cushion Ratio 233 2.20 2.96 4.06

Provide the methodology and worksheets utilized in determining the ratios detailing the calculation
and applicable line item amounts from the financial statements. Complete a separate table for each

co-applicant and provide worksheets for each.

2. Variance

Applicants not in compliance with any of the viability ratios shall document that another organization,
public or private, shall assume the legal responsibility to meet the debt obiigations should the

applicant default.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTAGHMENT 41, IN NUMERICAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE

APPLICATION FORM.
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X. 1120.140 - Economic Feasibility

This section is applicable to all projects subject to Part 1120.

See attachment 42

A. Reasonableness of Financing Arrangements

The applicant shall document the reasonableness of financing arrangements by submitting a
notarized statement signed by an authorized representative that attests to one of the following:

1)

2)

That the total estimated project costs and related costs will be funded in total with cash
and equivalents, including investment securities, unrestricted funds, received pledge
receipts and funded depreciation; or

That the total estimated project costs and related costs will be funded in total or in part by
borrowing because:

A} A portion or all of the cash and equivalents must be retained in the balance sheet
asset accounts in order to maintain a current ratio of at least 2.0 times for
hospitals and 1.5 times for all other facilities; or

B) Borrowing is less costly than the liquidation of existing investments, and the
existing investments being retained may be converted to cash or used to retire
debt within a 60-day period,

8. Conditions of Debt Financing

This criterion is applicable only to projects that involve debt financing. The applicant shall
document that the conditions of debt financing are reasonabte by submitting a notarized statement
signed by an authorized representative that attests to the following, as applicable:

n

2)

3)

That the selected form of debt financing for the project will be at the lowest net cost
available;

That the selected form of debt financing will not be at the lowest net cost available, but is
more advantageous due to such terms as prepayment privileges, no required mortgage,
access to additional indebtedness, term (years), financing costs and other factors;

That the project involves (in total or in part) the leasing of equipment or facilities and that
the expenses incurred with leasing a facility or equipment are less costly than constructing
a new facility or purchasing new equipment.

C. Reasonableness of Project and Related Costs

Read the criterion and provide the following:

1. |dentify each department or area impacted by the proposed project and provide a cost
and square footage allocation for new construction and/or modernization using the
following format (insert after this page).

COST AND GROSS SQUARE FEET BY DEPARTMENT OR SERVICE

A B C D E F G H
Department Total
(list below) Cost/Square Foot Gross Sq. Ft. Gross Sq. Ft. Const. § Mod. § Cost
New Mod. New Circ.* | Mod. Circ.” (A xC) (BxE) (G + H)

Contingency

TOTALS

* Include the percentage (%) of space for circulation

Al

) T 1 I
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D. Projected Operating Costs

The applicant shall provide the projected direct annual operating costs (in current dollars per equivalent
patient day or unit of service) for the first full fiscal year at target utitization but no more than two years
following project completion. Direct cost means the fully allocated costs of salaries, benefits and supplies
for the service.

E. Total Effect of the Project on Capital Costs

The applicant shall provide the total projected annual capital costs (in current doliars per equivalent
patient day) for the first full fiscal year at target utilization but no more than two years following project
completion.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT -42, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

XL Safety Net Impact Statement

See attachment 43

SAFETY NET IMPACT STATEMENT that describes all of the following must be submitted for ALL SUBSTANTIVE AND
DISCONTINUATION PROJECTS:

1. The project's material impact, if any, on essential safety net services in the community, to the extent that it is feasible for an
applicant to have such knowledge.

2. The project’s impact on the ability of another provider or health care system to cross-subsidize safety net services, if reasonably
known to the applicant.

3. How the discontinuation of a facility or service might impact the remaining safety net providers in a given community, if
reasonably known by the applicant.

Safety Net Impact Statements shall also include all of the following:

1. For the 3 fiscal years prior to the application, a certification describing the amount of charity care provided by the applicant. The
amount calculated by hospital applicants shall be in accordance with the reporting requirements for charity care reporting in the
llinois Community Benefits Act. Non-hospital applicants shall report charity care, at cost, in accordance with an appropriate
methodology specified by the Board. ’

2. For the 3 fiscal years prior to the application, a certification of the amount of care provided to Medicaid patients. Hospital and non-
hospital applicants shall provide Medicaid information in a manner consistent with the information reported each year to the [llinois
Department of Public Health regarding "inpatients and Outpatients Served by Payor Source” and "Inpatient and Outpatient Net
Revenue by Payor Source” as required by the Board under Section 13 of this Act and published in the Annual Hospital Profile.

3. Any information the applicant believes is directly relevant to safety net services, including information regarding teaching,
research, and any other service.

A table in the following format must be provided as part of Attachment 43.

Safety Net Information per PA 96-0031
CHARITY CARE
Charity (# of patients) Year Year Year
inpatient
Qutpatient
Total
Charity {cost In dollars}
Inpatient
Outpatient
Total
MEDICAID
Medicaid (# of patients} Year Year Year
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APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-43 IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATEON FORM

XI. Charity Care Information

Charity Care information MUST be furnished for ALL projects.

1, Al} applicants and co-applicants shall indicate the amount of charity care for the latest three audited fiscal years, the cost
of charity care and the ratio of that charity care cost to net patient revenue.

2. If the applicant owns or operates one or more facilities, the reporting shall be for each individual facility located in Hiinois. If
charity care costs are reported on a consolidated basis, the applicant shall provide documentation as to the cost of charity
care: the ratio of that charity care to the net patient revenue for the consolidated financial staterment; the allocation of
charity care costs; and the ratio of charity care cost to net patient revenue for the facility under review.

3. If the applicant is not an existing facility, it shall submit the facility's projected patient mix by payer source, anticipated
charity care expense and projected ratio of charity care to net patient revenue by the end of its second year of operation.

Charity care" means care provided by a health care facility for which the provider does not expect to receive payment from
the patient or a third-party payer. (20 ILCS 3960/3} Charity Care must be provided at cost.

A table in the following format must be provided for all facilities as part of Attachment 44.

CHARITY CARE
Year 2009 Year 2008 Year 2007
Net Patient Revenue 19,894 228 17,271,984 14,448,319
Amount of Charity Care (charges) 2,526,706 637,272 465,438
Cost of Charity Care 805,514 318,616 232,718

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-44 IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPL!CATION FORM '
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attachments included

as part of the project's application for permit.

APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Edition

After paginating the entire, completed application, indicate in the chart below, the page numbers for the

ATTACHMENT
NO.

INDEX OF ATTACHMENTS

PAGES

Applicant/Coapplicant Identification including Certificate of Good
Standing

A5 -l

Site Ownership

RAT7-25

Persons with 5 percent or greater interest in the licensee must be
identified with the % of ownership.

F-9

Organizational Relationships (Organizational Chart) Certificate of
Good Standing Ete.

29

Flood Plain Requirements

2p - 232
g

Historic Preservation Act Requirements

Project and Sources of Funds Itemization

Qbligation Docurmnent if required

3
325-329
[s]

O~ P |

Cost Space Requirements

10

Discontinuation

1 -4¢

Background of the Applicant

41 ~50

12

Purpose of the Project

S -160

13

Alternatives to the Project

Lol =164 ]

14

Size of the Project

J17%]

15

Project Service Utilization

Ho le

16

Unfinished or Shell Space

17

Assurances for Unfinished/Shell Space

171

18

Master Design Project

Mergers, Consclidations and Acquisitions

!

o .

Service Specific:

20

Medical Surgical Pediatrics, Obstetrics, ICU

21

Comprehensive Physical Rehabilitation

22

Acute Mental lllness

23

Neonatal Intensive Care

24

Open Heart Surgery

25

Cardiac Catheterization

In-Center Hemaodialysis

27

Non-Hospital Based Ambulatory Surgery

28

General Long Term Care

29

Specialized Long Term Care

30

Selected Organ Transplantation

31

Kidney Transplantation

32

Subacute Care Hospital Model

33

Post Surgical Recovery Care Center

Children's Community-Based Health Care Center

Community-Based Residential Rehabilitation Center

35
36

Long Term Acute Care Hospital

37

Clinical Service Areas Other than Categories of Service

38

Freestanding Emergency Center Medical Services

PV v S Bl ey
S
l“@

Financial and Economic Feasibility:

39

Availahility of Funds

40

Financial Waiver

41

Financial Viability

42

Economic Feasibility

43

Safety Net impact Statement

Charity Care Information
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File Number 3598-175-6

To all to whom these Presents Shall Come, Greeting:

I, Jesse White, Secretary of State of the State of Illinois, do hereby
certify that I am the keeper of the records of the Department of

Business Services. I certify that

HOOPESTON COMMUNITY MEMORIAL HOSPITAL AN
ILLINOIS CORPORATION, INCORPORATED UNDER THE LAWS OF THIS STATE
APRIL 3, 1956, HAS APPLIED FOR USE OF THE ASSUMED NAME OF HOOPESTON
COMMUNITY MEMORIAL HOSPITAL AND NURSING HOME FEBRUARY 27, 2007,
WITH A RENEWAL DATE OF JUNE 8, 2010, **#stokskok stk bbbk d koo ko 4ok ko

In Testimony Whereof, 1 hereto set
my hand and cause to be affixed the Great Seal of
the State of Illinois, this 11TH

dayof ~ AUGUST AD. 2010
e ce W 7=
Authentication #: 1022301751 .
Authenticate ar: hup://www . cyberdriveillinois.com SECRETARY OF STATE
Attachment - |
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File Number 3598-175-6

To all to whom these Presents Shall Come, Greeting:

I, Jesse White, Secretary of State of the State of Iilinoss, do hereby
certify that I am the keeper of the records of the Department of
o Business Services. [ certify that

HOOPESTON COMMUNITY MEMORIAL HOSPITAL, A DOMESTIC CORPORATION,
INCORPORATED UNDER THE LAWS OF THIS STATE ON APRIL 03, 1956, APPEARS

TO HAVE COMPLIED WITH ALL THE PROVISIONS OF THE GENERAL NOT FOR PROFIT
CORPORATION ACT OF THIS STATE, AND AS OF THIS DATE, IS IN GOOD

STANDING AS A DOMESTIC CORPORATION IN THE STATE OF ILLINOIS.

In Testimony Whereof, I hereto set
my hand and cause to be affixed the Great Seal of
the State of Illinois, this 28TH
day of OCTOBER ~A.D. 2009

Qo ae Wit 2tz

. Authentication #: 0930:02653 .
Verify at www:cyberdriveillinois.com SECRETARY OF STATE

<SSR

- Attachment - |
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FBTRUS 10-04041

WARRANTY DEED LON C,OUNTYTAX BARBARA H. YOUMNG

JERMI VERMILIOR CC RECORDER, It
05/25/2010  03:36:17PH

. L 0 - 0
MAIL TO: $_,_[;§§.———'®""“ RHSE: 10,00

William L. Goidbeck P P& BAGES: 9

Drinker, Biddle & Reath, LP ‘

191 N. Wacker Dr., Suite 3700

Chicago, IL 60606 e e 1 R -'n STATE
8 | SIMEOFILNOS o REAC ESTALS

NAME & ADDRESS OF TAXPAYER: < ) =

Hoopeston Community Memorial Hospital ¢ HY.25.10 S| 0020000

710 East Orange St. ‘S =

Hoopeston, IT. 60942 R R ¥ | FP351002

THE GRANTOR — P K. DOUGHERTY, LLC, an Indiana Limited Liability Company,

for and in consideration of $10.00 and other good and valuable consideration, in hand paid, thc
receipt of which is hereby acknowledged,

CONVEYS AND WARRANTS to HOOPESTON COMMUNITY MEMORIAL HOSPITAL, an
Hlinois Not-For-Profit Corporation of 710 East Orange St., Hoopeston, IL,

the following described real estate:

A part of the Northeast Quarier of Section 10 and part of the Northwest Quarter of
Section 11 Township 23 North, Range 12 West of the 2™ P M., Vemmilion County,
Itlinois, more particularly described as follows: Beginning at the Northeast Comer
of said Section 10, said Corner also being the Northwest Comer of said Section 11.
From said Point of Beginning, thence West 564.25 fect along the North Line of the
Northeast Quarter of said Section 10; thence South 1,111.90 feet along a line parallel
with the West Right-of-Way of S.B.I. Route 1, Sectionn 48-X-3 (Illinois Route 1),
said Line forms an angle to the right of 88°-19°-42" with the last descrnibed course;
thence East 1,037.81 feet along a line which forms an angle to the right of 90°-00°-
00" with the last described courts to said West Right-of-way Line; thence North
845.00 feet along said West Right-of-Way Line which forms an angle to the right of
90°-00"-00"" with the last described course to the Southeast Corner of a tract of land
conveyed per Warranty Deed recorded August 29, 1995 as Document No. 95-8579
in the Vermilion County Recorder’s Office; thence West 208.71 feet along the South
Line of said Tract which forms an angle to the right of 91°-03°-20” with the last
described course to the Southwest Comner of said Tract; thence North 241.71 feet
along the West Line and the Northerly Extension of the West Line of said Tract
which form an angle to the right of 268°-56’-40" with the last described course to
the North Line of the Northwest Quarter of said Section 11; thence West 265.17 feet
along said North Line which forms an angle to the right 91°-03°-20" with the last
described course to the Point of Beginning, containing 25.00 acres, more or less,

Attachment - 2




situated in the County of Vermilion, in the State of Illinois.

This conveyance is made subject to the general taxes for the year 2009, payable in 2010, and
all subsequent taxes thereaﬂ:er and subject to all easements and restrictions of record

Permanent Indéx Number: 03-10-200-001—0021, 03-11 -100—002-0021
Property Address:

R !
Dated this_|“4 i day of  “VNGad ,2010.
4

T {52 meﬁmﬁmm

P. K@OUGHERTY LLG, yPhylhéq
K. Daugherty, Sole Member

STATE OF ILLINOIS )
)SS:
COUNTY OF VERMILION )

[, the undersigned, a Notary Public in and for said County, in the State aforesaid, do hereby
certify that P.K. DOUGHTERY, LLC, by Phyllis K. Dougherty, Sole Member, who is personally
known to me to be the same person whose name is subscribed to the foregoing instrument, appeared
before me this day in person and acknowledged that she signed, sealed and delivered the said
instrument as her free and voluntary act, for the uses and purposes therein set forth.

. . S 3 T afie
Given under my hand and notarial seal this /7"~ dayof * - .+ 1l , 2006,
B »-‘ O mau:.,u.a_ bt ‘»"'L A /7'L vh .-—,J' r‘/_" ”\: e i " .
¢ FLVITCTAL SEALT ¢ NOTARY.PUBLIC
! LSAN J. HARDEN
g NOTART FHRLIC, STATE OF ILLINDIS g
HILARS (N £4PIES B/29/2011
gt s e e i e LT S T

Prepared by: Christopher P. Meyer, 146, N. Vermilion St., Danville, IL. 61832

Member of the Vermilion County Bar Association

Attachment - 2
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. Flood Plain Requirements

The Illinois Department of Natural Resources has determined that the project site is not
located in a Special Flood Hazard Area.

Please see the attached Flood Plain Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) for the project location,
a letter from the Illinois Department of Natural Resources documenting that the project
site is not located in a Special Flood Hazard Area, and a letter attesting that the project
complies with the requirements of Illinois Executive Order #2005-5.

Attachment-5
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Jin [llinots 'Depar_tment of August 30, 2010
. 3 Natlll'a] RBSOUI‘CGS Pat Quinn, Governor

. ‘Marc Miller, Direct
One Naiural Resources Way  Speingfield, Minois 62702-1271 Marc Miller, Direcior
http/fdor.state.il.as

Hoopeston Community Memorial Nursing Home | Hoopeston, (L
southwest corner of West Thompson Avenue {C.H. 1) and Dixie Highway (C.H. 9)
PERMIT NOT REQUIRED NOTIFICATION LETTER

Thank you for the recent submittal regarding the project as shown on the enclosed copy of your submittal. Based on
our review of the information you provided and in accordance with the Rivers, Lakes and Streams Act [615 ILCS 5],
a Depariment of Natural Resources, Office of Water Resources permit will not be required for this work because:

O The Department does not have jurisdiction over streams with drainage areas of less than one square mile in
an urban area, or ten square miles in a rural area. The site of your work s located where the dranage area

is balow these jurisdictional limits.

& The Department does not have regulatory authority over activities outside the floodway of jurisdictional
streams. The floodway is the portion of the floodplain that must remain open and unrestricted to carry flood
flows. The location of this site appears to be higher in elevation and far encugh distance wise to be outside
any lacal floodplains.

(| The Department does not have jurisdiction over construction on non-public fakes in which the project woutd
not impact the dam, traverse the lake or impact the flood carrying capacity of the stream(s} that feed the
lake.

-3 The Department does not have jurisdiction over Class |1l (low hazard) dams which meet alt of the following
criterta: g

a dam height of less than 25 feet; :
an impounding capacity of less than 50 acre-feet {calculated at the top of dam); and
a drainage area of less than ten square miles in a rural area, or one square mile in an urban area.

If modffications are proposed to the dam, this office should be contacted for a determination of
permit applicability prior {o initiation of construction. Also, future changes in downstream {and use
could change the hazard classification making a permit and dam medification necessary.

O The proposed activity is considered routine maintenance or repair work and is exempt from the
Department's permil requirements. .

if you have any questions or comments concerning the above determination, please feel free to contact the person
noted below at 217/785-1661. This letler is not to be construed as a release from any other federal, state or {ocal
laws or regulations. [f the project involves work in a wettand or in a floodpiain and if you have not already done so,
"yoy should contact the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers and the local reguiatory authority to ascertain applicable
federal and local requirements. :

[} Rod Johnson (3 Scott Arends [] Mike Diedrichsen
] Robert Giesing (3 MarkMcCauley [] Dennis Kennedy

BY: W V&Im%nﬂ/ Post-it? Fax Noto 7671 [oate 8/ 7 [dfes® /
/ T°£Za;vr?£ 550g£g§ From GiesSivm
" Coment. /o £ C- TONR Jov
Phone £ 353"35#0 Phone # 735—!@6/
Fax # ?.-3_3* ﬂz Fax # ?35__50]#

TOTAL P.O1
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OOPESTON

REGIONAL HEALTH CENTER

August 18, 2010

Mr. Michael Constantino

Project Review Supervisor

Illinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board
525 West Jefferson Street

Springfield, lllincis 62761

RE: Compliance with Flood Plain Requirements
Dear Mr. Constantino:

The undersigned is an authorized representative of Hoopeston Community Memorial
Hospital, the owner of the site on which the Hoopeston Community Memorial
. Nursing Home is proposed to be relocated.

| hereby attest that this site is not located in a flood plain, as identified by the most
recent FEMA Flood Insurance Rate Map for the location, and that this location
complies with the Fiood Plain Rule and the requirements stated under lllinois
Executive Order #2005-05 “Construction Activities in Special Flood Hazard Areas”.

Sincerely, Sincerely,
Russ Leigh Harry Brockus
Board President Chief Executive Officer
‘ Hoopeston Community Charlotte Ann Russell Hoopeston Community Country Terrace
- Memorial Hospital Medical Center Memorial Nursing Home Apartments
‘ . 70t East Orange 801 East Orange 701 East Orange 705 East Orange
| Hoopeston, 11. 60942 Hoopesion, 1L 60942 Hoopeston, 1L 60942 Hoopeston, 11 60942
Tel: 217 . 283 . 5531 Tel; 217 . 283 . 5644 Tel: 217 . 283 . 8247 Tel: 217 .283 . 9215

‘ Fax: 217,283 4062 Fax: 217,283 . 7432 Fax: 217 . 283 . 6406 Fax: 217.283, 9215
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. Illinois Historic
===+ Preservation Agency

“ 1 Old State Capitel Plaza + Springtield, lllinois 62701-1512 < www.illinois-history.gov

Vermilion County PLEASE REFER TO: IHPA LOG #014011310

Hocpeston
IL Rte 1 and McCracken Avenue, 11-V-951,

UMA-206, USDA,
Rursing Home

April 12, 2010 .

Susan Petrea

USDA - Rural Development
2118 W. Park Court, Suite B
Champaign, 1L 61821

Dear Ms. Petrea:

Acrefs): 5 Site{s]: 1
Archaeolagical Contractor: UMA/Finney

Thank you for submitting the results of the archaeological reconnaissance. Qur comments are required
by Section 106 of the Naticonal Historic Preservation Act of 1566, as amended, and its implementing
requlaticns, 36 CFR 800: “Protection of Historic Properties”.

mir staff has reviewed the archaeological Phase I reconnaissance report performed for the project
“arenced above. The Phase I survey and assessment of the archaeological resources appear Lo bhe
.equata. Accordingly, we have determined, based upon this report, that no significant historie,
architectural, and archaeological resources are located in the projecc area.

Please submit a copy of this letter with your application to the etate or federal agency from which you
obtain any permit, licensSe, grant, or cother assistance. Please retain this letter in your files as ’
evidence of compliance with Section 106 of the National Historie Pregervation Aot of 1966, as amended.

Sincerely,

Anne E, Haaker

Deputy State Historic
Preservation Officex

AEH

feltt Fred A. Finney, Ph.D., Upper Midwest Archaeology
Me. Lauren R, Elder, Red Capital Group

A leletypewriter for the speechifiearing impaired is gvadable al 217-524-7128. It is not a vaice or fax line.
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Project Costs and Sources of Funds

. The proposed project is the discontinuation of the existing facility of the Hoopeston
Community Memorial Nursing Home and the establishment of a replacement facility.

The following is the list of items comprising the Project Costs for the proposed project.

Clinical NonClinical Totals
Site Survey and Soil Investigation

Field Survey / Soil Borings $1,659 $1,716 $3,375
Geotech Report $553 $572 $1,125
Total $2,212 $2,288 $4,500

New Construction Contracts

Excavation & Foundations $101,567 $195,055  $296,622
| Structure $333,718 £255,072  $588,790
| Exterior Enclosure $350,647 $362,603  $713,250
| Roofing $67,711 $70,020  $137,731

Interior Assemblies $539,270 $557,658 $1,096,928

Plumbing $324,046 $335,095  $659,141

HVAC $311,955 $322,591  $634,546

Fire Protection $120,913 $125,035  $245,948

. Electrical $268,426 $277,578  $546,004

Total $2,418.253  $2,500,707 $4,918,960

Contingencies

Excavation & Foundations $16,911 $17,283 $34,194

Structure $21,653 $22,598 $44,251

Exterior Enclosure $31,066 $32,125 $63,191

Roofing $6,000 $6,203 $12,203

Interior Assemblies $47,777 $49.,406 $97,183

Plumbing $28,709 $29.688 $58,397

HVAC $27,638 $28,580 $56,218

Fire Protection $10,712 $11,078 $21,790

Electrical $23,781 $24,592 $48,373

Total $214,247 $221,553 $435,800

Architectural/Engineering Fees

Architecture/Project
Management £74,088 §77,112  $151,200
Civil Engineering $17,052 $17,748 $34,800
. Structural Engineering $14,818 $15,422 $30,240
Page 1 of 5 Attachment-7
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Project Costs and Sources of Funds

Mechanical Engineering $24,696 $25,704 $50,400
Electrical Engineering $19,757 $20,563 $40,320
Landscape Architecture $8,232 $8,568 $16,800
Interior Design $8,232 $8,568 $16,800
Reimbursable Expenses $4,900 $5,100 $10,000
Total $171,775 $178,785  $350,560
Miscellaneous Consulting Fees $12,780 $13,215 $25,995
Total $25,995
Non-

Other Costs to be Capitalized Clinical Clinical Totals
Labor for relocation $9,832 $10,168 $20,000
Total $9,832 $10,168 $20,000

Movable and Other Equipment

ITEM COST Number  Total Cost

BARIJATRIC WHEEL CHAIR X2 $1,000.00 2 $2,000.00
GEL CUSHION X70 $30.00 70 $2,100.00
LAP BUDDY X25 $25.00 25 $625.00
RECLINING G-CHAIR X 20 $500.00 20 $10,000.00
G-CHAIR CUSHION X20 $102.00 20 $2,040.00
FULL LIFTS X2 $4,000.00 2 $8,000.00
FULL SLINGS X4 $200.00 4 $800.00
SIT-STAND LIFTS X3 $3,000.00 3 $9,000.00
SIT-STAND SLINGS X6 $200.00 6 $1,200.00
ELEVATED TOILET SEATS X 10 $25.00 10 $250.00
SUCTION MACHINES X5 $200.00 5 $1,000.00
NEBULIZERS X 10 $50.00 10 $500.00
VITAL SIGNS MONITORS X2 $3,000.00 2 $6,000.00
PULSE OXIMETER X2 $350.00 2 $700.00
EEAR THERMOMETER X4 $250.00 4 $1,000.00
OTOSCOPE X3 $150.00 3 $450.00
WHEELCHAIR STAND SCALE $2,000.00 1 $2,000.00
BEDS X75 $2.,000.00 75 $150,000.00
MATTRESS X75 $200.00 75 $6,760.00
OVERBED TRAYS X25 $100.00 25 $2,500.00
BEDSIDE STAND X75 $150.00 75  $11,250.00
DRESSER X 75 $200.00 75 $15,000.00
WARDROBE X75 $300.00 75  $22,500.00
CHAIR X75 $200.00 75 $15,000.00
BEDSIDE LAMP X75 $50.00 75 $3,750.00
Subtotal $274,425.00

LIVING ROOM #1

SOFA $1,054.00 1 $1,054.00
Page 2 of 5 Attachment-7




Project Costs and Sources of Funds

LOUNGE CHAIR $500.00 1 $500.00
END TABLES X2 $150.00 2 $300.00
COFFEE TABLE $100.00 I $100.00
TV $500.00 1 $500.00
TABLE LAMPS X2 $50.00 2 $100.00
FLOOR LAMP $100.00 1 $100.00
Subtotal $2,654.00
LIVING ROOM #2
LOVE SEAT $700.00 1 $700.00
CHAIR W/OTTOMAN $600.00 1 $£600.00
END TABLE X2 $150.00 2 $300.00
COFFEE TABLE $100.00 1 $100.00
TV $500.00 1 $500.00
TABLE LAMPS X2 $£50.00 2 $100.00
FLOOR LAMP $100.00 1 $100.00
Subtotal $2.400.00
LIVING ROOM #3
SOFA $1,054.00 1 $1,054.00
LOVE SEAT $700.00 1 $700.00
LOUNGE CHAIR $500.00 1 $500.00
OCCASIONAL TABLE $150.00 1 $150.00
SOFA TABLE $200.00 1 $200.00
TV $500.00 1 $500.00
TABLE LAMPS X 2 $50.00 2 $100.00
FLOOR LAMP $100.00 1 $100.00
Subtotal $3,304.00
OUTDOOR FURNITURE
WHEELCHAIR SWINGS X2 $4,500.00 2 $9,000.00
TABLE W/4 CHAIRS X 3 $600.00 3 $1,800.00
ROCKERS X4 $125.00 4 $500.00
Subtotal $11,300.00
AED MACHINE X 2 $3,000.00 2 $6,000.00
Subtotal $6,000.00
OFFICE FURNITURE (8)
DESKS X2 $1,000.00 2 $2,000.00
DESK X6 $500.00 6 $3,000.00
FILE CABINETS X8 $400.00 8 $3,200.00
BOOKCASES X8 $200.00 8 $1,600.00
CHAIRS X8 $200.00 8 $1,600.00
Subtotal $11,400.00
BEAUTY SHOP:
HYDRAULIC CHAIRS X 2 $600.00 2 $1,200.00
SHAMPOO BOWLS X2 $400.00 2 $800.00
DRYER CHAIRS X2 $600.00 2 $1,200.00
Subtotal $3,200.00
Page 3 of 5 Attachment-7
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Project Costs and Sources of Funds

Miscellaneous
LAUNDRY CARTS X4
LINEN CARTS X2
MICROWAVE OVENS X4
ICE MACHINES X 3
ICE/BEVERAGE CART X 2
UTILITY CARTS X 6
CONFERENCE TABLE & 8 CHAIRS
Subtotal

Activities Area
SNACK CART
SOFA
LOUNGE CHAIR
OTTOMAN
TABLE
HEAT LAMP X 2
STOVE
REFRIGERATOR
LUGGAGE CARRIER
OUTSIDE GRILL
GAME TABLE

SOFT SERVE ICE CREAM MACHINE

POPCORN MACHINE
MENU BOARDS X 2
Subtotal

Dietary/Kitchen
CUTTING BOARDS
MUFFIN PANS
CAKE PANS
COOKIE SHEETS
STN STL TABLES X 6
PLATES X 10 DOZ.
DESSERT DISHES X 10 DOZ.
BOWLS X 10 DOZ.
MUGS X 10 DOZ.
DRINKING GLASSES X 25 DOZ.
SILVERWARE X 10 DOZ.
POTS & PANS
FLOOR MATS X 7
6-BURNER STOVE
CONVECTION OVEN X 2
STEAMER
STEAMER WATER FILTER
CONVEYOR TOASTER X2
FRYER BASKET
MOP BUCKET

Page 4 of 5
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$300.00
$300.00
$150.00
$3,000.00
$400.00
$150.00
$1,000.00

$1,500.00
$2,650.00
$1,300.00
$600.00
$300.00
$500.00
$1,000.00
$2,000.00
$900.00
$500.00
$1,500.00
$2,000.00
$600.00
$800.00

$200.00
$300.00
$300.00
$275.00
$350.00
$1,188.00
$768.00
$768.00
$740.00
$300.00
$35.00
$350.00
$602.00
$2,400.00
$5,000.00
$8,000.00
$300.00
$1,498.00
$521.00
$65.00
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$1,200.00
$600.00
$600.00
$9,000.00
$800.00
$900.00
$1,000.00
$14,100.00

$1,500.00
$2,650.00
$1,300.00
$600.00
$300.00
$1,000.00
$1,000.00
$2,000.00
$900.00
$500.00
$1,500.00
$2,000.00
$600.00
$1,600.00
$17,450.00

$200.00
$300.00
$300.00
$275.00
$2,100.00
$1,188.00
$768.00
$768.00
$740.00
$300.00
$35.00
$2,450.00
$602.00
$4,800.00
$10,000.00
$8,000.00
$600.00
$1,498.00
$521.00
$65.00
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Project Costs and Sources of Funds

TILT SKILLET
OVERHEAD CABINETS

ICE MACHINE

FOOD PROCESSOR
COOLER - NEEDS RACKS
FREEZER - NEEDS RACKS
STORAGE ROOM RACKS X26
DISH MACHINE

DISH MACHINE RACKS
SINK W/HOSE

GARBAGE DISPOSAL &
COUNTERSPACE

CARTS X6

SLICER

CAFE TABLE X 5

CAFE CHAIRS X 20
GARBAGE CANS 44 GAL X 5
WHEELS

GARBAGE CANS 33 GAL X 4
CAN OPENER

LADLEX 12

PIE SERVER X 5

SERVING SPOONS X 1 DOZ.
ICE CREAM SCOOPS X 80
SOUP LADLE X5

SPOODLES X24

KNIVES

STRAINER

BOWLS

STORAGE CONTAINERS
PITCHERS X 48

SCALES X 2
THERMOMETERS X8
TRAYS X 4 DOZ.

KETCHUP & MUSTARD X24 EA
MIXER

CAFE COOLER

WAFFLE MAKER

Subtotal

Total
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$11,562.00
$2,000.00
$2,759.00
$1,139.00
$7,329.00
$7,899.00
$200.00
$14,029.00
$250.00
$2,115.00

$1,524.00
$1,170.00
$827.00
$400.00
$3,280.00
$80.00
$53.00
$100.00
$300.00
$12.00
$10.00
$42.00
$12.00
$14.00
$20.00
$400.00
$80.00
$500.00
$15.00
$480.00
$150.00
$8.00
$90.00
$3.00
$2,300.00
$2,719.00
$640.00

$11,562.00
$2,000.00
$2,759.00
$1,139.00
$7,329.00
$7,899.00
$5,200.00
$14,029.00
$250.00
$2,115.00

$1,524.00
$1,170.00
$827.00
$400.00
$3,280.00
$400.00
$53.00
$400.00
$300.00
$144.00
$50.00
$42.00
$960.00
$70.00
$480.00
$400.00
$80.00
$500.00
$720.00
$480.00
$150.00
$64.00
$90.00
$72.00
$2,300.00
$2,719.00
$640.00
$108,107.00
$454,340.00
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Cost Space Requirements

Hoopeston Community Memorial Nursing Home proposes to relocate from its existing
facility at 701 East Orange Street, Hoopeston, Illinois to a replacement location at the
corner of Route 1 and Thompson Road in Hoopeston Ilinois.

The existing nursing home facility will be demolished approximately 12 months after
discontinuation and establishment of the nursing home in the replacement facility. The
vacated building space will not be used after the nursing home relocates to the new
facility.

Amount of Proposed Total Gross Square
Gross Square Feet Feet That Is:
As | Vacated

Dept./ Area Cost Existing Proposed New Const, | Modernized | Is Space
REVIEWABLE
General Long-
Term Care $3,151,227 18,213 BGSF | 18,213 BGSF
Total Clinical $3,151,227 18,213 BGSF | 18,213 BGSF
NON
REVIEWABLE
Administrative $328,200 1,641 BGSF 1,641 BGSF
Dining $627,836 3,004 BGSF 3,004 BGSF
Kitchen $536,722 1,677 BGSF 1,677 BGSF
Mechanical $912,900 3,043 BGSF 3,043 BGSF
Storage 395,550 1,050 BGSF 1,050 BGSF
Circulation $757,710 8,419 BGSF 8,419 BGSF
Total Non-
clinical $3,258,918 18,834 BGSF | 18,834 BGSF
TOTAL $6,410,145 37,047 BGSF | 37,047 BGSF
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Section I1. Discontinuation

General Information Requirements

1. Identify the categories of service and the number of beds, if any, that are to

be discontinued.

Hoopeston Community Memorial Nursing Home proposes to discontinue its
current location at 701 East Orange Street in Hoopeston Illinois and establish a
replacement facility at the corner of Route | and Thompson Road in Hoopeston

Hlinois.

The nursing home has 75 long term care beds, No beds are being discontinued.
Identify all of the other clinical services that are to be discontinued.

No clinical services are being discontinued.

. Provide the anticipated date of discontinuation of each identified service or
of the entire facility.

The nursing home proposes to discontinue the existing location and relocate to the
replacement facility in April of 2012.

Provide the anticipated usc of the physical plant and equipment after the
discontinuation occurs.

The existing nursing home facility will eventually be demolished and become a
parking lot.

The equipment in the existing nursing home will be replaced with new equipment.
Wherever possible, the existing equipment will be traded in as part of the
purchase of new equipment.

Provide the anticipated disposition and location of all medical records
pertaining to the services being discontinued, and the length of time the
records will be maintained.

No services are being discontinued. Medical records will continue to be retained
in accordance with the medical record retention policy of the facility, and the
retention policy is not being changed.

For applications involving the discontinuation of entire facility, certification
by an authorized representative that all questionnaires and data required by
the HFSRB or DPH (e.g., annual questionnaires, capital expenditure surveys,
etc.) will be provided through the date of discontinuation, and that the
required information will be submitted no later than 60 days following the
date of discontinuation. '

Attachment-10
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Section II. Discontinuation -

After Hoopeston Community Memorial Nursing Home relocates to the
replacement facility, it will continue to operate as a licensed long term care
facility and will continue to complete all questionnaires and submit all data
required by the HFSRB and DPH as they become due.

See Attachment-10 for certification by an authorized representative that all
questionnaires and data required by the HFSRB or DPH (e.g., annual
questionnaires, capital expenditure surveys, etc.) will continue to be provided.

Reasons for Discontinuation

1.

The applicant shall state the reasons for discontinuation and provide data
that verifies the need for the proposed action.

Hoopeston Regional Health Center must build a new nursing home for many
reasons. The current nursing home is comprised of the original building, designed
in 1970 to the institutional standards of that time, and an addition built in 1995, It
has become too obsolete to meet the needs of the residents as those needs are
ever-changing.

There are a number of existing problems and issues. Some have been cited as
deficiencies in the annual licensure and certification surveys done by lllinois
Department of Public Health (IDPH). All can be tied in some manner to three
Conditions of Participation 42 CFR 483.15 Quality of Life:

e F-tag 242 self determination and participation (choices and activities)
e F-tag 246 accommodation of needs; and
e F-tag 252 environment safe, clean, and home-like.

The following is a list of existing problems and issues to be addressed. The
specific codes and/or industry standards related to these problems/issues are also

listed.

e Shared resident rooms lend to lack of privacy and can affect the dignity of
residents. Physician visits are not always private. Family or visitors of
residents may not be able to talk in private.

The Conditions of Participation for Medicare and Medicaid at 42 CFR
483.10 Resident Rights, F-tag 164 calls for resident privacy and
confidentiality; 483.15 Quality of Life, F-tag 241 addresses dignity.

+ In the rooms in the older section of the current nursing home the bathroom

has no sink. The sink is located in the middle of the room shared by two
residents.
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Section I1. Discontinuation

The Conditions of Participation for Medicare and Medicaid at 42 CFR
483.10 Resident Rights, F-tag 164 calls for resident privacy and
confidentiality; 483.15 Quality of Life, F-tag 241 addresses dignity.

Privacy for resident groups was cited during a survey. Group meetings
have to be done in dining areas with someone watching the door to

maintain privacy.
This was a Quality of Life tag at 42 CFR 483.15 F-243,

Storage space in resident rooms is very limited. The upper closet space
can no longer be used because sprinklers were installed as a result of an
IDPH Life Safety Code deficiency cited at survey. This further limits
available space for storage that was limited before.

The Conditions of Participation for Medicare and Medicaid at 42 CFR
483.70 (a) Life Safety from Fire and 2000 Edition of NFPA 101, Life
Safety Code chapter 19 Existing Health Care, K-tag 073 were cited.

Storage space for equipment is also very limited. More wheelchairs,
walkers, lifts, and geri-chairs are needed to maintain resident mobility and
assist with resident and staff safety. During an IDPH survey a deficiency
was cited for having this equipment in the hallway.

42 CFR 483.70 K-tag 072 was cited.

A garden walk that is barely wide enough for one wheelchair is currently
the only outside space that is gated and safe for residents. Staff must
attend residents in any other outside area.

This references several Conditions of Participation: 483.15 Quality of Life
F-tag 242 self-determination and participation (choices and activities);
483.25 Quality of Care F-tag 323 accidents and supervision and F-tag 246
accommodation of needs.

Smoke barrier issues have been found and repaired as part of the IDPH
Life Safety Code survey process. As this building ages these issues
continue to be found.

42 CFR 483.70 K-tag 025 has been cited.

Dining areas are small and noisy. Ceiling tile and floor tile have been
replaced and patched as needed and do not match. Lighting is mainly
bright fluorescent and glaring. '
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Section II. Discontinuation

42 CFR 483.70 Physical Environment F-tag 464 addresses dining and
resident activities. 42 CFR 483.15 F-tag 256 calls for adequate and
comfortable lighting and F-tag 258 calls for comfortable sound levels.

o The nurse call system is antiquated and noisy. The door alarm system
installed as a result of an IDPH deficiency is also very noisy and disrupts
activities and meals and can aggravate symptoms in cognitively impaired
residents. The heating and cooling system is also outdated.

Conditions of Participation 42 CFR 483.15 Quality of Life F-tag 257 is for
safe and comfortable temperature levels.

o Too hot or too cold water has the potential to adversely affect residents. It
is difficult to repair an old system as parts are no longer available.
Water temperature throughout the facility has been cited as a deficiency at
42 CFR 483.25 Quality of Care F-tag 323 accidents and supervision.

Impact on Access

1.

Document that the discontinuation of each service or of the entire facility will
not have an adverse effect upon access to eare for residents of the facility’s
market area.

The Hoopeston Community Memorial Nursing Home is proposing to relocate to a
replacement site and facility. The 75 general long term care beds affected by this
relocation are inventoried by the Health Facilities and Services Review Board as
general long term care beds and will retain that designation. The Hoopeston
Community Memorial Nursing Home will continue to provide general long term
care services under its general Long Term Care license. There will be no change
in capability to provide service.

The following are other facilities in the area which provide nursing home
services:

Asta Care, Paxton, Illinois

Colonial Manor, Danville, Illinois

Country Health Nursing Center, Gifford, 1llinois
Danville Care Center, Danville, 11linois

Gilman Nursing Home, Gilman, Illinois
Heartland Healthcare Center, Paxton, Illinois
Iroquois Memorial Resident Home, Watseka, Ilinois
Knights Templar, Paxton, lllinois

Liberty Village/Hawthorne Inn, Danville, 11linois
North Logan Rehab, Danville, Illinois

Sheldon Health Care Center, Sheldon, lllinois
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Section II. Discontinuation

¢ VA - LTC, Danville, Illinois
s Vermilion Manor Nursing Home, Danville, Iilinois
e Watseka Rehabilitation & Health Care Center, Watseka, Illinois

Copies of MapQuest documentation, showing the travel time for each contacted
provider from the Hoopeston Community Memorial Nursing Home, are attached
as part of the Appendix to Attachment-10.

Document that a written request for an impact statement was received by all
existing or approved health care facilities (that provide the same services as
those that are being discontinued) located within 45 minutes travel time of
the applicant facility.

A letter was sent to the general Jong term care service providers located within 45
minutes travel time of Hoopeston Community Memorial Nursing Home. The
letter documented:

e The intent of Hoopeston Community Memorial Nursing Home to relocate
to a new site and facility.

o The intent of Hoopeston Community Memorial Nursing Home to continue
to provide general long term care to its patients under its long term care
license.

s A request for notification of adverse effect of this action on the provider.

e A statement to the effect that if no response is received it will be assumed
that Hoopeston Community Memorial Nursing Home relocation will not
have an adverse impact on the facility.

The letters were sent via Federal Express. The delivery report from Federal
Express indicates that all letters were delivered no later than July 28, 2010.

A copy of the delivery report is attached as part of the Appendix to Attachment-
10. '

. Provide copies of impact statements received from other resources or health
care facilities located within 45 minutes travel time, that indicate the extent
to which the applicant’s workload will be absorbed without conditions,
limitations or discrimination.

As of September 3, 2010 four responses have been received in response to the
letter. None of the responses have indicated an adverse impact.

The letter responses that were received are attached as part of the Appendix to
Attachment-10.
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OOPESTON

REGIONAL HEALTH CENTER

August 19, 2010

Mr. Michael Constantino

Project Review Supervisor

Illinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board
525 West Jefferson Street

Springfield, lllinois 62761

RE: Provision of Required Questionnaires and Certifications

Dear Mr. Constantino:

The undersigned is an authorized representative of Hoopeston Community Memorial
Nursing Home.

| hereby certify that Hoopeston Community Memorial Nursing Home will continue to
complete all questionnaires and submit all data required by the Health Facilities and
Services Review Board and the Department of Public Health as they become due.

Sincerely, Sincerely,
( 2 " 5 % - é 6;; ay&d/t/
Russ Leigh Halrry Brockus
President, Board of Directors Chief Executive Officer
Hoopesion Community Charloite Ann Russell Hoopeston Community Country Terrace
Memorial Hospital Medical Center Memorial Nursing Home Apartments
701 East Orange 801 East Orange ) 701 East Orangc 705 East Orange
Hoopeston, IL 60942 Hoopeston, IL 60942 Hoopeston, TL 60942 Hoopeston, 11 60942
Tek; 217 . 283 . 5531 Tel: 217 . 283 . 5644 Tel: 217 . 283 . 8247 Tcl: 217 . 283 . 9215
Fax: 217 . 283 . 4062 Fax: 217 . 283 . 7432 Fax: 217.283 . 6406 Fax: 217.283.9215
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OOPESTON

July 23,2010

Mr. Dale Galassie
Chairman

llinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board
525 West Jefferson Street
Springfield, Hinois 62761

RE: Attachment 11 - Background of Applicant

Dear Mr. Galassie:

*

The following information addresses the four points of the subject criterion 1110.230:

1. The health care facilities owned or operated by the applicant include:

Hoopeston Community Memorial Hospital
License Identification Number: 0004200
Accreditation Identification Number: 3875

Hoopeston Community Memorial Nursing Home
License Identification Number: 0035022
Accreditation Identification Number: 3875

Charlotte Ann Russell Medical Center
License Identification Number: 0004200
Accreditation Identification Number: 3875

Bridgeway Outpatient Clinic
License Identification Number: 0004200
Accreditation Identification Number: 3875

Rossville Medical Clinic
License Identification Number: 0004200
Accreditation Identification Number: 3875

Cissna Park Medical Clinic
License |dentification Number: 0004200
Accreditation Identification Number: 3875

Hoopeston Community

Memorial Hospital
701 East Orange
Hoopeston, [l 60942
Tel: 217 . 283 . 5531
Fax: 217.283.4062

Charlotte Ann Russell Hoopeston Community
Medical Center Memorial Nursing Home
801 East Oranpe 701 East Orange

Hoopeston, 1L 60942 Hoopeston, IL 60942
Tel: 217. 283 . 5644 Tel: 217 . 283 . 8247
Fax: 217.283.7432 Fax: 217 . 283 . 6406

47

Country Terrace
Apartments
705 East Orange
Hoopeston, 1L 60942
Tel: 217,283 . 9215
Fax: 217.283.9215
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Mr. Dale Galassie
Illingis Health Facilities and Services Review Board July 23, 2010

2. Proof of current licensure and accreditation is attached. The clinics operate as “provider
based” and fall under the hospital license.

3. There have been no adverse actions taken against the health care facilities owned or
operated by the applicant during the three years prior to the filing of this application.

4. This letter serves as authorization permitting the State Board and Agency access to
information in order to verify any documentation or information submitted in response to the
requirements of this subsection or to obtain any documentation or information which the
State Board or Agency finds pertinent to this subsection.

Sincerely,

?5@%@/
. Harry Brockus

President and CEQ

Attachments

Notarization:

Subscribed and sworn to before me thisgrd_ day of (EQCM)']L O O
9 )

Signature of Notary (seal)

WAGONER
NOTARY PUBLIC

STATE OF ILLINOIS
MY COMMISSION EXPIRES 05-08-2011

Hoopeston Community Charlotte Ann Russell Hoopeston Community Country Terrace
|

Memorial Hospital Medical Center Memorial Nursing Home Apartments
701 East Orange 801 East Orange 701 East Orange 705 East Orange
. Hoopeston, 1. 60942 Hoopeston, 1L 60942 Hoopestlon, TL 60942 Hoopeston, 1L 60942
Tel: 217 . 283 . 5531 Tel: 217 . 283 . 5644 Tel: 217 . 283 . 8247 Tel: 217 . 283 . 9215
‘ Fax: 217 .283 . 4062 Fax: 217 .283.7432 Fax: 217.283 . 6406 Fax: 217.283.9215
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Purpose of Project

. 1. Document that the project will provide health services that will improve the
health care or well-being of the market area population to be served.

The proposed replacement nursing home would improve health care and well-being
of the market population in two ways:

o By addressing the issues and concerns associated with the existing Hoopeston
Community Memorial Nursing Home facility as documented in section 3
below, and

e By expanding the nursing home’s 1mplementat10n of the home-like
environment philosophy as documented in section 5 below.

Based on COMPdata, as represented in the table below, the population of the
Hoopeston Community Memorial Nursing Home service area is aged and aging,.
Therefore it is expected that the need for general long term care services will increase
over time. While there is no plan to expand services, the replacement nursing home
site area could accommodate an expansion to the proposed nursing home in the future
if needed.

2009 Total 2014 Total 2009 - 2014 % Population 65+

Median
A A Population % of Total % of Change
Population Population  * p e A poputation 2009 - 2014 |

14,303 13,977 2.3 413 19.9% 3.0%
3,297 3,274 1.3% 380 13.8% 13.2%
17 540 17,256 -1.8% 40.8 18.8% 4.4%
12,837,518__ 13,251,314 2.4% 38.1 12.3% 121%
306,624,60¢ 322,320,438 51% 36.9 12.8% 16.2%

2. Define the planning area or market area, or other, per the applicant’s definition.

The Hoopeston Community Memeorial Nursing Home service area is compnscd
of all or parts of the following counties:

e In Illinois: Champaign, Ford, Iroquois, Vermilion.
¢ In Indiana: Benton

The Hoopeston Community Memorial Nursing Home service area by zip code is:

o Primary Service Area: 60942 Hoopeston, 60960 Rankin, 60963
Rossville, 60973 Wellington, 60924 Cissna Park, 60953 Milford.
 Secondary Service Area: 61811 Alvin, 61865 Potomac, 61814 Bismarck.

The combination of the primary and secondary service areas served by the
nursing home, based on COMPdata as represented in the table above, had an
estimated population of 17,540 in 2009 and is projected to have a population of
17,256 in 2014. This is a decline of 1.6%.

. The combination of the primary and secondary service areas served by the
nursing home, based on COMPdata data as represented in the table above, had a

Page 1 of 7 _ Attachment-12
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Purpose of Project

median age of 40.8 years in 2009. Approximately 19% of the population was
over the age of 65, and that segment of the population is expected to grow by
4.4% between 2009 and 2014.

According to the July 20, 2010 monthly update to the Inventory of Health Care
Facilities and Services for Long-Term Care Services, there are 508 excess beds
in Health Service Area 4. Of these, 380 are located in the four counties
overlaying the Hoopeston Community Memorial Nursing Home service area. Of
these, 93 are located in the Vermilion county planning area.

The Hoopeston Community Memorial Nursing Home has operated at or above
the minimum annual average occupancy target of 90%, as specified in Section
1100.660 General Long-Term Nursing Care Category of Service item ¢ of the
Administrative Code for the last 15 years. In addition, the replacement facility is
expected to exceed the occupancy target upon opening, and to continue to exceed
the target thereafter.

. Identify the existing problems or issues that need to be addressed, as applicable

and appropriate for the project.

Problems with the status quo are detailed below and in the narrative response for
Section 1110.230, Alternatives to the Proposed Project (Attachment-13).

The Hoopeston Community Memorial Nursing Home is comprised of the original
building, designed in 1970 to the institutional standards of that time, and an addition
built in 1995 which expanded the long term care bed count from 50 to 75. Life safety
matters are addressed through the administration’s program of continual inspections
and maintenance, Although well-maintained, the facility is showing deterioration due
to its age. The roof has been repaired numerous times and still leaks occasionally.
The exterior wood will not hold paint and is peeling at the edges. The bricks are
crumbling in places. The old windows do not seal well. Heating and air conditioning
in resident rooms is inconsistent.

The following is a list of existing problems and issues to be addressed. The specific
codes and/or industry standards related to these problems/issues are also listed.

o Shared resident rooms lend to lack of privacy and can affect the dignity of
residents. Physician visits are not always private. Family or visitors of
residents may not be able to talk in private.

The Conditions of Participation for Medicare and Medicaid at 42 CFR 483.10
Resident Rights, F-tag 164 calls for resident privacy and confidentiality;
483.15 Quality of Life, F-tag 241 addresses dignity.

Page 2 of 7 521 Attachment-12




Purpose of Project

In the rooms in the older section of the current nursing home the bathroom has
no sink. The sink is located in the middle of the room shared by two
residents.

The Conditions of Participation for Medicare and Medicaid at 42 CFR 483.10
Resident Rights, F-tag 164 calls for resident privacy and confidentiality;
483.15 Quality of Life, F-tag 241 addresses dignity.

Privacy for resident groups was cited during a survey. Group meetings have
to be done in dining areas with someone watching the door to maintain
privacy.

This was a Quality of Life tag at 42 CFR 483.15 F-243.

Storage space in resident rooms is very limited. The upper closet space can
no longer be used because sprinklers were installed as a result of an Illinois
Department of Public Health (IDPH) Life Safety Code deficiency cited at
survey. This further limits available space for storage that was limited before.

The Conditions of Participation for Medicare and Medicaid at 42 CFR 483.70
(a) Life Safety from Fire and 2000 Edition of NFPA 101, Life Safety Code
chapter 19 Existing Health Care, K-tag 073 were cited.

Storage space for equipment is also very limited. More wheelchairs, walkers,
lifts, and geri-chairs are needed to maintain resident mobility and assist with
resident and staff safety. During an IDPH survey a deficiency was cited for
having this equipment in the hallway.

42 CFR 483.70 K-tag 072 was cited.

A garden walk that is barely wide enough for one wheelchair is currently the
only outside space that is gated and safe for residents. Staff must attend
residents in any other outside area.

This references several Conditions of Participation: 483.15 Quality of Life F-
tag 242 self-determination and participation (choices and activities); 483.25
Quality of Care F-tag 323 accidents and supervision and F-tag 246
accommodation of needs.

Smoke barrier issues have been found and repaired as part of the IDPH Life
Safety Code survey process. As this building ages these issues continue to be
found.

42 CFR 483.70 K-tag 025 has been cited.

Page 3 of 7 53 Attachment-12




Purpose of Project

. ¢ Dining areas are small and noisy. Ceiling tile and floor tile have been
replaced and patched as needed and do not match. Lighting is mainly bright
fluorescent and glaring.

42 CFR 483.70 Physical Environment F-tag 464 addresses dining and resident
activities. 42 CFR 483.15 F-tag 256 calls for adequate and comfortable
lighting and F-tag 258 calls for comfortable sound levels.

o The nurse call system is antiquated and noisy. The door alarm system
installed as a result of an IDPH deficiency is also very noisy and disrupts
activities and meals and can aggravate symptoms in cognitively impaired
residents. The heating and cooling system is also outdated.

Conditions of Participation 42 CFR 483.15 Quality of Life F-tag 257 is for
safe and comfortable temperature levels.

e Too hot or too cold water has the potential to adversely affect residents. Itis
difficult to repair an old system as parts are no longer available.
Water temperature throughout the facility has been cited as a deficiency at 42
CFR 483.25 Quality of Care F-tag 323 accidents and supervision.

4. Cite the sources of the information provided as documentation.

. The existing problems and issues with the existing nursing home facility are
identified in section 3, above. Some have been cited as deficiencies in the annual
licensure and certification surveys done by Iilinois Department of Public Health. All
can be tied in some manner to three Conditions of Participation 42 CFR 483.15
Quality of Life:

¢ F-tag 242 self determination and participation (choices and activities)
s F-tag 246 accommodation of needs; and
o F-tag 252 environment safe, clean, and home-like.

In addition to addressing these issues, the design of the replacement facility supports
elements of the Pioneer concept in nursing homes, using a person-centered approach
and creating a home-like environment. Some of the facility details supporting this
approach are listed in section 5 below.

Three references on the value of a “home-like” environment strategy are included in
Attachment-12:

¢ Parkin, Scott. “Pioneering the New Nursing Home.” Nursing Homes, Dec
2000.
e Sadden, Linda, Lisa Deaton, Marlene Gonzales. “Culture Change Concept
. Paper: Bringing Culture Change to Louisiana Nursing Homes”. Louisiana
Department of Health and Hospitals website, November 09, 2004.
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Bowman, Carmen S. “The Environmental Side of the Culture Change
Movement: Identifying Barriers and Potential Solutions to Furthering
Innovation in Nursing Homes.” A background paper to the April 3rd, 2008
symposium Creating Home in the Nursing Home: A National Symposium on
Culture Change and the Environment Requirements.

The Bowman report provides insights into the concept of “home”, the importance
of the physical environment in nursing homes, the evolving culture of change in
long-term care, and physical environment issues in long-term care facilities.

5. Detail how the project will address or improve the previously referenced issues,

as well

as the population’s health status and well-being.

The replacement nursing home will address the issues and concerns associated with
the existing facility as follows:

Page 5 of 7

The building will enable the Hoopeston Community Memorial Nursing Home
to meet all codes and requirements in the Conditions of Participation for
Medicare and Medicaid and Life Safety Code. The entire building will be
safer related to fire and smoke issues of the past.

The environment will be easier to maintain for cleanliness and Infection
Control requirements. New materials in floor and wall coverings, furnishings
and equipment can be more resistant to germs and harbor less bacteria.

There will be an isolation resident room on each wing of the building. This
will enable staff to better care for residents who need to be isolated and to
protect others.

One resident room will be set up and equipped to serve the needs of bariatric
patients.

The Hoopeston Community Memorial Nursing Home practices the Pioneer
philosophy of providing a person-centered environment by understanding and
responding to individual resident preferences, allowing more resident choices,
and creating a more home-like environment. The replacement nursing home
will allow us to carry out that philosophy to a much greater extent.

o The entire building will be much less institutional looking because
floor coverings, wall coverings, light fixtures and furnishings will be
conducive to a home-like environment.

o Resident rooms will be private. Residents will have privacy for
physician visits and exams, family and visitor space and personal
privacy.

o Medications will be stored in a medicine cabinet in each resident’s
room. This will increase interaction between nurses and residents.
The absence of medication carts in the hallway will eliminate a big
institutionalized concept.

o Resident rooms will have increased storage space for resident
belongings and more space for personal furniture. Closets will be
bigger and have accessible shelves. There will be room for the

5 5 Attachment-12
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resident’s assistive devices (wheelchair, walker, etc.) with the reduced
likelihood of falls related to a mobile resident trying to navigate
around another residents things.

o Privacy and dignity will be enhanced by a complete bathroom, shared
by two resident rooms, which will include a wheelchair accessible
shower. Residents will not have to be taken down the hall for their
shower and will have more choice in when to shower.

o Resident rooms will have individual controls for heating and cooling
so each resident may adjust their room temperature as they choose.

o There will be small areas designated for dining on each wing with
small kitchen areas that will allow residents more choice in where and
when to dine and what to eat.

o A beautiful enclosed and accessible outside garden is planned that will
be built with allowances for resident safety and freedom for residents
to go outside independently. This area will have wheelchair paths and
gathering areas reminiscent of homes.

o A conference room will allow for private resident, family and staff meeting
space. Resident Council meetings and support group meetings can also be
held here.

o The nurse call system will be silent as staff will carry individual hand-held
devices to answer residents’ calls.

e Door alarms will be much iess obtrusive as they will not sound throughout the
building but in each wing.

¢ There are several areas planned for equipment storage that will be much more
efficient for staff. Each wing of the building will have storage areas as well as
a large central storage space.

s The dining area will be much more spacious so there will be less congestion.
Buffet dining will be easier to arrange. Residents may show an improvement
in nutritional status with a new and more pleasant environment and food
aromas to stimulate appetites.

¢ There will be space for bigger and better activities for residents to attend and
participate in as they choose.

e Space is being given to a therapy room which we do not have in our current
building. This will include parallel bars for walking, a staircase, cuff weights,
exercise bike, hi-lo table, mat table, arm bike, and balance accessories. In
addition, an updated whirlpool tub is to be installed.

A washer and dryer will be put in for use by residents.
There will be computer stations in each wing to address technology interests
and allow e-mail communication between residents and families or friends.

The facility site plan and the building layout plan are included in Attachment-12.

6. Provide goals with quantified and measurable objectives, with specific
timeframes that relate to achieving the stated goals as appropriate.

Attachment-12
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Purpose of Project

The following are several specific goals with corresponding target completion dates
. associated with the purpose of the project:

o Complete construction of the replacement facility: April 30, 2012.
¢ Complete the move from the existing facility to the replacement facility: April
30, 2012.

Page 7 of 7 f?' Attachment-12
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Pioneering the New Nursing Home - Brief
Article

Nursing Homes, Dec, 2000 by Scott Parkin

For several years, a number of thoughtful providers and others from around the country have been trying to
change nursing homes from within--change them into places where residents can achieve better health, places
that are pleasant and homelike and staffed by motivated and satisfied employees. There are also some

- reformers who wish to "explode the nursing home model" and try something completely different, such as Dr.

William Thomas's Eden Alternative and his Green House Project, as described in the accompanying article.
These new ideas, however, are not yet widespread. As Tom Burke, spokesperson for the American Health Care
Association, explains, "Until there is a stabilization of the work force, these programs will be conceptual and

not widely impacting the field."

Meanwhile, though, a loosely organized group of progressive thinkers who meet regularly in Rochester, New
York, is actively working to keep change moving ahead. According to Carter Williams, a leader in The Nursing,
Home Pioneers, current reform efforts have a number of concepts in common (with the parenthetical items

reflecting the Pioneers' terms for them):

* The staff knows each resident; relationships (and community) are valued {the regenerative community).

. * There is a commitment to building a healthy human habitat (Eden Alternative).

* Residents are in control of their own decisions (resident centered care).

* No one talks about managing behavior, but all try to understand what behavior means (individualized care).

"You know change is afoot when people pop up all gver the country doing things we've been talking about,"
says Williams, a Rochester-based social worker and educator. In fact, she and others believe the seeds have

already been planted for massive change.

"Long-term care is in the depths of a crisis, and it's been the American experience that progressive movements
have emerged from such-periods," says Dr. Thomas, He sees the current movement for change as a logicat
extension of the restraint-free movement of the 1990s.

._ﬁs for some other Pioneer concepts, the regenerative community, pioneered by Barry and Debora Barakan of

san Francisco, seeks to generate new connections for residents as a way to break down the feeling that the
resident is disconnected from life. Joanne Rader's individualized care seeks to minimizecaregiving routines
that are foreign to most people angd create other, more natural, caregiving routines.
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Pioneering the New Nursing Home - Brief Article | Nursing Homes | Find Articles at BNET Page 2 of 2

David Green, another Pioneer leader, has. woven the natural world into the environment of Evergreen
Retirement Community in Oshkosh, Wisconsin--in fact, he did so years before there was an Eden Alternative.

One of the more widely emulated concepts these days is resident-centered care, originally pioneered by
Providence Mount St. Vincent of Seattle, Washington; Administrator Charlene Boyd sums up the concept:
“They [the residents] are dictating and not us. It's okay if Mrs. Jones sleeps in. It's okay for her to have bacon.
Risk taking is a normal part of our life all the time." Providence Mount St. Vincent also has incorporated other
Pioneer movement concepts, such as the regenerative community and individualized care, into practice.

Both Green's and Providence Mount St. Vincent's philosophies have been emulated, but not as widely as the
Eden Alternative. Meanwhile, the project known as Wellspring, although not a part of the Pioneers, has
recently begun to replicate itself and, according to Mary Ann Kehoe, Wisconsin-based administrator of the
program, there are now Wellspring projects in Texas and Michigan, as well (see "Do Nursing Home Alliances
Work? Four Status Reports,” Nursing Homes/Long Term Care Management, August 2000, p. 34).

Says Green, "When you make [a new concept] into a product and institutionalize it, then others will buy into
it." Right now, though, creativity is the emphasis; imitation and replication are taking back seat to
innovation. Tn other words, for today's long-term care, staying loose and going with the flow, in the style of the
Pioneers, seerns to be the right approach.

COPYRIGHT 2000 Medquest Communications, LLC
COPYRIGHT 2002 Gale Group

Advanced Search Find Arlicles in free and premium articles l Search I
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Concept Paper:
Bringing Culture Change to Louisiana Nursing Homes

Culture Change and the Pioneer Network

“Society views aging as a process of diminishment, so our elders enter a new phase of living
in a world that is often uninterested in them... This experience can reach its ultimaie
expression in the fraditional nursing home. 0!

The Pioneer Network is a loosely associated group of providers, regulators, advocates and
elders who hold that nursing homes can serve as the starting point for changing society’s
vision of aging. Their work is premised on the belief that nursing homes can be good places
to live and work. Pioneers seek to improve the quality of life for residents, and to foster an
appreciation of the work of those who care for them, by altering the “culture”—the sense of
community or lack thereof —of the nursing home setting.

In the traditional nursing home priority is given to providing good medical care in an
efficient manner. While efficiency is generally a positive attribute, it can discourage
independence by limiting choices and by creating “one-size fits-all” policies and practices. 1t
also encourages dependency by offering more assistance than the individual needs.

Furthermore, the acute medical model is risk intolerant. It often seeks to manage risks by
setting limits on behaviors in such fundamental areas as diet, mobility, and lifestyle choices.
While these limits may be {olerable for the short term, few individuals arc willing 1o adopt
them for any real length of time. Pioneers look for ways in which to maximize autonomy,
independence and choice, even if that means accepting greater risk.

The acute care medical model historically relies on a rigid, hierarchical style, with lower level
staff tasked with carrying out management directives. Most, if not all, of the nursing homes

engaged in culture change give greater autonomy and decision-making authority to the front line
staff. This approach allows staff to find ways to accommodate individuals’ lifetime habits rather
than force them to conform to the facility’s routine.

Facilities engaged in culture change report the following outcomes:

lower rates of staff turnover and absenteeism (some even report having waiting lists)
higher resident census

less reliance on medication

fewer pressure sores

better performance on inspection surveys

improved quality of life for residents

® & & o o 9

! www.pioneernetwork.net
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Measures of Performance in Louisiana®

While Louisiana nursing homes are at or near the national average on several of the quality
measures reported to the Centers for Medicare & Medicaid (CMS), their performance

exceeded the national average by four or more percentage points on the following measures
for which lower percentages are preferred:

risk residents who
have pressure sores

difficulty getting needed nutrients, or who
are unable to move or change position
without help are considered high risk.

Quality Measure Information about measure State | National
Average | Average
Percentage of This measure shows the percent of 21% 16%
residents whose need | residents whose need for help with such
for help with daily basic tasks of feeding themselves, moving
activities has from one chair to another, changing
increased positions while in bed and going to the
bathroom has increased from the last time
they were measured.
Residents who are This measure shows the percent of 15% 8%
physically restrained | residents who were physically restrained
during the 7 day assessment period.
Residents who spend | This measure shows the percent of 10% 4%
most of their time in residents who spent most of their time in
bed or in a chair bed or in a chair during the 7 day
assessment period.
Percentage of high- Residents who are in a coma, have 18% 14%

All of these measures affect quality of life. As noted by CMS, “most residents value being
able to take care of themselves.™ Therefore, maintaining or improving in the basic activities
of daily living is an important aspect of life for residents. In the same vein, being inactive
poses both physical and psychological risks for the resident. The use of restraints is strongly
associated with poor physical and psychological outcomes for residents. (Louisiana ranks
second in the nation in the use of restraints.) Pressure sores arc often painful and slow to

heal.

All of these measures are to improve with the adoption of cuiture change models.

2 ¢MS Quality Measures for the period October 1, 2003-December 31, 2003.
¥ www.medicare.gov/NHCompare
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Introducing Culture Change

DHH, in conjunction with GOEA, proposes to host conferences at multiple sites in the state.
The conferences will feature speakers who are part of the Pioneer Network. Speakers will be
selected based on their practical experience with culture change efforts and ability to provide
concrete, immediately useful examples in the nursing home setting. Owners, administrators
and other key facility staff, ombudsmen, regulators, educators and other selected individuals
who have a stake in the provision of nursing home care will be invited to attend. AARP,
Louisiana Healthcare Review, the Louisiana Nursing Home Association, and the Gulf States
Association of Homes and Services for the Aging will be asked to endorse the conference.

Sustaining the Effort

For the three years following the conference, DHH will award modest grants to a small
number of facilities to implement culture change projects. An advisory committee will be
convened to establish criteria for the grants. Grants will be given for one year with options to
continue for two additional years if sufficient progress is achieved. If sufficient interest
exists, the possibility of regional and/or annual meetings for interested parties will also be
explored.

Funding

The primary means of funding the conferences and the grants will be through the use of civil
money penalty funds. These funds are paid by facilities to the department as penalties for
failing to meet the standards provided for in state and federal regulation. In addition,
contributions will be sought from the endorsing agencies, and a modest registration fee for
the conferences will be charged. No additional state revenue sources will be sought.

Expected Results

In the Louisiana nursing homes that embrace culture change, the following outcomes are
expected:

improved performance on inspections

higher staff retention

improved incontinent care

less reliance on restraints

less reliance on medication

higher resident census

increased satisfaction as reported by residents and family members
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Summary

The Department of Health and Hospitals, the Governor’s Office of Elderly Affairs seek to
introduce this concept throughout Louisiana and to encourage its translation into practical,
replicable measures that positively impact the lives of residents and those who care for them,
both professionally and through the ties of other relationships. The effort is intended to be
collaborative in nature, encouraging the participation of other stakeholders and interested
parties. It is also intended to be a long-term commitment to change.
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Introduction

This background paper serves to set the stage for the April 3rd, 2008 Centers for Medicare &
Medicaid Services (CMS) and Pioneer Network co-sponsored Creating Home in the Nursing
Home: A National Symposium on Culture Change and the Environment Requirements.

Culture change has been defined by the Pioneer Network as “a transformation anchored in
values and beliefs that retum control to elders and those who work closest with them. Its
ultimate vision is to create a culture of aging that is ‘life-affirming, satisfying, humane, and
meaningful.’ Culture change can transform a ‘facility’ into a ‘home,” a ‘resident’ into a
‘person,’ and a ‘schedule’ into a ‘choice.”” CMS has been supportive of culture change
efforts since 2002 and has now entered into a partnership with the Pioneer Network that
represents the culture change movement nationally. Together, CMS and the Pioneer
Network are hosting a national one-day symposium open to the public and a one-day
invitational workshop for stakeholders organizations and culture change experts on the
physical environment in nursing homes, the regulations, and culture change.

Creating Home in the Nursing Home: A National Symposium on Culture Change and the
Environment Requirements will take place on April 3, 2008 at the Wardman Park Hotel in
“Washington, DC. The symposium will focus on changes to the physical environment of
nursing homes being made by innovators and how these changes relate to Federal and State

regulations and the Life Safety Code.

The Symposium features national expert presentations on private rooms, household and
residential models, lighting and glare, issues and ideas regarding “creating home,” a
presentation on the Life Safety Code by the National Fire Protection Association, State
success stories, national stakeholder response panels to each topic, and public commentary
through open microphone sessions.

An invitational workshop for stakeholder organization leaders, culture change experts and
researchers, and regulators will follow the Creating Home symposium to review findings,
make recommendations, and determine initiatives such as:

»  What research should take place to provide needed answers concerning resident
outcomes, costs, and the feasibility of making various changes to the physical
environment of nursing homes?

» What activities should take place within States, led by State-level culture change
coalitions, concerning the study and possible change recommendations for state
regulations and codes?

» What activities should take place concerning the study and possible change
recommendations for Federal requirements?

* What activities should take place conceming the study and possible change
recommendations for the life safety code for long term care facilities?

*  What education and training should be considered regarding culture change methods
and successes?

1
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«  What groups (committees, task forces, study groups) should be formed to consider
these issues and on what schedule should they convene? (CMS/Pioneer Network
letter 1/10/08, see Appendix A.)

CMS is serving as a leader in the culture change movement by partnering with the Pioneer
Network to offer this unique and historic opportunity for sharing and discussion on these
environmental topics that are an important part of providing residents of nursing homes with
optimal quality of life.
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. Chapter 1:

The Importance of the Physical Environment - the Importance of Home

There are many ways of framing the concept of environment - the social environment, the
total environment, the atmosphere or milieu - but we are limiting our use of the term to the
physical environment of the building and what is in it in terms of furniture and decor,
equipment, lighting, flooring, the layout, and use of spaces.

Therc are many regulations regarding the physical environment - Federal, State, local, and
Life Safety Code - with which nursing home providers are required to be compliant. Culture
changing innovators report that regulations at each of these levels sometimes hamper the
changes toward providing home they want to make, and that changes to their buildings are
the most expensive of the culture changes. Thus, many providers become discouraged to
pursue innovative ideas by requirements they believe to be unreasonable and/or by the
expense of it all and they worry that what they build will be subsequently found out of
compliance.

The Creating Home symposium and subsequent invitational workshop have been designed
precisely for this — an opportunity for regulators, innovators, providers, researchers, and the
interested public to gather together, put their issues on the table and work toward identifying
barriers, dissolving myths, resolving issues and suggesting potential solutions. The
symposium and workshop seek to be a catalyst to identify what future work and
commitments are needed to be made by all affected stakeholders to further creating home in
the nursing home.

“Older adults rely on their environment to compensate for increasing frailty and sensory
loss, and when judgment and mental competence fade, the significance of the physical
environment increases” says gerontological designer Betsy Brawley, drawing upon the
theories of the late M. Powell Lawton (2005). Lawton and Nahemow contributed the
ecological theory to the field of long term care design that the environment has the potential
to assist or create obstacles to higher functioning and the docility hypothesis that the lower
the level of functioning, the greater the influence the environment has on behavior (1973).
CMS taps into this concept by requiring in the federal regulations for nursing homes that
facilities assist their residents to attain or maintain their highest practicable level of physical,
mental, and psychosocial well-being. This concept originates from the historic Nursing
Home Reform Act of the OBRA of 1987. Barbara Frank, formerly with the National
Citizens Coalition for Nursing Home Reform and involved with the passage of OBRA “87
explains why this term, “highest practicable™ was chosen during Part I of the “From
Institutional to Individualized Care” four-part CMS satellite broadcast series on Nov. 3,
2006:

The authors of OBRA specifically chose practicable instead of practical. Practicable

refers to what someone is innately capable of, regardless of external circumstances.
Practical refers to the limits of those external circumstances.
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In line with Lawton and Nahemow’s ccological theory, “design support” refers to multiple
cues that reduce demand on the user of a particular environment. For example, “design
support” allows one to enjoy walking in an outside area without the frustration of having to
figure out how to return (Brawley, 2006). Donald Norman calls this “natural mapping”’
where the environment itself contains the information necessary for its use, rather than
having to rely on knowledge held in the user’s head (1988). Not surprisingly, a 2003 study
of residential environments found that when the environments were familiar and easy to
understand, this was associated with reduced aggressive and agitated behavior and fewer
psychological problems (Zeisel, 2003). Although an entire separate paper could be devoted
to the environment and persons with dementia, this paper will speak to the building
environment as it affects all persons who have made a nursing home their home and the staff
who work there.

Most people have had some exposure to what we will refer to in this paper as a “traditional
nursing home.” These nursing homes often have the characteristics of long hallways, a large
nurses’ station in the middle of a spoke of “freshly buffed” tile floor hallways, and one large
dining room where everyone eats together. “Hall A,” “Hall B” or “Hall C” may indicate
where one lives. Call lights often blink over resident room doors and buzz at the nurses’
station along with the occasional beeping of personal alarms to alert staff when someone
stands up who could fall - so many noises that are disturbing and unfamiliar to a person’s
home. Too often the people living in this place called a nursing home are seemingly
forgotten, asleep in their wheelchairs, slumped over or awake and repeatedly crying out,
“Help me, help me,” or “I want to go home.” When you think about it, you can’t blame them
for wanting to go home.

Traditional nursing homes don’t look much like a home. They closely resemble the
institutional hospital setting, as indeed that was their model. However, a hospital is not
designed to be a home, but rather a place where one stays temporarily in order to get acute
medical care for the short term. This has been the most common mode] for nursing home
construction since the 1950°s. “There is no theoretical underpinning for designing nursing
homes in this manner — no theory that dictates that this is supportive of either good care or
positive quality of life” (Calkins, 20035).

Shortly after the publication of OBRA’87, pioneering individuals in the area of long term
care first envisioned, and then created long term care facilities which provided homes for
residents with more normal living environments for smaller groups of people, where they
could help themselves, make their own decisions, and live in a warm, cozy, quict home
atmosphere.

Steve Shields, CEO of Meadowlark Hills, Manhattan, Kansas says, “If you really stand there
and climb into it, you see just how very oppressive and unnatural it is” (2003). Steve is
known for interrupting a large construction project in order to stop the building of another
traditional institutional nursing home, a model that most of America does not want and does
not think of as home. After some study and visiting one of the only household-modeled
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nursing homes existing at the time (Big Fork Valley Communities in Minnesota), Shields
embarked on a journey to remodel his facility. The facility was transformed into household
settings where elders are cared by staff they know (referred to as consistent staffing),
homemakers care for the home and cook homemade meals, and a new philosophy exists that
the people living and working in the households make the decisions.

As these pioneering individuals continue to analyze the institutional culture of nursing
homes, it has become evident that in some cases the physical environment and daily routines
are designed to serve the needs of the staff and, often “the bottom line.” For example, double
loaded corridors, meaning resident rooms on each side of the hallway with two to four
residents in each, generally represent more revenue than private rooms - even though private
rooms are most often preferred by residents as discovered in the 2004 Quality of Life Study
by the University of Minnesota funded by CMS. Large dining rooms make it easier for staff
to serve meals to all residents at regimented times; wheeling a medication cart to the dining
room three times a day is perceived as less labor intensive than walking to each resident’s
room and administering their medications; offering only one meal choice for all residents is
easier regardless of personal preferences, and on and on it goes. “No longer are the needs of
the institution to come before the needs of the individual,” is how Wendy Lustbader, original
member of the Pioneer Network, radically said it in The Pioneer Challenge: A Radical
Change in the Culture of Nursing Homes (2000).

Some innovators are bumping up against some regulations that serve the functionality of the
institutional model more readily than the needs of the individuals living and working in them.
Karen Schoeneman, an original member of the Pioneer Network says, “It’s the same deal
over and over again of having old regulatory language and needing to decide how it relates to
something new that was not thought of when it was written. For example, our Federal
regulation that bedrooms must have direct access to an exit corridor was developed to
eliminate the practice of having one bedroom located behind another, which is a fire safety
issue that was encountered in old buildings that were turned into nursing homes long ago.
Now the issue is resurfacing in Green Houses that are built to look like homes and do not
wish to have the institutional look of a corridor.”

Nursing Homes Managing Editor Laura Bruck interviewed Benyamin Schwarz, PhD,
assistant professor of Environmental Design at the University of Missouri at Columbia at the
time, who frankly says, regarding the poor design of nursing homes:

Walk into many nursing homes and your impression is of a place to die, rather than a
home in which to spend your final years. Nursing homes are simply not the type of
structures that elders and their families want or need. Consequently they're disliked,
even dreaded, by the very people for whom they're supposed to be designed. In my
book, I relate the story of a man who actually jumped from the window of his
independent living apartment rather than move into a nursing home. While this
example is extreme, it is horrifying to think that anyone might be more afraid of
living in such an environment than of death itself. In my admittedly biased view,
nursing home design is simply based on the wrong mode! - the medical model. While
this might be suitable for acute care settings, where people stay briefly and then
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return to their former lives, it's entirely inappropriate for the nursing home, which 1s
supposed to be the residents’ final home.

Schwarz has done extensive study of long term care in other countries, particularly Europe,
and has found “there is very little about the physical environment of these European facilities
to suggest you're actually in a nursing home.... we tend to view aging as a pathology, as
something to be fixed (the medical model), while these other cultures tend to view aging as a
stage of life and a time for potential growth rather than only decline” (1996).

In this 1996 interview, Schwarz gave a prediction regarding nursing homes as we know
them:

But I do believe that the days of nursing homes as we know them are numbered,
primarily because of three driving forces: First, the number of people using long-
term care services outside the home will continue to grow - no news here. Second,
financing for those facilities will become increasingly complicated and difficult to
obtain, as we are seeing in various states. Third, and probably most important, the
residents, their families and nursing home staff won't tolerate the present state of
affairs forever. I realize that the LTC industry has a strong lobbying body and change
is difficult, particularly when we're talking about people's livelihoods. But these
trends will continue to grow and, ultimately, I think nursing homes as we know them
will essentially be out of business. Long-term care will not be structured according to
the medical model.

“At Home”

Steve Shields teaches that we have many homes in our lifetime; our child home, perhaps a
college dorm room, our first home and then one or several others, but each is nonetheless
home. He describes the feeling when you are home as “ah” - that wonderful feeling of
kicking off your shoes and just being home. Wouldn’t we all agree we want people to feel
they are af home, not ina home?

Dr. Maggie Calkins is a well known gerontological designer, researcher, steering committee
member of the Society of the Advancement of Gerontological Environments and author of
numerous books and articles supporting changes to improve residents’ quality of life in
nursing homes. Dr. Calkins makes the case:

Often when a resident says “I want to go home” they are not necessarily referring to
the house they came from, but rather to a state of being that was comfortable, ordered,
and fundamentally orienting. They want to return to a place that makes sense, where
they can feel comfortable and not threatened by a myriad of things they cannot
understand.... The physical environment plays an important role in helpmg people
feel either comfortable and at home or out of place and uncertain in a given setting
{Calkins, 2003).
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LaVrene Norton, Executive Leader for Action Pact, Inc. and household model expert and
Steve Shields, authors of In Pursuit of the Sunbeam which focuses on how to create home
using the household model (Chapter 5 explains the household model), have studied and
worked hands-on to create true home for persons living in nursing homes. They teach that
home is “a basic necessity for a wholesome and balanced life,” it is where “we €stablish our
place in the world,” and “nowhere is our self-identity reinforced more than at home.”
Instead, they point out, all too often in institutionat care, identity becomes a person’s room
number or diagnosis (2007). Shields talks a lot about “slumping,” after a visitor to
Meadowlark Hills once asked, “Where are all the slumpers?” at the end of the tour surprised
there were none because of his enriched environment. What is meant by the term “slumping”
is when people are slumped over in a wheelchair asleep or simply disengaged from life.
Indeed, creating home has so many advantages as Shields and Norton explain:

Many would argue that slumping is the result of age and disease. Yet, we have
witnessed time after time how the condition reverses and elders begin to blossom
once the warehousing approach to nursing care is replaced by environments elders
can identify as “home.” We can’t feel a sense of wholeness, safety and belonging,
exercise autonomy, experience joy, build community or fully actualize without the

sanctuary of home (2007).

“We have an intrinsic need for a home — our dreams are around it,” said Shields to Beth
Baker, author of Old Age in a New Age. “They're pretty central to us. Why, when you need
one the most, do you suddenly not have one? Wherever you reside and live has to be home.
Period” (Baker, 2007).

Again, something many would not dispute, we all need home, we all deserve home, the
Federal regulations even require this but why is it home is lacking for so many living in
nursing homes today in America?

Homelessness

Judith Carboni researched and published in 1990 on the subject Homelessness among the
Elderly. Carboni defines “home” as “the experience of a fluid and dynamic intimate
relationship between the individual and the environment - the physical, social, and
psychological spaces around the individual. This relationship consists of interactions and
transactions between the individual and these spaces, and is profoundly significant to the
individual because it provides the critical connection to meaning in life.”

Whereas,

“homelessness™ she H____ome.lessness _,____H'o me
defines as “the Mc:amngless Space _ Lived Space ‘
experience of the Insecurity and Uncertainty Safety and Predictability
negation of home Powerlessness and Dependence Power and Autonomy
where the relatioriship Non-Personhood Identity
between the individual D1§connectedness . annectedness
and the environment Without Boundaries/Public Privacy

Placelessness with No Journey Journeying

Carboni 1990
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loses its intimacy and becomes severely damaged. This shattering of the highly significant
relationship is perceived as an insult to the individual’s meaningful existence.”

Carboni draws this correlation between homelessness and elders living in nursing homes:

Elderly residents in nursing homes face non-personhood: identity becomes murky
because they no longer have a special bond with a place that held a significant,
personal meaning. Informants [in Carboni’s research] demonstrated a pervasive
sensc of uprootedness and non-belonging, as well as confused feelings about self and
identity. ... the roots that fed each informant’s identity and provided nurturance were
more than merely pulled up; it seemed that the roots were actually severed. For
example, how can one recover the roots of one’s house if it is sold, how can one
identify with a place that is no longer there? When possessions are dispersed among
relatives or sold, they are no longer available to the individual for interaction and
meaning; the relationship with objects and their memories become severed.

The elderly individual wandering the streets is easily identified as homeless, yet there
is an entire population of elders who suffer silently, enduring the painful state of
homelessness within the confines of the total institution of the nursing home. To
view as homeless these individuals who are, in fact, sheltered and fed seems
incongruent; however, when one acknowledges these unrecognized homeless, the
increased understanding can direct us in the discovery of ways in which we can
alleviate or reverse the process (1990).

Since the passage of the Nursing Home Reform Act of OBRA ’87, providing care “in a
manner and in an environment that promotes maintenance or enhancement of each resident’s
quality of life” has been required by Quality of Life at 42 CFR §483.15, Tag F240 not to
mention an entire section dedicated to quality of life. Under the Quality of Life section of the
Federal regulations at 42 CFR §483.15, much of what has been described as the makings of
home by Carboni have also been required, such as the right to Dignity at 42 CFR §483.15(a),
Tag F241, the right to Seif-detenmination and participation at 42 CFR §483.15(b), Tag F242,
and a Safe, Comfortable, Homelike environment at 42 CFR §483.15(h), Tag F252 as well as
the right to Privacy at 42 CFR §483.10 (e), Tag F164 in the Resident Rights section 42 CFR
§483.15. And yet as Carboni shows, the experience equals that of homelessness for many.

To aide in the reading of regulatory language in this paper, Karen Schoeneman of the CMS
Division of Nursing Homes explains the regulatory nomenclature this way:

Nursing homes that participate in the Medicare or Medicaid programs must comply
with the regulations for Federally-certified nursing homes that arc contained in Title
42 of the Code of Federal Regulations (42 CFR), Parts 483.1 through 483.75. These
regulations can be found at http://www.access.gpo.gov/nara/cfi/waisidx
06/42cfr483_06.html. CMS has divided this regulatory language into segments
known as Tags (or F Tags). The Tag numbers for nursing home regulations are all
preceded by the letter “F” which was assigned by CMS to distinguish these Tags from
Tags for other provider types such as hospitals (A), home health providers (G), etc.

8
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When surveyors cite a deficiency, they use the Tag numbers. Each Tag contains, in
addition to the regulatory language, explanatory guidance for surveyors that fleshes
out the meaning and provides intent, definitions, guidance, probes for investigation or
investigative protocols for surveyors as appropriate (not all Tags have ail these
components). This guidance is popularly known as the “interpretive guidelines.” The
document containing the regulatory language, Tag numbers, and interpretive
guidelines is known as Appendix PP of the State Operations Manual, which can be
found at http://cms.hhs.gov/manuals/Downloads/som107 ap pp_guidelines_ltcf.pdf.
Nursing homes must comply with the regulatory language, and should find the
interpretive guidelines valuable as well, since they are CMS’ authoritative
interpretation of the regulatory language and are used by surveyors to complete their
investigations during the survey process.
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Chapter 2:
Quality of Life includes Physical Environment: The History of OBRA *87

The groundbreaking 1986 Institute of Medicine (I0M) study Improving the Quality of Care
in Nursing Homes gave voice to persons living in nursing homes, and because of it, quality
of life began to receive more attention. In this study, (URL address listed in the
bibliography) it was found that important aspects to quality of life according to nursing home
residents themselves include the environment:

The quality of life experienced by anyone is related to that person’s sense of well-
being, level of satisfaction with life, and feeling of self-worth and self-esieem. For
nursing home residents this includes a basic sense of satisfaction with oneself, the
environment, the care received, the accomplishment of desired goals, and control
over one’s life. For instance, a resident’s quality of life is enhanced by close
relationships and meaningful interchange with others, an environment supporting
independence and incorporating personal belongings, and the opportunity to
exercise reasonable control over life decisions [emphasis added] (p. 51).

One of the “prime components of residents’ concepts of quality” was “the quality of the
living environment, particularly ... the ability of residents to have personal possessions and
furnishings in their rooms” (p. 382). Privacy was found to have such a dominant place in
residents’ lives that: “lack of privacy for visits with family and friends, for medical treatment,
and for personal solitude contribute{d] to lack of self-esteem” (p. 51). Privacy and the ability
to have personal possessions and furnishings - doesn’t scem like too much to ask.

The IOM study led to a congressional hearing called Nursing Home Reform held by the
House of Representatives Committee on Energy and Commerce, Subcommittee on Health
and the Environment on May 12, 1987. At this hearing, the bill H.R. 2270 Medicaid Nursing
Home Quality Care Amendements of 1987, introduced by Representatives Dingell, Waxman,
Pepper, Stark, Roybal, Scheufer, Florio, Leland, Richardson and Bruce, was heard. Much of
the bill was based on the IOM study. Many organizations and individuals affected by poor
quality of care in nursing homes testified. When the bill passed it was from then on known
as the Nursing Home Reform Act of the Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act (OBRA) 1987
(OBRA '87).

Anthony Robbins, a professor at Boston University School of Public Health and former
Health Commissioner for the State of Colorado, testified at this hearing and gave a glimpse
of what the focus was during the inspection process prior to the Nursing Home Reform Act:

Not surprisingly, the early concerns of State and Federal officials charged with
protecting nursing home residents were for fire safety. Thus, the earliest inspection
and enforcement systems were concerned with the physical structures. The question
was whether the facility had the capacity to care for nursing home residents.
Inspectors looked at the facility for fire safety, doors, exits, stairs, alarms, sprinklers,
etcetera ... (1988).

10
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The 10M study and this hearing brought about the realization that a more resident outcome-
oriented survey process was needed beyond only looking at the physical environment.
Although safety is important, this shows us that the strong focus on safety within the nursing
home building has existed since the beginning of nursing homes in the 1950’s and 1960’s.
And this strong focus still exists today. Rob Mayer of the Rothchild Foundation funder of
the NHRegsPlus website (more about NHRegsPIus can be found below) links this strong
safety focus to today, “There’s no question that the regulatory environment is based on a
culture of the “50s and ‘60s, with an emphasis on safety and risk avoidance. Most people
would agree that the pendulum has swung too far in the direction of safety” (Smokler, 2007).

With each set of new regulations set forth by CMS, CMS begins by publishing a Notice of
Proposed Rulemaking in the Federal Register. This includes a Preamble explaining the
intended changes to current language and soliciting public comment on the intended
regulatory language. CMS then reviews the public comments and makes final changes to the
draft, providing an Overview section that summarizes the comments and CMS responses.
This final version is also published in the Federal Register and becomes a revision to the
Code of Federal Regulations (CFR). In the Preamble to the OBRA 87 regulations, CMS, for
the first time, draws the correlation between quality of life and the physical environment,
broadening the consideration of physical environment beyond the concept of fire safety
alone:

Quality of life is a complex concept reflecting the characteristics of an individual’s
relationship to his social and physical environment. Quality of life has both residents’
rights and physical environment dimensions. It reflects the relationship between the
resident and the physical and human environment in which he or she lives. ...we
have chosen to reorganize the proposed quality of life requirement to include those
provisions that best reflect an individual’s ability to influence, and be influenced by
his or her physical and social environments and to participate fully in these
environments to the full extent of his or her functional abilities (Medicare and
Medicaid; Requirements for Long Term Care Facilities; Final Rule with Request for
Comments, Federal Register, February 2, 1989, p. 5327).

Presently, culture change innovators are trying to change the environment in many ways.
Some are renovating existing buildings into households with a full service kitchen, living
room, dining room and private rooms. Some are building residential homes where nursing
services are available. Others are making bathing areas warm and inviting, pantries and
snack bars available for residents to help themselves, food cooked-to-order for residents,
kitchens available for residents and staff in order to cook and bake, accessible laundry areas,
accessible outdoor areas, and more comfortable living areas. Traditional nurses’ stations,
audible call bell systems and overhead paging are often removed. In some cases innovators
are also running into Federal and State regulations and Life Safety Code provisions that
prohibit them from exercising some of their new, innovative ideas for creating home.

11
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Chapter 3:
CMS Support of Culture Change

CMS’ support of culture change was evidenced by its September 2002 satellite broadcast to
all surveyors entitled “Innovations in Quality of Life — the Pioneer Network.” The broadcast
taught surveyors about common culture change innovations that might be encountered and
how compliance with federal requirements might be maintained within culture changed
facilitites.

From 2004-2006 CMS conducted a project in twenty-one states in which CMS’ contractors,
the Quality Improvement Organizations (QIOs), taught several hundred volunteer nursing
homes the principles and practices of culture change.

In June of 2005, an interview between Karen Schoeneman, the CMS culture change lead and
Thomas Hamilton, the CMS Director of the Survey and Certification Group, entitled
"Culture Change in LTC Facilities" was recorded for distribution to the QIOs for their use in
training facilities about culture change and the regulations and survey process. In it Mr.
Hamilton says, “Facilities that are moving to resident directed care are actually fulfilling the
mandates of the OBRA *87 law.” Regarding compliance with CMS regulations, he stated
that “Although there are some constraints in terms of not obstructing hallways or handrails,
there appear to be no significant problems.” He also said “We’re quite pleased that this
effort is taking place” and “we plan to continue our effort...” Mr. Hamilton extended the
support of CMS and State agencies encouraging them to “work together to handle any
regulatory issues that arise as facilities begin to change” and by welcoming questions from
organizations or providers regarding regulations and culture change. He very supportively
concluded with “We’ve been absolutely delighted in the work that State agencies and QIOs
have been undertaking with nursing homes to promote effective culture change. We've
heard some inspiring examples of the culture change efforts in many states. We look forward
to much more progress.” Karen Schoeneman expressed her “... enthusiasm for efforts homes
are making toward culture change. Changing institutions, even very good ones, into real
homes is a wonderful goal that is bound to lead to a better life every day for the residents,
their families, and staff as well, and I applaud the efforts of those already on this path.”

CMS funded and co-developed [with this author] the Artifacts of Culture Change
measurement tool and made it available to the public April of 2006. The Artifacts tool serves
to provide providers with a means to measure concrete changes they have made as a result of
organizational and philosophical changes to which they have committed. How to obtain the
Artifacts tool is listed in the bibliography and more about the Artifacts tool is found in
Chapter 12.

CMS has answered many questions from providers seeking to make changes to create home.
On December 21, 2006, a Survey and Certification memorandum was released that included
answers CMS has given regarding various culture change practice questions received since
2004. See Appendix B for this memorandum.
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“Culture change” has impressed CMS so much so that it was included in the CMS
Administrator’s 2007 Action Plan for Quality Improvement in Nursing Homes.
Projects on the Action Plan included:
A series of four satellite broadcasts entitled “From Institutional to Individualized
Care,”
= A series of Pic-Tel and teleconferences for CMS Regional Offices and State survey
agencies on various culture change topics, and
+ Initiation of and co-sponsoring the upcoming 2008 Creating Home national
symposium and workshop, as well as this background paper in preparation for it.

In a February 2007 response to an inquiry by the Mississippi Senate and House delegations
regarding the Green House® Project, Leslie Norwalk, Acting Administrator of CMS stated
that CMS is supportive of the culture change movement and “believe(s] these innovations
more fully implement the Nursing Home Reform provisions of the Omnibus Budget
Reconciliation Act of 1987, from which our nursing home regulations are derived.”
Additionally, CMS offered its contribution to the movement by stating, “It is our goal to have
State agencies assist innovative providers in determining how changes they wish to make to
improve the lives of their residents can be compliant with the Federal regulations that protect

all residents.” Now that’s support.

Currently, CMS Central Office staff, Regional Office staff and many State survey agencies
are actively participating in State culture change coalitions, conferences, groups and projects.
The involved CMS and State survey officials are serving as role models to those CMS
regions and State survey agencies not involved, hopefully inspiring them to become part of
this exciting movement.

CMS contracted with the University of Minnesota to conduct the 2004 study Measures,
Indicators, and Improvement of Quality of Life in Nursing Homes lo develop and test
measures and indicators of quality of life for nursing home residents. Additionally, several
aspects of the physical environment were studied such as lighting, seating choices in pubic
spaces, distances residents need to travel from bedrooms to dining and activity areas, and
private rooms, as well as how they affect resident quality of life. Data was collected from
1,988 residents living in 131 nursing units in 40 nursing homes located in five States.

The study found that being in a private room and having fewer roommates was associated
with better quality of life. Not surprisingly, it was found that the more people sharing a
room, the less likely each was to have ample space for privacy and activity, and great
disparity was observed in amenities found in a private room versus a shared room (Kane et

al, 2004).

Many environmental deficits were identified in the majority of homes studied, the most
profound of which had to do with poor lighting:

* Lighting levels that were so low that they approximated conditions of blindness,
* Inadequate showers: “dark, dank, dismal,”
» Few knobs and switches operable by residents,
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s Cluttered corridors,

» Closet rods out of resident’s reach: only 7% of the closet rods were located 36 to 48
inches from the floor,

» Lack of horizontal work space for residents,

» Lack of a resident’s bedside chair,

¢ Lack of access to the outdoors {much more below),

« Long distances residents needed to traverse to dining rooms, bathrooms and bathing
areas: distance from the farthest resident room to the nearest shower or tub room
ranged from 20 to 270 feet, 3 to 82 feet from room to primary bathrooms and 13% of
residents had to travel outside their room to a shared bathroom down the corridor

+ lack of common space: 15% of the homes lacked even one space, all others had only
2 - 4 lounge spaces,

» bathrooms shared by up to 20 residents,

 a general absence of life-enhancing features, and

*  “noxious noise” - auditory alarms, intercom paging, screaming or calling out by
residents, “musak,” and loud yelling or calling out by staff (Kane et al, 2004).

Regarding noise, the researchers reported that one sound by itself was less problematic, but
when all six were combined, the noise level increased dramatically. On some units the sound
of auditory alarms was constant. Resident screaming was heard on 20% of the units and staff
yelling or screaming on 9%. At times staff acknowledged ignoring a resident’s call because
“that resident is constantly turning on their call button and they don’t need anything” (Kane
et al, 2004).

Throughout their work, Rosalie Kane and colleagues remind us that nursing homes should be
dwelling places first and clinical workplaces second. Thankfully, with the changes that most
culture changing homes are making, the focus is becoming more on “home” and less on
((nursing.37
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Chapter 4:
Progression of the Environmental Side of the Culture Change Movement

Progression of this movement includes pioneers who began with renovation into
neighborhoods and households, the formation of the Eden Alternative® and Eden’s

progression into the Green House® Project and other residential models.

Pioneer Network Formation

The Pioneer Network came into existence in 1997 bringing together a small group of like-
minded innovators with the goal to spark a national grassroots movement to transform the
culture of aging. The importance of the environment is identified in one of the core values
named by the forward-thinking pioneers: “Shape and use the potential of the environment in
all its aspects: physical, organizational, psycho/social/spiritual.” Several early innovators
saw the need to transform the environment right along with the many institutional systems
within a nursing home.

Work of Early Pioneers

In the 1990°s, two pioneers, Charlene Boyd of Providence Mount St. Vincent and Sister
Pauline Brecanier of Teresian House in Albany, New York, renovated into neighborhoods.
Other pioneers such as Garth Brokaw of Fairport Baptist Home in Fairport, New York and
Steve Shields of Meadowlark Hills in Manhattan, Kansas were each separately in the process
of renovation in the late 1990’s but stopped midstream realizing they couldn’t, in good
conscience, build the same old flawed model. Each team of staff ended up deciding “if it’s
not reflective of home, we’re not going to do it or build it.” Both ended up (without knowing
about the other) creating households much more refective of a person’s home instead of the
traditional long haliway nursing home design. Often indicative of a movement whose time
has come is just this like-minded people coming to the same realization independent of one
another that things must change. So the movement began with pioneers cutting a new path
by transforming the physical environment to set the stage for changes needed by both those
living and working in long term care.
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Chapter 5: Neighborhoods and Households

Within the culture change movement there are the distinctions of neighborhoods and
households. Features of a neighborhood include residents dining in neighborhoods instead of
a large main dining room, consistent staff working with residents, and practices such as
neighborhood Resident Councils. According to Calkins, neighborhoods are also sometimes
referred to as clusters of households that share common community areas reflective of a
neighborhood in the community at large such as libraries, beauty/barber shops, community
rooms, courtyards, cafes and snack bars, and shared staff spaces (Calkins, 2003). In some
cases, development of neighborhoods can reflect a stage toward developing households. As
far as the physical environment goes, however, neighborhoods typically involve no structural
changes.

The Stage Model of Culture Change developed by Les Grant, Associate Professor and
Director for the Center for Aging Services Management at the University of Minnesota and
LaVrene Norton, Executive Lead for Action Pact is a tool that assesses the degree of culture
change across the five organizational systems of decision making, staff roles, physical
environment, organizational design and leadership practices. Four stages are identified:
Stage I - Institutional model, Stage II - Transformational model, Stage IIl - Neighborhood
model, and Stage IV - Household model.

Using the Stage Model description, in the household model, staff work in cross-functional,
self-led work teams. The hierarchical organizational structure is “flattened™ through the
elimination of traditional departments and decentralizing core services. The physical design
is a self-contained small home setting where 16-24 or fewer residents live who have their
own full kitchen, living room and dining room. The full kitchen has its own cook top, oven,
microwave, refrigerator, freezer, dishwasher, sink, cupboards, dishes and utensils. Personal
laundry is done within the household by staff, residents or family. Staff work areas are better
integrated into resident common living areas eliminating the need for a medication cart or
nurses’ station.

Although costly, there are profound advantages to renovating the environment. Garth
Brokaw of Fairport Baptist Home in Fairport, New York loves sharing the story of how they
were trying to serve 42 people with dementia three times a day in a large dining room who
didn’t always want to eat at those times or in a large dining room or with so many people.

He reports that the noise level was “incredible” as was the acting out and inappropriate
behaviors. When they turned the large dining room into three smaller ones, “Overnight, 1kid
you not. Overnight it changed the whole environment on that unit. Just that” (Baker, 2007).

At Meadowlark, Shields discovered the importance of identifying “the sanctity of the home:”

Our gutted, T-shaped nursing home plant produced three cozy homes, where elders
and staff united to create a new sense of life. Three new homes were built homes
with front doors, doorbells, porch lights, and mailboxes. What we were building was
ahouse. A home. With a living room, a kitchen, a dining room, a fridge and a spice
rack, a roast in the oven. A place where folks could gather to cut up lettuce, chop
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onions, make jokes, tell stories, argue a little once in a while, laugh and just live. We
started to talk about ‘the sanctity of the home.” We had to name it so people would
remember that we need to treat healthcare households and the people in them like we
do every other house and host in America: knock when you go to the front door. And
wait for an answer. Be invited in. Be offered a seat, or asked to join in a card game,
or help throw some chicken on the griil (Shields, 2004).

Shields and Norton who together developed the households at Meadowlark Hills have also
created the resource In Pursuit of the Sunbeany: A Practical Guide o Transformation from
Institution to Household. Both the book and expanded toolikit are helping to guide the way in
returning to home via the household model. Together they also developed six design
principles for the household model several of which affect the physical environment:

Principle 1: Seek normaley in all things.
If it wouldn’t be done at home, rethink it.

Principle 2: Home is our sanctuary.
Involve residents in creating a home that invokes the feeling of, “Ah, I'm home.”

Principle 3: Home is where we host our visilors.

A household typically includes small areas where residents can host guests such as a living
room, dining room, den/TV room, private dining room, patio, etc., and it should go without
saying that residents and their guests are welcome to use the kitchen and help themselves to
whatever is in it.

Principle 4: All homes have a front door.
It is true that all homes do have a front door. As Norton and Shields state, “Plain and

simple, it isn’t a house without a front door.”

Principle 5: All homes have a kitchen.

It is widely recognized that most people gather in the kitchen when visiting friends or hosting
a holiday meal and where we congregate as a family daily. Again it is just plain true that all
homes have a kitchen. This has probably been one of the main driving forces for the
household model.

Principlc 6: All homes have recognizable dimensions of privacy.

It seems we’ve become confused in long term care and overly worried about social isolation.
It is important to remember, Norton and Shields remind us, that “privacy does not equal
isolation.” In a home, rooms close to entrances tend to be semi-public areas that welcome
guests whereas rooms separated from guest areas are private. In the traditional nursing home
design, other than the bathrooms, almost all spaces are public. Resident rooms are located
along the major thoroughfare hallways and doors are usually left open, allowing anyone to
peer into the residents’ only private space, yet this is not typical of a person’s home.
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Norton and Shields have learned that fire
safety regulations vary not only from State to | “The obvious truth is that kitchens are

State but also from county to county withina | necessary for preparing and serving

State. Generally any time the household meals, but in a home, Kitchens are just
kitchen has an open cooking appliance, as necessary between meals for
additional fire suppression systems and/or building and sustaining relationships,
physical separation of this appliance from and for nourishing the soul.”Norton and

exits is needed. Some interpretations of the Shields, 2006

codes may require a 20-minute firewall
and/or a physical smoke partition between cooking appliances and all other living spaces.
Sometimes this necessitates a “back of the house” kitchen immediatety behind a “front of the
house” kitchen, usually designated by fire officials as an “activity center.” According to the
regulations in place in Manhattan, Kansas, they found they needed two refrigerators - one for
residents’ food so residents can help themselves and one for the food served to all residents
for meals. Similarly some providers have found that in their States two dishwashers were
needed - one residential dishwasher for resident use and one in a staff-access-only pantry or
“back of the house” kitchen that maintains higher temperatures (2007). Specific Life Safety
Code regulations are talked about later in this paper.

These various requirements in various States highlight issues such as higher temperatures
being required for a dishwasher in a nursing home than in a residential home keeping
individual resident foods separate from the foods to be used for meals for the residents. 1t is
hoped that the symposium and workshop will serve as a place for these issues to be
discussed.

Shields and Norton remind us that the hallway is an important but misunderstood feature of
home. Hallways in our homes actually function as privacy buffers, indicating to visitors
these are more private areas into which you only go if invited. However, in traditional
nursing homes, hallways are designed to be main thoroughfares rather than privacy buffers.
What the household model does instead is place bedrooms and bathing areas down a short
hallway beyond the living and dining social spaces. This is consistent with our personal
home designs. The authors also specify that ability to control access to private spaces is
important:

Because traditional nursing homes use bedroom hallways as public thoroughfares,
many who are trying to leave behind the old ways identify halls as the enemy. We
visualize a long, dark tunnel cluttered with equipment. For many of us, that image
symbolizes the ilis of the system. As a result, emerging designs often completely
eliminate halls by circling resident bedrooms around social areas. This design option
sacrifices residents’ ability to control access to their private spaces. Halls, although
generally too long, are not the problem. The problem is how we use them and to
what we connect them (Norton and Shields, 2007).

Nurses’ stations exist because nursing homes were patterned after hospitals, not homes.
Norton explains here, nurses’ stations do more harm than good, although harm was certainly
not their original intention:
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Often the first thing people see when they visit the traditional medical model nursing
home is the nurses' station. It is the control center amid a buzz of activity, and it
stands as a physical barrier separating the nursing staff from residents and family
members as if to say, "We (staff) are in charge.' Re-creating spaces to be shared by
residents reduces the barrier between residents and staff created by the titanic nurses'
station. Caregivers are more available to residents and family members. Together
they can sit in the comfort of the living room to discuss care plans instead of standing
at a large desk in the lobby area. Responses from residents, families, and workers in
nursing homes that have made these changes are primarily positive.... Now, with
room to converse, play cards, host visitors, and interact with staff, once-listless
residents are awakening to the possibilities of fiendships and community.... Simply
put, ‘If it looks like a hospital, we'll feel like a patient. If it looks like a house, we'll
feel at home’ (Norton, 2005).

Requirements for nurses’ stations fall under State regulations, as there is no Federal
requirement. Each State is different, however; some require nurses’ stations, and some do
not. Some State regulations require that the nurses be able to see down each hall from the
nurses’ station which the culture change movement points out is incongruent with attentive
care since nurses are not sitting at a nurses station at all times nor should they in order to care
for residents. Some States, like Ohio, are simply softening language in their State
regulations. For instance, the Ohio change in regulation that became effective 1/10/07
simply changed the requirement from a nurses’ station to a nurse area,

The household model is taking the lead in removing and replacing the institutional hallmark
of the nurses’ station. In my experience as a former surveyor and now culture change
consultant, I have also seen some homes, although not on a journey toward creating
households, have also removed nurses’ stations and replaced them. Some have replaced
them with fish tanks and bird aviaries which some residents thoroughly enjoy. In other cases
they have been replaced with television viewing areas which unfortunately, in nursing homes
that have not changed the institutional culture, have become somewhat of a “parking lot”
where staff “park” residents. In some cases where a staff office has been created, staff has
been found to be “hiding” and inaccessible to residents or family members. As indicated by
Norton above, the rationale for removing nurses’ stations is to bring staff closer to residents,
not further away, with simple pathering areas where staff can also work.

By virtue of househalds being smaller, the large medication carts are no longer needed. Most
homes that have moved into the household model have built locked medication storage
cabinets in resident rooms. Evergreen Retirement Center in Oshkosh, Wisconsin decided to
keep them central but built locked medication storage right into the dining and living areas.

A very positive environmental feature of the household is installing household rather than
large institutional sized washers and dryers for residents” personal laundry. Homes that have
done this report many advantages:

* A decrease in lost clothing and complaints,
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+ Residents have the opportunity to do their own laundry if able and/or interested,

» Family members can stay and visit while doing laundry,

» Shrinkage and wrinkling is eliminated, and

+ Even if clothing is not marked, staff can identify who it belongs to since they care for
a smaller number of residents consistently (Brecanier, 2005).

Some States require two sets of washers and dryers separated for facility linens and resident
personal laundry. Two areas might also be required, one for soiled and one for non-soiled
items. In other words, “dirty” and “clean” areas. Norton and Shields suggest the “clean”
side of the laundry come complete with folding tables and hanging rods within reach for
residents who enjoy doing laundry (2007).

Norton and Shields found the fire code bewildering when they redesigned Meadowloark
Hills. According to them:

Regulations do not inhibit the Household Model, although interpretations in some
states can make it more difficult than in others. The Fire Code is the greatest
regulatory challenge to the Household Model. Its single focus is fire safety, as it must
be. The problem is that local, State and Federal fire marshal offices don’t always use
the same code. The local office may use one issued in a particular year, the state
another year and the federal yet another. While approval for your plans may be
granted, brace yourself for the first fire inspector “walk through” after the building is
complete. It can be as if plan approvals never took place and the price tag can be
startling. Annual inspections may bring up new issues with long-standing situations
never before identified as problems. Fire Marshal inspections are one of the
regulatory system’s most expensive for providers (Norton and Shields, 2007).
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Chapter 6:
The Eden Alternative® and the Green House® Project

The progression of the culture change movement also includes the Eden Alternative®. The
Eden Alternative® was created by Dr. Bill and Judy Thomas in the early 1990’s as a concept
of home that reflected more of a garden where people grow than an institution where, in
essence, growth is usually stunted. The Eden Alternative® is a philosophy grounded in 10
principles typically applied to a traditionally built nursing home. However, after ten years of
working to recreate nursing homes through the Eden Alternative®, Dr. Thomas became
convinced that chanpe wasn’t happening as quickly or as deeply as it could. So he decided
the best way to uproot the institutional nature of nursing homes was to begin from the bottom
up and “the Green House® would be the Eden Alternative® made real” (Baker, 2007).
Thomas envisioned homes that look like any person’s home and proceeded to find the right
people interested in building new, free standing residential homes for people needing 24 hour
nursing care. The “home” part of “nursing home” would finally take the forefront.

The Green House® Design

The first Green Houses were buill in Tupelo, Mississippi in 2003. According to the Green
House® Project website, Green Houses are residential homes for no more than 10 persons
needing nursing levels of care. They are built to blend architecturally with neighboring
homes. Green Houses are designed to be “warm” by virtue of a cozy, smaller residential
home floor plan, decor and furnishings chosen by those who live there and most importantly
by honoring the opinions and preferences of the people who both live and work in them.
High levels of sunlight are built into the design of each resident’s room; plants and easy
access to the outdoors bring to life the green part of “green house.” Smart technology is also
used via computers and paperless medical records, pendant/bracelet call systems and wireless
pagers, electronic ceiling lifts, adaptive devices, and high-speed Internet access with large-
screen monitors for web-based activities, telemedicine, communicating with family and
friends and webcam viewing of on-site animals and woodlands (Volzer, 2003).

The Green House® Project captured move-in day on a DVD for those residents who moved
from the traditional nursing home to the first Green Houses in 2005. On it, a resident named
Mary Adams, who has dementia, is observed in the large nursing home before moving to be
fed by others, non-responsive, and in a wheelchair. Upon moving into her new Green
House® home, staff and family are astonished, as is anyone viewing this DVD, to see Mary
take a fork from her family member’s hand and feed herself. And by the end of the day, not
only is Mary talking and making decisions, she is singing! The Green House® Project has
shown without a doubt that the physical environment affects people for either good or bad.
The insitution had caused Mary to shut down. Her new home gave her a reason to keep
living. The environment holds great potential in affecting people’s lives for better or for

worse.
Something unique about the Green Houses is that they give privacy and community equal

priority. Privacy is given priority by each elder having their own private room with
bathroom and locked medicine cabinet. Community is also given priority. A residential-
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style kitchen affords the opportunity for both staff and residents to prepare meals and a large
family-style dining table provides a natural place for community meals. The heart of a Green
House® is the hearth - an open living arca with fireplace onto which resident rooms open.
The dining and kitchen areas are also open creating cozy places for people to congregate.

The typical hallmarks of the institutional nursing home are not present — there is no nurses’
station, no medication cart and no public address system. Wheelchairs are not as prevalent,
since the small size of the house promotes more walking (Kane et al, 2007). When nurses
visit a Green House®, they ring the doorbell as they would when visiting any person’s home
(Culture Change Now, 2003). In Beth Baker’s visit to a Green House® in Tupelo,
Mississippi, she found how normal life is there. Residents sit outside after supper enjoying
the evening. Some choose to help fold laundry while others choose not to. She overheard
one staff member call another in a neighboring Green House® to borrow ice cream, another
called to borrow an iron in order to press a shirt for a resident going to a funeral. “It all
seemed so natural, like any close-knit community where a neighbor would borrow a cup of
sugar” (2007).

Safety measures are incorporated using induction cook tops (stove tops that do not get hot
because heat is transferred from the element directly to the pot or pan) and gas shut-off
valves when cooking appliances are not in use. Stove guards are available to be placed on
the top of the stove if staff needs to leave the kitchen while food is cooking. Retractable
gates can prevent entry into the kitchen if necessary and locked cabinets and drawers keep
chemicals and sharp utensils out of reach (The Green House® Project Guide Book, 2007).
These precautions are well thought out as means of preventing potential accident hazards
while making it possible to live in a home instead of an institution.

In the CMS 2005 DVD interview with Thomas Hamilton, Karen Schoeneman explained,
“The Division of Nursing Homes has also had some contact with the Green House director
who showed us the architectural drawings for a standard Green House. We reviewed these
and found no particular problems with how those small settings operate.”

In the February 2007 response to an inquiry by the Mississippi Senate and House delegations
regarding the Green House® Project, Leslie Norwalk, Acting Administrator of CMS stated
that after reviewing program and policy materials and the standard Green House®
architectural plan, CMS found “no barriers that would prevent them from being qualified as
nursing homes under Federal regulations.” (See Appendix C for this letter.)

In the December 2006 Survey and Certification memorandum with answers to culture change
questions, a summary of questions and answers from a June 2006 CMS video conference of
CMS Central Office and Regional Offices with leaders of the Green House® Project was
included (Appendix B). Two questions asked by CMS and answered by the Green House®
Project were in regards to regulations and the Green Houses:

Green House Question 6: Do you intend to request any waivers from the federal
regulations for future Green Houses?
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Answer. 6: We intend to comply with all provisions of the federal regulations for
future Green Houses.

Green House Question 7: NFPA 101-2000 edition, section 18: 5.2.2 exception No. 2
requires fireplaces be separated from patient sleeping areas by a 1-hour fire resistance
rating. RO staff asked how their plan met their requirement.

Answer 7: The Green House staff stated that the fireplace shown in the plan was not a
working fireplace and therefore, did not have to meet the references code section.

Although the hearth, which includes a fireplace, is the heart of the Green House, the fireplace
cannot be used, according to the Life Safety Code. Further clarification was requested from
James Merrill, the LSC lead for nursing homes at CMS who identified the following from the

Life Safety Code:

Exception 2, 18/19.5.2.2 Fireplaces shall be permnitted and used only in areas other than
paticnt sleeping areas, provided that such areas are separated from patient sleeping areas by
construction having not less than a one hour fire resistance rating and such fireplaces comply
with the provisions of 9.2.2. In addition, the fireplacc shall bc equipped with a heartl: that
shall be raised not less than 4 in. and a fireplace enclosure guaranteed against breakage up to
a temperature of 650 degrees and constructed of heat tempered glass or approved material. If
in the opinion of the authority having jurisdiction, special hazards are present, a lock on the
enclosure and other safety precautions shall be permitted to be required.

Merrill explained that what this is saying is that there cannot be a free standing fireplace in
the middle of a common area open to resident rooms. There could only be a fireplace if it
was in a separate room constructed of one-hour fire-rated walls to separate it from the
sleeping areas of the facility. James clarified that if there were such a fireplace in a separate
area, it would have to have a hearth and glass doors to prevent embers and smoke from
coming out into the room and to prevent people from getting too close to the fire (Memili,

2007).

Robert Jenkens, Vice President of the Green House Project, shares that local fire officials are
approving gas fireplaces in some States and electric fireplaces in others. Robert atso points
out that the use of a fireplace first and foremost is for warmth, something older adults often
seek, and an often sought-after feature of home. The disparity of interpretations is confusing
for those who are building or remodeling and may be a topic for further discussion.

There is another regulatory issue that has come up with the design of Green Houses
regarding the arrangement of bedrooms around the central living space area and whether the
bedrooms have direct access to an exit corridor as required by CMS regulation 42 CFR

§483.70 (d) (1) (iv), Tag F459:
483.70(d)(1Xiii) Have direct access to an exit corridor,

Interpretive Guidelines: There is no authority under current regulations to approve a
variation to this requirement. Additional guidance is available in the National Fire Protection
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Association’s Life Safety Code 101 {NFPA 101), 12-2.5.1, which is K41 of the Life Safety
Code Survey.

Life Safety Code K41 states:
All sleeping rooms have a door leading to a corridor providing access to an exit or have a

door leading dircctly to grade.

The term “corridor” is not defined in either the CMS Tag F459 or Life Safety Code K41.
According to the Merriam-Webster dictionary, a corridor is a passageway into which rooms
open. Although we are used to a corridor in a typical nursing home comprising of a hallway
with rooms on both sides, a corridor could also have a wall on only one side, especially since
there is no definition stating otherwise. In the Green House®, this is indeed the case.
Jenkens explains that in a Green House®, the resident rooms open onto an eight foot corridor
which surrounds the open hearth area (2008). He points out that to be compliant with the
corridor and eight foot (more later in paper) requirements causes this open space to be much
larger than what would normally be designed in a residential home forcing this continued
institutional feature in the residential home. He also pointed out that it also causes
construction to be more expensive (2008).

James Merrill of CMS has stated that perhaps the type of corridor that Green House®
bedrooms open up to could be considered an atrium and that the health code of the Life
Safety Code does not prohibit atriums. However, an atrium usually involves two stories, and
Jim is looking into whether or not it can be applied to a one story building. Apparently, it is
also complicated by what goes into that open space. Thus, the issues of corridor and atrium
are unclear and are in need of more clarification and discussion, especially since people are
seeing, and research is showing (more below), the value of living in a home. Something we
all know innately. In fact, Green Houses are being built all over the country through a
project grant from the Robert Wood Johnson Foundation. The RWJ Green House®
Replication Initiative plans to develop 50 Green House® homes across the country with
technical assistance and pre-development loans. As of January 2008, Green House® homes
are fully operational in 14 sites in 10 states. By the end of 2008 there will be an additional
four sites. States represented thus far are AL, AR, AZ, GA, KS, MI, MS, MT, NE, NY, PA,
TX, and WA. These issues need to be settled so that builders and owners of these new
properties as well as other small houses do not run into regulatory problems with their
building design after they are already built and housing residents.

A study was conducted from May 2003 to December 2004 by Kane et al comparing 40 Green
House® residents with 40 residents at two comparison sites. Data collected at baseline and
at three six-month follow-up intervals shows that the Green House® is “a promising model
to improve quality of life for nursing home residents.” Controlling for baseline
characteristics, statistically significant differences in self-reported dimensions of quality of
life favored the Green Houses over one or both of the comparison groups. Additional
discoveries were less ADL decline, less prevalence of depression, less incontinence and less
use of anti-psychotics (Kane et al, 2007). This is great news for the Green House® model.
Now there is solid research evidence that a more normal home environment contributes
strongly to better quality of life and quality of care.
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Consider these strong words from Judith Carboni and their application to the Green House®
or stand-alone home concept:

When considering homelessness in the institutionalized elderly, a pressing issue is
whether nursing homes should exist at all. 1f the consequence of being
institutionalized is to be homeless, and if to be homeless is to lack meaning in life and
to suffer intolerable pain, then can we justify providing and promoting this negative
experience for the vulnerable and chronically ill elderly individual? Solutions to this
dilemma might be found in the exploration and development of alternative settings,
similar in structure and philosophy to half-way houses, in an attempt to move away
from the total institution of the typical nursing home (Carboni, 1990).

Perhaps Green Houses or any residential-style nursing homes are the half-way houses
Carboni envisioned. In fact, the administrator of the first Green Houses at Tupulo, Steve
McAlilly, says. “I keep coming back to the physical structure. The environment sets the tone
for the culture. This is culture replacement. Culture change is taking an existing structure
and trying to change what’s going on. Culture replacement is smashing what’s there and
replacing it.” Steve makes the point that by building from the ground up, you are far less
likely to slip back into the old institutional mindset and practices (Baker, 2007).
“Smashing” the old intitutional model and mindset is happening in both the large-sized
nursing homes that have divided into households as well as the residential. These free-
standing houses are just the final point on the continuum of transitioning from the old
institution, through neighborhoods and households in these older, large buildings, to the
construction of small houses clustered together.

The Tupelo Green House® project reports that operations are cost neutral for the Green
House homes compared to their traditional nursing home (The Green House® Project Guide
Book, 2007). These first Green Houses were built to serve persons receiving Medicaid to
show that it can be done at the lowest level of reimbursement, according to Steve McAllily
(2005). And more good news, the cost to residents to live in a Green House® with their own
private room is cheaper than a private room at a typical nursing home {Baker, 2007).

“You can do this without spending more money for the same number of beds,” says
administrator Les Parks of the Cottages at Brushy Creek of Greenville, South Carolina which
are also small, residential-style homes providing skilled nursing services, although they are
not Green Houses. He attributes this in part to the fact that residential construction Is less
expensive than commercial construction. “Materials and labor are cheaper. At the end of the
day, it’s a wash,” Parks said in a 2007 Provider magazine article, adding that the $172 per
day private-pay rate at the Cotiages is less than the rate at neighboring SNFs in traditional
settings” (Smokler).

25

qg’ Attachment - 12




Three States Pass Lepislation Regarding Green Houses

In three States, Arkansas, Oklahoma, and Wyoming, Green Houses have had such an impact
the legislatures have passed legislation supporting the development of them as alternative
nursing homes providing skilled nursing care.

Arkansas

Arkansas House Bills 1363 and 1364, signed into law March 2007, provide Arkansas’ Office
of Long Term Care the ability to provide support, staffing flexibility, and specialized
reimbursements to organizations interested in creating a Green House® project or
implementing an Eden Alternative program. House Bill 1363 amends Arkansas’ Code
relating to nursing home staffing standards to allow the Office of Long-Tenn Care to create
separate staffing standards and reimbursement categories for Green House Projects or Eden
Alternative homes as determined necessary

(www.arkleg state ar.us/ftproot/bills/2007/public/HB1363.pdf).

House Bill 1364 amends the Arkansas Long Term Care Trust Fund, an account funded by
nursing homes’ civil monetary penalties, to allow the Director of the Office of Long-Term
Care to use funds from the trust to “enhance the quality of life for long-term care facility
residents through the adoption of principles and building designs established by the Eden
Alternative or Green House® programs or other means”

(www.arkleg state.ar.us/fiproot/bills/2007/public/HB1364.pdf).

This use of civil monetary penalty (CMP) money in this way is supported by CMS as
described in a Survey and Certification policy letter S&C-02-42 released 8/8/02. The letter
states, “North Carolina and other states have issued grants to several nursing facilities to fund
Eden Alternative Projects, which provide training and other services necessary to support the
use of animals in nursing facilities for therapeutic purposes. Because CMP funds collected
by a state are state funds, the state may use the money for any project that directly benefits
facility residents....” See Appendix D for the Use of CMP Penalty Fine letter.

QOklahoma

In April 2007 Oklahoma Governor signed into law HB 1510 which gives the Commissioner
of Heaith the ability to waive certain provisions of the Oklahoma Nursing Home Care Act if
necessary to restore “individuals to a self-contained residence in the community that is
designed like a private home and houses not more than 10 individuals” for skilled nursing

care much like a Green House® (http://webserver1.lsb.state.ok.us/2007-
SHB/HB1510_int.rtf).

Wyoming
Wyoming adopted the Long-Term Care Choices Act (SF89) February 2007 creating an

“alternative elder care home™ category of nursing homes and a feasibility grant to fund the
exploration of one such alternative nursing home. The home is being defined as a fully
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. detached house for no more than 10 residents providing the highest level of care permitted
under Wyoming Jaw to Medicaid-supported residents. The residential home environment is
to include private bedrooms and baths, a den, an open kitchen, an office for nurses, open
access to all areas of the house, a secured patio, overhead lifts, a restraint-free environment,
self-managed work teams of direct care and nursing staff, a home-base facility for the clinical
support team members outside and separate from the house, and a “culture of learning and
participation by the residents and honors the elder-hood stage of life”

(www.lepisweb.state. wy.us/2007/Engross/SF0089 pdf).
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Chapter 7: Environmental Issues in Long Term Care

The following subsections highlight issues and research that are arising from looking closer
at the environment where people live and happen to receive nursing care.

Private Rooms

The majority of resident rooms in nursing homes are what is referred to as “semi-private”
meaning one room shared by two people. However, designers typically refer to these rooms
as shared instead of semi-private. Gerontological designer Betsy Brawley says that most
research, particularly in the last ten years, has shown that private bedrooms are more
successful than shared and that “there is little doubt that private rooms are the preferred
choice of most™ (2006). Private bedrooms lead to improved sleep and fewer interventions
needed to promote sleep at night, staff assistance with care can be provided more easily and
it is easier to keep track of residents’ personal items (Brawley, 1997).

To understand the setting better, architect David Dillard experienced the nursing home for
himself. He shares his experience as a resident of a nursing home in the third edition of the
Culture Change Now magazine focused on design and its impact on culture change:

‘My head was about six feet from my roommate’s... I could not control the lighting
from my bed.... I did not like sharing a bathroom.... This was one of the most
awkward roommate situations I have experienced.... 1 didn’t expect to have a
roommate, let alone one in advanced stages of Alzheimer’s... [ had to reset my
expectations for a good night’s sleep.” For Dillard, sleep was nearly impossible. His
roommate mumbled through the night and his room, its door open, was next to the
nurses’ station. ‘I heard every nurse-call beep and conversation that transmitted from
Grand Central Station all night long’ (2005).

Residents who were interviewed as part of the CMS Quality of Life study revealed that they
greatly preferred private rooms to shared rooms. This research also showed that those
facilities deemed to have high quality of life had the most private rooms (Kane et al, 2004).
A 1996 study by the American Association of Retired Persons found that individuals over the
age of 50 prefer a private room by a ratio of 20 tol (Baugh) which only replicates early
research showing preference for private rooms found by Lawton and Bader in 1970.

Brawley also predicts baby boomers will insist on more space and storage than commonly
offered by the standard nursing home room. Federal regulations at 458 require 2 minimum
of only 80 sq. ft. per person for a shared room and only 100 sq. ft. for a private room.
Brawley encourages people building nursing homes, “rather than design rooms for the
absolute minimum amount of space possible, we must ¢xpand our thinking and design rooms
that are sufficiently spacious to encourage a normalized lifestyle. ... It is interesting that
budget motels and even maximum security prisons provide far more square footage for their
‘guests’ than do most healthcare settings (1997).”
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A 2005 study by Maggie Calkins gerontological researcher and Christine Cassella research
associate, found overwhelming evidence supporting the benefits of private rooms including
clinical, psychosocial and operational factors. Their study also found positive cost
implications of constructing new homes with private rooms (2007). More on the results of
this study will be presented at the April 3 2008 Creating Home national symposium by
Maggie Calkins.

The typical semi-private room only offers a cloth curtain for privacy. Some homes have
made a commitment to privacy by designing shared rooms with a wall between the two sides
of the room giving residents privacy while sharing a common bathroom and closet area.
However, they are rare. For instance, of the 40 nursing homes in the Quality of Life study,
only two had privacy enhanced shared rooms (Cutler et al, 2006). Privacy enhanced rooms
are defined by the Society for the Advancement of Gerontological Environments (SAGE-
more about SAGE can be found below) as rooms where residents can access their own space
without trespassing through a roommate’s space and feel like a private room. Other options
include bookshelves, display cases, solid or half-height partition walls.

The University of Minnesota’s Rosalie Kane said to Provider magazine, “The idea that a
grown adult should have a roommate is ludicrous,” adding that communal bathrooms also are
a thing of the past (Smokler, 2007). Brawley calls it “an affront” by saying “for those
accustomed to living at home, one of the greatest affronts often brought by long term care is
lack of privacy,” and she wisely foresees that “baby boomers will insist on private rooms”
(2006).

The first Green Houses, Traceway in Tupelo, Mississippi, show that a preferred mode of
living in a residential home with a private room and bathroom can be done under primarily
Medicaid reimbursement with costs to residents cheaper than a private room at a typical
nursing home (Baker, 2007). However, architect David Hougland of Perkins Eastman
explains in Beth Baker’s book Old Age in a New Age that most states’ Medicaid programs
reimburse construction costs only up to a point. Capital improvement reimbursements can be
so low they compel nursing homes to limit the amount of space devoted to residents, making
it virtually impossible to build all or almost all private rooms. Reimbursement is based on
maximum square footage in the whole building per bed so includes bedroom, comdor,
dining, offices, activity rooms, everything (Baker, 2007). Although most businesses do not
receive reimbursement from the government, because nursing homes do, perhaps capital
improvement reimbursement is an area for culture change advocates to investigate in their
quest to provide home environments that include a greater number of private rooms.

Each state has its own rules regarding Medicaid coverage. Most States only reimburse a
nursing home for the cost of a semi-private room and will not pay extra for a private room
unless medically necessary. The State of Michigan includes in their capitaicost formula an
additional $5.00 per person per day for private rooms up to 100 beds (Calkins and Cassella,
2007). Thus, as in the case of Michigan, each State also has the ability to change their rules
and make it more advantageous for nursing homes to offer private rooms.
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The Federal regulations don’t mandate private rooms, although residents certainly prefer
them. Do we want the Federal Government to mandate private rooms for new construction?

What about the cost implications?

Lighting and Glare

An issue receiving more and more attention by researchers and designers is lighting and
glare. As the CMS Quality of Life study found, lighting levels were so low as to be equated
with blindness in the 40 nursing homes observed. Lighting measurements in the study were
often inadequate at the head of bed, sink and toilet in bathrooms, in shower rooms, at nurses’
stations and in hallways making it difficult for both staff and residents to see at optimal level

in order to complete tasks.

Researchers and designers like Brawley have discovered that thoughtful attention is often not
given to the problem of glare in nursing homes, which is compounded by the loss of vision as
we age. “If1 could change just one thing, it would be the lighting” says Betsy Brawley in
2002. She then set out to assist long term care providers and designers by publishing two
thorough books: Designing for Alzheimer's Disease: Stratcgies for better care environments
in 1997 and ten years later, Design Innovations for Aging and Alzheimer’s: Creating Caring
Environments in 2006. Her extensive work is used in this section to draw attention to this
important subject, and she will be presenting more detail at the April 3, 2008 Creating Home

national symposium.

The pupil gets smaller as we age, allowing less light to reach the retina, which results in
decreased vision. The aging eyes of a 60 year old require up to three times more light for
tasks than the eyes of a healthy 20 year old, and by the time we reach 75 as much as five
times more light may be required (Brawley, 2006). Additionally, the thickening and
yellowing of the lens as we age reduces the amount of light entering the eye (Noell-
Wagonner, 1992). According to Brawley, higher quality and quantities of appropriate
lighting can help minimize the effects of normal aging vision and thus maximize our
capabilities even as we age. QOutcomes to residents living in long term care settings where
light levels were increased well beyond recommended minimum light levels are: few sleep
problems, less sun-downing, positive staff morale and the added bonus of a great marketing
feature (Brawley, 2006).

According to Brawley, glare is a state in which bright light interferes with viewing something
less bright. Glare and reflection can cause confusion, agitation and anger, inhibit activity and
compromise safety. Glare is controlled by either increasing the brightness of the
surroundings or decreasing the brightness of the source, or both. Surface brightness can be
increased by illuminating the walls and ceiling and using lighter colors. Indirect light
sources provide diffused light, which eliminates or reduces glare and contributes to visual
comfort. Glare from windows can be concealed with translucent shades, blinds and valances
on the inside or overhangs and awnings on the outside. Indirect light sources such as cove
lighting (aimed toward the ceiling) and pendant fixtures (pendant shaped hanging lights that
also aim light up toward the ceiling) are easier on the eyes and do not produce glare (2006).
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Indirect lighting is rare in a nursing home. Instead the main source of light is direct light in
the form of florescent overhead light bulbs. Many reflective surfaces also exist in a nursing
home, the most predominant of which is the shiny buffed tile floors. Bright light contributes
to eyestrain, headaches and makes it difficult for both staff and residents to accomplish tasks.
Brawley teaches that necessary light for older eyes comes from raising light levels
substantially, balancing natural light or daylight and electric light to achieve even light levels
and eliminating glare (2006).

Many older adults, particularly those living in institutions, don’t receive adequate exposure to
bright light needed for the synchronization of their circadian system (Ancoli-Israel and
Kripke, 1989). This is most likely due to the fact that the best source of bright light
necessary for synchronization of the circadian system is daylight. And ironically, circadian
disturbances are associated with, among other things, “increased risk of institutionalization™
(Chen et al, 2003). Successful daylight designs use large daylight sources that keep the
brightness out of the field of view such as skylights, facades with overhangs, awnings,
windows, light shelves (windows with a horizontal surface at 90 degrees to the window glass
bouncing daylight upward onto the ceiling and then down, thereby controlling glare),
skylights, and clerestories (windows high on a wall directly below the ceiling) (Brawley,
2006). Brawley states that because lighting represents 40 to 50 percent of the energy costs of
commercial buildings, incorporating daylight has energy efficiency benefits and provides
strong “time of day” cues for persons needing them as well.

In a nursing home, it is common to find in each resident’s room the insitutional over-the-bed
three-way lights that are found in most hospital rooms. Installing lights that would be found
in a home rather than in an institution is a fairly inexpensive change to make. Fairport
Baptist Home simply replaced the over-the-bed three-way lights with homier lamp-style
lights.

Eunice Noell-Waggoner, President of the Center for Design for an Aging Society, shares that
where facilities tend to fall down is failing to provide general, even, consistent ambient light
levels, often treating lighting as a decoration instead of a vital building design concept. A
great idea she gives as a first step for facilities to improve lighting for their residents and staff
is to call the local utility company, which will send someone out to measure light levels and
give a baseline from which to start (Gold, 2004).

Calkins teaches that all sources of light should be shielded, so residents never look directly at
a light source. She advises to have someone wheel you down the hallway in asemi-reclined
position and look at the ceiling. Do you find light sources that need to be changed or
shielded? Watch for flickering. Fluorescent lamps are prone to flicker, to which younger
caregivers may not be sensitive but which may be very disturbing to older visitors and
residents. She advises that the next step is to eliminate all overhead fixtures that direct light
downward. Is there general ambient lighting? Providing multiple lamps gives the advantage
of allowing lighting levels to be easily changed to suit different purposes and moods
(Calkins, 2005).
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As an advocate for proper lighting, .
Brawley makes a strong case: 10 Steps to Successful Lighting:
“Lighting can and will make a greater | Compensating for Changes in the Aging Eve
difference in the success of a 1. Raise the level of illumination
healthcare setting than any other 2. Provide consistent and even light levels
single feature except the healthcare 3. Eliminate glare
itself” because “visual performance, 4. Provide access to natural daylight
ambiance, safety and security all S. Provide gradual changes in light levels
depend on lighting” (2006). 6. Increase illuminance at task locations

7. Use indirect lighting

8. Improve color rendering

9. Use lighting controls

10. Develop a lighting maintenance schedule

Color

Color can make an environment much more user friendly in the sense of using it for contrast.
Maggie Calkins teaches that appropriate use of color for contrast is probably more important
than the colors themselves, especially for people with dementia.

Types of Contrast
» Contrast of hue is when two different hues such as red
and blue are placed next to each other.
» Contrast of light and dark is when different tints and
shades are placed next to each other.
* Contrast of cold and warm occurs when colors of
different “temperatures” are placed next to each other

such as orange which is warm and blue which is cool.
Calkins, 2003

Chair seats should contrast with the floor so people can see where the edge of the chair is.
Sink basins should contrast with the counter top. Toilets and toilet seats should contrast with
both the floor and walls to make them more visible. Table settings should provide high
contrast between the plates such as a white or light color, with the table or tablecloth or
placemat a dark color. Floors should avoid high contrasting bold patterns and borders. Color
change at the floor of doorways is good, but if it is very distinct, handrails are best, as
changes in hue and value often appear to be a change in level which people think they need
to step over. Handrails and grab bars in contrasting colors also ensure they will be seen by a
person with visual impairment {Calkins, 2003). Regarding color, Dr. Brawley adds,
“Painting every room the same color instantly spells “institutional setting’” (2006). Many of
us have experienced in our life time what a new paint color can do to a room, to our homes,
and how it can lift our spirits. Model homes experiment with color, why not nursing homes?
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Unaccommodating Seatin

Designers of long term care buildings are pointing out that seating is not always as
accommodating as it could be. Calkins reminds us that

In most peoples’ homes, the chairs in the dining room are different than the chairs in
the kitchen, or living room, or bedroom. Yet, in many facilities, once the designer
has found, for instance, a “good chair” that meets both physical and aesthetic
requirements, it is purchased in quantity and placed throughout the building. There
are lots of good chairs available on the market, and incorporating several different
designs (not just changing the fabrics) will help spaces have a more unique identity.
Also, since people come in different sizes, so too should chairs. What is comfortable
to a tall gentleman may not be suitable for a petite lady (2002).

Calkins also teaches us that while the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) recommends
seating at 17.5 — 18.5 inches, this may be too high to be comfortable for shorter people.
Having some chairs that are lower for shorter individuals and some chairs with higher and
deeper seats for taller individuals will help to meet varied needs (Calkins, 2006). Brawley
goes on to say hip joints can be shattered and broken when frail individuals attempt to rise
from an inappropriate chair, and it can be difficult to rise from an upholstered chair if the seat
is too deep. The new CMS interpretive guidance for Accidents, 42 CFR §483.25(h), Tag
F323, effective August of 2007, even mentions furniture that is not appropriate for a resident
(e.g. chairs or beds that are too low...) as an example of potential hazards.

Toilet Height and Placement

Toilets can also be too high for shorter people, as the ADA requires a seating height of 17 to
19 inches which does not allow for a short person’s feet to touch the floor, according to
Brawley. She suggests a 15 inch height works better, and a toilet riser can be added for taller
people. Brawley points out that it is surprising that a toilet manufacturer has not refined a

better design (2006).

In addition to the above, another example of ADA guidelines not in step with long term care
needs is the placement of the toilet 18 inches away from the wall closest to the side of the
toilet to support an independent transfer. Brawley writes that the ADA guidelines were
developed based on the ability of young wheelchair users, primarily males with good upper
body strength. Independent transfers are rare among frail €lders who have more of a need for
assistance with transfers. Therefore the 18 inch requirement does not create enough room for
staff to assist the person with transferring. Brawley suggests that placing the toilet 36 inches
from the wall provides the space needed. Moving arm grab bars are a great new solution
since they can swing up and out of the way for the transfer and then swing down from the
wall for someone to hold onto (Brawley, 2006). At the August 2007 Pioneer Network
conference, Brawley also mentioned that although ADA requires round handrails, arthritis is
so common, a broader, flatter handrail is better and the person can use their forearm as well.
ADA became law in 1992,
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Designers like Brawley recommend working with an architect experienced with the special
needs of older adults (2007). Any architect working with a nursing home needs to consider
the needs of the actual residents who will live there, and not just do whatever the ADA
recommends.

ADA

Betsy Brawley explains that the inadequate ADA standards listed above are actually harmful
to the older adults living in nursing homes (2008). In fact, Beverly Brandon of the American
Intitute of Architects made strong arguments already back in 1993 afier ADA became law in
1992 that the ADA is “unresponsive to [the] needs of the elderly” and that its ““shortcomings
are numerous” (AAHA (former name of American Association of Homes and Services for
the Aging) Provider News, 1993). The article states that aithough the ADA specifically
references nursing homes under Medical Care Facilities section, it makes no reference to the
“unique anthropometric characteristics of an older person either in a standing position, or
walker, wheelchair or geriatric chair.” It also states that the guidelines are “based upon a
young, physically fit, disabled male’s dimensions and anthropometrics.” Brawley adds that
they were created with the disabled male Vietnam veteran in mind, not an older frail person
living in a nursing home.

Lack of Access to Outdoor Spaces

Brawley states that outdoor spaces are often ignored during the design of new nursing homes
or “value engineered” out of a project due to cost when “in reality outdoor spaces are
especially important to persons sequestered in institutional settings.” Then when outdoor
spaces do exist, amenities and access are often lacking, “yet we argue that outdoor spaces
have the potential of increasing a resident’s quality of life and well-being...” (Brawley,
2006). Silverado Assisted Livings report that they have found “two hours of high intensity
light in the morning greatly reduces unwanted behaviors later in the day,” and “utilizing the
facilities’ outdoor spaces for sunlight and exercise has helped cut the use of psychotropic
medications by 40 percent” (Gold, 2004).

The CMS Quality of Life study also examined the use of and access to outdoor space in the
40 facilities observed. It was found that although 97.5% of the facilities had an outdoor
space, only 44.3% of the residents in these homes had access to the space. Of the 1,068
residents who were able to complete an interview regarding how often they get outdoors,
32.2 % went outdoors less than once a month, 13.4% less than once a week, 16.8 % about
once a week, 15.8% several times a week and 21.8% everyday. Of 1,780 family responses,
43.3% indicated that their relative gets outside as much as they want but 34.7% indicated
their relative doesn’t-get out enough (0.3% indicated too much and 21.7% stated they did not
know). :

Even when outdoor areas existed, they often went unused: they were locked and residents
were only “allowed” to use the outdoor space when escorted by a staff or family member or
“on the rare occasion when outdoor activities were scheduled.” Or they were too far away
from living areas for residents to get to independently, too small of a space, too close to
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resident room windows making residents feel they were invading privacy, or residents
reported that the spaces were “boring.” Paved walkways and benches - two features that
enable residents to walk or push a wheelchair, and rest - were also often found lacking. In
this study it was found that other ways facilities succeeded in getting residents outside were
garden clubs, rides around campus and golf cart rides through the neighborhood. Golf carts
afford the opportunity for fresh air, a covering, and a way to visit with neighbors.

As a former activity director, former surveyor, and now instructor of the activity
professionals training course and culture change consultant, I encourage staff, activity staff in
particular, to flip the common practice of always holding activities inside by creating an
expeclation that group activities will be held outside unless weather prohibits. This is a
simple and efficient way for staff to afford the residents more opportunity to get outside
while being present to provide any assistance or supervision needed.

The CMS Quality of Life study emphasized that there are no federal regulations mentioning
outdoor space, and the survey process does not evaluate this.

Other than fire egress regulations, Federal regulations do not take into consideration
outdoor spaces in the standards of the nursing home survey process. This seems
rather peculiar because based on the intent and goals of the Federal regulations that
apply to well-being of nursing home residents; one might expect encouragement of
outdoor access or even minimal requirements for outdoor space in nursing facilities
(Cutler and Kane, 2006).

Cutler and Kane go on to point out that CMS requirements include honoring resident choices
(Self-determination and participation at 42 CFR §483.15 (b), Tag F242), accommodating the
environment to meet individual needs and preferences (Accommodations of Need at 42 CFR
§483.15 (e), Tag F246), and helping each resident to obtain their highest practicable quality
of life (Quality of Life at 42 CFR §483.15, Tag F240). At the State level, if regulations
pertaining to the outdoor environment are in place, most often they only apply to special care
dementia units and emphasize the safety of the grounds (Cutler and Kane, 2006).

Of the many nursing homes I’ve walked up to, most are surrounded by grass, lots and lots of
grass. Wouldn’t it be easy and not at all that expensive to create paths through that grass
with benches and picnic tables, bird feeders and gardens? It was Bill Thomas and the first
Eden Alternative home that began questioning this and instead replaced all that traditional,
boring grass with blooming flowers and various vegetable gardens, with a forever changing
interesting landscape to watch and be a part of if one so chose (1996).

Calkins and colleagues make a strong case for mandating easy outdoor access for persons
living in locked secure units:

While this goal of safety is laudable, its execution must be reconsidered. The ethics
of locking people up and giving them virtually no access to outdoor space needs to be
examined. When these secure units are on upper floors of multi-kevel buildings,
getting outside becomes a rare event. Staff is understandably busy with many care
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giving tasks and the extra steps it requires just to get people outside may be more than
they can manage. And this is considered acceptable. By contrast, in many States,
prisoners — people who have committed crimes — are required to be allowed one hour
in every 24 outside. It is the position of these authors that no secure unit should be
considered acceptable unless it has direct, and at least partially unrestricted (during
clement weather) access to a (secure) outdoor space (Calkins and Mardsen, 2003).

David Troxel, long time advocate for persons with Alzheimer’s and co-author of the book
Best Friends Approach to Alzheimer Care gives well-worth-repeating advice for staff to get
residents outside:

Many long-term care communities advertise outdoor space as an important
component of quality care... Yet when I visit many of these communities and tour the
lovely gardens, I see the impressive architecture, lovely flowers, ponds, and
fountains. There is only one thing missing ~ people! I have asked my friends
working in long-term care settings why this is the case. Most acknowledge that these
spaces are underutilized. Common reasons for underutilization include lack of
outdoor furniture or an appropriate size patio area, space being too hot or too cold,
excess glare, lack of staff to be with the residents outside, fear of falls, or just general
apathy. When I asked these same individuals whether they would like to see more
activities outside, all say yes.

Here are some of his suggestions for rediscovering your outdoor spaces:

Assess the space. Go outside and spend some time by yourself in your program’s
outdoor space. Is it pleasant for you to be outside? If there are problems, how can
they be corrected? Sometimes, inexpensive outdoor furniture with adjustable
umbreltas can do the trick.

Talk to staff about your expectation. Program leaders should give staff clear
directions that residents should be encouraged to be out of doors daily if weather
allows. As with any stafTrole, to experience success program managers should
model the task by taking residents outside for activities and even hoiding staff
meetings on a patio to discuss the benefits of being outside.

Create an outside activity program.

When individuals who have led a productive life have nothing to do, or not enough to
do, it leads to frustration, anger, and other emotions that can fead to challenging
behaviors. Being out-of-doors helps a person with dementia experience sensory
stimulation that is often comforting. Being out-of-doors also uses up excess energy.
Take a half hour in a staff meting to brainstorm S0 things that could be done outside
on a nice day.

Doing nothing 1s doing something.

Sitting on a park bench or outside provides staff members with an excellent
opportunity to be one-on-one with a resident. Conversation can build around the
sights, sounds, and smells of the outdoor space, even distant views of airplanes
(Troxel, 2005).
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Betsy Brawley sums it up by saying, “With little or no access to the outdoors or healthy fresh
air and sunshine, it’s difficult to see how this environment contributcs to a better quality of
life” (Brawley, 2006). So what might it take to ensure that residents do get outdoors? Will it
take a requirement or regulation much like the one mentioned here above that prisoners are
required to be allowed one hour in every 24 hours to go outside if they so desire?

The Bathing Environment

The typical bathing environment in a nursing home tends to be very institutional as Brawley
summarizes:

Until recently, bathing environments have been perhaps the least sensitively thought
out and most poorly designed spaces in care settings.... Limited lighting and
limitless expanses of ceramic tile create noisy environments for aging persons who
experience difficulty seeing and hearing. These indignities and being expected to
disrobe in a cold room with the overall ambiance of a storage cellar have combined to
overwhelm, confuse, and anger unfortunate and unsuspecting residents. .. (Brawley,
2006).

Brawley offers many ideas to warm the bathing environment in every way. Simple decor can
make the bathroom feel more like one is at home. Privacy can be enhanced with private
dressing and grooming areas, a private bathroom and foldable screens if nothing €lse. Slip-
resistant vinyl flooring in wet areas combined with moisture-barrier carpet in the dressing
and grooming areas can reduce the amount of hard-surface ceramic tile and thereby both
noise and any injury from falls. Moisture-resistant acoustical ceiling tiles designed
specifically for humid conditions can also help reduce noise. Window treatments, shower
curtains, fowels and other soft items can add color and life to the space and absorb noise.
Ideally, separate temperature controls in the bathing area allow staff to adjust room
temperature during bathing and to ensure the room is warm and comfortable when a resident
arrives. Windows and skylights can bring daylight and warmth from the sun, indirect cove
lighting or pendant fixtures with dimming options are more relaxing and easier on older eyes
and a light fixture that provides sufficient light in the shower is very important (Brawley,
2006). Sufficient lighting is even more important in the bathing environment since most
people remove their glasses while showering and bathing (AOA, 2006).

Temperature is important to the comfort of anyone being bathed, but older people especially
are sensitive to drafts and easily chilled. When taking a shower, anyone is likely to have a
significant amount of exposed, wet skin which can quickly feel cold. Also, many of the tubs
used in long term care settings only cover the bather from the waist down, leaving the upper
portion of the body wet and exposed to drafts and chills. Thus, researcher and designer
Maggie Calkins recommends every bathing room be equipped with an extra source of heat.
If the caregiver is overly warm, almost to the point of sweating, the temperature is probably
about right for the older person being bathed (Calkins, 2003). Common sources of heat
include heat lamps or radiant heat panels. However, additional heat sources in bathing rooms
are not all that common. Only 15% of the 1,988 homes in the CMS Quality of Life study had
heat lamps (Cutler et ai, 2006).
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Homes need to ensure that no heat source is a potential fire hazard. One obvious rule of
thumb is to never use products with any exposed heating elements anywhere, especially in a
bathing room. Calkins cautions that all heating elements should be mounted permanently to
a wall or ceiling and wired into the facility electrical system to avoid any possibility of
coming in contact with water (Calkins et al, 2001).

Ambient Room Temperatures

Ask anyone working in a nursing home and they will tell you that older people prefer warmer
temperatures. Older people tend to also be more sensitive to drafts. Calkins therefore
recommends that forced air systems be designed so vents do not blow air across the room,
particularly to areas where residents are likely to be sitting or lying for extended periods of
time. Again, although staff members who are physically working hard may perceive it to be
uncomfortably warm, “efforts should be made to keep the ambient temperature to the
residents’ liking” (Calkins, 2005). Staff putting the needs of residents above theirs such as
this, is a good example of resident-centered care.

Nursing Home Noise

Daily life in a nursing home often includes a cacophony of noises: overhead paging, call
lights beeping, carts rolling down the halls, medication cart drawers opening and closing,
pills crushing, wheelchairs and walkers, staff beckoning for each other, ice machines
churning out ice, buffers buffing floors, vacuums, carpet extractors, door alarms sounding
when some residents try to exit a unit or the facility, personal alarms sounding when some
residents rise from their beds or chairs, televisions blaring, piped in music and more “With
the alarms going off and bells and whistles ... I could barely hear others talk,” said Grant
Warner, architect who experienced the nursing home environment for himself (Shaeffer,
2005).

The Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) has guidelines to protect
workers from noise. OSHA requires protection and only short durations of exposure when
the average noise level is greater than 85 decibels (dB). According to Ulrich and Zimring,
daytime noise levels in many healthcare settings can range from 65 to 95 dB or higher,
sometimes up to 85 dB in the evening. Both the Environmenta! Protection Agency (EPA)
and the World Health Organization suggest that an evening decibel level be approximately
35 dB (2004). Brawley reports that ice machines and even machines that distribute juices
and soft drinks “rattle and roll” at pitches of 85-90 dB. She also points out that as the
number of people in any setting increases, so does the noise (Brawley, 2006). People will
speak 15 decibels or 150 percent louder than the background noise to be understood (Mazer,
2002). Brawley says, “It’s interesting that the workplace environment is protected, but the
healthcare settings for residents and patients we refer to as healing environments are not.
What's wrong with this picture?” (Brawley, 2006).

Noise is disorienting to older adults, especially those who are hearing impaired. Hearing loss
is the third most prevalent chronic condition in older Americans according to Cruickshanks
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et al (1998) affecting more than 80 percent of persons 80 and older, according to the U.S.
Census Bureau. And if the diminished ability to hear and communicate wasn’t frustrating
enough, it also correlates strongly with depression according to Yueh et al (2003).

Brawley indicates that when background noises merge with human voices life gets louder
and fainter, and especially more confusing, all at the same time (2006). “When it [noise]
deprives them [persons who are hearing impaired] of hearing and impairs what little ability
they retain to understand language, it is both abusive and a safety hazard. Until we improve
the acoustic environment and eliminate disruptive noise that intrudes on the everyday life of
frail and elderly adults, we will never be able to describe healthcare settings as healing

environments” (Brawley, 2006).

The surfaces in the long term care environment namely floors, walls and ceilings are usually
hard and sound-reflecting versus sound-absorbing. There are numerous ways to absorb
sound and minimize sound all together.

According to various environmental researchers, carpet offers many advantages. Carpeted
floors help temper sound whereas hard-surface floors allow sound to bounce from one hard
surface to another. According to the Carpet and Rug Institute, carpet is ten times more
efficient in reducing and absorbing noise than hard surfaces (Maddox, 2006). Background
noise can be reduced by 70% when carpet is added to a room according to Baucom (1996).
According to Taylor, it has been shown that carpet has no greater bacterial or fungal growth
than hard-surface floors and moisture-barrier backing and permanently welded seams resist
moisture and prevent mold (2001). Impervious backing keeps spills on the surface
preventing them from passing through to the sub floor and contaminating it as in the case of
urine. Carpet also provides comfort for residents, visitors and staff who spend many hours
on their feet (Brawley, 2006). Wall carpet (a special acoustical wall covering, not regular
carpet put on the wall) is successful in areas with noisy equipment. Sound-absorbing ceiling
tiles deflect sound that travels through ductwork, under doors and through cracks in rooms. A
study by the Karolinska Institute of Medicine in Sweden found that sound-absorbing ceiling
tiles diminished both overall average and peak noise levels. Results found were improved
sleep and patient satisfaction with care. Under the noisier conditions, staff reported more
stress and fatigue and considered their work more demanding (Dubbs, 2004). In addition,
use of drapes and acoustic panels on walls help to absorb noise.

Many practices within the nursing home create noise. However, for every cause of noise
there are creative ways to successfully minimize it. Instead of loud call bells or beeping to
alert staff of a resident’s whereabouts, technology has provided us with silent alerts and
direct communication to staff pagers or cell phones. However, some state licensure
regulations will not allow. for this attempt to reduce noise as they continue to require auditory
call bell systems. This is an area where States could make a difference in quality of life by
making allowances for various methods of contacting staff (Calkins, 2005). In fact, not only
do these sorts of systems reduce noise levels, they also create more efficient communication.
Residents contact staff immediately when they use their call bell that is connected to portable
pagers carried by staff instead of being dependent on staff to see a blinking light or hear a
beeping bell from the nurses’ station only.
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Brawley gives the idea to install separate switches for the bathroom light and bathroom fan
which can greatly reduce the sometimes constant noise from bathroom exhaust fans (2006).
Believe or not, there is such a thing as “quiet vacuums” - vacuums rated at decibel levels
below the sound level of normal conversation (Calkins et al, 2001). However, Brawley
cautions that they do not always live up to their name. She goes on to suggest that sound
ratings should be considered when purchasing new equipment and nursing homes should
hold vendors and manufacturers accountable for the auditory impact of their equipment in the
same way that other safety and efficiency factors are rated. Facility staff can aiso do their
part to coordinate cleaning schedules to the best times for minimizing the noise impact on
residents (2006).

Homes that have undergone deep systems change have affected the noise level for the good.
When Beth Baker visited Mcadowlark Hills in Manhattan, Kansas she noted “I heard nothing
but the sounds of home: the splash of juice being poured, the clink of silverware,
conversation, soft laughter. As Steve Shields said, what was perhaps most striking was what
was absent: no beepers, no disembodied voices over paging systems, no clatter of carts
rumbling through halls” (Baker, 2007). What if we made this our goal? To create as a new
definition of noise in a nursing home the pure sounds of home.

Carts = Institution, Ways to Get Rid of Them

Pioneers ridding themselves of all hallmarks of the institution have found simple ways to
eliminate the over usage of carts. Fairport Baptist built cabinets for incontinence products
and linens, eliminating the need for linen carts. Fairport also built locked medication storage
cabinets in their renovated rooms. Even before any renovation, Perham Memorial Home in
Perham, Minnesota bought kitchen cabinets from a home improvement store. In each
resident room, they turned one on its side mounted it to a wall in an aicove above a dresser,
put in a lock and created a space where two resident’s medications could be kept locked in
their room. Both homes are proud they no longer use medication carts.

Calkins and Mardsen advocate using “Rolling laundry bins, medicine and
enclosed laundry hampers in each food carts... ‘Everything looks like it
resident’s room and emptying them is coming very close and it is very
frequently. This, they say, is a much scary...I felt someone was going to run
better substitute for “large soiled [linen] over me with this huge equipment”

carts kept in the hallways all morning” said Emi Kiyota, who lived as resident
(Calkins and Mardsen, 2003). Another for a month as part of her master’s

idea is to create similar cabinet space, thesis {Schaeffer, 2005).

perhaps in resident bathrooms or toilet

rooms, where toilet paper and paper towels could be kept along with housekeeping supplies
in a locked area. In my experience as a culture change consultant, even housekeepers have
offered to keep housekeeping supplies in such a built-in locked cabinet in a resident room or
bathroom in order to eliminate the housekeeping carts too. Many nursing home room
designs have a sink in the bedroom, creating a small room with only the toilet or a “toilet
room” which is also institutional and unfamiliar to most of us.
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Closets

Closets in nursing homes typically represent three problems: lighting, accessibility, and
space. Many of us have ended up with one black shoe and one brown shoe after getting
dressed in the dark. But, as Calkins wisely points out, we don’t end up worrying we may
have dementia. This begs the question, what behaviors do we blame on dementia and which
behaviors might be due to something as simple as not being able to see in the dark? Calkins
encourages staff to wear a pair of dark sunglasses smeared with petroleum jelly and then try
to select matching clothing from a nursing home room closet. If more light is needed, there
are a variety of options. A light can be installed that turns on automatically when the door is
opened. Battery-powered lights with built in motion detectors cost about $20.00 and if
nothing else, a wall-mounted light or table lamp near the closet can provide extra light
(Calkins et al, 2001). Many residents cannot reach the hanging clothes in their closet,
especially those residents who are dependent upon wheelchairs to get around. Only 6.7% of
the homes in the CMS Quality of Life study had closet rods 3-4 feet from the floor (Kane et
al, 2004). And it almost goes without saying that a small closet about 3 feet wide cannot
hold the majority of most people’s clothes.

Spaces

In the CMS Quality of Life study, only 12% of the 83 dining rooms that were studied were
dedicated solely for dining, which means 88% were dining rooms that were shared for other
purposes, namely activitics (Cutler et al, 2006). This means in many cases there is no

separate activity area for residents. And even when there is, activity spaces are rarely
designed intentionally for activity programming. Often there is no running water, limiting
many activities like painting, cooking and even cleaning up. Storage space is rarely

adequate, and shelving is generic, not accommodating supplies of varying sizes such as large
bails and other sports equipment (Brawley, 2007).

Long Corridors

As a result of her nursing home experience, Emi Kiyota shares, “Daily activities were
scattered around the building and 1 had to wheel down long corridors to go anywhere. 1
began 1o stay more and more in my room because 1 was tired of wheeling to places”
(Schaeffer, 2005). This happened to a young woman. Imagine how older people feel. The
Green House® Research study that also proved this point in that the smaller setting is
actually helping people get out of wheelchairs and walk again (Xane et al, 2007).

Technology

Technology continues to enhance our lives daily. 1t begs the question, however, are we using
technology at its optimal {evel to enhance the lives of people living and working in long term
care? The use of the latest technology does not seem to be very prevalent in nursing homes.
However, one assisted living facility is taking the lead in this area. QOatfield Estates, an
innovative assisted-living community outside Portland, Oregon is highlighted in Beth
Baker’s book for its high technology. Oatfield combines large two-story houses with ten
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private bedrooms and baths, organic gardens, and spectacular mountain views with the latest
technology to keep residents safe. Through electronic sensors, staff can tell when a person at
risk of falling gets out of bed. The system can be programmed to automaticaily turn on low
lights at night to show the way to the bathroom, or to automatically turn off a stove if a
person with memory loss comes near it. There are no locks or fences; giving residents
freedom to go wherever they want whenever they want thanks to badges that discreetly signal
when one leaves the property (Baker, 2007).

Not only is Oatfield known for its use of technology but also for integrating it deeply into its
routines. Wall Street Journal reporter Sue Shellenbarger spent time as a resident at Oatfield.
She found that security cameras mark campus boundaries, residents wear transponders
around their necks that triple as alarms, room keys, and location monitors, and beds are wired
to detect occupants' movements. She points out that Oatfield's warm social environment
makes up for any sense of high-tech dehumanization one might feel from being monitored in
a Big Brother fashion. She calls it Oatfield's biggest tradeoff: putting up with the annoyance
of technology in return for freedom of movement. “To me,” she says, “it's no contest.
Keeping the right to take a stroll far outweighs the aggravation of being monitored. Several
residents, | soon learn, see it the same way, having moved from nursing homes with locked
wards to the relative freedom of this high-tech world” (Shellenbarger, 2007).

Decor: Resident-chosen or “Decorator-designed?”

“Decor is usually described as being more homelike, though in truth many facilities resemble
decorator-designed hotels more than the casual and cluttered look of most homes” (Calkins,
2003). However, Calkins goes on to say “... most peoples’ homes are not decorator
designed. Rather they reflect the accumulation of a lifetime. Being surrounded by familiar
possessions, particularly ones that have important sentimental value, is an important part of
feeling comfortable and ‘at home’” (Calkins, 2002).

“How can it be your living room if there is none of your furniture or artwork or decorations
in it? Rooms that are decorated by others, down to the artwork, will never feel like home.
Being able to sit in your own favorite, familiar chair in the lounge can make a place feel
more like home. Seeing your own china cupboard makes it even more like home. Drinking
tea out of your favorite tea cup may make all the difference in the world” (Calkins, 2002).

Such wise words from Maggie Calkins. Catkins serves as a teacher in this quest to create
home that reflects the people living in it and advises:

The first step to giving a feeling of home is to provide as little fumniture as possible.
Encourage people to bring their own furniture, and only supply what they are
unwilling or unable to bring. Second, be sure there are places to display items,
ideally places that are somewhat out of the way or are secured. Many facilities are
adding plate shelves 5 ¥ to 7 feet up the wall —still visible without being too
accessible. Others are providing display cases behind glass (Calkins, 2003).
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. Calkins encourages providers to consider what furniture and display items residents can
provide in shared living spaces:

The decor may be somewhat eclectic, but it can also promote the sense that this is
their space. Some facilities have had great success letting residents bring in their
favorite chair for the living room, while others have found this caused problems when
someone other than the “owner” sat in it. This may need to be tried out on an
individual basis. And there will be problems with some chairs and fire regulations
(which vary from State to State). It is sometimes possible to have cushions treated
sufficiently to make them flame retardant and suitable for bringing into the facility
(Calkins and Mardsen, 2003).

Emi Kiyota who lived as a resident for a month discovered that common areas decorated
primarily by staff were rarely used by residents and had little impact on their lives. She
found that residents preferred their own rooms with their personal things, where they had
more control and emotional attachment. As a result, common areas contained nothing
familiar or meaningful to residents or were unaccommodating. For example, many birdcages
and plants were placed higher than residents with wheelchairs could see and touch. Creating
common spaces to appeal to everyone’s tastes and that include residents’ personal decorative
items is no doubt challenging. Emi suggests as a starting place to at least be flexible in how
areas are designed and with facility policies, not just saying it is “against policy” (Culture
Change Now, 2005).

. Uniformity, often seen in most nursing homes is considered a mark of the institution. As
Calkins and Mardsen indicate, this is not reflective of home:

In most homes, different rooms serve different purposes, and are designed to look
very different. Seldom does a person have the same chair in the dining room as in
their bedroom and their living room. Institutions, on the other hand, are marked by a
uniformity of both furniture and design. Al wall treatment is the same, or so
coordinated that it’s hard to tell one space from the next. When a well designed chair
is found, it is used everywhere: in the bedroom, in the dining room, in the activity
room. But this approach to interior design will not make a place fecl like home.
Making rooms feel very different — light and airy versus warm, rich earth tones —also
gives residents a sense that the spaces available to them are different. If there are
three of four different shared spaces, but they all look and feel alike, and are about the
same size, what does it matter if you are in one versus another? When the rooms vary
not only in size, but in overall decor, they add to the feeling of choice™ (Calkins and
Mardsen, 2003).

Roger Hamilton, administrator at Littleton Manor in Littleton, Colorado was interviewed by
the Colorado National Public Radio September of 2006 and said it so simply yet eloquently
when he in essence said, “Why should I pick the paint? Idon’t live here and if I pick a color
my residents don’t like, I’ll hear about it anyway. So, why should I pick the paint?”
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It is normal for people to pick the paint in their own home yet this normalcy is so often not
afforded to residents living in nursing homes. There are many other traditions in nursing
homes regarding decor that are also not reflective of normal living in a home. Linda Case,
activity director at Littleton Manor said at a Colorado Eden registered homes meeting June
2007, “We don’t have bulletin boards in our homes. What do we have? Pictures in picture
frames. So, we have been replacing the bulletin boards with what is more normal.”
Similarly, most of us do not decorate our own homes for the holiday season with paper
decorations or crepe paper. In our homes, we decorate with seasonal decorations — candles,
picture frames, and decorative items specific to the season (Nolta, 2007). Perhaps the facility
van or bus could be considered part of the environment. Our personal cars are certainly
important to most of us. The current custom of having the nursing home’s name emblazoned
across the van is institutional and favors the chance to advertise the home over normaicy.
Karen Schoeneman points out it is not common practice to have our names emblazoned on
our cars, making this another practice unnatural to home (2007). Part of home is having an
address. Some homes around the country have honored home by identifying each resident’s
room or portion of room with a unique address giving back the normal custom of receiving
mail at a personal address.

At Pueblo Extended Care Facility in Pueblo, Colorado, decor consists of pictures of Pueblo
during the various seasons, original artwork depicting Pueblo by local artists and other decor
that goes along with the resident-chosen neighborhood names and themes: Walking Stick
Lane, River Walk Drive, and Steel City Boulevard. Even a blast furnace used in the steel
mills serves as the base for a low nurses’ station. Residents have said, ““I feel so much like
I’m in Pueblo when I’'m here.” Perham Memorial Home invited the Perham community
through the local newspaper to donate items unique to their small town in northern
Minnesota. Donated were items such as hand-made winter skis, antiques and black and
white pictures of Perham’s early days. In fact, the staff had fun replicating one such old
black and white picture of two women. Two current female staff members were
photographed in the exact same stance leaning against the same light pole in their smail
town. Perham Memorial reminds us not to forget to have a little fun!

Maggie Calkins encourages nursing home leaders to take an honest look at what their
building is saying:

“What is your environment saying to the people who use it? Take a critical look —
don’t do this simply from memory while sitting at your desk. Get out there and really
look at it to see if you can read what it is saying to you — and to your residents and
family members. Start out in the parking lot with the exterior of the building. If you
were driving up for the first time — maybe considering a move here for yourself or a
family member ~ what impression does the building give you? Does it look like a
multi-story institution, or maybe a hospital? Is there a place (or are there enough
places) near the entrance for visitors to park, or are the choice spots reserved for the
administrator and doctors? What does this tell you about who the facility values and
wants to please? Does the landscaping look like it belongs in front of an office
building or in front of a home? (Calkins, 2003).
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Although all residents and family members are told they are welcome to personalize the
resident’s room, many do not. Perhaps they forget or get busy. In my experience, staff relay
to me over and over again that they did invite residents and families to personalize the room.
Charter schools apparently place an expectation on parents, and even have them commit to
volunteer so many hours in their child’s class per school year. What if we were to borrow
from the charter school movement and place some sort of expectation on residents and/or
their family/responsible parties to help us know this person almost as well as they know
them? 1t would be impressive and honoring to tell residents and/or family members that we
want to know them/their relative as well as they do but we need their help. Help us get to
know this person who is new to us by filling their room with artifacts, with special items to
them, with created works, with pictures. When we are caring for this new person, give us as
many clues to who this person is as you possibly can so we can interact meaningfully and not
just give care. Norton and Shields say, “We recommend you emphasize to residents and
families the importance of bringing residents’ personal belongings. Often, family members
consider dispersing the loved one’s belongings before moving the elder to a nursing home.
Encourage them instead to bring meaningful artifacts to help complete the elder’s new home™
(Norton and Shields, 2007). And Calkins adds, “Policies should not only ‘allow’ residents
and family members to personalize spaces but also should strongly encourage them to do so™
(Calkins, 1995). This, however, may not apply to the person who is only at the nursing home
for a short-stay with no desire to personalize a room since they are working hard to return to

their home.

“Privacy Curtains”

Calkins calls it “the ubiquitous but misnamed ‘privacy curtain’” because it does little to
provide true privacy between people. She also points out that in the SAGE Postoccupancy
Evaluation, if all there is between two roommates’ space in a shared room is the typical
privacy curtain it is actually rated as a negative feature. Alternatives are recommended such
as solid partitions some of which are used for display of personal possessions (Calkins,
2005). Professor Schwarz puts it this way, “After 80+ years of living in their own homes,
people are put in "semi-private" rooms - truly an oxymoron - and expected to be enthused
about the prospect of spending the rest of their lives with a stranger, separated only by a
partition that provides minimal visual privacy and seriously compromises all other forms of
privacy” (1996). “A privacy curtain just does not afford either person acoustic, olfactory or
thermal privacy” (Calkins et al, 2001). A “privacy curtain” is indeed required but that is all
that is required. This requirement at 42 CFR §483.70 (d)(1)(iv), Tag F460 only requires
visual privacy. 1t seems that a flimsy cloth curtain is really no privacy at all and totally
incongruent with providing the most optimal quality of life or highest practicable level of
well-being possible and thus an area in great need of discussion.

Unlived and Inhospitable Spaces

Carboni identified unlived space as a mark of homelessness. Unlived - meaning not used and
not mine. We don’t very often see residents sitting on the nursing home furniture or sleeping
on the nursing home couches, which seems to be coming to be known as somewhat of a

litmus test for achieving home. Why don’t residents use common spaces? Is it the design of
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the institution? s it the facility rules? Is it the furniture itself? Is it that there is nothing to
do? Or s it that residents feel they are not invited to make that space their home?

At the Village Health Center in Indianola, lowa, residents frequently listed the opportunity to
entertain family and friends as part of their concept of ‘home’ during training sessions with
culture change expert LaVrene Norton. She describes a party that was held to redecorate

and redesign:

Residents took control, giving instructions as tables and chairs were pulled from the
little-used lounges at the ends of the halls. Throw-pillows and afghans were strewn
about. A piano ... was wheeled into the new ‘family room.” Refreshments and
jigsaw puzzles were placed on tables. Eventually, the space liberated from the
nurses’ station will serve as living room and kitchen areas for two wings of the
building that will be remodeled into households. For now, the area remains a favorite
gathering site. Nursing home residents leave their rooms to mingle here with
independent living residents and family members, play the piano and sing, assemble
jigsaw puzzles, and participate in learning circles. Workers who previously were
hidden behind the nurses’ station now work among the residents, often stopping to
visit with elders and play cards. ‘It’s a really casual thing that a family woulddo in a
home, says Ruehle. 1t’s a whole new level of interaction.” Instead of that old nurses’
station, there are now staff offices for more private conversations regarding resident
needs and conditions, for charting, staff now sit at tables in the living rooms (Cul/ture

Change Now, 2005).

Involving residents and care givers in determining use of space, that is so often the missing
link in my experience. They each know how and have specific ideas to create lived space.
We must simply ask them and include them.

Several culture changing nursing homes have recognized the value of creating meaningful
gathering spaces such as coffee shops and general stores where coffee and food is sold to
visitors and available to residents at no charge. Besides a sit-down restaurant style dining
room, Teresian House in Albany, NY has a cocktail lounge where residents can “treat” their
guests to restaurant foods as well as alcoholic beverages. The General Store at Fairacres in
Greeley, Colorado has hot dogs and popcorn for sale in a country store setting where
residents and visitors can dine and shop much like the Cracker Barrel restaurants.

Providence Mt. St. Vincent in Seattle, Washington has an espresso bar in the gift shop, plus a
cafeteria, plus a morning room with continental breakfast. In fact, the Mount, which is an
older, large home with a traditional layout, was redesigned from the typical long narrow halls
into a lively Main Street with lots of gathering spaces also including a thrift shop, pharmacy,
beauty parlor and child day care. In-house architect Dyke Turner points out that prior to the
remodel all there was for gathering space was the large dining room and some activity space.
“Y ou need common space for people to interact. If you don’t, then you don’t really have
private space either — you have places of isolation instead” (Baker, 2007)

In Practical Strategies to Transform Nursing Home Environments: Towards Better Quality of
Life, created for the Rhode Island Quality Improvement Organization by Cutler and Kane,

46
l [ b Attachment - 12




nursing homes are encouraged to create just such a gathering space that might function like a
neighborhood coffee shop. 1n our communities, this is a place away from your home you
have to travel to for the purpose of enjoying a treat, the company of others or just a change of
scenery. Such a space could be fun to create with bistro style furniture and table umbrellas.
Other meaningful, hospitable or lived spaces to consider might be a game room/area, post
office area, bank, or vending area with tables and chairs (2005).

Miguette Kaup points out that most nursing homes have one large room where a majority of
activities occur, including the three meals a day. “Staff is often reluctant to exchange these
spaces for several smaller ones because the multipurpose room is a major component of the
long-standing history of life in the nursing home.” She points out that we often think we
need that large room for large events “... but do we design spaces around one or two days of
the year or the other 363?” Kaup states that the residential pattern of life includes small
groups of family and friends and meaningful one-on-one connections and that gerontological
research shows people with vision or hearing loss can function better when information is
closer to them. A large room brings in lots of extraneous auditory and visual stimulation.
She states it seems we assume these functional needs disappear when the children’s choir
comes at Christmas or when a large group of residents eats a meal in a big space at one time.
“When we have a party in the house, it’s crowded, but it’s only for a short time and if the
party is too big for the house, then we go to another location” (2005). A facility could ask
itself, what is more important, the large room only used on occasion or smaller areas where
people can interact on a daily basis?

Home is for Hosting

“Home is hosting a special meal for the extended family...friends just dropping in...the son
stopping by on a Sunday afternoon, grabbing a beer from the refrigerator and watching the
football game with Mom,” says Action Pact’s LaVrene Norton. A household model that
provides residents with a private room and kitchenette may be the optimum hosting
environment for these types of activities. But, every stage of culture change presents
opportunities to create smaller, cozier spaces where families and friends may socialize. For
example, says Norton, fry making the personal laundry room a little friendlier with wall
hangings, a table, chairs and cabimet full of toys and games so residents may visit with family
members while washing clothes. It not only creates a friendly hosting place but also
combines social interaction with familiar tasks for residents to accomplish” (Schaeffer,
2005). Norton also teaches that if a person has been known all her life for baking cinnamon
rolls, we should be enabling her to continue this part of who she is. Access to a kitchen is
necessary to accomplish this.

When Norton asked a group of residents what home means to them, one resident stated “...in
your home, visitors don’t have to sit on the bed” (Baker, 2007). And Steve McAllilly,
administrator of the first Green Houses, connected how the environment either supports
living or takes away from it when he told Beth Baker, “The environment creates
opportunities and space for life, for living. What is it like to struggle across a room rather
than be plopped in a wheelchair? Struggle is important for life’”” (Baker, 2007). By struggle,
McAllilly means its better in a small home for one to be able to walk from a couch to a chair
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to a table and “struggle” to get across the room independentiy rather than be “put” in a
wheelchair making it easier for staff to get someone somewhere faster. From these examples
it seems that a chair for a guest in a resident’s room, or to be able to walk instead of be
pushed are simple requests for living.

Resident Rights Regarding Their Home

The term “resident” is used in the OBRA language instead of “patient” on purpose. Patient
implies short term - I’m receiving care in a medical institution for an acute reason, and
perhaps I have given up some rights willingly due to my need to medical treatment, but I will
be returning home hopefully sooner than later. “Resident” was chosen purposefully and was
actually one of the major themes of the OBRA '87 law as indicated in the Federal Register
February 2, 1989, General Comments on the Resident Rights Requirements as a Whole: “Our
use of the term ‘resident’ is based upon the loM’s recommendation to emphasize the concept
of a nursing home as a place of residence for its clients.” As referred to carlier in this paper,
the Institute of Medicine convened an expert panel to look at quality of life and care in
nursing homes which became the basis for OBRA *87 and gave this important
recommendation.

“Resident” means you have the same rights as any person has in their own home. LaVrene
Norton often refers to “refrigerator rights.” A person living in a nursing home has the nght
to help themselves to whatever is in the refrigerator just as in their own home. Having
refrigerator rights is often not possible in the traditional, institutional design, but as homes
remodel into households, a key part of the design change is to provide access to the
household’s refrigerator for residents. Resident rights go even deeper then to imply “I should
be able to cook or bake whenever I choose.” Keith Schaeffer identifies in an article about
design, “Access to my home — so much of it is taken away from the people who live ina
nursing home. The kitchen is off limits; only staff is allowed’” (Schaeffer, 2005). In my
experience as a surveyor, | have even seen signs in dining rooms stating: “No staff may eat in
the dining room with residents.” We trust staff to bathe residents and help them in the
bathroom, why wouldn’t we trust them to eat beside them? Around the country thoughtful
staff are making it work for people living in nursing homes to peel potatoes in the kitchen
just as they spent a good portion of their lives doing if they so choose. It goes without saying
that safety and infection control considerations always apply but that they do not prohibit
these very normal home activities.

Although the right to personalize my room is written into the CMS regulations, is often not
made possible by the facility. Policies or space issues deny many this important right. So
much is given up prior to moving into a nursing home, we need to uphold this right in every
possible way. “Nursing homes need to recognize the importance of these belongings, not
treating them as objects we “allow” residents to bring with them, but as part of their right to
continue 10 create an environment that they find suitable and worth living in” (Calkins,
1997). There is typically a rule in most nursing homes that you can’t even put a nail in the
wall —“it’s policy” you will be told. Of course, in some apartments, this is also true.
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Instead, most homes give each resident a small bulletin board for their personal effects. 1na
video about resident rights from Canada that is now out of circulation, there is 2 maintenance
director talking to a family member in the presence of a new resident. He is telling them that
they were allowed only to place pictures on a 12 by 12 square inch bulletin board. The
family member cried, as there would not be enough room on this small board for pictures of
the resident’s three daughters. 1 would too. Some people are moving in for life and all we
give them is a bulletin board? This is an example of facility-made rules, not regulations,
typical of institutionalized culture. Karen Schoeneman of CMS historically has told
surveyors in the CMS Basic Surveyor training, “You’il know a lot about a place if they have
the rule, ‘no nails in the wall.”” Residents of some homes transforming their cultures have
voted to call the Resident Council the Home Owner’s Association instead. Now that starts to
get at it - residents own that half a room and have the right to do with it what they want. It is
not difficult to spackle and touch up the small holes left by nails after a resident leaves. And
who knows, Karen points out, maybe it would be a good idea to leave the nails there, in case
the next owner of the room wants to use them. In fact, this issue is such a marker of the old
institutional way of thinking that it was even identified as an item on the CMS Artifacts of
Culture Change tool (more about the Artifacts tool can be found toward the end of this

paper):

#25. Home has no rule prohibiting, and residents are welcome, to decorate their
rooms any way they wish including using nails, tape, screws, etc.

SAGE has created a useful evaluation to determine livability of a setting after residents live
there for a while. In the SAGE Post-occupancy Evaluation, personalization is given great
importance:

Part of what differentiates a house from a home is the presence of personal belongings,
collected over a lifetime, imbued with meaning and memories — an expression of self.

For long-stay residents, many of whom have given up their homes in the community, the
ability to continue to be surrounded by their own possessions is key to maintaining their
identity and sense of self. Consider the organization’s policies about what can be brought
in, and where it can be placed. Can residents hang as many pictures on the walls of their
rooms as they like? Will the facility store its furniture so that residents can have their
own furniture in their room? Does the facility encourage residents to place their
possessions in the shared living areas, such as a wall cupboard or piano or larger artwork
that might not fit within the bedroom/apartment? (Calkins, 2005).

A research study called Environmental Design Lexicon for Dementia Care was conducted in
six nursing homes to collect design solutions for dementia care. In several homes, it was
“policy” that the facility’s furniture could not be removed. One home in particular actually
secured the furniture to the wall.

According to the administrator, preserving the life of the furniture and eliminating the
need for facility furniture storage took precedence over resident autonomy. Some
facilities were diligent in installing electric outlets throughout the room, which
encouraged room rearrangement. On the other hand, traditional nurse-call bells were
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usually fixed to the wall, limiting rearrangement. ... Alternatively, several facilities
used institutional bulletin boards as a substitute for allowing objects to be hung on the
walls, thereby eliminating maintenance costs for wall repair (Calkins et al, 2004).

Being able to bring personal belongings is required by nursing home regulation Environment,
at 42 CFR §483.15 (h), Tag F252 which states The facility must provide a safe, clean,
comfortable and homelike environment allowing the resident to use his/her personal
belongings to the extent possible. “To the extent possible” seems so often to trump really
being able to have personal belongings to the extent one would like, again due to either
facility policy or lack of space.

The Short-stay Experience

On the other hand, when someone is admitted to a nursing home as a patient for
rehabilitation, they typically don’t want to move in and make it home. So how should the
environment accommodate their different needs and desires? The Rhode Island Practical
Strategies to Transform Nursing Home Environments suggests thinking of providing
amenities as in a hotel while creating an experience where residents can continue their
normal routines. ldeas are information books like a hotel book (which lists local resources
within and near to the hotel), small calendars for appointments, clocks, a desk area with
postcards and stamps, a snack center (that can be locked if it must be depending upon the
person and their abilities/patterns) with coffee maker, coffee and teas, a toaster and small
refrigerator, a small erasable board for telephone numbers, attractive clothes hangers and
perhaps a terry cloth bathrobe if desired (Rhode Island QI10, 2005). These are excellent
examples of how to think of the short-stay experience differently than moving in for the rest
of one’s life. And it seems to go without saying that anyone living in a nursing home for any
length of time would welcome “lovely versus institutional” and *“warm and inviting versus
cold and sterile” whether they move in any personal belongings or not.

Lanpuagpe

Once again, Calkins raises another excellent issue: language and the environment.

It is also important to consider what rooms are called. At the simplest level, having a
living room or family room is more familiar than having a day room or an activity
room (which sounds more institutional or like a senior center). Language is also
important at the larger scale of the [what is usually now called the] “unit.” Many
facilities are moving away from the term “unit” to calling these groupings of
residents’ clusters or pods. However, one could question how residential these terms
are. As one administrator put it, “Whales and peas live in pods, and grapes come in
clusters. People live in households.” Language affects our thinking at a fundamental
level and should be considered carefully. This may be why some facilities are giving
their units names, such as “Hill House” or “Beacon Place.” As architect Witold
Rybczynski writes, “Words are important. Language is not just a medium, like a
water pipe, it is a reflection of how we think (Calkins, 2003).
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Karen Schoeneman of CMS is known for being an advocate of continually improving
language used in long-term care. She has written several articles, one is posted on the
Pioneer Network website entitled “Mayday” and can be found at

http://www .pioneernetwork.net/stories-from-the-field/LanguageofCultureChange.php
In this thought-provoking piece, she states,

I've worked 30 years in long-term care. Qver that time, 1’ve come to realize that
much of the language we use is in need of replacement because it unintentionally
demeans people, contributing to a hierarchical sense of “us and them” or a
dehumanizing institutional cuiture instead of a nurturing community with respect for
its members.

Having had the privilege to work with Karen in many capacities and learn from her, a
sociological concept she teaches is that, “Language drives practice” and “if we change our
language, practice will follow.” We have a lot of practice to change so let’s at Jeast take
advantage of changing language which can be done right now by each of us.
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Chapter 8:
CMS Long-term Care Regulations Regarding the Environment

There is support from the OBRA 87 regulations themselves and from the current
administration of CMS for creating home, but for the most part, we still have very
institutional nursing homes. What follows are the current CMS nursing home regulations in
relation to the environment, other pertinent CMS information such as answers to culture
change questions, and areas identifed as needing further discussion.

42 CFR §483.15(h) Environment

Safe. Clean, Comfortable and Homelike 42 CFR §483.15(h), Tag F252
The facility must provide a safe, clean, comfortable and homelike environment allowing the
resident to use his/her personal belongings to the extent possible.

From the Interpretive Guidance: “A ‘homelike environment’ is one that de-emphasizes the
institutional character of the setting, to the extent possible, and allows the resident to use
those personal belongings that support a homelike environment.”

“Homelike” was another great forward step of OBRA *87, much like the advent of the term
“resident.” Now the culture change movement is taking another step forward in creating
something much more than homelike which is “home.” Miguette Kaup said it best when she
said, ““Homelike’ implies ‘Pretend this is your home.” ‘Home’ means ‘This is where you
live.” (2005). Although the culture change movement is moving away from the term
“homelike,” CMS is to be commended. The attempt on CMS’ part to require nursing homes
to create a “homelike” environment that “de-emphasizes the institutional character of the
setting” is exemplary and certainly in accord with both OBRA’s and the culture change
movement’s intent to help a person live out their highest quality of life possible. Within this
regulation, CMS recognizes the importance of home, of diminishing the institutional
character as much as possible and for supporting persons in using their “personal belongings’
in order to create true home as has been well depicted by so many referred to in this paper.

£

Although inspections became resident outcome-based with OBRA *87 and include this
requirement for homelike environment in both the regulations and survey process, nursing
homes continue to look the same as they did decades ago. Many in the culture change
movement are wondering why. As a former surveyor, I wonder if part of this dilemma is that
surveyors too have become immune to the institutional environment. They are used to seeing
it week in and week out, expect it, and aren’t bothered by it because it has become normal. It
seems that most people working and living in long term care have come to see the
institutional model as the norm. However, the momentum of the culture change movement,
led by early pioneers who “bucked” the status quo, desiring and demanding better, combined
with researchers and designers making the case for how and why it can be better, is picking
up speed. So, how this requirement can be met even better than ever before, through
creating home, is another area for discussion.
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Housekeeping and maintenance services necessary to maintain a sanitary, orderly and

comfortable interior, 42 CFR 8483.15(h)(2). Tag F253

A sanitary, orderly and comfortable interior are indeed important, no doubt about it, but
somehow cleanliness has been placed above the needs of people. For instance, by building
nursing homes with predominantly tile floors, we then created the need for them to be
cleaned, waxed and buffed. We accepted this as important, somehow bypassing the fact that
for some older individuals the glare makes it hard to see, or for those with dementia, the
shiny glare of the floor looks like a hole into which they might fall. Thankfully some
pioneers in the culture change movement have realized that those glaring, bright tile floors
are not what most of us have in our homes and have replaced them with carpeting or
hardwood (and even linoleum that looks like hardwood) floors that have created a warmth of
home. Inspecting the cleanliness and maintenance of a building is much easier and more
black and white for surveyors to assess than delving into whether residents’ quality of life
has been achieved. Perhaps this should be discussed further.

Clean bed/bath linens in good condition, 42 CFR §483.15(h)(3), Tag F254

Again, clean bed and bath linens are indeed important, a must really. However, there is
nothing that mandates that linens be hospital-white, although that is what is customarily seen.
Many culture changing homes have made a switch to colored linens and towels to enhance
the “homeyness” of the environment.

Private closet space in each resident room, 42 CFR §483.15(h)(4), Tag F2535

From the Interpretive Guidance: “The facility must provide each resident with individualized
closet space in his/her bedroom with clothes racks and shelves accessible to the resident.”

Every closet has a closet rod. Kudos to CMS for requiring they should be “accessible to the
resident.” This regulation is not adhered to, however, in most nursing homes across the
country. And it could probably be written as a deficient practice every week if surveyors
looked at it and inquired about it with residents. Many residents cannot reach their closet
rods/clothes racks but somehow we have all accepted this.

Adequate and comfortable lighting levels in all areas, 42 CFR §483.15(h)(5), Tag F256

From the Interpretive Guidance: “’Adequate lighting’ is defined as levels of illumination
suitable to tasks the resident chooses to perform or the facility staff must perform. For some
residents (e.g., those with glaucoma), lower levels of lighting would be more suitable.
‘Comfortable’ lighting is defined as lighting which minimizes glare and provides maximum
resident control, where feasible, over the intensity, location, and direction of illumination so
that visually impaired residents can maintain or enhance independent functioning.”

CMS is to be commended for focusing on the fact that lighting should be very individualized.

It is individual to each person and not something that a staff member or surveyor can decide
for someone else. The new CMS interpretive guidance and investigative protocol effective
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8/6/07, for Accidents and Supervision includes lighting at 42 CFR §483.25 (h)(1), Tag F323.
It identifies “lighting that is either inadequate or so intense as to create glare” as a potential
hazard: “The risk of an accident increases when there is insufficient light or too much light,
which often results in glare. Vision among older persons varies widely; therefore, no single
level of illumination can ensure safety for all residents. The proper amount of light depends
on the resident’s visual needs and the task he/she is performing.”

Questions regarding lighting are included in the CMS survey Resident, Family and Group
Interviews. However, it stands to question whether surveyors are delving into light issues as
much as they could since research is illuminating the fact that lighting is often not bright
enough for older eyes, and glare is a glaring problem in most nursing homes. Lighting (Tag
F256) is not cited even at one haif of I percent of homes, and according to Karen
Schoeneman of CMS, deficiencies that are cited are typically for problems with specific
areas of the home such as shower stalls and closets being too dark rather than cited based on
the whole home being too dark, which was a key finding of the CMS Quality of Life study
(Volume 1, Chapter 12, pp. 12.28-12.29). Thus, here is an area in need of further
discussions.

Comfortable and safe temperature levels (71-81 degrees F), 42 CFR §483.15(h)(6), Tag F257

Wouldn'’t it be great if it were a requirement that residents be able to adjust the temperature
of their own room to their liking? The typical design does not include any resident control
over heating and cooling in their bedrooms. Self-determination and participation at 42 CFR
§483.15(b), Tag F242, requires residents be able to make choices about matters of
significance to them.

For the maintenance of comforiable sound levels, 42 CFR §483.15(h)(7), Tag F258

The Interpretive Guidance guides surveyors to: “Consider whether residents have difficulty
hearing or making themselves heard because of background sounds (e.g., overuse or
excessive volume of intercom, shouting, loud TV, cleaning equipment). Consider if it is
difficult for residents to concentrate because of distractions or background noises such as
traffic, music, equipment, or staff behavior.”

This regulation and its corresponding guidance are excellent. Research is showing noise to
be a large problem in nursing homes so it begs the question, is it being observed and inquired
about during surveys? The new CMS interpretive guidance for Accidents and Supervision at
42 CFR §483.25(h)(1), Tag F323 recognizes “monitoring environmental influences such as
temperatures, lighting and noise levels” as an intervention to address potential or actual
negative interactions by residents. Thus, investigation of noise as it relates to quality of life
is an area where there could be more discussion.
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Other LTC Environmental Regulations

Accommodation of Needs, 42 CFR §483.15(e). Tag F246

The resident has the right fo —
Reside and receive services in the facility with reasonable accommodations of individual
needs and preferences, except when the health or safety of the individual or other residents

would be endangered.

From the Interpretive Guidance: “Reasonable accommodations of individual needs and
preferences,” is defined as the facility’s efforts to individualize the resident’s environment.
The facility’s physical environment and staff behaviors should be directed toward assisting
the resident in maintaining and/or achieving independent functioning, dignity, and well-being
to the extent possible in accordance with the resident’s own preferences, assessment and care
plans. The facility should attempt to adapt such things as schedules, call systems, and room
arrangements to accommodate residents’ preferences, desires, and unique needs.

This regulation is “right on” in the sense that it truly recognizes that each person’s
environment must be individualized and personalized to him or her. Additionally, CMS
included several such accommodating items in the Artifacts of Culture Change tool:

« Resident bathroom mirrors are wheelchair accessible and/or adjustable in order to be
visible to a seated or standing resident,

» Sinks in resident bathrooms are wheelchair accessible with clearance below sink for
wheelchair,

» Sinks used by residents have adaptive/easy-to-use lever or paddle handles, and

*» Adaptive handles, enhanced for easy use, for doors used by residents (rooms,

bathrooms and public areas).

One accommodation of need that really seems to assist residents’ independence but also is
often found lacking is automatic door openers. Not only do they increase independence but
at the same time they diminish the need for staff assistance. Residents would definitely tell
you automatic doors would improve their quality of life by assisting them to get outside more
and help meet their highest practicable level of functioning, all of which is required by the
CMS regulations.

Kitchen Sanitation including Dishwasher Temperatures, 42 CFR §483.35(h)(2), Tag F371

Dishwasher temperature requirements come under Kitchen Sanitation. The guidance at this
requirement for the temperature of the water in dishwashers comes from the 1993 Food Code
and likely was developed for commercial establishments. Households or residential homes
serving 20 or less residents desire to install kitchen appliances similar to those in our own
personal homes, both for their familiarity to residents in order to use them, and for their
lower cost.
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According to the interpretive guidance at this requirement, if a hot water method is used to
sanitize dishes, the wash must be 140 and the rinse 180 degrees Fahrenheit (F). If there are
other temperature requirements they may fall under state requirements. David Green is an
early culture change pioneer and former CEO of Evergreen Retirement Center which was the
first nursing home to design households. David shared that the state dietician in Wisconsin
told them there was no scientific evidence 1o justify the need for 180 degrees F. The health
department allowed Evergreen to use a household dishwasher that typically achieves 160
degrees F and required them to conduct swab tests for 30 days. Results showed no issue with
bacteria. David points out that there are many more problems with commercial dishwashers
than household ones such as becoming too hot to touch, being very noisy, producing too
much steam, mechanical problems, and the cost. The high cost of roughly $4000.00 deters a
home from having more than one. In comparison, a household dishwasher that costs $700.00
each allowed Evergreen to have two on each household (Greene, 2007). It seems the issue of
dishwasher temperature in small households is one that needs some further research.

Bedrooms must accommeodate no more than four residents, 42 CFR §483.70(d)}{1)(i).
Tag F457

Four people living in one room. How many of us would accept that? “It is outdated and
institutional to allow facilities to ‘house’ four people in one room — what was once called a
‘ward™” (Calkins, 2003). Although the generations we have thus far served in nursing homes
have not complained, we all know and research shows people don’t even want one
roommate. Apparently this is common in other countries where private rooms are the norm
(Jenkens, 2007). In Vermont, proposals for new construction, expansion, renovation or
substantial rehabilitation of a facility requiring Certificate of Need approval are not approved
by the licensing agency unless the construction proposal includes a plan for elimination or
conversion of all three- and four-bed rooms to rooms which accommeodate no more than two
persons {Cutler, 2007). Perhaps this regulation could be discussed further by those
participating in the symposium or the invitational workshop that follows it.

Bedrooms measure at least 80 square feet per resident in multiple resident bedrooms, and at
least 100 square feet in single resident rooms, 42 CER §483.70(d)(1)(iii). Tag F458.

The reason that nursing home rooms have such little space, only 80 square feet per resident
in a shared room and only 100 in a private room, stems from this CMS regulation. ~Current
shared rooms do not allow sufficient space for residents to bring furniture such as double
beds, desks, computers or easy chairs. The federal government has provided this as the
minimum requirement. Unfortunately so many nursing homes were built to be compliant
with the minimum and not with what people might actually need or want. Perhaps this
requirement could be discussed further. And, culture change advocates might choose to
lobby their state legislatures to mandate rooms that are more accommodating of privacy and
sufficient space, at the very least in new construction.

Bedrooms must be designed or equipped to assure full visual privacy for each resident,
42 CFR §483.70(d}{1)(iv), Tag F460
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In facilitics initially certified after March 31, 1992, except in private rooms, each bed must
have ceiling suspended curtains, which extend around the bed to provide total visual privacy
in combination with adjacent walls and curtains. Additional guidance is available in the
NFPA LSC 101 31-1.4.1, 31-4.5, which is Tag K74 of the LSC.

Here is another regulation that may be up for discussion. Maybe a degree of visual privacy is
afforded, but to be able to hear almost every sound resulting from care and bodily functions
and conversations with anyone is problematic. And in addition, if you want to talk with a
family member in private, both of you have to be on the bed with the curtain around you —a
suffocating, tentlike experience. If your loved one was dying and you wanted to be with
them and hold their hand, would you want to be surrounded by this tent? This is a mark of
“the institution™ to provide only this amount of privacy and space for residents and their
families. We see this in hospitals. Do we want it in nursing homes? We can do better.
People deserve better. This matter of needing privacy because of a roommate may just be
more reason to focus on a private room requirement. Due to poor design, even when Migette
Kaup went to use her privacy curtain for visual privacy, she felt she couldn’t. Since her bed
was next to the window and the heating/cooling vent, she could not pull the curtain without
blocking her roommate’s view of the outside and access to air from the temperature contols

(Schaeffer, 2005).

Resident call system, 42 CFR §483.70(f), Tag F463

The nurses’ station must be equipped to receive resident calls through a communication
system from resident rooms; and toilet and bathing facilities.

From the Interpretive Guidance: “The intent of this requirement is that residents, when in
their rooms and toilet and bathing areas, have a means of directly contacting staff at the
nurses’ station. This communication may be through audible or visual signals and may
include ‘wireless systems.”” Wow. Since 1995 CMS has recognized wireless systems and
that they are a good thing.

Wireless call systems are gaining ground in the culture change movement as a tool
promoting better services and a more calming environment for residents without the
ringing and flashing of call lights. Imagine immediately Iocating and calling a co-
worker on your wireless phone instead of having to physically go find help. Or
imagine, as a resident, the comfort of knowing you can call your caregiver directly
wherever he or she is. It sure beats having to hope your caregiver sees the blinking
call light above your door or hears ringing at the nurses’ station and goes to see who
needs help (Bowman, 2005).

Tweaking the wording of this regulation has already been asked of CMS in the 12/21/06
S&C letter to State Survey Agencies entitled Nursing Home Culture Change Regulatory
Compliance Questions and Answers {Appendix B):

Question to CMS: Could the resident call system (F463) regulation that requires calls
to be able to be received at the nurses’ station be changed to include nurses’ work
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areas and direct care workers, as well as the nurses’ stations? Many homes moving
away from the institutional model are replacing nurses’ stations with normal kitchen,
living room and dining room areas and using systems whereby resident calls connect
directly to care givers’ radio/pagers. Because it is harder to change the text of
regulation, could the phrase “at the nurses’ station” be removed from the following
sentence in the Interpretive Guidelines: “The intent of this requirement is that
residents, when in their rooms and toilet and bathing areas, have a means of directly
contacting staff at the nurses station.”

Answer 7 from CMS: We agree that it is desirable for residents and/or their
caregivers or visitors to be able to quickly contact nursing staff when they need help.
To meet the intent of the requirement at F463, it is acceptable to use a modem
pager/telephone system which routes resident calls to caregivers in a specified order
in an organized communication system that fulfills the intent and communication
functions of a nurses’ station. We will make a change in the Interpretive Guideline to
reflect this position.

This official Survey and Certification letter serves as CMS’ official policy on the matter,
even though the actual change of language in the interpretive guidance has not been done as
of yet.

Dining and Resident Activities, 42 CFR §483,70(g)(2), Tag F464

The facility must provide one or more rooms designated for resident dining and activities.
These rooms niust —

Be well lighted

Be well ventilated, with nonsmoking areas identified

Be adequately furnished and

Have sufficient space to accommodate all activities.

The regulatory language is not specific or measurable. There are no definitions to “well
lighted” or “adequately furnished.” Even though this requirement sounds like adequate space
must be provided, it often is not, and with no specificity it may be hard for surveyors to make
a case for citing it. This particular requirement makes it “okay™ for there to be no specific
room designated for group activities, causing them to only take place in between meals in a
main dining room. The problem becomes not only that meals take place three times per day
in a dining room, but that there is an enormous amount of time taken up for preparation and
clean up before and after each meal, leaving very little time for resident activities. So what
suffers most are residents and their quality of life, something else actually required by the
regulations. In addition, the lack of a variety of different sized activity spaces makes it
difficult to arrange for small group activities.

Handrails, 42 CFR §483.70(h)(3), Tag F468

Equip corridors with firmly secured handrails on each side.
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Handrails are certainly needed. Unfortunately they present the dilemma that they cannot be
blocked. Something often said by culture changing providers is that residents want places to
rest somewhere near the middle of the hallways in order to be able to walk independently,
but due to the regulations, they are not allowed to have a chair in the hallway. The issue of
furniture and decorations not allowed in the halls comes under the Life Safety Code and is
brought up in the next section of this paper. A similar but different question to this effect was
asked of and answered by CMS.

One aspect of this handrail issue was addressed by CMS in the 12/21/06 Survey &
Certification letter to State Survey Agencies titled Nursing Home Culture Change Regulatory
Compliance Questions and Answers {Appendix B):

Question 6 Handrails: Could the interpretive guidelines explain that handrails are not
necessary at the very ends of hallways on the very small sides of the door? This
would allow for filling these unused areas with live plants, for instance, without
obstructing egress and handrails would still be available up to the end of each
hailway.

Answer 6 From CMS: The purpose of the handrail requirements at Tag F468 is to
assist residents with ambulation and /or wheelchair navigation. They are a safety
device as well as a mobility enhancer for those residents who need assistance. The
survey team onsite would need to observe the responses of residents to the placement
of objects that block the portion of the handrails that is at the end of a haliway. They
would also interview residents to pain their opinion as to whether the objects in
question are interfering with their independence in navigating to the places they wish
to go.

This reply by CMS is helpful to facilities trying to create home in every inch of the building
possible. CMS identifies that depending on residents’ opinions, homey and helpful furniture
could possibly be used at the very ends of hallways. This, however, would not alleviate the

problem of residents navigating long hallways and needing a place to rest midway down the
hall.
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Chapter 9:
Life Safety Code (L.SC)
and the National Fire Protection Association (NFPA)

The NFPA came into being in 1896 after a great number of meetings held by dedicated
individuals to create one national code. The mission of the NFPA is to reduce the burden of
fire and related hazards on quality of life by advocating scientifically-based consensus codes
and standards, research, and education for fire and related safety issues. NFPA is a nonprofit
membership organization with more than 81,000 members. NFPA's National Fire Codes are
developed by code and standard development committees staffed by over 6,000 volunteers,
and are adopted and enforced throughout the world (www.nfpa.org).

There are many categories of codes such as the Health Care Codes, Means of Egress Codes,
Fundamentals Code and Sprinkler Systems codes. Each set of codes also goes by a chapter
number to the LSC. For example, NFPA 70 is the National Electric Code. The Life Safety
Code is known as NFPA 101. A CMS representative currently serves on three LSC
committees: the Technical Committee on Health Care Occupancies, NFPA 101; the
Technical Correlating Committee on Health Care Facilities, NFPA 99 and as an alternate on
the Technical Committee on Board and Care Facilities, NFPA 101. Committees are
comprised of 10 — 25 voting members.

The Life Safety Code Connection to CMS

From the Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) at 42 CFR 483.70 Life Safety from Fire:

The facility must meet the applicable provisions of the 2000 edition of the Life Safety Code
of the National Fire Protection Association. The director of the Office of the Federal Register
has approved the NFPA 101 2000 edition of the Life Safety Code, issued January 14, 2000
for incorporation by referencc in accordance with 5 U.S.C. 552 (a) and | CFR part 51.

The Medicare program started in 1965. CMS adopted the 1967 version of the NFPA 101
Life Safety Code in the late 1960s/early 1970s, according to James Merrill, CMS lead for
LSC for nursing homes, Currently CMS requires nursing homes to conform to the 2000
edition of the code, although there are newer versions of the Life Safety Code NFPA 101
which have new sprinkler mandates for exisiting nursing homes as well as rules regarding the
allowancee of alcohol-based hand-rub solution dispensers in corridors of health care

occupancies (www.nfpa.org).

According to the CMS Physical environment requirement at 42 CFR §483.70(a)(2), Tag
F434, CMS does have the right to grant waivers to the LSC: Afier consideration of State
survey agency findings, CMS may waive specific provisions of the Life Safety Code which,
ifrigidly applied, would result in unreasonable hardship upon the facility, but only if the
waiver docs not adverscly affect the health and safety of the patients.

Waivers typically granted are for instance, when the LSC requires an exit every 100 feet and
one is 120 feet, or in other words, 20 feet too long. Instead of requiring the building to put in
another exit 20 feet closer or blocking 20 feet of the end of a hallway, it is typically waived.
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Facilities make the request for a waiver to the state agency. The state agency then makes a
recommendation to their Regional Office of CMS which then makes decisions on a case-by-
case basis. Although waivers may be granted, architect and professor Benyamin Schwarz
points out in his 1996 Nursing Homes interview that “when we do want to provide a better
environment, we're forced to venture into the world of waivers” and that the “system is
nothing short of ridiculous: we create regulations in order to get waivers in order to create the
environments we'd like to have to begin with.” So the notion of waivers is an interesting one.
The point is taken that perhaps there is room for making certain codes more user-friendly and
yet the possibility of waivers perhaps make room for other options.

In addition, 483.70(a)(3) states: “The provisions of the Life Safety Code do not apply in a
State where CMS finds, in accordance with applicable provisions of sections
1819(d)(2)(B)(ii) and 1919(d)(2)(B)(ii) of the [Social Security] Act, that a fire and safety
code imposed by State law adequately protects patients, residents and personnel in long term
care facilities.” Perhaps it is possible in States where state law is adequate that action could
be taken to show that the LSC does not apply, using this provision.

Innovators, designers, architects and builders are working to eliminate the traditional design
of the nursing home as unacceptable for resident quality of life. In their attempts to create
home, they have encountered and report that the following Life Safety Code regulations are
considered barriers to desired changes:

8§ foot width corridors

LSC K39 2000 NEW Width of aisles or corridors (clear or unobstructed) serving as exit
access in hospitals and nursing homes shall be at least 8 feet. In limited care facility and
psychiatric hospitals, width of aisles or corridors shall be at least 6 feet. 18.2.3.3, 18.2.3.4

An issue regarding hallways was addressed in the 12/21/06 Survey & Certification letter to
State Survey Agencies entitled Nursing Home Culture Change Regulatory Compliance
Questions and Answers (Appendix B):

Question 9 (Hallway Width): Does the 8 feet requirement (at LSC Tag K39) continue
to be necessary since evacuations are no longer done via wheeling a person out of the
building in a bed? Could 6 feet meet the requirement? If 6 feet sufficed, this would
again refer back to our question regarding the requirement for handrails when
something else such as a bench might take up the other 2 feet.

Answer 9 from CMS: The 8 foot corridor width is a requirement of the Life Safety
Code (LSC). Corridors remain a route to use in internal movement of rcsidents in an
emergency situation to areas of safety in different parts of the facility. This
movement may be by beds, guney or other methods which may require the full width
of the corridor. We do not believe it would be in the best interests of the residents to
reduce the level of safety in a facility.
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James Merrill, the CMS lead for this topic in the Division of Nursing Homes explained it like
this. Beds are about 3.5 — 4 feet wide plus one or two people on each side making two beds
going beside each other requiring about 7 — 8 feet (2007). This issue of hallway width
perhaps could be discussed.

Nothing obstructing egress

K72 Means of egress shall be continuously maintaincd free of all obstructions or
impediments to full instant use in the case of fire or other emergency. No furnishings,
decorations, or other objects shall obstruct exits, access thereto, egress there from, or
visibility thercof shall be in accordance with 7.1.10.

Can a chair be placed in the middle of a long hallway as a place for a resident to rest? As
mentioned above, knowing there is a place to rest along the way may enable residents to
continue walking independently. Brawley advocates for it too, “someone will be more likely
to walk if they know a seat is available” (2007). But the answer according to the LSC is no.
Merrill explains that this requirement is common to the LSC for many types of buildings
such as apartment buildings and schools. Some culture changing homes are asking, couldn’t
a chair be moved out of the hallway during an evacuation? The other side of the issue is does
one chair become two, does a loveseat get defined as a chair, etc (Merrill, 2007). We do
know that long corridors are forcing many people living in nursing homes prematurely into
wheelchairs when mobility needs could be met instead with design solutions. Alcoves seem
to be one answer as they do not obstruct the egress and are out of the way. However, alcoves
are only usable if they already exist, and only useful if they also allow residents who need
handrails or some other sort of mobility assistive device to still navigate down the hallway.
Many older nursing homes don’t have alcoves, and it is virtually impossible to build them in.
So, the question remains - can both safety and quality of life be met somehow in the design
and use of the haliways?

Regarding this desire of residents to sit in hallways, Sister Pauline Brecanier, administrator
of pioneering home Teresian House in Albany, New York, and an orginal member of the
Pioneer Network explains, “We try to keep residents walking and active as long as possible.
The double loaded corridor is very long and too far for residents to walk to the end. They
like to sit and rest, they need to sit and rest. A chair would serve a functional purpose and is
needed to keep them independent and not put in wheelchairs. What ] call a *floating chair’
would be perfect, a chair in the hall that can easily be pulled out of the hall if the fire alarm

sounds” (2007).

The other question then becomes would such a chair in the middle of a long hallway be a
problem for other residents who use the handrails to steady themselves? Can those residents
use the benches or chairs as part of their steadying system? The real problem is there is no
research on this issue, since no home is permitted to try, even on an experimental bass,
having chairs in the hallway. This is an issue in which residents’ desires are i conflict with
the mandates of the regulations. Experimental research is needed on the issue, both on
determining how residents with limited mobility could navigate if chairs were in front of
handrails, and the effect on evacuation procedures. We do not know at present what the
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majority of nursing homes do in the case of needing to evacuate rapidly. In my experience
consulting and speaking at conferences, I have never heard any home say they push residents
in their beds, let alone two residents in beds across a hallway at the same time. Research
could tell us what is reasonable on both points - navigation and evacuation.

Access to Stove and Safety

Nursing homes that are designed as households or small houses have in some cases been
faced with the survey agency telling them they need to implement the expensive fire
suppression hood system common to a commercial establishment. However, small homes
and households only do limited cooking and only for a relatively small group of residents.
This issue of commercial systems versus non-commercial is an issue that may need to be

explored more closely.

Currently, according to CMS, if a kitchen and stove are used for nursing home or Health
Care Occupancy, the stove must then be under a fire suppression hood per Life Safety Codes
9.2.3, 18.3.2.6, 19.3.2.6, and NFPA 96. This is not required of stoves only used for food
warming or limited cooking, such as kitchens used for rehabilitation therapy or preparing
food as an activity. NFPA 96 requires a shut-off switch or valve be connected to the stove
that disconnects the power or fuel supply when the range hood extinguishing system is
activated. The National Electric Code also requires there to be some type of main switch for
electric stoves, both commercial as well as residential used in a commercial situation. The
conventional means to preventing someone from using a stove in a traditional nursing home
has been to have a main kitchen and keep it locked or at least supervised. In more
untraditional settings such as fully operational households where stoves are accessible at all
times, a shut-off switch that is not accessible to residents becomes necessary. Although there
is no requirement under LSC for a stove shut-off switch, it would fall under the CMS
requirement 42 CFR §483.25(h)(1), Tag F323, to prevent accident hazards. And apparently,
shut off switches are fairly easy to have an electrician design (Merrill, 2007).

Grease laden vapors under standard exhaust and fire suppression system

NFPA 96 requires that any food cooked that produces grease laden vapors must be cooked
under a fire suppression hood system. Exactly what this includes seems to be unclear.
Cooking bacon and sausage produces grease laden vapors for sure but what about eggs
cooked in grease or oil and pancakes cooked in butter on grills? There seems to be
inconsistency across the country in the interpretation of which foods fall under this provision.
Some officials and some states seem to allow cooking on grills if cooking spray is used and
some allow the cooking of eggs, some don’t. When bacon is being fried for only a few
persons or maybe even only one person in the household or small house setting, is the fire
danger low enough to permit the use of household-style hoods instead of commercial ones?
This is another important issue that needs to be discussed.

Fire safety and the use of personal furnishings
K73 No furnishings or decorations of highly flammable character shall be used. 18.7.5.2,

18.7.53,18.7.5.4,19.7.5.2,19.7.5.3, 19.7.5.4
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K 74 Draperics, curtains, including cubicle curtains, and other loosely hanging fabrics and
films serving as furnishings or decorations in health care occupancies shall be in accordance
with provisions of 10.3.1 and NFPA 13 Standard for the Installation of Sprinkler Systems.
Except shower curtains shall be in accordance with NFPA 701.

» Newly introduced upholstered furniture (purchased since March 2003) shall meet
with criteria specified when tested in accordance with the methods cited in 10.3.2 (2)
and 10.3.1, 18.3.5.3 and NFPA 13
Newly introduced mattresses (purchased since March 2003) shall meet the criteria
specified with tested in accordance with the method cited in 10.3.2 (3) and 10.3.4
18.7.5.3, 19.7.5.3.

Regarding personal furnishings, there are options. 1f a resident wants to want to bring their
own drapes, “no” does not need to be the answer. The specifications can be checked and if
they are indeed non-flammable, they might be just fine. If they do not meet flammability
requirements, there are also options to dip or spray them to comply. The instructions for
dipping or spraying must be followed, but it is possible. Additionally, if products are treated,
there should be some sort of documentation that it was done at the required level and
frequency. According to James Merrill, an upholstered easy chair probably meets
flammability requirements all on its own. 10.3.1 and 10.3.3 also are worded in such a way to
say that if upholstered furniture or mattresses are located where they are protected by
sprinklers, they can be used. Even in non-sprinklered facilities, if there are smoke detectors,
this covers their use as well (Merrill, 2007).

Required NO SMOKING signage

K66 and K141 require “No Smoking” signs or the intemational symbol for no smoking be
posted on oxygen storage rooms and where oxygen is in use in facilities that allow smoking.
Facilities that have decided to be non-smoking are wishing they did not have to have these
institutional signs. The good news is if the facility was totally non-smoking, then the signs
would only be required at storage locations and at major entrances to the facility, and not on
room doors of residents who use oxygen according to CMS (2007). This is great news on the
journey to become less institutional.

Issues and ldeas regarding Fire Safety Codes

After conducting the CMS Quality of Life study over 5 years, the authors identify that the
weakness of many regulatory codes, even as guarantors of safety, is that they are seldom
research-based nor do they consider multiple goals. They tend to take into account specific
disabilities such as cognitive impairment, vision or mobility problems but do not consider
“Interaction effects.” For example, life safety codes typically require heavy fire doors that
are difficult for residents to maneuver, but they do not require an automatic door opener.
Requiring both would enhance both safety and overall functioning (Cutler et al, 2006). It
would be good to identify any other codes requiring something that makes life more difficult
for people living in a nursing home.
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Norton and Shields identify that often local, State, and Federal fire marshal offices don’t
always use the same code. Approval of building plans may be granted, but when the fire
inspector does the “walk through” after the building is complete, it can be as if plan
approvals never took place. This is a costly issue for providers. I[n addition, annual
inspections may bring up new issues with long-standing situations never before identified as
problems (2007).

Christa Hoijlo, Director of the Veterans Administration Nursing Home Care, notes that strict
fire regulations also get in the way of making places feel more like home, “I’ve had facilities
where residents helped fix up the hallways, just to have facilities management take it all
down, she said” (Baker, 2007).

“Another fire code reality is that nobody outside its bureaucracy seems to know how to
interact with, influence or penetrate it” (Norton and Shields, 2007). Although there seems to
be some truth to this, at least from the perspective of long term care providers, a goal of the
Creating Home symposium is to build a relationship with the NFPA, to learn more about it,
how its codes are developed and how input can be offered. We would like to thank the
NFPA for agreeing to take part in the 2008 Creating Home symposium and welcome any
ideas and questions from the long term care community that might advance person-centered
care while not compromising safety.
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Chapter 10: Other Environmental Standards and Associations

Other Environmental Standards

There are several other environmental standards that are not that well known by the long
term care comrnunity, such as the American National Standards Insitute, Illuminating
Engineering Society of North America, the International Building Code and the Guidelines
for Design and Construction of Health Care Facilities (below). The designers and architects
involved in the April 3", 2008 Creating Home symposium are more familiar with these lesser
known standards and have been asked to teach us about them.,

Again, although not familiar to many, the Guidelines for Design & Construction of Health
Care Facilities have existed since 1947. The Guidelines are developed jointly by the Facility
Guidelines Institute and the American Institute of Architects Academy of Architecture for
Health with assistance from the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services and set
minimum standards for health care facility design. Developed as performance-oriented
requirements, the Guidelines give health care providers and design professionals guidance on
good practice and emerging trends. The Joint Commission, many Federal agencies, and
authorities in 42 States use the Guidelines either as a code or a reference standard when
reviewing, approving, and financing plans; surveying, licensing, certifying, or accrediting
completed facilities; or developing their own codes. To keep current, a new edition of the
Guidelines is published every four to five years. Most recently, public comment was
collected until September 30, 2007 for an upcoming 2010 edition. Topics close to long term
care that are currently under revision for the 2010 edition are: use of lift devices, sound
design, environment of care, infection control and health care facility engineering. A revised
chapter regarding nursing facilities was included in the 2006 edition.

Environrental Associations

There are several organizations that are focused on the environment and the older adult that
may be of interest to persons involved in creating changes in the nursing home environment.

The American Institute of Architects (AIA) has existed since 1857. It represents the
commitment of 80,000 licensed architects to excellence in design and livability of our
nation's buildings and communities. Members adhere to a code of ethics that assures the
client, the public, and colleagues of an AIA-member architect's dedication to the highest
standards in professional practice. The AIA mission statement reads: The AIA is the voice
of the architectural profession and the resource for its members in service to society. The
AIA also has a Revision Task Force for the Guidelines for the Design and construction of
Hospitals and Health Care Facilities mentioned above {www.aia.org).

The Center of Health Design is dedicated to improving the built environment to maximize
the abilities of older adults. The Pebble Research Project, hoping to turn ripples into waves,
collects and compares documented examples of real post-occupancy data. The Center has
learned that best results come from an unbiased, third-party evaluation and the sharing of
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information is vital for buildings serving older adults to learn and improve

{(www.centerofdesign.org).

SAGE is the Society on the Advancement of Gerontological Environments.
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SAGE is a culture change focused organization that promotes networking and collaboration
among relevant stakeholders to create better environments for older adults. SAGE
Federation is incorporated as a not-for-profit 501 (c) (3) and governed by an all volunteer
board and active national steering committee. SAGE Federation's primary activities include:

» Overseeing and guiding the creation of state units. Currently there are six.

+ Providing strategic planning to expand the impact of SAGE as a national
organization.

 Sponsoring national and regional conferences focusing on the relationship between
quality of life and the built environment.

» Collaborating with Nursing Homes - Long-Term Care Management magazine to
produce an annual DESIGN review that recognizes “state of the art” senior
environments.

» Conducting an annual postoccupancy evaluation of a senior living environment and
presenting the results at the American Association of Homes Services for the Aging
annual meeting.

 Disseminating insightful information by publishing a newsletter and hosting the
website http://www.sagefederation.org.

Benyamin Schwarz, PhD, assistant professor of Environmental Design at the University of
Missouri-Columbia and a member of SAGE, explained to Laura Beck of Nursing Homes
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magazine, “Chapters of SAGE are slowly forming around the country and dialogues are
beginning between LTC executives, program administrators, regulators and academicians.
It's my hope that through these discussions, we can push for change, not only in regulations
but in our approach to environments for the elderly, especially the frail elderly. Despite the
view that we need ‘more mothers of Congressmen in nursing homes’ before anything will
change, I think this has to be a grassroots process. 1 believe this kind of dialogue between
providers and governing entities can truly advance our efforts in the right direction” (1996).

A simple way for each nursing home to conduct research has been developed by SAGE:

There is much we do not know. There is more evidence about what does not work
than what does. Every design project is a hypothesis — designers and providers
believe configuring the space in a certain way will lead to a certain set of outcomes.
What is often missing, however, is any systematic evaluation of how well the setting
actually achieves the hypotheses. For many, the thought of conducting “research” is
daunting. And while some research projects are complex and require sophisticated
knowledge of protocol and statistics, it is also possible to evaluate buildings in a
simpler way. SAGE has created a Postoccupancy Evaluation or POE that can be
easily done by people who are not “researchers” (Calkins, 2005).

SAGE’s POE is based on the principles of OBRA ’87 by focusing on a holistic view of the
individual and how quality of life can be inaximized and highest practicable level of well-

being achieved (Calkins, 2005).

SAGE recommends a POE team include a designer, staff members, residents and resident-
representatives - family members and/or ombudsmen. Each group of persons is likely to see
the setting from a slightly different perspective. The team should review the goals of the
POE which may vary from a large scale evaluation to one that focuses only on one care area
or certain area of renovation such as bathrooms. The POE then takes a very detailed tour
stopping regularly to discuss the various design elements. The team talks with staff and
residents, individually and in groups, about their feelings about the environment, what they
do or do not like, and what makes it casy or hard for them to do the things they want or need
to do. Daily routines are observed, such as medications being passed, activities and meals.
Residents are asked if the team can look at their rooms and talk to them about their everyday

living in the environment being evaluated.

The purpose of a POE is not just {o rate or judge the project, but to increase understanding of
the ways in which the built environment can support both residents and staff in daily life and
work. Any feature rated low can then be examined together to problem solve what can be
done better. “Theory and design hypotheses serve their purposes, but they are not a substitute
for experiencing and learning from the actual setting in use” {Calkins, 2005).

Research May Provide the Answers We Need

“One way to quickly change poorly written existing code language and get approval of
building officials is by supporting claims with published research on the topic.
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Unfortunately, there continues to be a lack of good qualitative, scientific research that
directly ties specific qualities of the environment to resident outcomes” (Keane and

Shoesmith, 2005).

Betsy Brawley has a lot to say in agreement:

Too often design decisions are made on the basis of anecdotal, unsubstantiated
information, which does not necessarily lead to the most predictable or most desirable

results (2005).

Volume, good intention, and great taste are not necessarily indictors of good quality
of design for aging adults. Design professionals must rely more strongly on
evidence-based design, critical research findings, and postoccupancy evaluation as
essential elements of the design process. There is still too little research on the effects
of the environment on older users and too few rigorous independent postoccupancy
evaluations” (2007).

A greater effort should be made to share valuable information from evaluation with
colleagues, as well as with regulators, to promote building codes that put residents
first. We can collectively improve state of the art of healthcare design by making
postoccupancy evaluations more widely available. Some ideas work, some work
differently than what we anticipated and can be adapted or used for another purpose,
and some, sadly, just don’t work. Too often we have been guilty of promoting ideas
without testing or research to determine whether and how successfully they are
working for the desired goals. Sometimes we hang on to ideas too long without
evidence of success instead of continuing to search for better and more productive
solutions (2006).

Increased funding should be considered as another valid means to enhance and improve the
physical environment to create dignified living for persons living in a nursing home. Limited
funding hampers research in the field of design and the environment which also diminishes
the public’s knowledge of the usefulness of environmental interventions and any demand
they may make for them (Brawley, 2006).

Brawley advises her fellow design professionals to, “Learn all you can about the culture
change movement, be a part of the growing national grassroots movement to create
meaningful and accommodating environments that contribute to quality of life rather than
take away from it. She uses as an example that acoustics are critical in long term care
settings yet remains an area of design least understood by architects and designers. Architect
Roger Holland worked daily at the Life Enrichment Center in Kings Mountain, North
Carolina hands-on with staff and residents for more than two weeks (Brawley, 2006). We
have seen other architects role model by actually living as residents in nursing homes for
varying lengths of time. From what I’ve learned through the culture change movement,
forward-thinking providers like Steve Shields required their designer to live as a resident.
Perhaps this could become the new norm.
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Chapter 11: State Regulation Issues

Regulations exist at many levels: federal, state, and local municipalities. The bulk of this
paper has focused on federal CMS nursing home regulations as well as CMS’ adoption of the
National Fire Protection Association’s Life Safety Code which brings it to the federal level as
well. State regulations are usually in the form of nursing home licensure regulations unique
to each state, and some states then refer to additional state regulations such as food codes.
The federal government has nothing to do with state regulations. It has no authority or direct

influence over them.

Stories of Culture Change and State Regulations
New York

The New York State regulations written in the 1960s stated that a nursing home could have
no more than one dog or one cat. In fact, according to Dr. Bill Thomas, the regulation
referred to having a “mascot,” inferring you only needed one (Thomas, 2007). Here is the
story in Dr. Thomas’ own words from his book about the Eden Alternative, Life Worth

Living:

Here at the Eden Alternative we have reviewed the public health laws of nearly all
fifty states. They all share basic regulations prohibiting the introduction of animals
into food service areas, but none have rules as restrictive as New York State’s. This
is ironic because New York State is where the Eden Alternative got its start. The
start-up costs for our project were underwritten by a grant from the New York State
Department of Health. Meanwhile, the regional health department office granted us a
waiver from the regulation that limited New York nursing homes to one dog or one
cat and prohibited birds altogether. Little did we know, but as we were filling our
nursing home with plants, animals and children, the State health department was
belatedly discovering that the law did not permit a waiver in this area. The date of
our annual survey was coming up, and, boy, were we very out of compliance.
According to the rule book, we had 137 animals too many. Fortunately, the regional
office had been keeping tabs on us, and they could see the impact the project was
having on the quality of life the facility afforded to residents. They figured that if the
surveyors didn’t notice the animals (ones that had been purchased with Department of
Health dollars) then we couldn’t be penalized. 1 will always remember the sight of a
surveyor grimly struggling not to notice Sanborne the cat as she sashayed across the
pages of the chart he was reviewing. The point is that the regulators could see and
feel our passion for making the nursing home more natural and homelike (Thomas,

1996).

Want to hear the other side of the story? From Norman Andrewjeski, who was the Area
Administrator for the New York State Health Department at the time:

Chase Memorial Home invited me to a board meeting to request a renewal of the
waiver they received from the New York Health department to have more than one
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animal. 1 asked my supervisor about it, who discovered it was not a regulation, but a
statute, and statutes cannot be waived. So, here was a nursing home with 100 birds -
we can’t take them out, and we can’t just screw this nursing home. So, I renewed the
waiver for three more years, took the issue to legislative affairs and then the state
assembly and was passed into law in 1995.

I had to ask Norm how he felt when he learned that the animals were not permitted per New
York law and that a waiver was also not really permitted and he shared:

1 felt surprised and wondered why did that statute pass in the first place? 1 felt
frustrated and angry and “resoluted” — in the sense that even though something has
been put in my way, 1 was going to overcome it somehow. When I took the job, I
vowed to visit every facility. In 10 years [ had gotten to about 90%, and it was very
frustrating, what I was seeing. So then | was told by a staff person about Chase and
sought to visit it. That experience was just amazing. 1 knew I was seeing something 1
had never seen before. Amazing, unique, we’ve got to bottle it. Itold Dr. Thomas
that if there was ever anything I could do, to let me know. It had the potential to
revolutionize the system, and here ] was presented with a law that no one even knew
about, and I was supposed to stop them? [ got so ticked off I decided this isn’t going
to stop me. 1 could lose my job, but so what? Not on this one, I'm on the side of the
angels with this one. I thought, what the heck, let’s go! (Andrewjeski, 2007).

Kudos to Norman and the involved New Yorkers! Although they had a limiting regulation,
they waived it, and even though later discovered they couldn’t, they didn’t stop the good
changes happening, even though they rightfully could have. And, they proceeded to get the
“statute of animal limitations” changed!

Florida

Up until July 1, 2005, an outdated Florida state life safety code had required nursing home
beds, like hospital beds, to stick out perpendicularly from the wall to ensure, again like in a
hospital, that staff had space on both sides to give care. But residents began to desire, loudly,
that this was ridiculous and set out to get it changed. Residents wanted to be able to place
their bed wherever they wanted in their room, in most cases against the wall in order to create
more space. Here is a part of the story as written by Florida Pioneer Network director and
Pioneer Network State Coalition Liaison Cathy Lieblich in a Pioncer Networking article:

For years, nursing home residents had ignored the regulations {that mandated that the
side of a bed could not be against a wall] and state surveyors did nothing about it.
Beds against the wall opened up more space for residents to make their rooms feel a
little more like home. But when regulators decided to sanction homes that failed to
comply with the code, it was enough to drive nursing home residents up the wall.
They signed petitions and sent letters to their representatives — who listened to what
they had to say. The Florida Agency for Health Care Administration (AHCA) set out
to create a new protocol, and although several stakeholder groups along with the
Florida Pioneer Network attempted to propose a much less bureaucratic system,

71
128

Attachment - 12




AHCA unfortunately still required facilities to request approval from AHCA any time
a resident wanted to have his or her bed against the wall. As a result, sponsors were
found for an amendment that would allow the resident, through the care planning
process, to have his or her bed placed against the wall. The amendment was put in
three bills, all of which passed, and on July 1, 2005 Governor Jeb Bush signed into
law a bill that allows nursing home residents to arrange their room furniture in
whatever way they please, provided roommates don’t object and they don’t interfere
with safety or care (Lieblich, 2005).

This is an example of the strength of grassroots. State regulations that just don’t make sense
can be changed. The more local a regulation is the better.

Ohio — A Story Without a Happy Ending

As of June 2006, the Ohio Person Centered Care Coalition (PCCC) [aState-level culture
change organization] has encountered what they are referring to as *‘a regulatory stumbling
block to PCCC initiatives.” A local health department decided that satellite kitchens in
facilities that have redesigned into neighborhoods or households need to be individually

licensed as food service operations.
The Ohio Department of Health supported the local health department’s decision by stating:

What we are using to determine if the satellite areas are licensable is the definition of
a food service operation in the Revised Code. Section 3717.01 (F) defines a food
service operation as a place, location, site, or separate area where food intended to be
served in individual portions is prepared or served for a charge or required donation.
In this case, the nursing home is preparing the food at one location and transports the
food to another location where it is held at proper temperatures and then plated for
service. If this nursing home would deliver individual meals from the main kitchen to
the residents at these satellite locations, then they would not be licensable. It is the
act of holding and serving food that makes it licensable.

What does this mean for facilities? $500.00 per license, per kitchen. One facility is looking
at $3000.00, another $4000.00 per year. They must also submit plans and make whatever
modifications are necessary to be brought into and operate each satellite area in compliance
with the Ohio Food Code. They must submit a detailed ‘as built’ scaled drawing of each
satellite kitchen location with lighting, plumbing, finish and equipment specificattons.

Does it make sense that only because food is plated in one part of the facility - actually closer
to the residents eating it - rather than in a remote kitchen, that facilities should be faced with
this additional burden? Restaurants sell food, not nursing homes. Nursing homes make food
for the people living there to their liking, something best done from a kitchen closest to the

residents.

State Regulations, Waivers/Variances and Initiatives
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When a State regulation is outdated or standing in the way of innovation, be glad. Be glad it
is State and not Federal. State regulations are more local and closer to the people, meaning
they can be changed easier. Sure it takes collaboration and some work, but it can be, and is
being done all over this country. In addition, every State offers what is either referred to as a
waiver or variance. If a facility can show substantial compliance in another way, sometimes
a certain requirement can be waived. Similarly a variance is approval for complying in a
different way than the norm.

A common misconception is that regulators are not open to new ideas. However, this has not
been the case for Bill Keane and John Shoesmith who both have experience with innovations
particularly in environments serving persons with dementia. They share that they have had
much success working with regulators when any change they requested:

% Stressed how the change will improve quality of life for residents,
& Addressed how it meets or exceeds the intent of pertinent codes, and
& Included regulating officials as team members early on in the process (2005).

In my experience, it is often said by many providers at conferences, that they included their
regulators in new design and regulators are usually very helpful. What many forget is that
State survey agencies are public entities, and the surveyors that work in them are civil
servants. This means they are there to serve. Providers seem to forget or not trust this is the
case. Having been a surveyor, | know this to be true and recommend that providers always
call the survey agency with questions and sit down to discuss plans with them. Ask the
survey agency whose job it is to know the regulations, to think through issues with you.

In a May 2007 Provider magazine article, Irene Fleshner of Genesis Healthcare reports
similar collaboration with state and federal regulators. “Culture change is giving us
something where we can find common ground,” she says, adding, “the federal regulations are
not an issue for what we’re trying to do [OBRA ‘87] was written in the spirit of culture
change. It’s some state regulations that are a little outdated.”

As seen in the Florida story, culture change coalitions are making a difference. What are the
issues in your State? Do you have any State regulations that are outdated that need to be
changed? Do you have access to your State’s CMP (civil monetary penalty) monies to
support grants for innovative changes to quality of life and/or training throughout your State?
Do you have a relationship with your State health department? Do you have a State culture
change coalition? Do you offer training to regulators on culture change initiatives? There is
so much good work that can be done on the State level.
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Chapter 12: Tools and Resources

The Artifacts of Culture Change, developed by this author and Karen Schoeneman of CMS
in 2006, is a tool designed to collect concrete changes homes have made to care and
workplace practices, policies and schedules, increased resident autonomy, and improved
environment. Its items resulted from studying what providers and researchers have deemed
significant, concrete changes that culture changing homes have made compared to other
homes (Bowman, 2006).

The tool is comprised of the following six domains and has a point structure that gives the
following potential totals for each:

Care Practices 70
Environment 320
Family and Community 30
Leadership 25
Workplace Practice 70
QOutcomes 65
Total points 580

One voiced criticism about the Artifacts tool is that the Leadership section should be scored
as heavily as the Environment section. Susan Gilster points out that all the physical changes
could be made but without culture change leadership, the same nursing home would still be
very institutional (2007). The final report of the Artifacts development report does identify:
“Because the Artifacts of Culture Change tool represents concrete changes, the tool’s
leadership section is small, since much of leadership is intrinsic and hard to capture as
concrete items.” The Environment section consists of 21 of the 79 total items, and carries
more point value than any other section with 320 of the total possible 580. It also carries
more points because of some “heavy hitter” items with larger points. In contrast to each item
having a maximum of 5 points, the following items are example of the “heavy hitters” of the
Artifacts Environment section and identified in this background paper as desires of residents
and markers of changed cultures:

15. Percent of residents who live in households that are self-contained with full kitchen,

living room and dining room.
100%=100 points

16. Percent of residents in private rooms.
100%= 50 points

17. Percent of residents in privacy enhanced shared rooms where residents can access their
own space without trespassing through the other resident’s space. This does not include the
traditional privacy curtain.

100%= 25 points

18. No traditional nurses’ 'stations or traditional nurses’ stations have been removed.
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No traditional nurses’ stations = 25 points
Some traditional nurses’ stations removed = 15 points

Although a valid point is raised about the importance of leadership, the purpose of the
Attifacts tool was to offer “a means for culture changing providers to capture the real
changes they have made after making a conscious commitment to resident-directed care.”
Environmental changes often do reflect a commitment by leaders to change the culture and
also reflect a larger price tag to go with it. Thus the importance of the environment is
reflected with higher scores in the Artifacts measurement tool.

The Stages Model is a tool developed by Leslie Grant of the University of Minnesota and
LaVrene Norton of Action Pact to help a home assess the degree of culture change from an
organizational development perspective. Culture change progression through the four stages:
Stage I - Institutional model, Stage 1I - Transformational model, Stage III - Neighborhood
model, and Stage IV - Household model includes Decision Making, Staff Roles,
Organizational Design, Leadership Practices and Physical Environment. Its Physical
Environment section shows how the environment and environmental features change on a
continuum from institution to home in the household model and can be used both to assess
the current status of a home and it’s potential.

The Hulda and Maurice Rothschild Foundation provides funding for the NHRegsPlus
searchable website which contains a repository of the state nursing home regulations for each
of the 50 States. It allows the user to search by State or by topic. It includes waiver
processes, resources, and makes comparisons between states by topic. Environmental
features and coinciding states’ regulations can be looked up by topic such as nurses’ stations.
Links to most states’ licensure regulations are given and if a state has a waiver or variance
process, it can be accessed directly. The website, housed at the University of Minnesota, isa
wealth of information at your fingertips and can be accessed at

http://www.hpm.umn.edu/NHRegsPlus.
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Chapter 13: Is Safety “The End All Be AU?”

Is safety what ends up being what is most important to people? Do people define quality of
life as safety? Maslow’s Hierarchy of Needs identifies that ideally safety is treated as “a
given” so that quality of life can be achieved. The University of Minnesota’s Rosalie Kane,
project lead in the creation of NHRegsPlus says, “State regulations are full of materials about
how people need to be offered choice — that word is everywhere — but you see stuff that
restricts resident choice.” Kane notes that this contradiction is usually related to safety
which, she says, is critical in skilled nursing settings. “The trick for regulators, says Kane, is
striking the right balance between ensuring safety and providing the best possible quality of
life” (Smokler, 2007).

1n an article about the SAGE POE, designer Maggie Calkins points out that although
decisions made for people to move into a nursing home often are due to safety reasons, if you
ask the residents themselves, they will generally not rank safety as a top priority in their life
(Calkins, 2005). A timely article to this very subject was published on May 24, 2007 in the
New York Times entitled “Rethinking Old Age.” A friend of the author, Atul Gawande, of
this article, had a friend move into a nursing home a week prior to his writing it. She was 89,
chose to move and also chose the nursing home.

She's glad to be in a safe place -- if there's anything a decent nursing home is built for,
it is safety. But she is struggling. The trouble is - and it's a possibility we've mostly
ignored for the very old -- she expects more from life than safety. "I know I can't do
what I used to," she said, "but this feels like a hospital, not a home." And that is in
fact the near-universal reality. Nursing home priorities are matters like avoiding
bedsores and maintaining weight —- important goals, but they are means, not ends.
She left an airy apartment she furnished herself for a small beige hospital-like room
with a stranger for a roommate. Her belongings were stripped down to what she
could fit into the one cupboard and shelf they gave her. Basic matters, like when she
goes to bed, wakes up, dresses, and eats were put under the rigid schedule of
institutional life. Her main activities have become bingo, movies, and other forms of
group entertainment. Is it any wonder most people dread nursing homes? The things
she misses most, she told me, are her friendships, her privacy, and the purpose in her
days. She's not alone.

This woman points out that life is more than just being safe. Residents interviewed in the
landmark 1986 Institute of Medicine study, Improving the Quality of Care in Nursing
Homes, did not say safety was what made up their quality of life but instead desired
autonomy, choice, and to be treated with dignity. The design of the nursing home
environment can do so much to afford many of these identified features of quality of life if it
would provide private rooms, more control over one’s environment such as controls for
temperature and lighting, an environment without the noise and beeping of a traditional
institution, Tull support of a person’s personal belongings surrounding them and creating true
home - being at home, not in a home.
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Nursing homes are expected to prevent harm to residents while also respecting residents’
rights to make choice. Pam Elrod of Genesis Healthcare brings these two ends of the
spectrum together with a plea to begin reconsidering how success is measured:

This is an industry of control, since its inception. The State and Federal Government
expects you to control everything — about care, about the environment, about safety.
We're the most regulated industry in the world. It’s all the Federal Government’s
fault. Now the pendulum has shifted because of public sentiment. They want more
choice, and a more home-like environment, and all that is about not having control.
The meteor has hit, and we’re all still dinosaurs. We’re still trying to do it the old
way even though the world is changing around us. You say you want residents’
rights, but everything you measure is the opposite. We have to find new ways to
measure what success means (Baker, 2007).

In developing the household model, Steve Shields and LaVrene Norton have bumped up
against many a building code or regulation which has caused frustration and a realization that
many lag behind the culture change movement which is forging ahead with new
environmental designs that were not envisioned when written. They sum up their
experiences by identifying:

Almost every type of building must comply with a set of regulations. These are
primarily safety standards that protect the occupants and emergency response
personnel who come to their aid. They also address the occupants’ expectations and
patterns of behavior. As expectations and behaviors evolve, regulations addressing
environmental issues may also need to evolve. A substantial time lag can occur
between recognizing the evolution of behavioral patterns and modifying
environmental regulations accordingly. Environments for frail adults provide a
diversity of challenges as we strive to keep them safe without becoming so over-
protective we deprive their lives of purpose and meaning. Because nursing homes are
now based on a medical model, most regulations address standards of care that are
clinical in nature.... Regulations or no regulations, we must replace institution with
home (2006).

“Regulations or no regulations, we must replace institution with home.” This could almost
be the theme to the upcoming Creating Home national symposium. CMS, especially, is to be
commended for partnering with the Pioneer Network in a proactive move to objectively look
at the issues arising from new models of nursing home living potentially including
requirement changes.

Invitation to Work Together

Karen Schoeneman of CMS and Project Officer for the Creating Home national symposium,
thoughtfully describes the turning point at hand and extends this invitation for all
stakeholders to work together to smooth the path for desired change:
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There are many issues involved in changing the environment in nursing homes.
There is tradition — what has been acceptable is actually institutional. There are
desires on the part of homes to avoid costs, even the very small cost of spackling nail
holes. There are Federal regulations, the Life Safety Code, even the Food Code, and
there are State and local building codes. The result is a mismatched jigsaw puzzle of
often conflicting rules that has innovators stymied in making changes they want to
make. There is a lack of research to inform us, and because of this, we are often left
guessing what residents want, what is safe, how safe is safe enough, how comfortable
and homey are enough, how much control over one’s daily life is possible within the
constraints of living with a group of strangers, each of whom needs some help with
their daily lives. All the changes in the past, whether to culture or to regulation, have
come from problems being revealed that were then mandated to be “fixed” with
regulations, or from dedicated groups of people gathering together to make the case
for change.

We are at a turning point in the environment part of the culture change movement.
We need to talk, all of us, regulators, legislators, safety experts, researchers,
innovators, designers, and most particularly residents, staff, and families. We need to
make some new decisions together, and we then need to work together to make those
decisions turn into changes: changes in expectations of what a nursing home is and
should be; changes in what is mandated and prohibited; and changes in how we think
about people who live in nursing homes and what they want, what they need, and
how to keep them safe in the midst of them exercising their rights to a good quality of
life in a place that provides excellent care and that can truly be called home. The
answers will not be yes or no, on or off answers, but will be those of how far along on
a continuum we can go, how much of resident rights can we provide, and how much
safety is enough or too much when it pushes rights out of the picture (2007).

Brawley agrees and encourages us with, “It will take more than simply sharing research or
basing design on evidence. A spirit of cooperation will be required: an unprecedented
change in the approach of researchers, healthcare providers, and designers with open minds,
willing to communicate openly and to work together to identify problems, design better
solutions, and develop methods to test the effectiveness — together” (2005).

A spirit of cooperation. A turning point. Each of us has such a great opportunity to affect
the future of nursing homes daily in our work as well as collectively at the Creating Home
symposium and beyond. The symposium will be only the starting point of what many are
recognizing as continued future collaborative work. Thank you Karen Schoeneman for the
great idea. Thank you CMS for not only supporting the idea but giving it prominence on
your annual action plan. Thank you Pioneer Network for partnering with CMS and taking
the lead on organizing this great event. Thank you Commonwealth Fund for backing the
work of the Pioneer Network. Thank you AAHSA, AHCA, and Rothchild Foundation for
your invaluable cooperative work in making the symposium happen. Thank you anyone
reading this as it shows you have at Jeast an interest in making change and probably are
already doing so. We invite you to join us, to carry the torch in your sphere of influence. It
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. has always been us, the people of this great country, to cause, create and carry out change
that makes life better indeed ultimately for all of us.

Many issues have been presented in this background paper designed to set the stage for the
2008 jointly CMS and Pioneer Network sponsored public symposium: Creating Home in the
Nursing Home. A National Symposium on Culturc Change and the Environment
Regulations. After reading it, we hope you will come prepared to hear what national experts
identify as barriers and potential solutions, research findings and stories from the field, and
responses from national stakeholder organizations, and to add your thoughts in the open
public comment periods. What a great opportunity we all have.

The brochure and agenda for the symposium can be found at the Pioneer Network website at
www.PioneerNetwork.net. Following the symposium a summary document will be
accessible there as well including speaker presentations, national stakeholder organization
responses and public comments made.

We invite you to come be a part of this once in a lifetime event April 3rd, 2008 in
Washington, D.C. — a call to action for each of us desiring to create home in the nursing
home. Let’s do what pioneer Steve Shields proposes: “There’s a long road ahead.... We've
worn a dirt path in the grass, and we're excited when we cross paths with others making their
own paths. Maybe someday - in our lifetime, we hope — our paths, yours and ours, will
come together and form an interstate” (Shields, 2004). Let’s cross paths in DC and continue
to form the interstate to Creating Home!
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Special Thanks

Thank you to James Merrill of CMS, Life Safety Code lead, for assistance in identifying
parts of the code pertinent to environmental culture change issues in nursing homes. A very
special thanks and debt of gratitude goes to Karen Schoeneman of CMS, Quality of Life lead,
not only for her foresight in conceiving this idea but for her patient assistance every step of
the way. To be a part of this historic event where the federal government, CMS, has
partnered with the lead organization for culture change, the Pioneer Network, has been a joy

for each of us involved.

Carmen S. Bowman
Edu-Catering, LLP

80
/L/?’ Attachment - 12




Bibliography
Action Pact. A Way Back Home video. Action Pact Press: Milwaukee, Wisconsin, 2003.

Action Pact. “Close the Nurses’ Station and Open Breakfast! Small Steps Bring Big
Advances.” Culture Change Now, Volume 3, Action Pact Press: Milwaukee,
Wisconsin, 2005, p. 27.

Action Pact. “It’s Beautiful, but is it Home?” Culture Change Now, Volume 3, 2005, p. 29.

Action Pact. “Long-Term Care Checks Out of Heartbreak Hotel.” Culture Change Now,
Volume 2, 2003, p. 16.

American Optometric Association. Lighting Your Way to Better Vision, 2006.

Ancoli-Israel, S., and D. Kripke. “Now 1 Lay Me Down to Sleep: The Problem of Sleep
Fragmentation in Elderly and Demented Residents of Nursing Homes.” Bulletin of
Clinical Neurosciences, Vol. 54, 1989, pp.127-132.

Andrewjeski, Norm. Personal telephone conversation. June 29, 2007.

Baker, Beth. Old Age in a New Age: The Promise of Transformative Nursing Homes.
Vanderbilt University Press: Nashville Tennessee, 2007, pp.45, 90-92.

Baucom, A.H. Hospitality design for the graying generation: Meeting the needs of a growing
market. New York: John Wiley and Sons, 1996,

Baugh, T. Shared housing focus groups. Washington, DC: American Association of Retired
Persons, 1996.

Bowman, Carmen S. “Wireless Call Systems Gain Ground.” Cufture Change Now Vol.
Three, Milwaukee, Wisconsin: Action Pact Press, 2005, p 13.

Bowman, Carmen S. Development of the Artifacts of Culture Change Tool, Report of
Contract HHSM-500-2005-00076P, Submitted to Centers for Medicare & Medicaid
Services Karen Schoeneman, Project Officer, April 21, 2006 by Contractor Carmen
S. Bowman of Edu-Catering, LLP.

Brandon, Beverly. “ADA Unresponsive to Needs of Elderly.” American Association of
Homes for the Aging (now American Association of Homes and Services for the
Aging) Provider News. June 1993.

Brawley, Elizabeth C. Designing for Alzheimer's disease: Strategies for better care
environments. New York: John Wiley and Sons, 1997.

81

/ (/'? Attachment - 12




Brawley, Elizabeth C. “Alzheimer’s research yields better living designs.” McKnight’s

Long-
Term Care News Vol. 23, No. 14, October 25, 2002, p. 26.

Brawley, Elizabeth C. “Creating Caring Environments,” Alzheimer’s Care Quarterly,
Oct/Dec 2005, p. 263.

Brawley, Elizabeth C. Design Innovations for Aging and Alzheimer’s: Creating Caring
Environments. John Wiley & Sons, Inc.: Hoboken, New Jersey, 2006.

Brawley, Elizabeth C. “Light Up Your Life: The Critical and Often Unexamined Role of
Lighting and Other Design Elements in Creating Quality of Life,” Presentation at the
Pioneer Network conference, Minneapolis, Minnesota, August 3, 2007.

Brawley, Elizabeth C. Personal email communication. December, 12, 2007.

Brawley, Elizabeth C. Personal telephone conversation. January, 4, 2008.

Brecanier, Sister Pauline. Personal communication. December 19, 2007.

Calkins, Margaret P. “What is Your Building Saying?”
www.ideasinstitute.org/article 021103_a.asp.

Calkins, Margaret P. “Creating places to live in-not just waiting to die” Journal of Dententia
Care, Volume 10, Issue 6, Nov/Dec 2002, pp. 19-21

Calkins, Margaret P. “Learning from Doing: Conducting a SAGE Postoccupancy
Evaluation,” Alzheimer’s Care Quarterly, Volume 6, Number 4, 2005, pp. 357-365.

Calkins, Margaret P. “Environments for Late-Stage Dementia,” Alzheimer’s Care Quarterly,
Volume 6, Number 1, 2005, pp. 71-75.

Calkins, Margaret P. “The Nursing Home of the Future: Are you ready?”
www.ideasinstitute.org/future.asp, 2007.

Calkins, Margaret P. “Using Color as a Therapeutic Tool,”
www.ideasinstitute.org/article 021103_b.asp Reprinted with penmsswn Journal of

Dementia Care, Volume 10, Number 4, Hawker Publications, 2" floor, Culvert
House, Culvert Road, London, SW11 SDH. 020-7720-2108.

Calkins, Margaret P. and J. Mardsen, “Home is where the heart is: designing home-like
settings,” www.ideasinstitute.org/article_021103_c.asp, Reprinted with permission
from Aspen Publishers, Inc., Alzheimer’s Care Quarterly, Volume 1, Issue 1, 2003.

Calkins, Margaret, P. and Christine Cassella “Exploring the Cost and Value of Private Versus
Shared Bedrooms in Nursing Homes,” The Gerontologist, Volume 47, 2007,

82

”/'7 . Attachment - 12




pp.169-183.

Calkins, Margaret P., Kimberly Curyto, Avale, Saperstein, and Kimberly Van Haitsma.
“Missed Opportunities: The Disconnect between Physical Design and Programming
and Operations,” Alzheimer’s Care Quarterly, Volume 5, Number 4, 2004,
pp. 324-331.

Calkins, Margaret P., ]. Mardsen, S. Briller, M. Proffitt. Creating Successfil Dementia Care
Settings. Volumes 1-4. Baltimore MD: Health Professions Press, 2001.

Calkins, Margaret P. “Designing Bathing Rooms that Comfort,” condensed article found at

www.ideasinstitute.org/article 021103_d.asp.

Calkins, M., Barrick, A.L., Rader, J., Hoeffer, B. & Sloane, P. 2001. Bathing without a
Battle: Personal care of individuals with dementia. New York: Springer Publishing
Co. Reprinted with permission: Journal of Dementia Care, Loc. 10, No. 3. Hawker
Publications, 2™ floor, Culvert House, Culvert Road, London, SW11 5DH.
020-7720-2108.

Calkins, Margaret P. “Homelike is more than carpeting and chintz.” Nursing Homes, Volume
44, Number 6, 1995, pp. 20, 22-25.

Calkins, Margaret P. “More than carpets and chintz - creating a place for living”
Contemporary Long Term Care, August 14, 2003.

Carboni, Judith. “Homelessness Among the Institutionalized Elderly,” Journal of
Gerontological Nursing, Volume 16, Number 7, 1990.

Case, Linda. Activity Director at Littleton Manor in Littleton, Colorado. Colorado Eden
Registered homes meeting. Lakewood, CO. June 8, 2007.

Chen, C., P. Sloane, and T. Dalton. Lighting and Circadian Rhythms and Sleep in Older
Adults. Electric Power Research Institute, January 2003.

Cruickshanks, K., T. Wiley, T. Tweed, et al. “Prevalence of Hearing Loss in Older Adults in
Beaver Dam, Wisconsin: The Epidemiology of Hearing Loss Study.” Amcrican
Journal of Epidemiology, Volume 148, 1998, pp. 879-886.

Cutler, Lois J., Kane, Rosalie, Degenholtz, Howard B., Miller, Michael J., Grant, Leslie.
“Assessing and Comparing Environments for Nursing Home Residents: Using New
Tools for Greater Research Specificity” The Gerontologist, Volume 46, 2006,
pp. 42-51.

Cutler, Lois J. and Kane, Rosalie A. “As Great as All Outdoors: A Study of Outdoor Spaces
as a Neglected Resource for Nursing Home Residents.” Journal of Housing for the
Elderly, 2006, Volume 9, pp. 34.

33

/50 Attachment - 12




Cutler, Lois J. Presentation at the Pioneer Network conference, August 4, 2007.

Dubbs, D. “Ceiling Tile Study Shows How Noise Impacts Patients and Staff.” Health
FacilitiesManagement, September 2004.

Federal Register. “Rules and Regulations General Comments on the Resident Rights
Requirements as a Whole,” Volume 54, Number 21, February 2, 1989, p. 5319.

Frank, Barbara. “From Institutional to Individuatized Care” Part | of the CMS satellite
broadcast four part series. November 3, 2006. Available at
www.cms.intermetstreaming.com as an archived webcast. The entire four part series
is available for purchase at www.pioneernetwork.net.

Gawande, Atul. “Rethinking Old Age,” New York Times, www.newyorktimes.com, May 24,
2007.

Genworth Financial. Genworth Financial 2005 Cost of Care Survey. New York: Author.
Gilster, Susan. Personal conversation. 3/29/07.

Gold, Marla Fern. “Designs for Extended Living,” Provider, Volume 30, Number 11.
American Healthcare Association, Bensenville, Illinois, November 2004, p 22.

Green House Project fact sheet. 1/30/08.
Greene, David. Personal communication, December 20, 2007.

Hamilton, Thomas. “Nursing Home Culture Change Regulatory Compliance Questions and
Answers,” CMS Survey and Certification memorandum, December 21, 2006.

Hamilton, Thomas and Karen Schoeneman. Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services
DVD. "Culture Change in LTC Facilities.” June 2005.

Harper, Roger. Administrator Littleton Manor, Littleton, CO. National Public Radio,
Colorado. Eden Alternative nursing homes. September 2006.

Institute of Medicine. Improving the Quality of Care in Nursing Homes. Washington, D.C.
1986, pp. 51 and 382.

Jenkens, Robert. The Green House Project session. Pioneer Network conference.
Minneapolis, Minnesota, August 3, 2007,

Jenkens, Robert. Personal telephone conversation, January 8, 2008.

Kamp, David. “Beyond the View: A Collaborative Approach in Creating Useful Outdoor

84

/5/ Attachment - 12




Spaces for Aging Populations™ Alzheimer’s Care Quarterly, Volume 6, Number 4,
2005, pp. 335-340.

Kane, R.A., Lum T.Y., Cutler L.J., Degenholtz H.B., Yu Tzy-Chyi. “Resident Outcomes in
Small-House Nursing HHomes: A Longitudinal Evaluation of the Initial Green House
Program,” Journal of the American Geriatric Socicty, Volume 55, Number 6, 2007,

pp. 832-839.

Kane, Rosalie A., Robert L. Kane, Boris Bershadsky, Lois J. Cutler, Katherine Giles, Jiexin
Jason Liu, Kyoungrae Kang, and Lixin Zhang, Measures, Indicators, and
Improvement of Quality of Life in Nursing Homes, Final Report. Submitted to
Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services. 2004.

http://www.cms.hhs.gov/NursingHomeQuality[nits/35 NHQIArchives.asp#TopOfPage

Year 2005 Archive, Quality of Life Vol. 1 and Quality of Life Vol. 2.

Vol.1 Chapter 6, pp. 1-2; Vol. 1, Chapter 12, pp. 47 — 49; Executive Summary, p.26

Kaup, Miguette. “The Impact of the Built Environment: Is it the Place or the Policy that
Makes a Difference?”’ Culture Change Now, Volume 3, Milwaukee, WI: Action Pact

Press, 2005.

Kaup, Miguette. “Large versus Small Spaces: What are the Impacts?” Culture Change Now,
Volume 3, Milwaukee, WI: Action Pact Press, 2005.

Keane, William L. and John Shoesmith. “Creating the 1deal Person-Centered Program and
Environment for Residential Dementia Care,” Alzheimer’s Care Quarterly, Oct/Dec
2005 p. 321.

LaPorte, Meg. “Going Beyond ‘Keeping Up with the Joneses.” Provider, Volume 33,
Number 4, American Healthcare Association: Washington, DC, April 2007.

Lawton, M.P. and J. Bader. “Wish for Privacy by Young and Old.” Journal of Gerontology,
Volume 25, Number 1, 1970, pp. 48-54.

Lawton, M.P. and L. Nahemow. Ecology and the aging process In: Eisdorfer C. Lawton M.P.
eds Psychology of Adult Development and Aging. Washington, D.C.: American
Psychological Association, 1973, pp. 619-674.

Lieblich, Cathy. “Florida Pioneer Network Advocates for Residents’ Rights,” Pioneer
Networking, 2005.

Lustbader, Wendy. The Pioneer Challenge: A Radical Change in the Culture of Nursing
Homes, a chapter from the book, Qualities of Caring. Impact on Quality of Life, re-
printed with permission by the Pioneer Network, 2000, p. 8.

Maddox, E. “Carpet Trends in Healthcare Facilities.” Facility-Care, August 1998, pp. 20-21.

85
/5 7’ Attachment - 12




Mazer, S. “Speaking with Susan Mazer.” Facility-Care, July/August 2002.

McAllily, Steve. CEO and President, Mississippi Methodist Senior Services, Inc. The Green
House Project DVD, 2005.

Medicaid Issues in Family Welfare and Nursing Home Reform, Hearings before the
Subcommittee on Health and the Environment of the Committee on Energy and
Commerce House of Representatives One Hundredth Congress, including H.R. 2270,
Serial No. 100-73, May 12, 1987. U.S. Government Printing Office: Washington,
1988, p. 268.

Medicare and Medicaid; Requirements for Long Term Care Facilities; Final Rule with
Request for Comments, Department of Health and Human Services, Health Care
Financing Administration, Part 11, Federal Register, February 2, 1989, p. 5327

Merrill, James. CMS Division of Nursing Homes, Life Safety Code lead, conference call,
8/21/07.

Noell-Waggoner, E. “Daylighting Design: The Challenges of New Legislation, Evolving
User Demands, and Our Physical and Mental Well-being.” In Energy, Environment
and Architecture. Washington, DC: American Institute of Architects, 1992,
pp. 159-167.

Nolta, Michele. “Professional Forecasting: Safety and Holiday Decorations,” Creative
Forecasting, Volume X1X, Number 9, September 2007, p. 37.

Norman, D. The Design of Everyday Things. New York: Doubleday/Currency, 1988.

Norton, LaVrene and Pat Maben. “Rethinking the Nurses Station.” Culture Change Now,
Volume 3, 2005, pp. 11 -17.

Norton, LaVrene and Steve Shields. Jn Pursuit of the Sunbeam: A Practical Guide fo
Transformation from Institution to Household. Milwaukee, Wisconsin: Action Pact
Press, 2007,

Norwalk, Leslie. Acting Administrator of the Center for Medicaid and Medicare Services.
February 27, 2007 letters to several Senators and Representatives regarding the Green
House Project.

Practical Strategies to Transform Nursing Home Environments: Towards Better Quality of
Life, Rhode Island Quality Improvement Organization. Material adapted from Drs
Cutler and Kane’s Practical Strategies Workbook and Manual, funded by The
Retirement Research Foundation, 2005.

Reeves, Audra. “Culture Change: A Journey, Not a Destination.” Pioneer Networking, Issue
4, Spring 2004,

86
[5-3 Attachment - 12




Schaeffer, Keith. “The Process of Physical Design: Combating Homelessness in Long-Term
Care,” Culture Change Now, Volume 3, 2005, p. 18.

Schaeffer, Keith. “Personal Experience Clues Designers Need for Culture Change,” Culture
Change Now, Volume 3, 2005, p. 24.

Sheilds, Steve. “Restoring “Rampant Normalcy: the Power of Small Moments.” Pioneer
Networking, Issue 4, Spring 2004.

Schoeneman, Karen. Personal communication, November 26, 2007,

Schwarz, Benyamin. Nursing Home Design: Consequences of Employing the Medical

Mode/,
New York, N.Y.: Garland Publishing, April 1996, p. 87.

Nursing Homes Managing Editor Laura Bruck interview of Benyamin Schwarz, PhD,
7/1/1996.

Shellenbarger, Sue. “Can Technology Ease Elder-Care Concerns?”
Wall Street Journal Online
htip://www.careerjournal.com/columnists/workfamily/200207 19-workfamily.html,

2007.

Smokler, Jeff. “SNFs Roll Out New Care Models,” Provider, May 2007, pp. 20-30.

Taylor, M. “Designing a Flooring System for your Healthcare Facility.” Facifity-Care.
May/June 2001, pp. 17-19.

Thomas, William H. Life Worth Living, VanderWyk & Burnham: Action, MA. 1996,
pp. 167-169.

Thomas, William H. Personal conversation. August 2, 2007.
The Green House Project Guide Book, NCB Capital Impact, May 2007.

Troxel, David. “The Last Great Frontier in Long-term Care: Let's Get Our Elders Outside,”
Alzheimer’s Care Quarterly, Volume 6, Number 4, 2005, pp. 332-334.

Ulrich, R., and C. Zimring, The Role of the Physical Environment in the Hospital of the 2 1®
Century: A Once-in-a-Lifetime Opportunity. Concord, CA: Center for Health Design,
September 2004.

Volzer, R. “Home is Where the ‘Hearth’ Is...” Nursing Homes Long Term Care
Management, Volume 52, Number 10, October 2003, pp. 47-49.

87

/5 4 Attachment - 12




. Witold Rybezynski. Home: A Short History of an Idea. New York: Penguin Books, 1986,
pp. 20-21. :

Yueh, B., N. Shapiro, and P. Shelkelle. “Screening and management of Adult Hearing Loss
in Primary Care.” Journal of the American Medical Association, Volume 289,
Number 15, April 16, 2003, pp. 1976-1985.

Zeisel, J., N. Silverstein, J. Hyde, S. Levkoff, M. P. Lawton, and W. Holmes.

“Environmental Correlates to Behavioral Health Outcomes in Alzheimer’s Special
Care Units.” The Gerontologist, Volume 43, Number 5, Oct. 2003, pp. 697-7}1.

/ 5 5 Attachment - 12




Resources

American Institute of Architects (AIA)

www.a1a.0rg
The AIA represents the professional interests of over 80,000 licensed architects, emerging

professionals, and allied partners who are commited to excellence in design and livability in
our nation's buildings and communities. The AIA Design for Aging Center encourages
collaboration among design professionals to improve environments for older adults.

Dementia Design Info

www.DementiaDesigninfo.org
This searchable database was the result of the Environmental Design Lexicon for Dementia

Care that links resident and staff outcomes with physical design features. It is based on an
extensive review of the literature, and organizes the information into an easily searchable
compendium of practical information. Users to the site can search by space, e.g., bedroom,
bathing area and toilet room and/or user need, e.g., privacy or safety. Each search result
indicates whether the outcomes are validated by research, reflect expert consensus or are

unverified.

The Eden Altenative

www.edenalt.com

The Eden Alternative is a small not-for-profit organization seeking to de-institutionatize the
culture and environment of today’s nursing homes. Over 300 homes in the U.S., Canada,
Europe, and Australia are registered and dedicated to the principles of Eden. Eden home
office staff, 50 Eden Educators, 60 mentors and more than 15,000 associates teach that where
elders live must be habitats for human beings, not sterile medical institutions. Find local
Eden Associate trainings listed on the website, how to become an Eden registered home, a
listing of registered homes as well as announcements for the every other year international

Eden conference.

Ideas Institute

www.ideasinstitute.org

Ideas Institute is a non-profit resource repository regarding the environment, seeking to
provide solutions that improve the lives of older adults through the conduct of rigorous

applied research.

National Fire Protection Association

www.nfpa.org
The NFPA has a bimonthly journal. Some articles are available over the internet for free but

most are only accessible if one is a member of NFPA. Dues are $150.00/year.

Green House Project

www.ncbeapitalimpact.org
Learn about the Green House Project Replication Initiative funded by the Robert Wood

Johnson Foundation, more information about Green Houses, find informational workshops
around the country and order a free GH Project Guidebook.
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Lighthouse International

www lighthouse.org

Lighthouse International is a leading non-profit organization dedicated to preserving vision
and to providing critically needed vision and rehabilitation services to help people of all ages
overcome the challenges of vision loss. Through clinical services, education, research, and
advocacy, the Lighthouse enables people with low vision and blindness to enjoy safe,
independent and productive lives.

Pioneer Network

www.pioneernetwork.net
The Pioneer Network is a not-for-profit national umbrella organization for the grassroots

culture change movement which promotes household living environments where elders and
direct care workers are able to express choice in meaningful ways. The Pioneer Network
hosts an annual national conference and ongoing blog where anyone can ask any questions
regarding culture change practices and principles.

Society of the Advancement of Gerontological Environments, SAGE Federation

www sagefederation.org
SAGE is a culture change focused not-for-profit organization that promotes networking and

collaboration among relevant stakeholders to create better environments for older adults.
Leam about the creation of SAGE state units, the DESIGN review edition of Nursing Homes
- Long-Term Care Management magazine highlighting “state of the art™ senior environments
and SAGE’s user-friendly post occupancy evaluation [POE].

The Center for Design for an Aging Society

www.centerofdesign.org
The Center of Design for an Aging Society is a not-for-profit entity dedicated to improving

the built environment to maximize the abilities of older adults.
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Regulations — How to obtain

CMS State Operations Manual (SOM) for Long Term Care Facilities
Appendix P “Survey Protocol for LTC Facilities™
Appendix PP “Guidance to Surveyors — LTC Facilities”
http://www.cms.hhs.gov/Guidanceforl awsAndRegulations/12 NHs.asp#TopOfPage
Or www.cms.hhs.gov: Regulations and Guidance; Transmittals; CMS Transmittals;
Intérnet-Only Manuals Table of Contents; 100-07 State Operations Manual;
Appendices Table of Contents, Appendix P and Appendix PP

NFPA 101 Life Safety Code 2006 Edition — used in nursing homes.

Available only by purchase at www.nfpa.org.
$75.00 non-member price, $67.50 member price.

State nursing home licensure regulations are often available through state websites.

NHRegsPlus
A searchable website repository of the state nursing home regulations for each of the

50 States. It allows the user to search by state or by topic. It includes waiver
processes, resources, and makes comparisons between states by topic.

http:/f’www.hpm.umn.edqu HRepsPius.

Carmen S. Bowman, MHS, ACC is the owner Edu-Catering: Catering Education for Compliance and Culture
Change in LTC turning her former role of regulator into educator. She is a nationally-recognized expert in
culture change, and is a frequently invited speaker at national long term care and culture change conferences
including the Pioneer Network. Carmen was a Colorado state surveyor for nine years, surveying nursing
homes, assisted living residences and adult day programs. She is a former policy analyst with CMS where she
taught the national CMS Basic Surveyor Training Course. She presented the surveyor segment of the 2000
CMS satellite broadcast "Surveying the Activities Requirements in Nursing Homes" and the 2002 CMS satellite
broadcast “Innovations in Quality of Life - the Pioneer Network.” Carmen now serves as a contractor to CMS
on culture change projects the most recent being the April 2008 CMS and Pioneer Network co-sponsored
national Creating Home environmental symposium focusing on environmental regulations and culture change.
With CMS, she also co-developed the Artifacts of Culture Change measurement tool. She is cumrently serving
on an AANAC grant project regarding The MDS and Culture Change. The first certified activity professional to
become a state surveyor and work at the federal level, Carmen served on the CMS Activities Panel rewriting the
interpretive puidelines for Tags F248 and F249. Carmen holds a Master's degree in Healthcare Systems and
Certificate in Gerontology from Denver University. Carmen is a Centified Validation Worker, Certified Eden
Associate and Eden Mentor. In 2002, she co-founded the Colorado Culture Change Coalition. She has
authored five culture change workbooks for Action Pact: Building Culture Change Coalitions, Living Life to the
Fullest: A Match Made in OBRA 87, Quality of Lifc Regulations: The Difference between Deficient Practice,
Common Practice and Culture Change Practice, Regulatory Support and Considerations for Culture Change and
Changing the Culture of Care Planning: A Person-directed Approach.
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Hoopeston Community Memorial Nursing Home Site Plan
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Alternatives to the Proposed Project

The applicants believe that the proposed project, discontinuing the existing Hoopeston
Community Memorial Nursing Home and establishing a replacement facility, is the most
effective and least costly alternative to the other alternatives considered. The following
narrative consists of a comparison of the proposed project to alternative options.

The applicants have considered a number of alternatives as follows:
1) Proposing a project of greater or lesser scope and cost

There are several options in this category.

Do nothing.

The Hoopeston Community Memorial Nursing Home is comprised of the original
building, designed in 1970 to the institutional standards of that time, and an
addition built in 1995 which expanded the long term care bed count from 50 to
75. The facility is not efficient in its design or engineering and is showing
deterioration due to its age. It requires significant maintenance cost annually. It
provides no privacy to patients, as they have to share rooms. It will not meet the
on-going needs for long term care services within the community. The complete
list of existing problems and issues to be addressed is documented in the Purpose
of Project narrative (Attachment-12).

A “do nothing” option results in the increasing cost of maintaining an aging
structure that must adhere to strict code requirements (the Conditions of
Participation for Medicare and Medicaid, and the Life Safety Code).

This option has no effect on patient access.

This option results in the status quo regarding resident quality of life (institutional
feel of the facility, lack of personal privacy, shared bathrooms, noise, temperature
and humidity fluctuations, limited dining options, lack of personal storage space,
limited garden access), at a time when the industry is identifying the benefits of
and trending to patient-centered care.

This option results in the status quo regarding clinical spaces such as isolation
rooms, bariatric support, and therapy space. There is limited isolation space, and
no bariatric or therapy space.

Under this option, the community need will not be fully met, quality will remain
at the current level, and required action will be deferred to another point in time.
For these reasons, this alternative was rejected.

Renovate the Current Facility
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Alternatives to the Proposed Project

. The cost of major renovation in today’s construction dollars is equal to and often
times greater than new construction. This is due to the re-work of an aging facility
that was not designed to meet the infrastructure needs of a modem health care
facility, as well the staging and working within an operating facility that is
required.

This option would negatively impact patient access in that it would require
residents to be moved to another facility during construction, disrupting their lives
while decreasing the nursing home’s revenue stream and increasing its costs.

This option would address many of the concerns regarding resident quality of life
and clinical spaces, but not as completely as a replacement facility designed with
patient-centered care in mind.

Under this option, project cost would not be reduced, patient access would be
negatively affected, and quality would be only somewhat improved. For these

reasons, this alternative was rejected.

Construct 2 Smaller Facility

The operational cost of a smaller facility would be higher, as some expenses (i.e.
administrative costs) are fixed. It would also require that residents be moved to
other facilities, away from the community in which many of their families live

. and work. It would also result in layoffs of clinical personnel that would be
detrimental to the [ocal economy.

This option would negatively impact patient access in that it would require some
of our residents to be moved to another facility. Hoopeston Community
Memorial Nursing Home has a utilization rate of over 96% per year for each of
the last four years.

This option would address the concerns regarding resident quality of life and
clinical spaces.

Under this option, patient access would be negatively affected and operating costs
would be increased. For these reasons, this alternative was rejected.

Construct a Larger Facility

The construction costs for a larger facility would affect the applicant’s ability to
service the debt and would restrict other capital projects. Expansion of the current
service could also lead to a detrimental impact on other facilities within the area.

This option would negatively impact patient access in that patients might be

coming from longer distances and a larger service area. This option would also
. add to the excess capacity in long term care beds in the area.

/2
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Alternatives to the Proposed Project

. This option would address the concemns regarding resident quality of life and
clinical spaces.

Under this option, project cost would be increased, patient access might be
negatively affected, and bed capacity would be increased unnecessarily. For these
reasons, this alternative was rejected.

2) Pursuing a joint venture or similar arrangement with one or more providers or
entities to meet all or a portion of the project's intended purposes; developing
alternative settings to meet all or a portion of the project's intended purposes

Hoopeston Memeorial Community Nursing Home is located in a rural area. The
Hoopeston Regional Health Center is the only health services provider within a 235
mile radius. There are no other local health care providers to partner with.

For these reasons, this alternative was rejected.

3) Utilizing other health care resources that are available to serve all or a portion of
the population proposed to be served by the project

The Hoopeston Community Memorial Nursing Home is operating above the state

occupancy threshold and there are no long term care facilities in the service area
. that are operating below the occupancy standard. Consequently the other

providers are not able meet all or a portion of the proposed project’s intended

purpose.

For these reasons, this alternative was rejected.

4) Construct a replacement facility at a nearby location

The proposed replacement facility will be located on a new 25 acre campus on the
northwest side of the city of Hoopeston, 1llinois. The proposed facility will be
approximately 37,000 gross square feet and accommodate 75 private bedrooms
for the 75 long term care bed licenses allocated to the nursing home.

The total project cost is $6,210,145.

This option will maintain the status quo for patient access. Each of the nursing
home’s 75 long term care beds is both Medicare and Medicaid certified, and this
will not change under this project. The physical location of the proposed
replacement facility is two miles from the existing nursing home.

This option will dramatically improve resident quality of life (home-like feel of

the facility, private bedrooms, two-person access bathrooms, reduced noise,
. modern temperature and humidity control and delivery, expanded dining options,

oy
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Alternatives to the Proposed Project

. personal storage space, expanded garden access) by implementing a patient-
centered care environment.

This option will expand and improve clinical spaces by providing an isolation
room per wing, a bariatric-capable resident room, and therapy space.

For all of these reasons, this option is the one chosen for the project.
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Attachment — 13




Size of Project

The proposed project is a discontinuation of the existing facility and the establishment of a
replacement facility.

The Health Facilities and Services Review Board considers the proposed replacement of the
nursing home to be the establishment of a facility.

Appendix B of Section 1110 of the Administrative Code documents the established standards for
departments, clinical service areas, and facilities. For new construction, the standards are based
upon the inclusion of all building components and are expressed in building gross square feet
(bgsf). In the case of General Long Term Care facility, the state standard is a range of 435-713
bgsf per licensed bed.

The proposed nursing home construction project totals 37,047 bgsf. The proposed nursing home
will retain its 75 bed licenses, resulting in a proposed 493.96 bgsf per bed license. This is within
the range of the state standard, and the proposed project therefore meets the state standard.

SIZE OF PROJECT

DEPARTMENT | PROPOSED STATE MET
/ SERVICE BGSF /BED | STANDARD | DIFFERENCE | STANDARD?
The proposed bgsf
is 58.96 over the
minimum and
219.04 under the
maximum allowed
General Long 435-1713 by the state
Term Care bgsf per bed standard
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Project Services Utilization

The proposed project is a discontinuation of the existing facility and the establishment of a
. replacement facility.

Requirements:

e According to 1100.660(c), General Long-Term Nursing Care Category of Service, facilities
providing a general long-term nursing care service should operate those beds at a minimum
annual average occupancy of 90% or higher.

The utilization for the Hoopeston Community Memorial Nursing Home has exceeded the state
threshold for the last four reporting years, as is shown in the following table. This information
is taken from the Long Term Care Facility Profiles by Facility for years 2006, 2007, and 2008
and the Long Term Care Questionnaire for 2009 data.

Historical Utilization
Department / Historical Historical State Met
Service Utilization Utilization Standard Standard?
(Patient (%)
Days)
20006 General Long 26,482 96.7% 90% Yes
Term Care
2007 General Long 27,178 99.3% 90% Yes
Term Care
. 2008 General Long 27,101 98.7% 90% Yes
Term Care
2009 General Long 27,216 99.4% 90% Yes
Term Care

Based on the historical utilization, the Hoopeston Community Memorial Nursing Home
average utilization rate for years 2006 through 2009 is 98.5% with an upward trend. The
nursing home projects a utilization of above 99% for the first two years of operation at the new

location.
Utilization
Department / |  Historical Projected State Met
Service Utilization Utilization Standard Standard?
(Patient
Days)

Year 1 | General Long 27,101 99% 90% Yes
Term Care

Year 2 | General Long 27,101 99% 90% Yes
Term Care
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Unfinished or Shell Space

. The proposed project is a discontinuation of the existing facility and the establishment of
a replacement facility. There will be no unfinished or shell space, so this section is not
applicable.

(&7
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Unfinished or Shell Space Assurances

. The proposed project is a discontinuation of the existing facility and the establishment of
areplacement facility. There will be no unfinished or shell space, so this section is not
applicable.

168
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General Long Term Care Review Criteria

This Certificate of Need is for the proposed discontinuation of the existing Hoopeston
Community Memorial Nursing Home facility at 701 East Orange Street in Hoopeston
lllinois and the establishment of a replacement facility at the corner of Route 1 and
Thompson Road in Hoopeston Illinois, a location approximately two miles from the
existing facility.

Therefore, in compliance with Section 1110.1730 General Long Term Care — Review
Criteria, the applicant provides the following information.

e 1110.1730{(b)(1) Planning area need - formula calculation

The Hoopeston Community Memorial Nursing Home is an established
facility, existing at its current location since its inception in 1970. The
nursing home has a bed inventory of 75 Long Term Care beds.

According to the July 20, 2010 monthly update to the Inventory of Health
Care Facilities and Services for Long-Term Care Services, there are 508
excess beds in Health Service Area 4. Of these, 380 are located in the four
counties overlaying the Hoopeston Community Memorial Nursing Home
service area. Of these, 93 are located in the Vermilion county planning area,
the home county of the Hoopeston Community Memorial Nursing Home.

According to Section 1100.660 General Long-Term Nursing Care Category
of Service, facilities providing a general long-term nursing care service
should operate those beds at a minimum annual average occupancy of 90% or
higher. Table 1 below shows that the Hoopeston Community Memorial
Nursing Home has operated at or above the minimum annual average
occupancy target of 90%, as specified in Section 1100.660 General Long-
Term Nursing Care Category of Service item c of the Administrative Code,
for the last four years. This utilization information was taken from the Long
Term Care Facility Data profiles for 2006 through 2008, and the Hoopeston
Community Memorial Nursing Home Long-Term Care Facility

Questionnaire for 2009.

Table 1: Historical Utilization (General Long Term Care)
Historical Historical State Met
Utilization Utilization Standard Standard?

{Paticnt {Percent)
Days)
2006 26,482 96.70% 90% Yes
2007 27,178 99.30% 90% Yes
2008 27,101 98.70% 90% Yes
2009 27,216 99.40% 90% Yes

/&7
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General Long Term Care Review Criteria

The replacement facility is expected to exceed the occupancy target upon
opening, and to continue to exceed the target thereafter.

Though there is an excess of beds in the Vermilion county planning area, the
Hoopeston Community Memorial Nursing Home is utilized to its maximum
capacity.

1110.1730(b)(2) Planning area need - Scrvice to Planning Area Residents

The Hoopeston Community Memorial Nursing Home provides a highly-
valued and important service to residents of the area. This is evidenced by
the fact that the nursing home has operated at or above the minimum annual
average occupancy target of 90%, as specified in Section 1100.660 General
Long-Term Nursing Care Category of Service item ¢ of the Administrative
Code, for the last 15 years. The replacement facility is expected to exceed
the occupancy target upon opening and to continue to exceed the target
thereafter.

The combination of the primary and secondary service areas served by the
nursing home, based on COMPdata data, had a median age of 40.8 years in
2009. Approximately 19% of the population was over the age of 65, and that
segment of the population is expected to grow by 4.4% between 2009 and
2014.

Hoopeston is situated in the approximate center of a set of nursing homes in HSA-
4. It is located approximately24 miles from Danville and 28 miles from Gifford
to the south, approximately 39 miles from Gilman and 26 miles from Watseka and
30 miles from Sheldon to the north, and approximately 24 miles from Paxton to

the west.

The residents of the nursing home are primarily from the service area, as
represented by Table 2, a listing of residents as of August 2010, and Table 3, a
listing of residents for the period February 2006 through July 2010.

Table 2: Residents as of Aug 2010
Zip Number % of Primary | Sccondary
Code of of Patient Service Scrvice
Origin | Paticnts | Population | Area Area Other
60942 41 54.7% 41
60957 9 12.0% 9
60963 5 6.7% 5
60924 3 4.0% 3
60973 2 2.7% 2
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General Long Term Care Review Criteria

Page 3 of 8

61832 2 2.7% 2
60970 2 2.7% 2
61874 | 1.3% 1
35773 1 1.3% 1
60960 1 1.3% I
61801 1 1.3% 1
61834 1 1.3% 1
61848 1 1.3% 1
61726 1 1.3% 1
61865 1 1.3% 1
60953 1 1.3% 1
60938 1 1.3% 1
61811 1 1% 1
Total 75 100% 53 2 20
% of
Total 70.7% 2.7% 26.7%
Table 3: Residents as of Feb 2006 - Jul 2010
Zip Number % of Primary | Secondary
Code of of Patient Service Service
Origin | Patients | Population | Area Area Other
60942 136 85.0% 136
60963 9 5.6% 9
60924 5 3.1% 5
60973 1 0.6% 1
61832 3 1.9% 3
61865 1 0.6% 1
60953 2 1.3% 2
61873 1 0.6% 1
35630 1 0.6% 1
61811 1 0.6% 1
Total 160 100% 153 2 5
% of
Total 96% 1% 3%

Table 4, below, shows that 94% of the residents admitted to the Hoopeston

Community Memorial Nursing Home in the last 12 month period were residents
of the nursing home’s service area. This meets the requirement that at least 50%
of admissions are residents of the area.
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General Long Term Care Review Criteria

Table 4: Patient Origin Aug 2009 - Jul 2010
Zip Number of Primary | Secondary
Code of Patient Service Service
Origin Admissions Area Area Other
60942 25 25
60963 5 5
60924 1
61832 1 1
61802 1 1
Total 33 31 2
% of
Total 94% 0% 6%

1110.1730(b)(2)(C) of Planning area need - Service to Planning Area Residents
is not applicable because the applicant is not proposing to expand an existing
general long term care service.

e 1110.1730(b)(3) Planning area need — Service Demand - Establishment of
Category of Serviee

1110.1730(b)(3)(A) of Planning area need — Service Demand - Establishment of
Category of Service is not applicable because the applicant is not proposing to
establish a new general long term care category of service.

Health Facilities and Services Review Board staff has indicated that, for a
replacement facility, the historical utilization of the facility can be used to address
these requirements.

Table 5 below shows that the Hoopeston Community Memorial Nursing Home
provides has met utilization requirements for the last four years. This utilization
information was taken from the Long Term Care Facility Data profiles for 2006
through 2008, and the Hoopeston Community Memorial Nursing Home Long-
Term Care Facility Questionnaire for 2009.

Table 5: Historical Utilization
Dcpartment / Historical Historical State Met
Service Utilization Utilization | Standard | Standard?
(Patient Days) (%)
2006 | General Long 26,482 96.7% 90% Yes
Term Care
2007 | General Long 27,178 99.3% 90% Yes
Term Care
/? ¢
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General Long Term Care Review Criteria

2008 | General Long 27,101 98.7% 90% Yes
Term Care

2009 | General Long 27,216 99.4% 90% Yes
Term Care

¢ 1110.1730(b)(5) Planning area need — Service Accessibility

The Hoopeston Community Memorial Nursing Home provides a highly-
valued and important service to residents of the area. This is evidenced by
the fact that the nursing home residents are primarily from the patient
population in the service area and that the nursing home operates at or above
the minimum annual average occupancy target of 90%, as specified in
Section 1100.660 General Long-Term Nursing Care Category of Service item
¢ of the Administrative Code. Tables 2, 3, and 5 above document these

details.

s 1110.1730(e)(1) Unneccssary Duplication of Services

The Hoopeston Community Memorial Nursing Home has been in operation in the
area since the 1970s, and is part of the fabric of services provided in the area. The
establishment of a replacement facility will not result in duplication of services.

The following is list of all zip code areas that are located, in total or in part, within

30 minutes normal travel time of the proposed project's site:

Page 5 of 8

47917
47921
47975
47984
60924
60926
60932
60939
60953
60957
60960
60963
60967
60973
60974
61811
61812
61814
61848
61865

(7%
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General Long Term Care Review Criteria

The total population of the above zip codes, based on United States Census
Bureau data for 2009, was 26,604.

The following are the health care facilities located within 30 minutes normal drive
time from project site that provide the categories of bed service that are proposed

by the project:

Asta Care Center — Ford County
1240 North Market Street
Paxton, IL 60957

Heartland of Paxton
1001 East Pells Street
Paxton, IL 60957

Hlinois Knights Templar Home
450 Fulton Street
Paxton, IL 60957

e 1110.1730(e)(2) Maldistribution

The Hoopeston Community Memorial Nursing Home is an existing facility that is
operating above the occupancy standard, is largely operating at capacity, and is
not expanding its capacity. The proposed replacement facility would have no
impact on maldistribution.

The Ratio of Beds to Population

In the proposed project’s market, a 30 minute radius of Hoopeston Illinois, the
total number of beds is:

Asta Care Paxton 69

Heartland Paxion 106 (added 10 to 96 in 2009)
Knights Templar Paxton 86

Total Beds 261

Total Population in the area in 2009, according to the United States Census
Bureau was 26,604. This equates to a beds per 1000 population of less than 10.3
(261 /26 =10.3).

The state average is 8.9 beds per 1000 population. (The state total population per
United States Census Bureau in 2009 was 12,910,409. There were 114,614
licensed beds per the Illinois Long Term Care Data Summary- Calendar Year
2008. Therefore, 114,614 /12,910 =8.9.)

One and one-half the state average is 13.4. Therefore the ratio of beds to
population does not exceed one and one-half times the State average.
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General Long Term Care Review Criteria

Historical Utilization for Existing FFacilities

The Hoopeston Community Memorial Nursing Home itself is operating above the
occupancy threshold. There are no long term care facilities in the service area
that are operating below the occupancy standard.

Summaries from the Illinois Long Term Care Facilities Data Profile for each
facility within a 30 minute drive time of the proposed project are attached as part
of the Appendix for Attachment-28. These show that each facilily meets and
exceeds the 90% occupancy rate for the year 2008, the latest year for which
information is available.

1110.1730(e)(3) Impact of Project on Other Area Providers

The proposed project is not expecled to lower the utilization of other area
providers below the occupancy standards specified in 77 Ill. Adm. Code 1100.

Summaries from Illinois Long Term Care Facilities Data Profile for each facility
within a 30 minute drive time of the proposed project are attached as part of the
Appendix for Attachment-28. These show that each facility meets and exceeds
the 90% occupancy rate for the year 2008, the latest year for which information is
available.

The Hoopeston Community Memorial Nursing Home has been operating at or
above the target occupancy rate for the last four years (reference Table 5 above).
The nursing home’s complement of 75 long term care beds is not being expanded
by the proposed project. Therefore the replacement of the facility is not
anticipated to negatively impact other area providers.

Further, the response of other nursing homes to a notification letter, gathered as
part of the requirement for Section II Discontinuation and included as an
Appendix to Attachment-10, indicates no impact on other area providers.

1110.1730(g) Staffing Availability

The proposed project is the discontinuation of the existing facility of the
Hoopeston Community Memorial Nursing Home and the establishment of a new
facility approximately two miles away. This change will not change the staffing
at the nursing home. The existing nursing home is operating at capacity, is fully
staffed, maintains a staffing pattern that exceeds the minimum requirements of the
IDPH, and meets the adequate staffing requirements of the Joint Commission.

1110.1730(h) Facility Size

/35
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General Long Term Care Review Criteria

The existing Hoopeston Community Memorial Nursing Home facility is 2 75 bed
facility and no additional bed licenses are being requested as part of the proposed
project. This criterion is therefore not applicable.

e 1110.1730(i) Community Related Functions

The proposed project is supported by the Hoopeston community. Letters of
support are included as part of Attachment-28.

e 1110.1730(j) Zoning

Zoning of the property has been approved, as documented in Attachment-28 (City
of Hoopeston Ordinance 2011-2).

e 1110.1730(k) Assurances

A signed letter attesting to the applicant's understanding that, by the second year
of operation after completion of the proposed project the nursing home will
achieve and maintain the occupancy standards specified in 77 Ill. Adm. Code
1100 for the long term care category of service, is included as Attachment-28.

[ 76
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Service Area Map for Hoopeston Community Memorial Nursing Home
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ILLINOIS LONG-TERM CARE PROFILE-CALENDAR YEAR 2008 ASTA CARE CENTER - FORD COUNTY PAXTON

rp——

ASTA CARE CENTER - FORD COUNTY

1240 N MARKET STREET
PAXTON, L. GOBS7

Roference Numbers
Health Service Area 004

Administrator
Kitn Haas Colbrook

Contact Person and Telephong

Kim Haas Colbrook
2%7-379-4B95

Registered Agent
Craig Frank

Information

1240 North Market Street

Paxon, IL 60957

FACILITY OWNERSHIP
LIMITED LIABILITY CO

Facility ID 6003206
Planning Serviee Area 053

Dato
Comploted
4/22009

Infectious Disease w/ Isolation

ADMISSION RESTRICTIONS
Aggressive/Anti-Social
Chironic Alcqholism
Developmentally Disabled
Drug Addiction
Medicaid Reciplent
Medhicare Recipient
Mental Hliness
Non-Ambulatosy
Non-Mobile
Public Aid Recipient
Under 65 Years Qld
Unable to Self-Medicate
Ventilator Dependent

Other Restricitons

No Restrictions

Node: Reported restictions deaied e '1*

- o0 0 000000000000

RESIDENTS BY PRIMARY DIAGNOSIS
DIAGNOSIS
Neoplasms ¢
Endocrine/Metabolic 2
Bioed Disorders o
*Nervous Systerm Nen Alzheimer 3
Alzheimer Disease 7
Mental Ifiness 2
Developmental Disability 2
Cucutalory System 14
Respiratory System 28
Digestive System 2
Genitourinary System Disorders 0
Skin Disqtders a
Musculo-skeletal Disorders 3
thjuries ar Poisonings v}
Other Medical Conditions 2
Non-Medical Condllions 0
TOTALS 65

LICENSED BEDS, BEDS N USE, MEDICARE/MEDICAID CERTIFIED BEDS

o, S g T e P s 4

ADMISSIONS AND
DISCHARGES - 2008

PEAK PEAK
LICENSED BEDS BEDS BEDS BEDS AVAILABLE MEDICARE MEDICAID Residents on 17172008 &3
LEVEL OF CARE ~ BEDS  SET-UP  USED SET-UP INUSE = BEDS =~ CERTIFIED CERTIFIED 145 agmissions 2008 49
Nursing Care 69 G9 &7 a9 63 4 51 L} Tolal Discharges 2008 47
Skilled Under 22 0 0 0 Q v 1} 0 Residents en 12/31/2008 65
inlermedhate DD 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sheitered Care 0 0 0 0 0 0
TOTALBEDS 69 69 67 es 65 4 T 51 7 se
FACILITY UTILIZATION - 2008
BY LEVEL OF CARE PROVIDED AND FATIENT PAYMENT SOURCE
Private Private Chanty Licensed Peak Beds
Medicare Medicaid Other Public  Insurance Pay Care TOTAL Beds SetUp
LEVEL OF CARE FPat days Occ‘. Pci. Pal.days Occ. Pel.  Pat. days Pat. days Pal.days Pal days Pat days Occ. Pet Occ Pot.
Nursing Cate 2149 115% 777 702% 0 T 3057 0 29014 ol1% 911
Skitled Under 22 0 0.0% 0 0 ) 0 0 00% 0.0%
intermediate DD 0 00% 0 0 0 0 o 00% 00%
Shellered Care 0 0 0 0 0 00% 00%
TATALS 2148 115% 17137 70.2% 0 7t 3057 0 23014 o) 01 1%
e = - - U U
RESIDENTS BY AGE GROUP, 3EX AND LEVEL OF CARE - DECEMBER 21, 2008
NURSING CARE SKL UNDER 22 INTERMED. DD SHELTERED TOTAL GRAND
AGE GRO_!_P_S AMa_uie Famaia Male Female Malg Fer_na}e _Male Female o Malg Female TQ‘TAL
uUnder 18 0 0 1] 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
18 io 44 ] 1 0 1] 0 0 0 0 1 1 2
4510 59 4 <] 0 [¢] 0] 0 0 0 4 6 10
G0 o 64 3 1 0 0 0 4] 4] 0 3 1 4
6510 74 4 B 0 0 0 0 0 0 4 6 16
75i0 84 ) 13 0 0 0 0 0 0 a 13 21
85+ 1 a7 o 0o 0 ) oo 1y 18
TOTALS. 21 a4 0 0 0 o 0 0 21 as 5%

. Soirce Long-Term Care Facility Questionnaire for 2008, ingis Department of Public Health, Health Systems Davelopment

Page 143 of 2242
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ILLINOIS LONG.-TERM CARE PROFILE-CALENDAR YEAR 2008 ASTA CARE CENTER - FORD COUNTY

ASTA CARE CENTER - FORD COUNTY
1240 N. MARKET STREET
PAXTON. L 60957

Relerence Numbears

Health Service Area

004

Faciity ID 6003206

Ptanning Sennce Area 053

RESIDENTS BY PAYMENT SOURCE AND LEVEL OF CARE

LEVEL Cther Private  Charity
OF CARE Medicare  Mediceid Public Ingurance Pay Care TOTALS
Nursing Care 4 52 0 0 g 0 65
Skilled Under 22 0 0 4] 0 Q i) 0
ICFIDD 1] 0 1] 0 0 0
Sheltered Care [1] 0 0 0 0
TOTALS 4 52 0 o 9 0 65
RESIDENTS BY RACIAL/ETHNICITY GROUPING

RACE Nursing §kIUnd22 iCFOD Shelter Totals

Agian 0 0 0 0 0

Amer. (ndian [¢] 0 0 0 0

Black 1 0 0 0 1

Hawaiian/Pac Is! 0 s} 0 0 a

White 64 0 0 0 64

Race Unknown 0 0 0 1] a

Total 65 0 0 0 65
ETHNICITY Nursing_ SkiUnd22 ICF/DD Shelter Totais

Hispanic 4] 0 0 1] t]

Non-Hispantg 65 0 0 0 65

Ethricity Unkngwn 4] 0 0 4] 0

Total 65 o o 0 65

NET REVENUE 8Y PAYOR SOURCE {Fiscal Yoar Dats)
Medicare Medicaid Other Public  Private lasurance Prvate Pay
318% 55.0% 0 0% 0.6% 12.6%
1.079.991 1.866.363 0 19,267 426,107

.Source:l.ong-Term Care Facility Questionnaire for 2008, Hinois Depaniment of Putiic Health Health Systems Develepment

Vo ——

[Sp.

i e

Page 144 of 2242
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AVERAGE DAILY PAYMENT RATES
LEVEL OF CARE SINGLE DOUBLE

Nursing Care 150 140
Skilled Under 22 0 1}
inlermediate DD 0 ]
Sheter 0 0
STAFFING
EMPLOYMENT FULL-TIME
CATEGORY EQUIVALENT
Administrators 100
Physicians 0.00
Director of Nursing 1.00
Registered Nurses 4.00
LPN's 6.00
Cerlitied Aides 2400
Other Heatlth Staff 0.00
Non-Heafth Stalf 25.00
Totals 58.60
Charity Charity Care
Care Expense as % of
TOTALS Expense Total Net Ravenue
100.0% 0.0%
3.381.718 0
9r17/2009
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lLLINOIS LONG TERM CARE PROFILE-CALENDAR YEAR 2008 HEARTLAND OF PAXTON

e ———— e

HEARTLAND OF PAXTON

cm—— =

ADMISSION RESTRICTIONS

PAXTON

RESIDENTS 8Y PRIMARY DIAGNOSIS

.1001 EAST PELLS STREET AggrossivelAnti-Sogial 0 DIAGNOS!S
PAXTON IL G0957 Ghronic Alcohotism o Neoplasms 1
Referonce Numbers  Facilily 10 8011571 Developmentally Drsabled 0 EndocrineMetabolic 4
Health Service Area 004 Planning Service Area 053 Drug Addiclion 0 Btood Disarders 2
Administrator Medicard Recipient ¢] “Nervous System Non Alzhelmer 7
Cwndy Scharp Medicare Recpient 1} Alzheimes Disease 12
Menial lliness 0 Mental liiness 0
Contacl Person and Tolaphono Non-Ambulatory 0 Developmenital Disability a
Cindy Scharp Non-Mebile 1] Cuculatory System B
217-378-4351 Dale Public Aid Recipient 0 Respiratory System 1"
Complatad Under 65 Years Old 0 Digestive System 3
Unable to Set{-Medicate 0 Genitouninary System Disorders 2
Registered Agent Information 42312009 Ventifator Depandant 1 Skin Disordets 2
irfectous Disease wf Isolation 0 Musculo-skeleial Disorders 23
Other Restrictions 0 Injuries and Poisonings [H]
Mo Restrictions 0 Qther Medical Conditions 12
FACILITY OWNERSHIP Vote: Reporied restictions densted by 1 Non-Medical Condiions 0
LIMITED LIABILITY CO ' TOTALS 87
LIGENSED BEDS, BEDS IN USE, MEDICARE/MEDICAID CERTIFIED BEDS ADMISSIONS AND
DISCHARGES - 2008
PEAK PEAK
LICENSED BEDS BEDS BEDS BEDS  AVAILABLE MEDICARE MEDICAID Residents on 14112008 98
LEVEL OF CARE BEDS  SET-UP  USED SET-UP N USE BEDS  CERTIFIED CERTIFIED Tolat Admissions 2008 259
Nursmg Cate 56 6 96 95 87 9 o5 & Totat Discharges 2008 267
Skilled Under 22 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Residents on 12/3172008 a7
Intermediate DO 0 0 Q 0 0 0 0
Shetiered Care 0 0 0 0 0 0
TOTAL BEDS 9% 96 96 96 87 9 98 6
FACILITY UTILIZATION - 2008
BY LEVEL OF CARE PROVIDED AND PATIENT PAYMENT SOURCE
Puvate  Pavate  Charily Licensga  Peak Beds
Medicare Medicaid Other Pubbic  Insurance Pay Care TOTAL Beds Setup
LEVEL OF CARE Pal days Occ.Pct Pal days Occ Pct Pal days Pat days Pat days Pat deys Pal days Occ. Pet Oce Pei.
Mursing Care 8703  250% 3202 1458% 0 2297 19518 0 33910 95.5% 96 5%
Skilled Under 22 o 00% 0 0 0 0 0 00% 0 0%
intermediate DD o 00% 0 0 a 0 0 00% 00%
Sheltered Care 0 0 0 0 o 00% 00%
TOTALS 8793  25.0% 3202 1458% 0 2297 19678 o 33810 ¢ 96.5%
RESIDENTS BY AGE GROUP, SEX AND LEVEL OF CARE - DECEMBER 31, 2008
NURSING CARE SKL UNDER 22 INTERMED, 0D SHELTERED TOTAL GRAND
AGE GROUPS Male  Female Mate  Female Male  Female Male Female Male  Femate TOTAL
Under 18 0 0 0 v 0 1] 0 0 0 0 0
181044 0 1] 0 0 0 4] 0 4] 0 0 0
4510 59 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 4] 0 i 1
601062 1 0 0 Q o 0 0 0 1 0 i
651074 4 6 0 0 0 0 0 0 4 B 10
7510 84 8 19 Q 0 Q 0 o 0 8 19 27
B5+ ~ kB | a7 0 0 ] Q 8] 0 0 ] 11 ] a7 43
TOTALS 24 63 0 0 0 0 0 0 24 53 87
.Souwe tong-Term Cara Faciiity Questannawe for 2008, Himors Depariment of Pubiic Health. Health Systems Develepment
{72008
Page 879 of 2242
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ILLINOIS LONG-TERM CARE PROFILE-CALENDAR YEAR 2008 HEARTLAND OF PAXTON

o g s—— —— ra————— =

HEARTLAND QF PAXTON
1001 EAST PELLS STREET

PAXTON. IL. 80957

Roforonco Numbors
Health Service Area 004

Facility 1D 6011571

Planning Service Area 0353
RESIDENTS BY PAYMENT SOURCE AND LEVEL QF CARE

QOther

S oo oo

Madicaid Public  |nsurance

6

0
0
0
G

e ——"

.

Private  Charlly
Pay Care
54 0
0 0
0 0
0 0
54 0

-—cE e = m — - a

RESIDENTS BY RACIAL/ETHNICITY GROUPING

SkiUnd22

0

L= 2w B o i = R = |

¢

Skiund22
0

]
0
0

ICF/DD

ICHIDD

© scoocooo

Sheller Totals
0 0

0 0

0 1

0 [+]

0 &6

0 0

0 87
Sheller Totals
0 0

0 87

0 0

0 a7

LI T -

NET REVENUE BY PAYOR SOURCE (Fiscal Year Data)

Ciher Pyblic
0.0%

LEVEL

OF CARE Medicare

Nursing Care 20 7

Skilled Under 22 0 0

ICFOD 0

Shetlered Care

TOTALS 20 7

RACE Nursing
Asian 0
Amer indian 4]
Black 1
HawasarvPac. Ist 0
Whie 8%
Race Unknown 0
Total 87

ETHNICITY Nursing
Hispanic 0
Mon-Hispanic 87
Ethnicity Unkrown 0
Total g7

Medicare Meditaid
483% 41%
4,178,289 356.585

" -

o e

B

1,699

e D

Privata insurance

10 5%
904,230

TOTALS

[ B =]

Private Pay

3,207,364

AVERAGE DAILY PAYMENT RATES
SINGLE DOUBLE

LEVEL OF CARE

.Swroe.Long-anm Care Facility Questionnaire for 2008, Iflinois Depariment of Public Heaith, Health Systems Develogpmem

Page 880 of 2242
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Nursing Care 165 150
Skllied Under 22 0 0
Iniermediate DD 0 0
Shelter 0 0
STAFFING
EMPLOYMENT FULL-TIME
CATEGORY EQUIVALENT
Administrators 100
Physioans 000
Drrector of Nursing 100
Registered Nurses 1300
LPN's 13100
Certified Auides 4500
Qther Heaith Slaff 800
Non-Heaith Staft 3100
Totats 11200
Char;ty Chazity Care
- Care Expense as % of

TOTALS Expense Total Net Revenue

100.0% 0.0%
8 548,167 ¢}
8M17/200%
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ILLINOIS LONG-TERM CARE PROFILE-CALENDAR YEAR 2008

—— e ——

ILLINOIS KNIGHTS TEMPLAR HOME

S . a———

ADMISSION RESTRICTIONS

ILLINO!IS KNIGHTS TEMPLAR HOME

PAXTON

— v e _mw wvslbeem e

RESIDENTS BY PRIMARY DIAGNOSIS

.su FULTON STREET Aggressivesanti-Social 0 DIAGNOSIS
PAXTON. . 60957 Chronic Alcohotism o} Neoplasms 1
Referenco Numbors  Facility ID 6004675 Developmentally Disabled 0 EndocnneMetabolic 2
Heath Sorvice Area 004 Planning Service Area 053 Drug Addiction 0 Biaod Disorders 1
Administrator Medicek! Recipient 0 “Nervous System Non Alzheimes 5}
Kathy L Swan, LIVHA Medicare Recipient 0 Alzhemer Disease 15
Mental [Iiness 0 Mental lliness 5
Contact Porson and Talophone Non-Ambulalory 0 Developmental Disabilty 0
Chns Kasper Non-Mobile 0 Clrculatory System 12
217-379-2416 Dato Public Ald Reciplent 0 Respiratory Systermn H
Completed Under 85 Years Old 0 Digestive System 4
412812009 Unable lo SeH-Modicate [} Gendourinary System Disorders 2
Registored Agent Information Ventilatar Depandent 0 Skin Disorders 1
NICHOLAS LYNN Infeclious Disease wi Isolation 0 Muscuto-skatetal Disorders 5
180 SOUTH LASALLE ST SUITE 3700 Qther Restrictions t injunes and Poisonings 8
Checago 1L 60603 No Reslrictions 0 Other Medical Conditrons 6
- | H
FACILITY OWNERSHIP Noter Reported restictions Jemod by ' Non-Medical Conditions 0
NON-PROF CORPORATION TOTALS 89
LICENSED 8EDS, BEDS IN USE, MEDICARE/MEDICAID CERTIFIED BEDS DADMlS‘-:ONS AND
PEAK PEAK ISCHARGES - 2008
LICENSED BEDS BEDS BEDS BEDS AvVAlLABLE WMEDICARE MEDICAID Resdents on 1/1/2008 73
LEVEL OF CARE BEDS SET-UP USED SET-UP IN USE BEDS CERTIFIED CERTIFIED Total Admussions 2008 a7
Nursing Care 75 75 75 75 69 6 75 36 Tota! Discharges 2008 ai
Skilted tnder 22 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Residents on 12/31/2008 69
intermediate DD 0 0 0 0 o] 0 0
Sheltered Care ¢ 0 0 0 Q 0
.TOTAL BEDS 75 75 75 75 69 G 75 A6
FACILITY UTILIZATION - 2008
BY LEVEL OF CARE PROVIDED AND PATIENT PAYMENT SOURCE
Private  Private  Chanty ticensed Peak Beds
thedicare Medlcaid Other Public  fnguransco ay Care TOTAL Beds Set Up
LEVEL OF CARE Pat. days QOoc Pol.  Pat.days Oce Pd. Pat days Pal days {at days Pat days Fat, days Occ Poi.  Oce Pod
Nursing Care 1546 56% 11575 87.8% 0 114 12869 0 26104 95.1%  95.1%
Skilled Under 22 0 00% 0 0 0 0 D 0 0% 0.0%
intermediate DD 0 0.0% 0 0 0 0 ) 00% 00%
Shelered Care +] 0 0 i} 0 00% Q0%
TOTALS 1546 56% 11575 87.5% 0 114 12869 o} 28104 oo | 95.1%
— o e b a1 e . - - e e onm me mme e
RESIDENTS BY AGE GROUP, SEX AND LEVEL OF CARE - OECEMBER 31, 2008
NURSING CARE SKL UNDER 22 INTERMED, DD SHELTERED TOTAL GRAND
AGE GROUPS Male Female Male  Femafe Male  Femake Malc  Female Mate  Fernale TOTAL
Unger 18 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
181044 0 Q 0 4] 0 0 Q 0 0 0 Q
4510 59 2 0 0 4] 9 Q 0 0 2 Q 2
60t0 64 0 1 0 4] 0 0 1] 0 0 1 1
65ip74 4 5 0 0 0 o 0 ¢ 4 5 g
7510 84 5 13 0 0 0 Q 0 0 5 13 8
85+ 5 34 0 o 0 0 0 0 5 34 g
TOTALS 16 53 0 0 0 0 0 0 16 53 63
I Sowice Long-Term Care Facifity Questionnaire for 2008. illinois Department of Pubhc Health, Health Systeme Development
911772008
Page 1021 of 2242
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ILLINQIS LONG-TERM CARE PROFILE-CALENDAR YEAR 2008 iLLINOIS KNIGHTS TEMPLAR HOME PAXTON

- v——— - ma— 1 da ao

450 FULTON STREET

PAXTON, It 60957

Reference Numbers  Facliity IO 8004675

Health Service Area 004 Ptanning Service Area 053

. ILLINOIS KNIGHTS TEMPLAR HOME

RESIDENTS BY PAYMENT SOURCE AND LEVEL OF CARE AVERAGE DAILY PAYMENT RATES
LEVEL Other Private  Charity LEVEL OF CARE SINGLE DOUBLE
OF CARE Medicare Medicad  Public  Insurance Pay Care  TOTALS Nursing Care 145 135
Nursing Care 6 30 0 0 3 0 68 Skilied Under 22 0 0
Skiled Under 22 o] 0 0 0 0 0 0 Imermediate DD 4] 0
ICF/DD s} 0 0 0 0 +] Shelter 0 0
Sheltered Care 0 0 0 b} 0
TOTALS 6 a0 0 0 3 0 84
RESIDENTS BY RACIAL/IETHNICITY GROUPING STAFFING
RACE Nursing SklUnd?Z ICFID0 Shelter Tolals EMPLOYMENT FUILL-TIME
Asian 0 0 o o 0 CATEGORY EQUIVALENT
Ames inchan 0 Q 0 0 0 Administrators 100
Black a 0 0 0 0 Physicians 000
Hawanan/Pac. 18! 0 0 0 0 1] Dwrector of Nursing 100
Vitute 68 0 0 0 69 Registerad Nurses 800
Race Unknown 0 0 0 0 0 LPN's & 00
N Total 69 0 0 0 59 Certified Aides 2900
Other Health Stafl 2490
ETHNICITY Nursing SkiUnd22  ICF/DD Shelter Tolals Non-Hestth Stafl 41.00
Hispanic 0 0 0 4] 0 Tolals 87.00
Non-Hispame 69 0 0 0 69
Elhnicily Unknown 0 0 0 1] 0

. Total 68 o 0 0 69
- e e e et e e - ————— - .-

NET REVENUE BY PAYOR SOURCE (Fiscal Yoar Data) Chanty Chanty Care
Care Expenze as % of
fedigare IMedicatd Other Public  Private Insurance Private Pay TOTALS Expense Tatal Met Ravenug
14,4% 35.7% 0.0% 1.7% 48.2% 100.0% 10.0%
509.91% 1.265.976 0 59,837 1,710.225 3545949 153611
.Sourue Long-Term Care Faclity Questionnare for 2008, krals Deparment of Public Heaith, Health Sysioms Development
9172009
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COMMUNITY CENTER

. A Program Of

Hoopeston Multi-Agency Service Center
206 S. First Avenue
Hoopeston, Illinois 60942
(217) 283-5544
Executive Director, Chalmers E. Flint

August 24,2010

To: Whom It May Concern

This letter is in support of Hoopeston Regional Health Center’s project to move the
current Nursing Home to a new building at a new site. The information presented to the
community about the project makes the decision to support this, an easy cne. The
Nursing Home has a great reputation and remains fully occupied with a waiting’ list. This
project will ensure that the trend continues.

The new Nursing Home will be much more home-like for the people who live there.

Residents’ quality of life will be enhanced by this change. The current Nursing Home is

obsolete in the way the resident rooms are set up and in the size of the common areas.

The new plan calls for larger and single resident rooms that will give the residents more

privacy and help preserve their dignity. The common areas will be conducive to resident
. activities and interaction with other, visitors, and staff.

The environment of the new facility will provide for easier maintenance of resident and
staff safety. New furnishings and equipment with updated safety features and more space
for independent as well as assisted mobility are factors that will improve safety. All
bathrooms will be handicapped accessible using the latest technology. Safety upgrades
for showers include lipless entry, non-slip floor surfaces, and safety bars. A designated
therapy area will add potential for more consistent training and rehabilitation that can
impact safety of residents.

This new Nursing Home will positively affect the community as a sign of progress. Jobs
will be retained and additional jobs will be created. The opportunity for more changes to
follow this project will have a huge impact for our community. The Hoopeston Hospital
has made some major positive decisions which will benefit them; patlent and the
community.

Respectfully,

o & LT

Chalmers E Flmt

/3%

ATTRCHMENT - 2F




Hoopeston Police Department

301 West Main Street
Hoopeston, lllinois 60842
www.hoopestonpolice.org

Mark S. Drollinger
Chief of Police

August 24, 2010

Healthcare Facilities
Services and Review Board
Springfield, Illinois 62701

Re: Hoopeston Nursing Home Project
Dear Ladies and Gentlemen,

This letter is in support of the Hoopeston Regional Health Center’s project to move the
current Nursing Home to a new building on Illinois Route 1. As a representative of the
community I fully support the move to a new site and the opportunity for senior citizens
to live in the setting they deserve during their twilight years.

I have had the opportunity to see the plans for the new Nursing Home, and am impressed
with the layout and resident friendly amenities that aren’t currently available at the aging
facility; that is currently in use. The Nursing Home management staff has always been
known for maintaining a professional and caring environment, yet the current living
conditions at the old facility still give residents the stigma of living in a nursing home. A
new facility would improve morale for the residents and staff alike, not to mention
community pride from the entire population of Hoopeston, and East Central Illinois.

The City of Hoopeston has been hit with one economic loss after another, vet the
Hoopeston Regional Health Center has always been one of the best selling points for the
community. In the past few years, the image of the Health Center has improved
dramatically due to the overall management and their investment into the community. A
new Nursing Home in the City of Hoopeston would be the comerstone for growth and
accentuates the City’s slogan “People Who Care About You™.

Respectfully Submitted,
ark Drolls
Chiefo ice
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Hank Marimreck, Sngerintendant 615 FEast Crange

Hoopeston, I 60942
(217) 283-6608
Fax.(217) 283-5431

August 22, 2010

‘I'o Whom 1t May Concein:

This letter is in support of Ioopeston Regional Health Center’s project to move the
cuircot Nursing Home to a new building at a new site. The information presented to the
cornunily about the project makes the decision to support this an easy one. The
Nursing Home has a geeat reputation and remains fully occupied with a waiting list. This
" project should ensure that the trend continues.

The new Nursing }lome will be mueh more home-like for the people who live there.
Residents® quality of Tifc will be enhanced by this change. The current Nursing Home is
obsolete in the way the restdent roonss are sct up and in the size of the cornmon areas.
The new plan calls for larger and single resident rooms that will give the residents more
privacy and help preserve their dignity. The common arcas will be conducive to resident
activities and interaction with other, visilors, and staff.

The enviconment of the new facility will provide lor easicr maintenance of resident and
staff safety. New furnishings and equipment with updated safety [eatures and more space
for independent as well as assisted mobility arc factors that will improve safety. All
bathrooms will be handicapped accessible using the latest technology. Safety upprades
for showers include lipless entry, non-slip floor surfaces, and salety bars. A designatcd

. therapy area will add potential for morc consistent training and rehabilitation that can
impact safety of residents,

‘T'his new Nugsing Home will positively affcet the community as a sign of progress. Jobs
will be retained and additional jobs will be created. The opportunity for more changes to
follow this projout is a huge positive impact for our community.

Sincerely,

& HALL

Hank Hornbeck
Soperintendent




City of Hoopeston

301 W. Main St.
Hoopeston, Il 60942
{217) 283-5320
Fax: (217) 283-7965
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January 13, 2010

Harry Brockus, CEO

Hoopeston Regional Health Center
701 E Orange Street

Hoopeston, IL 60942

Dr. Mr. Brockus,

Please allow this letter to serve as my support for Hoopeston Regional Health Center’s
renovation of the Hospital and construct a new nursing home and clinic.

I realize Hoopeston Regional Health Center serves a rural, economically depressed area
and renovating the Hospital and building a new nursing home and clinic wiil allow

Hoopeston to better serve its community and patients.
[ understand the critical need for healthcare in our community and fully support your

efforts to improve and preserve it.

Lol

Bill Crusinberry, Mayor
City of Hoopeston

/ 5’ ?’ Attachment - 28




City of Hoopeston
301 W. Main St.
Hoopeston, 1l 60942
(217) 283-5320
Fax: {217) 283-7965

Hoopeston I:‘Iunicipal Building

January 13, 2010

Harry Brockus, CEO

Hoopeston Regional Health Center
701 E Orange Street

Hoopeston, IL 60942

Dr. Mr. Brockus,

The town of Hoopeston fully supports Hoopeston Regional Health Center’s efforts in
renovating the Hospital and building a new nursing home and rural health clinic.

. Hoopeston Regional Health Center is vital to our community. Your facility offers
healthcare and jobs to people who are in poverty, with often no means to travel to other
facilities. It is of utmost importance to assure that our citizens are able to obtain the care
and treatment they need. '

This area is fortunate to have a facility such as Hoopeston Regional Health Center who
seeks to preserve the opportunity for our citizens to get the best of care close to home and
provide employment opportunities. Thank you for constantly striving to make our
healthcare facility state of the art.

Sincerely,

City Council
City of Hoopeston

[89
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EST. 1859

Village of Rossville

120 E. Attica
Rossville, lllinais 60963
(217) 748-6914
Fax (217) 748-6217

January 13, 2010

Harry Brockus, CEO

Hoopeston Regional Health Center
701 E. Orange St.

Hoopeston, IL. 60942

Re Support of people of Rossville
Dear Mr. Brockus,

The Village of Rossville fully supports Hoopeston Regional Health Center’s efforts in
renovating the Hospital, building a new nursing home and rural health clinic. The
Hoopeston Regional Health Center is vital to our community. Your facility offers
healthcare to people who are ip poverty, with often no means to travel to other facilities.
It also offers job to people in our community.

The people of Rossville are fortunate to have a facility such as the Hoopeston Regional
Health Center that seeks to preserve the opportunity for our citizens to receive the best

health care close to their homes and aiso provide employment opportunities. Thank you
for constantly striving to make our healthcare facility onc that is “state of the art.”

Sincerely,

Mayor and V]llage Board of Trustees

Y, &mw

"/ W"-
Te Fr’;S Prillaman, Mayor, ‘{Iancyﬁ{l] Trustee’ Dennis Barragree Tfu

Lglidaet !

Mary Beth Rhodes, Trustee, " Charles Cornell, Tmstee/ Yia Petersen, Trustee,

Richard P. Queen, Trustee

/8
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EST. 1859

Village of Rossville

120 E. Atica
Rossville, [llinois 60963
(217) 748-6914
Fax (217) 748-6217

January 13, 2010

Harry Brockus, CEC

Hoopeston Regionai Health Center
701 E. Orange St.

Hoopeston, IL. 60942

Re: Support for HRHC
Dear Mr. Brockus,

This letter is in support of the Hoopeston Regional Health Center’s plan to renovate the
hespital, construct a new nursing home and clinic.

1 realize the Hoopeston Regional Health Center serves a rural economically depressed
area and by renovating the Hospital, building a new nursing home aod clinic will allow
Hoopeston Regional Health Center to better serve the entire area and its patients.
Rossville is a part of this area.

I also understand the critical need for good quality healthcare in our community and
therefore fully support all of your efforts to improve and preserve it.

Sincerely,
/ -"_.-. __—ﬁ\
e : . --/ -
I e N Y e

Terry S. P2 [aman
Mayor )3’“

[0
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ae
Community Bank*
7H

Healthcare Planning and Services Review Board
Springfieid, IL

Re: Hoopeston Regional Health Center Nursing Home Project

This letter is in support of Hoopeston Regional Health Center’s project to move the
current Nursing Home to a new building at a new site. My personal observation and the
information presented to the community about the project makes the decision to support
this an easy one. The Nursing Home has a great reputation and remains fully occupied
with a waiting list. This project should ensure that the trend continues.

The new Nursing Home will be much more home-like for the people who live there.
Residents® quality of life will be enhanced by this change. ‘The current Nursing Home is
obsolete in the way the resident rooms are set up and in the size of the common areas.
The new plan calls for larger and single resident rooms that will give the residents more
privacy and help preserve their dignity. This is something that is difficult to maintain in
most current nursing homes. The common areas will be conducive to resident activities
and interaction with others, visitors and staff.

The environment of the new facility will provide for easier maintenance of resident and
staff safety. New furnishings and equipment with updated safety features and more space
for independent as well as assisted mobility are factors that will improve safety. All
bathrooms will be handicapped accessible using the latest technology. Safety upgrades
for showers include lipless entry, non-slip floor surfaces and safety bars. A designated
therapy area will add potential for more consistent training and rehabilitation that can
impact safety of residents.

This new Nursing Home will positively affect the community as a sign of progress. Jobs
will be retained and additional jobs will be created. The opportunity for more changes to
follow this project is a huge positive impact for our community.

Sincerely,
William Nicholls
President/CEO
/9/
MAIN OFFICE _ HOQPESTON FACILITY
221 Bank Street Rts. 1 & 9 « PO. Box 70
P.O. Box 70 Hoopeston, IL 60942
Hoopeston, IL, 60942 (217) 283-9723 « FAX: (217) 283-9722
217) 283-7733 » FAX: (217) 283-7665 Bookkeeping: {217) 283-5500
@i7) @17) ping: (217 28,5500 20
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CITY OF HOOPESTON

ORDINANCE 2011-2
ANNEXATION AND ZONING OF CERTAIN

TERRITORY TO THE
CITY OF HOOPESTON

/92
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ORDINANCE NO- X9// - o

AN ORDINANCE ANNEXING CERTAIN TERRITORY TO THE CITY OF
HOOPESTON, VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS
AND ZONING OF SAID PROPERTY TO B-1 COMMERCIAL

WHEREAS, a written Petition, signed by the legal owners of record of all land with the
territory herein after described, has been filed with the City Clerk of the City of
Hoopeston, Vermilion County, lllinois, requesting that said territory be annexed to the
City of Hoopeston; and to be zoned B-] Commercial. And,

WHEREAS, all electors residing within the said territory have signed as Petitioners; and

WHEREAS, the said territory is not within the corporate limits of any municipality, but is
contiguous to the City of Hoopeston; and,

WHEREAS, the legal owners of record of said territory in the City of Hoopeston have
entered into a valid and binding annexation sgreement relating to such territory; and,

WHEREAS, al! petitions, documents and other necessary legal requirements are in full
compliance with the terms of said annexation agreement and with the statutes of the State
of Illinois, specifically Chapter 24, Paragraph 7-1-8, Hlinois Revised Statutes, 1991; and,

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the City of Hoopeston that said termitory be
annexed thereto, the following described property:

SEE EXHIBIT A ATTACHED

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF HOOPESTON, VERMILION COUNTY, ILLINOIS, AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1:  That the lands described in the plat attached hereto and incorporated herein,
being indicated together with an accurate map of the annexed territory which is appended
to and made a part of this Ordinance as Exhibit A, is hereby annexed to the City of
Hoopeston, Vermilion County, lllinois.

Section2: That the City Clerk is hereby ordered to record with the Recorder and to file
with the County Clerk a certified copy of this Ordinance, together with the accurate map
of the Territory annexed appended to said Ordinance.

Section3: That this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its
approval as provided for by IHinois law.

/93
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PASSED AND APPROVED THIS /3% DAY OF !‘4 AL , 2009

YEAS &

NAYES O

ABSENT é

ATTEST:

sl A

CITY CLERK
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EXHIBIT A

DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY

A part of the Northeast Quarter of Section 10 and part of the Northwest Quarter of Section 11,
Township 23 North, Range 12 West of the Second Principal Meridian, Vermilion County, lllinois, more
particularly described as follows: Beginning at the Northeast Corner of said Section 10, said Corner also
being the Northwest Corner of said Section 11. From said Peint of Beginning, thence west 564.25 feet
along the North Line of the Northeast Quarter of said Section 10; thence south 1,111.90 feet along a fine
parallel with the West Right-of-Way of $.8.1. Route 1, Section 48-X-3 (lllinois Route 1), said Line farms an
angle to the right of 88°-19'-42" with the last described course; thence east 1,037.81 feet along a line
which forms an angle to the right of 90°-00’-00" with the last described course to said West Right-of-
Way Line; thence north 845.00 feet along said West Right-of-Way Line which forms an angle to the right
of 90°-00"-00" with the last described course to the Southeast Corner of a tract of land conveyed per
Warranty Deed recorded August 29, 1995 as Document No. 95-8579 in the Vermilion County Recorder's
Office; thence west 208.71 feet along the South Line of said Tract which forms an angle to the right of
91°-03'-20" with the last described course to the Southwest Corner of said Tract; thence north 241.71
feet along the West Line and the Northerly Extension of the West Line of said Tract which form an angle
to the right of 268°-56’-40" with the last described course to the North Line of the Northwest Quarter of
said Section 11; thence west 265.17 feet along said North Line which forms an angle to the right of 91°-
03’-20” with the last described course to the Point of Beginning, containing 25.00 acres, more or less.

/95
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OOPESTON

REGIONAL HEALTH CENTER

August 19, 2010

Mr. Michael Constantino

Project Review Supervisor

Illinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board
525 West Jefferson Street

Springfield, lllinois 62761

RE: Maintenance of Occupancy Standard

Dear Mr. Constantino:

The undersigned is an authorized representative of Hoopeston Community Memorial
Nursing Home.

| hereby attest that my expectation is that the Hoopeston Community Memorial
Nursing Home will, by the second year of operation after the project completion,
achieve and maintain the occupancy standard specified in 77 Ill. Adm. Code 1100 for
the Long Term Care category of service. In particular, as per 1100.660 General
Long-Term Nursing Care Category of Service, the nursing home should operate those
beds at a minimum annual average occupancy of 90% or higher.

Sincerely, Sincerely,
/5
é/&f/%‘b"-'
Russ Leigh Harpy Brockus

President, Board of Directors Chief Executive Officer

Hoopeston Community
Memorial Hospital
701 East Orange
Hoopeston, TL 60942
Tel: 217,283 . 5531
Fax: 217 .283 . 4062

Charlotte Ann Russell
Medical Center
801 East Orange

Hoopeston, 11. 60942
Tel: 217 . 283 . 5644
Fax: 217 .283 . 7432

Hoopeston Community
Memoriat Nursing Ilome
701 East Qrange
Hoopeston, 1L 60942
Tel: 217 . 283 . 8247
Fax: 217 . 283 . 6406

/9%

Country Terrace
Apartments
705 East Orange
Hoopeston, L 60942
Tel: 217 . 283 . 9215
Fax: 217.283.9215

ATIACHWEATT =%




Availability of Funds

. The proposed project is funded by the following sources:

e $500,000 in the Cash and Securities category. The applicant’s proposed project
will be funded in part with $500,000 in cash from reserves. Audited financial
statements for the last three years are included as part of Attachment-41.

o $5,910,045 in the Debt category. The applicant’s proposed project will be funded
in part with $5,910,045 in funds from a United States Department of Agricuiture
Community Facilities Direct Loan. Draws during construction will be made on a
monthly basis, upon approval from the USDA, the architect and the applicant.

The Total Funds Available for the project is therefore $6,410,045.
Note that the Total Funds Available combines the total project cost of $6,210,145 (listed

in the Project Costs and Sources of Funds section) and the land cost of $200,000 (listed in
the Related Project Costs section).

Page 1 of 1 /99 Attachment-39




Financial Viability

The Hoopeston Community Memorial Nursing Home is part of the Hoopeston Regional
Health Center, a not-for-profit system. The Hoopeston Regional Health Center system
includes a hospital. Therefore the system’s viability ratios are provided in the table
below, and the not-for-profit system hospital component from Section 1120.APPENDIX

A (b) is used as a standard.

Provide Data for Category A or Category B Category B | Hospital
Projects Classified as: (last three years) (projected) Standard
Enter Historical
and/or Projected FY 2007 | FY 2008 | FY 2009 FY 2012
Years:
Current Ratio 0.21 1.15 1.61 2971>20
Net Margin percentage 2.52% 4.19% 9.38% 3.93% | > 3%
Percent Debt to
Total Capitalization 82.94% 68.61% 58.57% 70.32% | < 50%
Projected Debt Service
Coverage 1.32 2.21 3.37 238 |>25
Days Cash on Hand 56.00 4593 55.96 102.88 | > 75
Cushion Ratio 2.31 2.20 2.96 4.06|>7

The applicant is not in compliance with several of the viability ratios.

The applicant has procured a Direct Loan from the United States Department of
Agriculture (USDA) Rural Development Community Facilities Loan Program to fund the
current development efforts. Under this program, the applicant’s lender is the USDA, a
department of the United States federal government.

By federal statute, the applicant is required to fund debt service reserve equal to one year
of interest and principal payments over the first ten years of loan amortization. If the
applicant were to have difficulty making payments on the loan in the future, it would first
rely on its self-funded debt service reserve to make partial or entire payments. In the
unlikely event of default, the applicant would negotiate with the USDA to determine a
mutually agreeable adjustment to the loan payment schedule. For the proposed project,
the entire amount of the project would be covered.

A letter from the USDA, detailing the loan and conditions for closing, will be
forthcoming in the next 60-90 days. The applicant will make this letter available to the
Illinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board, as part of this Attachment-41, upon
its receipt from the USDA.

Page 1 of 1 Attachment-41
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EcK, SCHAFER & PUNKE, LLP
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

. 600 East Adams Strael

Sonngheld, hinas 62701
217-825-1131

Fax 217-535-1120
\YWW.ESPCDA.COM

Independent Audifors’ Report

Board of Directors
Hoopeston Regional Health Center

Hoopeston, Hlinois

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of Hoopeston Regional Health Center (the

Center) {a not-for-profit organization) as of September 30, 2007. and the related statements of
operations, changes in net assets and cash flows for the vear then ended. These financial statements

are the responsibility of the Center’ s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on

. these financial statements based on our audit. The financial staiements of Hoopestor: Regional
Health Center as of September 30, 2006 were audited by other auditors whose report dated April 12

2007 expressed an qualified opinion on those statements based upon issues of going concern for the

Center.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of matertal misstatement. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence suppotting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statemments. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and signiftcant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

We believe that our audits provide a rcasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Hoopeston Regional Health Center as of September 30, 2007 and
the results of its operalions, changes in net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

As discussed in Note L, in 2006, the Center changed its method of accounting for conditional

-

asset retirement obligations.

a'{D L/ Attachment - 41




The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming the Center will
continue as a going concern. As discussed in Note K, the Center has suffered recurring losses from
operations and has an unrestricted net asset deficiency that raisc substantial doubt about its ability to
continue as a going concern. Management’s plans in regard to these matters are also described in
Note K. The financial statements do not include any adjustments that might result from the outcome

of this uncertainty.
‘i_;"oﬁ \ 50"\&6&» + ew-LlR | LLP

Springfield, Illinois
July 31, 2008
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Hoopeston Regtonal Heaith Center

BALANCE SHEETS

September 30

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Assets limited as to use - current
Patient accounts receivable, net of allowance,
2007 - $ 379,000, 2006 - $ 393,000
Supplies
Prepaid expenses and other

Total current assets
ASSETS WHOSE USE 1S LIMITED

Internally designated
Held by trustee

Less amount required to meet current obligations

BENEFICIAL INTEREST IN PERPETUAL TRUST

PROPLERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, at cost
Land and land improvements
Buildings and leasehold improvements
Equipment
Construction in progress

Less accumulated depreciation
OTHER ASSETS
Deferred financing costs

Total assets

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.

5
K00

007 2006
g - 115,428
358,077 351,533
1,671,950 2,082,318
140,827 153,561
152.114 134,495
2,322,968 2,837,335
169,928 133,167
1.903.482 2.313.939
2,073,410 2,447,106
358.077 351.533
1 715.333 2,095.573
2.126.351 2,017,057
238,905 419,158
5,904,911 5,805,049
3.271.282 3.361.580
2.334.683 1.684.300
11,749,783 11,270,087
4.924.799 4.691.438
6,824,984 6,578,649
94,887 99,201
$13.084.523 $13.627.815
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CURRENT LIABILITIES
Bank line of credit
Notes payable
Current maturities of long-term debt
Current maturities of capital lease obligations
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Estimated amounts due to third-party payers

Total cuirent liabilities
CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATIONS
ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATION

LONG-TERM DEBT

Total tiabilities

NET ASSETS
Unrestricted
Permanently restricted

Total net assets

Total Iiabilities and net assets

A0F

2007 2006
513,129 600,000

- 147,947
7,807,453 7,992,915
61,559 143,006
1,553,629 1,716,723
1.013,653 1,079,987
160.296 365,000
11.109.719 12,045,578
213,767 204,254
111,705 106,386
108.000

11435191 12,464,218
(477.019) (853,460)
2.126.351 2.017.057
1.649.332 1,163,597
$13.084.523 §13,627.815
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Hoopeston Regional Health Center

STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Year ended September 30

Unrestricted revenues, gains and other support
Nct patient service revenue
Other

Total revenues

Expenses
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Purchased services and professional fecs
Depreciation and amortization
Interest
Provision for uncollectible accounts
Supplies and other

Total expenses
Operating gain (loss)
Other income
Interest income

Contributions
Income from trust

Excess (deficiency) of revenues aver expenses before cumulative effect

of changes in accounting principal
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting principal

Increase (decrease) in unrestricted net assets

- 1§70
~ 33552
Y196,633

- 97 6T

..,g-}f.‘éé

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.

6

A0Y

2007 2006

$ 14,448 319 § 12,648,400

507,935 705,912

14,936,254 13,354,312

6,548,541 6,147,830
1,022,977 1.053.602
2,640,328  2.343.260
424 1474 456.000
444,475 427,880
743327 514207
2.924.604 _ 2.759.783

14.748.399 _ 13,702.562

>
207,855 {348,250)

82.699< 68852
- 13932
85887 84958

168.586 155.162
376,441 (193.088)
- (52.367)

376441 § (285455)
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Hoopeston Regional Health Center

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Year ended September 30, 2007 and 2006

2007 2006

UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS

Increase (decrease} in unrestricted net assets § 376,441 § (285.455)
PERMANENTLY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS

Increase (decrease) in permanently restricted net assets 109.294 (10.927)
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 485,735 (296,382)
NET ASSETS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 1.163.597 1.459.979
NET ASSETS AT END OF YEAR § 1649332 § 1.163,597

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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Hoopeston Regional Health Center

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Year ended September 30

Cash tlows frony operating activities
Change in net assets
ltems not requiring {providing) cash
Depreciation and amortization
Change in beneficial interest in trust
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle

Changes in certain assets and liabilities
Patient accounts receivable
Other current assets
Accounts payable and other liabilities
Estimated tlnrd-party settlements

Net cash tlows fron operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property. plant and equipment
Net withdrawals from assets whose use is limited
by board for capital improvements

Net cash flows from investing activities

Cash flows from finarcing activities
Principal payments on long-term debt
Principal payments on capital lease obligations
Proceeds from long-term debt
Change in line of credit

Net cash flows from financing activities
Net change in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Information:
Interest paid

Fixed assets acquired through capital lease

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.

82/0

2007 2006

¥ 376441 § (296,382)
424,127 456,000
(109,294) 10,927
- 92,367

410,368 {305,570)
(4,885) 15,341
(229,428) 662,914
(204.704) 263.000
662.625 900.597
(839,587) (911.761)
373.696 147.986
(465.891) (763,775)
(155,000) (147,053)
(70.291) (55,016)

- 106,240

(86.871) -
(312.162) (95.829)
(115,428) 40,993
115,428 74.435

$ - $ 115428
$§ 519942 $ 438 781
$ - % 351315
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Hoopeston Regional Health Center

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 3¢, 2007 and 2006

NOTE A - DESCRIPTION OF ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A summary of Hoopeston Regional Health Center (the Center) significant accounting policies
consistently applied in the preparation of the accompanying financial statements follows:

[. Qrpanization

The Center, located in Hoopeston, Illinois, is a not-for-profit organization which includes a not-
for-profit acute care hospital. The Center provides inpatient, outpatient, emergency care, Jong-
term care and independent living services for the community. Admitting physicians are primarily
practitioners in the local area.

2. Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include time deposits
and certificates of deposit, excluding amounts whose use is limited by board designation.

3. Imventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-
out methed.

4. Assets Whose Use is Limited

Resources held by trustees and set aside for board-designated purposes are considered to be
assets whosc use is limited,

5. Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost. Depreciation is provided over the useful life of
the depreciable assets and is computed on a straight-line basis. The cost of maintenance and
repatrs is charged to expense as incurred; significant renewals and betterments are capitalized.
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Hoopeston Regional Health Center

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2007 and 2006

NOTE A - DESCRIPTION OF ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

6. Other Assets

Deferred financing costs related to the revenue bonds are betng amortized over the life of the
bonds using the straight-line method.

7. Net Patient Service Revenue

Net patient service revenue s reported at the estimated net realizable amounts from patients,
third-party payors and others for services rendered. Estimated retroactive adjustments under
reimbursement agreements with third-paity payors are also included in net patient service
revenue. Such adjustments are accrued on an estimated basis in the period the related services
are rendered and adjusted in future periods as final settlements are determined.

8. Charity Care

The Center provides care to patients who meet certain criteria under its charity care policy
without charge or at amounts less than its established rates. The amount of charity care is
included in net patient service revenues and is not separatcly classified from the provision for

uncollectible accounts.

9. Donor Restricted Gifts

Unconditional promises to give cash and other assets to the Cenfer are reported at fair value at
the date the promise is received. Conditional promises to give and indications of intentions to
give are reported at fair value at the date the gift is rececived. The gifts are reported as either
temporarily or permanently restricted support if they are received with donor stipulations that
limit the use of the donated assets. When a donor restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated
time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished, temporartly restricted net assets are
reclassified as unrestricted net assets and reported in the statement of operations as net assets
released from restrictions. Donor-restricted contributions whose restrictions are met within the
same year as received are reported as unrestricted contributious in the accompanying financial

statements.

i0
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Hoopeston Regional Health Center
NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2007 and 2006

NOTE A - DESCRIPTION OF ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

10. Income Taxes

The Center is a not-for-profit organization under Section 501(c)(3} of the Internal Revenue Code
and 1s exempt from income taxes on related income under Section 501(a) of the Code.

In addition, the Center qualified for the charitable contribution deduction under Section
170(b)(1)(A) and have been classified as organizations other than private foundations under

Section 509(a)(2).

11. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results
could differ from those estimates.

12. Permanentlv Restricted Net Assets

Permanently restricted net assets are restricted by donors to be maintained by the Center in
perpetuity.

13. Reclassification

Certain reclassifications have been made to conform to 2007 presentation.
NOTE B - THIRD-PARTY REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENTS

The Center has agreements with various third-party payors that provide for payments at amounts
different from established rates. For certain payors, such as Medicare, Medicaid and Blue Cross,
for which retroactive adjustments are required, estimated settlements are accrued in the period
related to the service and adjusted in future periods when final settlements are determined.

Payment agreements have also been entered into with certain commercial insurance carriers,
health maintenance organizations and preferred provider organizations. The basis for payment
under these agreements include prospectively determined rates and discounts from esiablished

rates,
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Hoopeston Regional Health Center
NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2007 and 2006

NOTE C - ASSETS WHOSE USE IS LIMITED

The composition of assets whose use is limited at September 30 is shown below:

2007 2006
By board for capital improvements
Cash S 169,928 ¥ 133,167
Held by Trustce under indenture agreement
Cash and guaranteed investments 1,874,944 2287528
Interest receivable 28.538 26.411
1.903.482 2.313.939

$ 2.073.410 $ 2447106

NOTE D - PERMANENTLY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS

I~
o
o
o

. 2007
Beneficial interest in perpetual trust, the income is

unrestricted § 2126351 § 2017057

NOTEE - LINE OF CREDIT AGREEMENT

At September 30, 2007 and 2006, the Center had a line of credit of $ 750,000 and $ 600,000,
respectively, of which § 513,000 and § 600,000 was in use. The line of credit carries interest at a
rate of prime plus 2.00%. The line of credit is collateralized by inventory and accounts

receivable.
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Hoopeston Regional Health Center

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

. September 30, 2007 and 2006

NOTE FF- LONG TERM DEBT

Long-term debt at September 30 consists of the following:

2007 20006
Note payable, Lockhart Trust, payable maturing March |, h) - § 150,240
2033, duc in annual payments of $ 12,000, including
interest at 4%, secured by related property
Hospital Capital Improvement and Revenue Refunding
Bonds, Series 1999, 5.25 - 6.55%, bonds
payable, maturing seriatly through November 13, 2029,
with semi-annual interest payments due May | and
November 1, secured by a first mortgage and
security interest in the related facility. 7,807 453 8,125,000
Capital lease obligation 275.326 347.260
. Total long-term debt 8.082.779 8.622.300
Less current maturitics 238,569 297.033
Long-term debt - net of current maturitics $ 7.844210  § 8325467

Scheduled principal repayments on long-term debt for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2007
are as follows:

2008 § 177,000
2009 187,000
2010 192,000
2011 197,000
2012 212,000
Thereafter 6,842,453

7.453

Interest expense on long-term debt for the years ended Septembm 30, 2007 and 2006, totaled
$ 944,475 and $ 427,880, respectively.
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Hoopeston Repional Health Center
NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

. September 30, 2007 and 2006

NOTE F - LONG TERM DEBT - Contiinued

Scheduled repayments on capital lease obligations for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2007
are as follows:

2008 $ 84,036
2009 84,036
2010 84,036
2011 53.205

305,313
Less amounts representing interest 29.987

275326
Less current maturities 61.559

. $ 213767

NOTE G - GROUP INSURANCE TRUSTS

Hoopeston Regional Health Center is insuring its professional and general liability insurance
through its membership in the [llinois Provider Trust, a multi-hospital trust consisting of selected
members of the IHlinois Hospital & Health Systems Association. The Center is currently covered
on a “claims made” basts. Contributions to the Trust arc made based on expected losses. The
Center recognizes its contributions to the Trusts during the year in which it was paid as an
expense for the period.

NOTE H - PENSION PLAN

The Center maintains a tax deferred annuity retirement plan, qualified under IRS Code Section
403(b), covering all employees who meet certain requirements. The employee is eligible to defer
a portion of their wages up to the maximum percent allowable, not to exceed the limits
prescribed by law. The employer makes matching contributions at the rate of 25%, limited to

$500 per participant cach plan vear.

The total pension expense for September 30, 2007 and 2006 was $ 47,602 and § 18,652,
respectively.
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Hoopeston Regional Health Center
NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

. September 30, 2007 and 2006

NOTE |- CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

The Cenler grants credit without collateral to its patients, most of whom are local residents and
are insured under third-party payor agreements. The mix of receivables from patients and third-

party payors at September 30, was as follows:

2007 2006

Medicare 31% 27%
Medicaid 27 36
Other third-party payors 26 28
Self-pay 16 9

__100%  __100%

The Center maintains cash balances at several financtal institutions located in central Illinots.
Accounts ar each institution are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation up to
$ 100.000. At various limes during the year, the balance exceeded the amount insured.

NOTE J - FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

The Center provides general health care services primarily to residents within its geographic
scrvice area. xpenses related to providing these services are as follows:

2007 006
Program $12,438,374 § 11,326,043
General administrative 2,310,025 2,376,519

$ 14748399 §13.702.562

NOTE K - MANAGEMENT" § CONSIDERATION OF GOING CONCERN MATTERS

The Center has incurred operating losses for the past several years and has deficit unrestricted net
assets. The financial statements have been prepared assuming the Center will continue as a
going concern, realizing assets and liquidating liabilities in the ordinary course of business.
Management is considering several alternatives for mitigating these conditions during the next
year. These include hiring and retaining new or additional doctors and improving collection
procedures on outstanding patient receivables. Although not currently planned, realization of
assets in other than the ordinary course of business in order to meet liquidity needs could incur
losses not reflected in these financial statements.
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Hoopeston Regional Health Center

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2007 and 2006

NOTE L - ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATION

The Center adopted FASB Interpretation No. 47 (FIN 47), Accounting for Conditional Asset
Retirement Obligations, for its fiscal year ended September 30, 2006. FIN 47 requires that an
assef retirement obligation (AR Q) associated with the retirement of a tangible fong-lived asset be
recognized as a liability on the period in which it is incurred or becomes determinable (as defined
by the standard) even when the timing and/or method of settlement may be conditional on a
future event. The Center’ s conditional asset retirement obligations primarily refate to ashestos
contamned in buildings that the Center owns. Existing environmental regulations stipulate that
the Center handle and dispose of asbestos in a special manner if a building undergoes major

renovations or is demolished.

The difference between the amount of unrestricted net assets at September 30, 2006, and the
amount of unyestricted net assets that would have been reported at that date if the new accounting
method had been applied retroactively for all periods that would have been affected is a decrease
therein o' § 92.367, which 1s reflected as the cumularive effect of change in accounting principle
m 20006 increase (decrease) in unrestricted net assets. This change decreased unrestricted net
assets before cumulative effect of change in accounting principle and increase (decrease) in
unrestricted net assets for 2006 by § 5,411 and § 97.778, respectively.

A summary of changes in asset retirement obligations since the date of adoption is included in
the table below:

October 1. 2005, balance upon adoption of FIN 47 ¥ 101,520

Accretion expense 5.066
September 30, 2006 106,386
5.519

Accrelion expense

September 30, 2007 3 118705
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EcCK, SCHAFER & PUNKE, LLP
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

600 Eest Adams Strest
Epringtield, Mnols 62701
217-525-1111

Fax 2§7-525-1120
WAW.eSDCDA.COM

Independent Auditors’ Report

Board of Directors
Hoopeston Regional Health Center
Hoopeston, Illinois

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of Hoopeston Regional Health Center (the
Center) (a not-for-profit organization) as of September 30, 2008 and 2007, and the related statements
of operations, changes in net assets and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Center’s management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial staternents based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.
We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Hoopeston Regional Health Center as of September 30, 2008 and
2007 and the results of its operations, changes in net assets and its cash flows for the years then
ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Eek  Schapu ¢ Fomke LLP

Springfield, Illinois
April 19, 2009
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Hoopeston Regional Health Center

BALANCE SHEETS

September 30

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Assets limited as to use - current

Patient accounts receivable, net of allowance;
2008 - $ 1,549,000, 2007 - $ 517,000

Supplies

Prepaid expenses and other

Total current assets

ASSETS WHOSE USE IS LIMITED

Internally designated
Held by trustee

Less amount required to meet current obligations

BENEFICIAL INTEREST IN PERPETUAL TRUST

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, at cost

Land and land improvements
Buildings and leasehold improvements
Equipment

Construction in progress

Less accumulated depreciation

OTHER ASSETS

Deferred financing costs

Total assets

4
22

2008

3 149,124

1,841,551
140,827

50,674

2,182,176
152,216
_ 1772067

1,924,283

1,924,283
3,546,654
208,101

9,788,756
3,503,846

13,500,703
3,372,277

8,128,426

242,684

$ 16,024,223

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.

2007

$ 106,369
358,077

1,671,950
140,827

152,114

2,429,337

169,928

1,903.482

2,073,410
__ 35807

1,715,333
2,126,351

238,905
5,904,911

3,271,282
2,512,142

11,927,240
5,042,461

6,884,779
257,434

$ 13,413,234

Attachment - 41



200

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Cash overdraft $ 212,194
Bank line of credit 429,624
Accounts payable 1,071,589
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 1,308,300
Current maturities of long-term obligations 355,655

Estimated amounts due to third-party payers

175,475

$ 363,806
255,692
1,553,629
1,013,653
224,946

160,296

Total current liabilities 3,552,837 3,572,022
. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS, less current maturities 8,475,924 8,020,380
ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATION 117.290 111,705
Total liabilities 12,146,051 11,704,107
NET ASSETS |
Unrestricted 331,518 (417,224)
Permanently restricted 3,546,654 2.126351
Total net assets 3.878.172 1,709,127

Total liabilities and net assets § 16,024,223

$ 13,413,234

A23
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Hoopeston Regional Health Center

STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Year ended September 30

Unrestricted revenues, gains and other support
Net patient service revenue
Other

Total revenues
Expenses
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Purchased services and professional fees
Depreciation, amortization and accretion
Interest
Provision for uncollectible accounts
Supplies and other

Total expenses
Operating income
Other income

Interest income
Income from trust

Increase in unrestricted net assets

008

007

$ 16,879,315 $ 14,448,319
1,035,726 507,935
17,915,041 14,956,254
6,087,757 6,432,945
1,211,476 1,396,529
3,261,031 2,640,328
890,782 495,168
450,536 437,321
2,168,722 743,327
3,299.073 2,558.206
17.369.377 14,703,824
545,664 252,430
88,758 82,699
114,320 85,887
203,078 168.586

$ 748,742 $ 421,016

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.

5
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Hoopeston Regional Health Center

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Year ended September 30

UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS
Increase in unrestricted net assets

PERMANENTLY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS
Increase in permanently restricted net assets

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS
NET ASSETS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS AT END OF YEAR

2008 2007

$ 748742 § 421016
1,420,303 109,294
2,169,045 530,310
1,709,127 1,178,817
$3,878,172  §$ 1,709,127

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.

6
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Hoopeston Regional Health Center

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Year ended September 30
2008 2007
Cash flows from operating activities
Change in net assets $ 2,169,045 $ 530,310
Items not requiring (providing) cash
Depreciation, amortization and accretion 890,782 495,168
Changes in certain assets and liabilities
Patient accounts.receivable (169,601) 410,368
Other current assets 101,440 (4,885)
Beneficial interest in perpetual trust (1,420,303) (109,294)
Accounts payable and other liabilities (187,393) (229,428)
Estimated third-party settlements 15,179 (204,704)
Net cash flows from operating activities 1,399,149 887,535
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (1,309,655) (764,667)
Net withdrawals from assets whose use is limited
held by Trustee 131,415 410,457
Net withdrawals from (additions to) assets whose
use is limited by board for capital improvements 17,712 (36.761)
Net cash flows from investing activities (1,160,528) (390,971}
Cash flows from finaneing activities
Change in cash overdraft balance (151,612) 363,806
Principal payments on long-term obligations (218,186} (377,174)
Repayment of notes payable - (147,947)
Change in line of credit 173.932 (344,308)
Net cash flows from financing activities (195.866) (505.623)
Net change in cash and cash equivalents 42,755 (9,059)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 106,369 115.428
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 149,124 $ 106,369
Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Information:
Interest paid § 507,666 $ 529212
Long-term obligations incurred for capital assets $ 804,439 $ -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.

7
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Hoopeston Regional Health Center
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2008 and 2007

NOTE A - DESCRIPTION OF ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A summary of Hoopeston Regional Health Center (the Center) significant accounting policies
consistently applied in the preparation of the accompanying financial statements follows:

1. Organization

The Center, located in Hoopeston, Hlinois, is a not-for-profit organization which includes a not-
for-profit acute care hospital. The Center provides inpatient, outpatient, emergency care, long-
term care and independent living services for the community. Admitting physicians are primarily
practitioners in the local area.

2. (Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include time deposits
and certificates of deposit, excluding amounts whose use is limited by board designation.

3. Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-
out method.

4. Assets Whose Use is Limited

Resources held by trustees and set aside for board-designated purposes are considered to be
assets whose use is limited.

5. Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost. Depreciation is provided over the useful life of
the depreciable assets and is computed on & straight-line basis. The cost of maintenance and
repairs is charged to expense as incurred; significant renewals and betterments are capitalized.
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Hoopeston Regional Health Center
NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
September 30, 2008 and 2007
NOTE A - DESCRIPTION OF ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued
6. Other Assets

Deferred financing costs related to the revenue bonds are being amortized over the life of the
bonds using the straight-line method.

7. Net Patient Service Revenue

Net patient service revenue is reported at the estimated net realizable amounts from patients,
third-party payors and others for services rendered. Estimated retroactive adjustments under
reimbursement agreements with third-party payors are also included in net patient service
revenue. Such adjustments are accrued on an estimated basis in the period the related services
are rendered and adjusted in future periods as final settlements are determined.

8. Charty Care

The Center provides care to patients who meet certain criteria under its charity care policy
without charge or at amounts less than its established rates. The amount of charity care is
included in net patient service revenues and is not separately classified from the provision for
uncollectible accounts.

9. Donor Restricted Gifts

Unconditional promises to give cash and other assets to the Center are reported at fair value at
the date the promise is received. Conditional promises to give and indications of intentions to
give are reported at fair value at the date the gift is received. The gifts are reported as either
temporarily or permanently restricted support if they are received with donor stipulations that
limit the use of the donated assets. When a donor restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated
time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished, temporarily restricted net assets are
reclassified as unrestricted net assets and reported in the statement of operations as net assets
released from restrictions. Donor-restricted contributions whose restrictions are met within the
same year as received are reported as unrestricted contributions in the accompanying financial
statements.
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Hoopeston Regional Health Center

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2008 and 2007

NOTE A - DESCRIPTION OF ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued
10. Income Taxes

The Center is a not-for-profit organization under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code
and is exempt from income taxes on related income under Section 501(a) of the Code.

In addition, the Center qualified for thc charitable contribution deduction under Section
170(b)(1)(A} and have been classified as organizations other than private foundations under
Section 509(a)(2).

11. Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and

assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results
could differ from those estimates.

12. Permanent]y Restricted Net Assets

Permanently restricted net assets are restricted by donors to be maintained by the Center in
perpetuity.

13. Reclassification

Certain reclassifications of prior year amounts have been made to conform to 2008 presentation.

NOTE B - THIRD-PARTY REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENTS

The Center has agreements with various third-party payors that provide for payments at amounts
different from established rates. For certain payors, such as Medicare, Medicaid and Blue Cross,
for which retroactive adjustments are required, estimated settlements are accrued in the period
related to the service and adjusted in future periods when final settlements are determined.

Payment agreements have also been entered into with certain commercial insurance carriers,
health maintenance organizations and preferred provider organizations. The basis for payment
under these agreements include prospectively determined rates and discounts from established

rates.

10
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Hoopeston Regional Health Center
NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2008 and 2007

NOTE C - ASSETS WHOSE USE IS LIMITED

The composition of assets whose use is limited at September 30 is shown below:

2008 2007
By board for capital improvements
Cash $ 152216 $§ 169,928
Held by Trustee under indenture agreement
Cash and guaranteed investments 1,743,283 1,874,944
Interest receivable _ 28.784 28.538

1,772,067 1,903,482

$1.524,283  §2,073.410

NOTE D - PERMANENTLY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS

The Center has a beneficial interest in the Charlotte A. Russell Perpetual Trust. The principal
assets in the trust consist largely of farmland in east central Illinois. An appraisal made for the
year ended December 31, 2007, resuited in a significant increase in the value of the trust. Trust
principal is permanently restricted, but income distributions from the trust are unrestricted. The
Center’s beneficial interest in the trust totaled $ 3,546,654 and $ 2,126,351 at September 30,
2008 and 2007, respectively. '

NOTE E - LINE OF CREDIT AGREEMENT

At September 30, 2008 and 2007, the Center had a line of credit of $ 750,000, of which
$ 429,624 and $ 255,692, respectively, was in use. The line of credit carries interest at a rate of
prime plus 2.00% (7.25% at September 30, 2008). The line of credit is collateralized by
inventory and accounts recejvable.

11
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Hoopeston Regional Health Center

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2008 and 2007

NOTEF - LONG TERM OBLIGATIONS

Long-term obligations at September 30 consist of the following:

: 2008 2007
Hospital Capital Improvement and Revenue Refunding
Bonds, Series 1999, 5.25 - 6.55%, bonds
payable, maturing serially through November 15, 2029,
with semi-annual interest payments due May 1 and
November 1, secured by a first mortgage and
security interest in the related facility. $ 7,805,000 $ 7,970,000
Other notes payable and lease obligations 1,026,579 275,326
- Total long-term obligations 8,831,579 8,245,326
Less current maturities 355,655 224,946
Long-term obligations, less current maturities § 8475924 § 8,020,380

Covenants included in the bonds described above require delivery of audited financial statements
and a calculation of the debt service coverage ratio within 120 days of the fiscal year end. The
bank servicing the bonds does not have authority to grant waivers of such requirements;
however, the bank has informed management that no notice of default has been issued and that
the bonds are stil! outstanding for their stated maturities. Based on these facts, maturities of
bonds and other long-term obligations are based on their original stated maturities for the fiscal

year ending September 30, 2008, as follows:

2009 $ 355,655
2010 . 417,403
2011 451,925
2012 372,797
2013 ‘ 383,799
Thereafter 6,850,000

$ 8,831,579

Interest expense on long-term obligations for the years ended September 30, 2008 and 2007,
totaled § 507,666 and § 529,212, respectively. $ 57,130 and $ 91,891 were capitalized as partof
the construction project and $ 450,536 and $ 437,321 were expensed to operations, each year,

respectively.
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| Hoopeston Regional Health Center
. NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2008 and 2007

NOTE F - LONG TERM OBLIGATIONS - Continued

Scheduled repayments of capital lease obligations for the fiscal year ending September 30,2008
are as follows:

2009 § 175,956
2010 260,628
2011 . 245,895
2012 192,690
2013 176,592
1,051,761
Less amounts representing interest (139.871)
911,890
. Less current maturities (148.712)
763

NOTE G - GROUP INSURANCE TRUSTS

Hoopeston Regional Health Center is insuring its professional and general liability insurance
through its membership in the Iilinois Provider Trust, a multi-hospital trust consisting of selected
members of the Illinois Hospital & Health Systems Association. The Center is currently covered
on 2 “claims made” basis. Contributions to the Trust are made based on expected losses. The
Center recognizes its contributions to the Trusts during the year in which it was paid as an
expense for the period.

NOTE H - PENSION PLAN

The Center maintains a tax deferred annuity retirement plan, qualified under IRS Code Section
403(b), covering all employees who meet certain requirements. The employee is eligible to defer
a portion of their wages up to the maximum percent allowable, not to exceed the limits
prescribed by law. The employer makes matching contributions at the rate of 25%, limited to
$ 500 per participant each plan year.

The total pension expense for September 30, 2008 and 2007 was § 58,929 and § 47,602,

. respectively.
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Hoopeston Regional Health Center

. NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2008 and 2007

NOTE I - CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

The Center grants credit without collateral to its patients, most of whom are local residents and
are insured under third-party payor agreements. The mix of receivables from patients and third-
party payors at September 30, was as follows:

008 2007
Medicare 18% 31%
Medicaid 35 27
Other third-party payors 18 26
Self-pay 29 16

—100% —100%
The Center maintains cash balances at several financial institutions located in centra] [llinois.
Accounts at each institution are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation up to
$ 250,000. At various times during the year, the balance exceeded the amount insured.

NOTE J - FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

The Center provides general health care services primarily to residents within its geographic
service area. Expenses related to providing these services are as follows:

2008 007
Program $13,027,033 §11,027,868
General administrative 4,342,344 3,675,956

$17.360.377 $14.703,824

NOTE K - ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATION

The Center is accreting a conditional asset retirement obligation. This obligation primarily
relates to asbestos contained in buildings the Center owns. Existing environmental regulations
stipulate the Center handle and dispose of asbestos in a special manner if a building undergoes
major renovations or demolition. Accretion of this obligation for the years ended September 30,
2008 and 2007, totaled $ 5,319 and $ 5,585, respectively.
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Hoopeston Regional Health Center
NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2008 and 2007

NOTE L - PRIOR PERIOD RESTATEMENT

Restatements have been made of amounts reported in the prior years’ financial statements. Costs
were capitalized for building improvements previously expensed totaling $ 177,457, resulting in
a reduction of salaries and wages expense of § 115,596 for 2007 and an increase in unrestricted
net assets of § 61,861, at September 30, 2006. Additional depreciation and amortization totaling
$ 117,662 resulted in additional expenses totaling § 71,021 in 2007 and a decrease in unrestricted
net assets of § 46,641, at September 30, 2006.
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HOOPESTON REGIONAL HEALTH CENTER

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

September 30, 2009 and 2008
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ECK, SCHAFER & PUNKE, LLP
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

€00 East Adams Street
Springfiela. {linois 62701
217-525-1111

Fax 217-525-1120

WAYW.e5DCpR.COM
Independent Auditors’ Report
" Board of Directors
Hoopeston Regional Health Center

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of Hoopeston Regional Health Center (the
Center) (a not-for-profit organization) as of September 30, 2009 and 2008, and the related statements
of operations, changes in net assets and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Center’s management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial staternents are free of material misstatement. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.
We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all matenal
respects, the financial position of Hoopeston Regional Health Center as of September 30, 2009 and
2008 and the results of its operations, changes in net assets and its cash flows for the years then
ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of Amenica.

&LL&L\»&M b PuuL.cl(_,L\o

Springfield, Uiinois
December 10, 2009
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Hoopeston Regional Health Center

BALANCE SHEETS

September 30

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Patient accounts receivable, net of reserve for
bad debt of $ 1,720,000 and $ 1,488,000
in 2009 and 2008, respectively
Supplies
Prepaid expenses and other

Total current assets

ASSETS WHOSE USE IS LIMITED
Held by trustee

BENEFICIAL INTEREST IN PERPETUAL TRUST

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, at cost
Land and land improvements
Buildings and leasehold improvements
Equipment
Construction in progress

Less accumulated depreciation

OTHER ASSETS
Deferred financing costs

Total assets

200 2008
776,428 301,340
1,749,598 1,543,105
217,051 140,827
52,344 50.674
2,795,421 2,035,946
2,015,894 1,772,067
3,506,813 3,546,654
264,490 208,101
10,072,045 9,788,756
3,987,993 3,503,846
137,004 -
14,461,532 13,500,703
6,004,582 5,372,277
8,456,950 8,128,426
225251 242.684

$ 17,000,329

$ 15,725,777

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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2009 2008
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Cash overdraft - 212,194
Bank line of credit 395,040 429,624
Accounts payable 855,139 1,071,589
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 1,184,750 1,009,854
Current maturities of long-term obligations 428,937 355,655
Estimated amounts due to third-party payers 102,162 175,475
Total current liabilities 2,966,028 3,254,391
LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS, less current maturities 8,141,521 8,475,924
ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATION 123,155 1 17,290
Total Jiabilities 11,230,704 11,847,605
NET ASSETS
Unrestricted 2,262,812 331,518
Permanently restricted 3,506,813 3.546.654
Total net assets 5.769,625 3,878,172
Total liabilities and net assets $ 17,000,329 $ 15,725,777
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Hoopeston Regional Health Center

STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Year ended September 30

Unrestricted revenues, gains and other support
Net patient service revenue
Other

Total revenues
Expenses
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Purchased services and professional fees
Drugs and other supplies
Depreciation and amortization
Interest
Provision for uncollectible accounts
Other expenses

Total expenses
Operating income
Other income
Interest income

Contributions
Other non-operating income

Increase in unrestricted net assets

200

$ 19,894,228

2008

$ 17,271,984

693,527 584,344
20,587,755 17,856,328
7,114,823 6,109,366
1,464,391 1,184,151
3,184,598 3,220,008
1,899,002 1,677,367
721,287 890,782
532,172 457,908
1,787,563 2,168,722
2,229.212 1.661.073
18,933,048 17,369,377
1,654,707 486,951
105,834 88,758
25,914 114,320
144,839 58,713
276,587 261,791

§ 1,931,294 § 748,742

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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Hoopeston Regional Health Center

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Year ended September 30
2009 2008

UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS

Increase in unrestricted net assets $ 1,931,294 $ 748,742
PERMANENTLY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS

Change in valuation of

permanently restricted net assets (39.841) 1,420,303

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 1,891,453 2,169,045
NET ASSETS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 3.878.172 1,709,127
NET ASSETS AT END OF YEAR $ 5,769,625 $ 3,878,172

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.

6
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Hoopeston Regional Health Center

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Year ended September 30
009
Cash flows from operating activities
Change in net assets $ 1,891,453
Items not requiring (providing) cash
Depreciation and amortization 721,287
Changes in certain assets and liabilities
Patient accounts receivable (206,493)
Other current assets (77,894)
Beneficial interest in perpetual trust 39,841
Accounts payable and other liabilities (41,554)
Estimated third-party settlements (73.313)
Net cash flows from operating activities 2,253,327
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (902,503)
Net withdrawals from assets whose use is limited
held by Trustee (243,827)
Net withdrawals from assets whose use is limited
by board for capital improvements -
Net cash flows from investing activities (1,146,330)
Cash flows from financing activities
Change in cash overdraft balance _ (212,194)
Principal payments on long-term obligations (385,131)
Change in line of credit (34.584)
Net cash flows from financing activities (631,909)
Net change in cash and cash equivalents 475,088

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year
Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Information:

Interest paid

Long-term obligations incurred for capital assets

301,340

§ 776,428
§ 531,188
$ 124,010

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.

;
Af2-

008

$ 2,169,045

890,782

(169,601)
101,440
(1,420,303)
(187,393)

15,179

1,399,149

(1,309,655)
131,415

169,928
{1,008,312)

(151,612)
(218,186)

173,932

(195.866)
194,971

106,369
5301340

$ 507,666
$§ 804,439
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Hoopeston Regional Health Center

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2009 and 2008

NOTE A - DESCRIPTION OF ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A summary of Hoopeston Regional Heaith Center (the Center) significant accounting policies
consistently applied in the preparation of the accompanying financial statements follows:

1. Organization

The Center, whose main campus is located in Hoopeston, Illinois, is 2 not-for-profit corporation
operating an acute care (critical access) hospital, a long-term care facility and several outpatient
clinical facilities in the rural northeast central Ilinois market area. The Center provides
inpatient, outpatient, emergency care, long-term care and independent living services in this
market area. Admitting physicians are primarily practitioners in the local area.

2. Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statements of cash flows, the Center considers all time deposits and highly-
liquid debt instruments purchased with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash
and cash equivalents, with exception of assets whose use is limited, as described below.

3. Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-
out method.

4. Assets Whose Use is Limited

Resources held by trustees for bond debt service are not available to meet current obligations,
except as expressly stated; accordingly these amounts are reported separately under the caption
assets whose use is limited.

5. Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation is provided over the useful life of
the depreciable assets and is computed on a straight-line basis. The cost of maintenance and
repairs is charged to expense as incurred; significant renewals and betterments are capitalized.

Attachment - 41
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Hoopeston Regional Health Center
NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
September 30, 2009 and 2008
NOTE A - DESCRIPTION OF ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

6. Other Assets

Deferred financing costs related to the revenue bonds are being amortized over the life of the
bonds using the straight-line method.

7. Net Patient Service Revenue

Net patient service revenue is reported at the estimated net realizable amounts from patients,
third-party payors and others for services rendered. Estimated retroactive adjustments under
reimbursement agreements with third-party payors are also included in net patient service
revenue. Such adjustments are accrued on an estimated basis in the period the related services
are rendered and adjusted in future periods as final settlements are determined.

8. Charity Care

The Center provides care to patients who meet certain criteria under its charity care policy
without charge or at amounts less than its established rates. The amount of charity care is
included in net patient service revenues and is not separately classified from the provision for

uncollectible accounts.
9. Donor Restricted Gifis

Unconditional promises to give cash and other assets to the Center are reported at fair value at
the date the promise is received. Conditional promises to give and indications of intentions to
give are reported at fair value at the date the gift is received. The gifts are reported as either
temporarily or permanently restricted support if they are received with donor stipulations that
limit the use of the donated assets. When a donor restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated
time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished, temporarily restricted net assets are
reclassified as unrestricted net assets and reported in the statement of operations as net assets
released from restrictions. Donor-restricted contributions whose restrictions are met within the
same year as received are reported as unrestricted contributions in the accompanying financial

statements.
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Hoopeston Regional Health Center

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2009 and 2008

NOTE A - DESCRIPTION OF ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

10. Income Taxes

The Center is a not-for-profit organization under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code
and is exempt from income taxes on related income under Section 501(a) of the Code.

In addition, the Center qualified for the charitable contribution deduction under Section
170(b)(1)(A) and have been classified as organizations other than private foundations under

Section 509(a)(2).

11. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results

could differ from those estimates.

12. Permanently Restricted Net Assets

Permanently restricted net assets are restricted by donors to be maintained by the Center in
perpetuity.

13. Reclassification

Certain reclassifications of prior year amounts have been made to conform to 2009 presentation.

NOTE B - THIRD-PARTY REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENTS

The Center has agreements with various third-party payors that provide for payments at amounts
different from established rates. For certain payors, such as Medicare, Medicaid and Blue Cross,
for which retroactive adjustments are required, estimated settlements are accrued in the period
related to the service and adjusted in future periods when final settlements are determined.

Payment agreements have also been entered into with certain commercial insurance carriers,
health maintenance organizations and preferred provider organizations. The basis for payments
under these agreements includes prospectively determined rates and discounts from established

rates.

10
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Hoopeston Regional Health Center
. NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2009 and 2008

NOTE C - ASSETS WHOSE USE IS LIMITED

The composition of assets whose use is limited at September 30 is shown below:

2009 2008
Held by Trustee under indenture agreement
Cash and guaranteed investments $ 1,979,804 $ 1,743,283
Interest receivable 36,090 28.784

$2015.804  §1.772,007

NOTE D - FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The Center adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 157, Fair Value
Measurements (SEFAS No. 157), on October 1, 2008. SFAS No. 157 defines fair value,

. establishes a framework for measuring fair value and expands disclosures about fair value
measurements. SEAS No. 157 defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value should be based on assumptions that market participants would
use including a consideration of non-performance risk.

The Center assessed the inputs used to measure fair value using a three-tier hierarchy based on
the extent to which inputs used in measuring fair value are observable in the market. Level 1
inputs include quoted prices for identical instruments and is the most observable. Level 2 inputs
include quoted prices for similar assets and observable inputs such as interest rates, currency
exchange rates and yield curves. Level 3 inputs are not observable in the market and include
management's judgments about the assumptions market participants would use in pricing the

asset or liability.

The fair values of the Center’s investments were determined using inputs, as described above, at
September 30, 2009, as follows:

11

A4

Attachment - 41




Hoopeston Regional Health Center
NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2009 and 2008

NOTE D - FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS - Continued

Level 1
Cash and equivalents and publicly traded
securities held in perpetual trust in which

the Center has a financial interest $ 393,147
Cash and equivalents and publicly
traded securities held in trust
for retirement of bonds 2,015,894
| $_2,400041
Level 2
gﬁé
Level 3
Land and buildings held in perpetual
trust in which the Center has a
financial interest $ 3,113,666

NOTE E - PERMANENTLY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS

The Center has a beneficial interest in the Charlotte A. Russell Perpetual Trust. The principal
assets in the trust consist largely of farmland in northeast central Illinois. An appraisal made for
the year ended December 31, 2007, resulted in a significant increase in the value of the trust.
Trust principal is permanently restricted, but income distributions from the trust are unrestricted.
The Center’s beneficial interest in the trust totaled $ 3,506,813 and $ 3,546,654 at September 30,
2009 and 2008, respectively.

NOTE F - LINE OF CREDIT AGREEMENT

At September 30, 2009 and 2008, the Center had a line of credit of § 750,000, of which
$ 395,040 and $ 429,624, respectively, was in use. The line of credit has a variable interest rate,
6.5% at September 30, 2009, and is collateralized by inventory and accounts receivable.

12
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Hoopeston Regional Health Center

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2009 and 2008

NOTE G - LONG TERM OBLIGATIONS

- Long-term obligations at September 30 consist of the following:

Hospital Capital Improvement and Revenue Refunding
Bonds, Series 1999, 5.25 - 6.55%, bonds
payable, maturing serially through November 15, 2029,
with semi-annual interest payments due May 1 and
November 1, secured by a first mortgage and
security interest in the related facility.

Other notes payable and lease obligations
Total long-term obligations

Less current maturities

Long-term obligations, less current maturities

200

$ 7,630,000

[y
[
[em]
[+ =]

$ 7,805,000

940,458 1,026,579
8,570,458 8,831,579
428,937 355,655
$8141,521  $8475.924

Covenants included in the bonds described above require, among other things, delivery of
audited financial statements and a calculation of the debt service coverage ratio to the bank
within 120 days of the fiscal year end. Management asserts the Center is in compliance with all

such covenants.

Maturities of bonds and other long-term obligations, based on their original stated maturities for

the fiscal year ending September 30, 2009, are as follows: -

2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
Thereafter

$ 428,937
474,030
398,669
411,568
232,254

6.625,000

$ 8,570,458

Interest incurred on long-term obligations during the years ended September 30, 2009 and 2008,
totaled $ 529,648 and § 507,666, respectively. $ 57,130 was capitalized as part of a copstruction
project in 2008 and § 529,648, and $ 450,536, respectively, was expensed each year.

13
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Hoopeston Regional Health Center

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2009 and 2008

NOTE G - LONG TERM OBLIGATIONS - Continued

Scheduled repayments of capital lease obligations outstanding as of September 30, 2009 are as
follows:

2010 $ 303,432
2011 281,279
2012 222,042
2013 205,944
2014 7.338
1,020,035

Less amounts representing interest (135.360)
884,675

Less current maturities (245,718)
b 57

'NOTE H - GROUP INSURANCE TRUSTS

Hoopeston Regional Health Center is insuring its professional and general liability insurance
through its membership in the lilinois Provider Trust, amulti-hospital trust consisting of selected
members of the lllinois Hospital & Health Systems Association. The Center is currently covered
on a “claims made” basis. Contributions to the Trust are made based on expected losses. The
Center recognizes its contributions to the Trusts during the year in which it was paid as an

expense for the period.

NOTE I - PENSION PLAN

The Center maintains a tax deferred annuity retirement plan, qualified under IRS Code Section
403(b), covering all employees who meet certain requirements. The employee is eligible to defer
a portion of their wages up to the maximum percent allowable, not to exceed the limits
prescribed by law. The employer makes matching contributions at the rate of 25%, limited to

$ 500 per participant each plan year.
The total pension expense for September 30, 2009 and 2008 was § 53,806 and §$ 52,882,

respectively.
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Hoopeston Regional Health Center
. NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2009 and 2008

NOTE J - CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISKS

The Center grants credit without collateral to its patients, most of whomn are local residents and
are insured under third-party payor agreements. The mix of receivables from patients and third-
party payors was as follows at September 30:

2009 008
Medicare 23% 18%
Medicaid 25 35
Other third-party payors ' 20 18
Self-pay 32 29

—100%  _100%
The Center maintains cash balances at several financial institutions located in central Illinois.

Accounts at each institution are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation up to
$ 250,000. At various times during the year, the balance exceeded the amount insured.

. NOTE K - FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

The Center provides general health care services primarily to residents within its geographic
service area, Expenses related to providing these services are as follows:

009 2008
Program $11,203,933  $ 10,288,289
General and administrative 7.729.115 7,081,088

$18933.048 §17.362.377

NOTE L - ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATION

The Center is accreting a conditional asset retirement obligation. This obligation primarily
relates to asbestos contained in buildings the Center owns. Existing environmental regulations
stipulate the Center handle and dispose of asbestos in a special manner if a building undergoes
major renovations or demolition. Accretion of this obligation for the years ended September 30,
2009 and 2008, totaled $ 5,865 and $ 5,319, respectively.
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Hoopeston Regional Health Center

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2009 and 2008

NOTE M - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Center has purchased from and pays for repairs and maintenance of a motor vehicle with a
company in which a board member has a financial interest. Management represents that such
transactions are always made at arms-length and disclosure of such of related party transactions
is always made prior to their consummation in accordance with the Center’s conflict of interest

policy.
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EcK, SCHAFER & PUNKE, LLP
. CERTIFIED PLUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

600 Easi Adams Streel
Springfiend, Ilinols 82701
217-525-1111

Fax 217-525-1120

WL BSPEDA,COM

Independent Auditors' Report on Supplementary Information

To the Board of Directors
Hoopeston Regional Health Care Center

Our report on the basic financial statements of Hoopeston Regional Health Care Center as of
and for the years ended September 30, 2009 and 2008, appears on page 3. We conducted our audits
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America for the-

. " purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The .
supplementary information on pages 17 and 18 is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is
not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic consolidated financial statements and, in our
opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a

whole.

Eek ‘Sch&u b funke lu'f

Springfield, Illinois
December 10, 2009
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Hoopeston Regional Health Center

NET PATIENT SERVICE REVENUE

Inpatient

Swing bed
Outpatient
Emergency room
Walk-in clinics
Nursing home

Gross revenue
Contractual adjustments

Net patient service revenue

Year ended September 30

19
254

2009 008
5,050,642 4045314
2,342,795 1,569,888

20,520,760 15,696,642
6,443.953 4,557,863
2,262,133 1,346,734
4,433,965 4,121,516

41,054,248 31,337,957

(21,160,020)  _(14,065.973)
19,894,228 17,271,984
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H00peston Regional Health Center

Rent and lease

Utilities

Repairs and maintenance
Assessments, licenses and taxes
Insurance

Advertising

Travel and transportation
Education and training
Miscellaneous

Total other expenses

OTHER EXPENSES

Year ended September 30

20

255

2009 2008
562,433 471,467
398,510 375,560
242,395 74,062
286,773 114,471
369,708 301,838
131,138 72,511

61,080 64,086
27,814 19,826
149,36] 167,252
2,229,212 1,661,073
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August 16, 2010

Mr. Dale Galassie

Acting Chair

Illingis Health Facilities and Services Review Board
525 West Jefferson Street, 2™ Floor

Springfield, lllinois 62761

Re: Conditions of Debt Financing - Attachment 42

Dear Mr. Galassie:
Nursing Home.

By signing this letter, we attest to the above.

Sincerely,

@_iuduﬂ,L

Russell Leigh
Chairman of the Board

Subscribed and sworn to before me
this /8& day of&%ﬁL‘ 2010
M WW/

Notary L
MWEKL SEA-LF
i SHIRLEY WAGONER

NOTARY PUBLIC
} STATE OF ILLINOIS

iw COMMISSION EXPIRES 05-08-2011 §
b Sy

Hoopeston Community Memorial Hospital dba Hoopeston Regional Health Center intends to secure
debt financing to partially fund the project described in this specific Certificate of Need application
which proposes to establish a new nursing home to replace the Hoopeston Community Memorial

The proposed $5,710,145 mortgage used to finance the project will be the lowest net cost available
to Hoopeston Regional Health Center. Equipment for this project will be purchased and not leased.

Sincerley,

%ﬁﬁeyﬁm—

Harry F. Brockus
Administrator / CEO

Subscribed and sworn to before me
this /i day oféi Qi%dt , 2010

Sturtu Wasonwr/
(/70

Notary

~QOnFIEIAL
SHIRLEY WAGONER

NOTARY PUBLIC
STATE OF ILLINOIS

MY COMMISSION EXPIRES 05-08-2011

N

Charlette Ann Russell
Medical Center
801 East Orange

Hoopeston, JL 60942
Tel: 217 . 283 . 5644
Fax: 217,283 7432

‘ Heoopeston Community
Mcmorial Hospital
701 East Orange
Hoopeston, IL 60942
Tel: 217.283. 5531
Fax: 217 .283.4062

Country Terrace
Apartments
705 East Orange
Hoopeston, 1L 60942
Tel: 217 . 283, 9215
Fax: 217 .283.9215

Hoopeston Community
Memorial Nursing Home
701 East Grange
Hoopeston, IL 60942
Tcl: 217 . 283 . 8247
Fax: 217 . 283 . 6406

s
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REGIONAL HEALTH CENTER

August 16, 2010

Mr. Dale Galassie
Acting Chair

Illinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board

525 West Jefferson Street, 2™ Fioor
Springfield, Hlinois 62761

Re: Retention of Cash on Balance Sheet - Attachment 42

Dear Mr. Calassie:

Hoopeston Community Memorial Hospital dba Hoopeston Regional Health Center intends to secure
debt financing to partially fund the project described in this specific Certificate of Need application
which proposes to establish a new nursing home to replace the Hoopeston Community Memorial

Nursing Home.

A portion Hoopeston Regional Health Center’s cash must be retained on the balance sheet to prevent
its current ratio from falling below 1.50 in the first full year of operation of the new replacement
nursing home facility at target utilization, which is expected to be fiscal year 2012.

By signing this letter, we attest to the above.

Sincerely,

(2_ardefe

Russell Leigh
Chairman of the Board

Subscribed and sworn to before me
this [§# day of, 2010

SHIRLEY WAGONER
NOTARY PUBLIC
STATE OF ILLINGIS
MY COMMISS!ION EXPIRES 05-08-2011

Sincerely,

Harry F. Brockus
Administrator / CEQ

Subscribed and sworn to hefore me
this fa"day of 2010

SHIRLEY WAGONER

1 NOTARY PUBLIC
STATE OF ILLINOIS

$ MY COMMISSION EXPIRES 05-08-2011

Charlotte Ann Russell
Medical Center
801 East Orange

Heoopeston, 1L 60942
Tel: 217 . 283 . 5644
Fax: 217.283.7432

Hoopeston Community
Memorial Hospital
701 East Orange
Hoopeston, 11. 60942
Tel: 217 . 283 . 5531
Fax: 217 .283 4062

AS57

Hoopeston Community
Memorial Nursing Home
701 Easi Orange
Hoopeston, 1L 60942
Tel: 217 . 283 . 8247
Fax: 217 .283 . 6406

Country Terrace
Apartments
705 East Orange
Hoopeston, 1L 60942
Tel: 217 . 2839215
Fax: 217 .283 . 9215
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Reasonableness of Project and Related Costs

The proposed project is the discontinuation of the existing Hoopeston Community
Memorial Nursing Home facility and the establishment of a replacement facility.

The clinical departments or areas impacted by the proposed project and a cost and square
footage allocation are identified in the Cost and Gross Square Feet by Department or
Service table below.

Cost and Gross Square Feet by Department or Service

A | 8 c D E | F G H
Cost / Square

Foot Gross Sq Ft Gross SqFt | Const$ Mod $ | Total Cost
Department New Mod | New Circ* | Mod | Circ* (AxC) (B xE) (G + H)
General ~22.7%
Long-Term 37,047 | (8,419
Care ~$161.17 | N/A | BGSF | BGSF) | N/JA | N/A | $5,970,850 | N/A | $5,970,850
Contingency | ~7.36% N/A $439,2495 $439,295
TOTALS ~$173.03 $6,410,145

*Include the percentage (%) of space for circulation
~Mean unit rounded to two decimal places

The following is documentation that the estimated project costs are reasonable and in
compliance with the state standards, as defined in Section 1120.140 (c) of the
Administrative Code.

1. There are no pre-planning costs associated with the proposed project, therefore
this item is not applicable.

2. Total costs for site survey, soil investigation fees and site preparation total 0.1%

of project funds. The proposed project is therefore compliant with the state

standard of 5%.

3. New construction costs are $132.78 per square foot. This is below the R.S.

Means adjusted third quartile cost of $170.47 per square foot identified in the
state standard. There are no modernization costs associated with the project. The
proposed project is therefore compliant with the state standard.

4. Contingencies exceed the state standard of 3-5% for a project in the final drawing
stage of architectural development. The proposed project is therefore not
compliant with the state standard.

Section 01 21 16.50 Contingencies of R.S. Means Building Construction Cost
Data is cited as a reference in determining contingency guidelines. Means
provides various adjustment factors for estimators to consider and suggests adding

Page 1 of 2
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Reasonableness of Project and Related Costs

a contingency that is “...usually 3% to 5%”. Unpredictable factors exist beyond
this convention, and in recognition, Means adds that an estimator “...will have to
apply a measure of judgment to your estimate™.

The Building Construction Cost Data is one volume in the R.S. Means series of
cost estimating guides. A companion source, R.S. Means Facilities Construction
Cost Data, provides information identical to the Building Construction Cost Data
guide except in greater detail. Provisions in Section 01 21 16.50 of the Facilities
Cost Data however state a contingency of 8% at Final Drawing Stage.

Review Standards also identify the Capital Development Board as a source of fee
and cost calculating references; the agency’s Project Cost estimating form
requires a construction contingency of 10%.

Based on these established references, the applicant believes that the construction
contingency is reasonable and provides a financially responsible margin of safety.

. Architectural/engineering fees are 5.6%, which is below the state standard for a
project of this cost range. The proposed project is therefore compliant with the
state standard.

. The state standard for Capital Equipment Not Included in Construction Contracts
is $6,491 per bed for Long Term Care projects. The Hoopeston Community
Memorial Nursing Home has 75 long term care beds. No beds are being added or
removed from the nursing home. The project cost is $6,058 per bed, which meets
the state standard. The proposed project is therefore compliant with the state
standard.

. The proposed project does not include building acquisition expense, net interest
expense, fair market value of leased space or equipment. Therefore this item is
not applicable.

Cost Complexity Index is to be applied to hospitals only, and is therefore not
applicable to the proposed project.
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Review Criteria Relating to Economic Feasibility

The table below provides information regarding costs as they relate to patient days.

Line 4 of the table addresses Criterion 1120.140(d), Projected Operating Costs.

Line 5 of the table, addresses Criterion 1120.140(e), Total Effect of the Project on Capital Costs.

1 | Equivalent Patient Days 27,165
2 | Total Capital Cost 526,674.00
3 | Total Operating Cost 2,540,971.00
4 | Capital Cost per Equivalent Patient Day $19.39
5 | Operating Cost per Equivalent Patient Day $93.54
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Safety Net Impact Statement

The Hoopeston Community Memorial Nursing Home is located at 701 East Orange Street in
Hoopeston, llinois. The proposed project is the discontinuation of the existing facility and the
establishment of a replacement facility at a location approximately two miles from the existing
facility. No services are being discontinued or added. The nursing home will continue to
operate in the existing facility until the replacement facility is ready for occupancy. The
relocation of existing services to the replacement facility is not expected to have any adverse
impact on safety net services in the community or on the ability of any other health care provider

to deliver services.

This Safety Net Impact Statement addresses the following requirements:

1.

The project's material impact, if any, on essential safety net services in the
community, to the extent that it is feasible for an applicant to have such knowledge.

Hoopeston Community Memorial Nursing Home is the only provider of these services
within the community. The nearest facility providing similar services is 25 miles away.
The nursing home is somewhat unique in that atl 75 long term care beds are licensed for
both Medicare and Medicaid, making it able to serve the indigent population in
Vermilion County. According to the US Census Bureau, in 2009, the percentage of adult
population over age 65 in the counties that Hoopeston Community Memorial Nursing
Serves is as follows:

Vermilion 16.7%
Ford 17.4%
Iroquois 18.9%
Champaign 10.1%
Benton, IN  12.9%

The project’s impact on the ability of another provider or health care system to
cross-subsidize safety net services, if reasonably known to the applicant.

The proposed discontinuation of the existing facility and establishment of a replacement
facility will not adversely impact the ability of other providers or health care systems to
serve patients seeking safety net services. No services are being discontinued or added.
There is no impact, to the best of the knowledge of the applicants.

How the discontinuation of a facility or service might impact the remaining safety
net providers in a given community, if reasonably known by the applicant.

The proposed discontinuation of the existing facility and establishment of a replacement
facility will not impact the safety net providers in the community. No services are being
discontinued or added. There is no impact, to the best of the knowledge of the applicants.

The following table indicates that discontinuation of the existing facility without
replacement would leave a severe gap in care in the community.

Ale)
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Safety Net Impact Statement

Table 3: Residents as of Feb 2006 - Jul 2010
Zip Number % of Primary | Secondary
Code of of Patient Service Service
Origin | Patients | Population Area Area Other
60942 136 85.0% 136
60963 9 5.6% 9
60924 5 3.1% 5
60973 | 0.6%
61832 3 1.9% 3
61865 1 0.6% ]
60953 2 1.3% 2
61873 1 0.6% 1
35630 1 0.6% 1
61811 1 0.6% 1
Total 160 100% 153 2 5
% of
Total 96% 1% - 3%

Safety Net Impact Statements shall also include:

1.

2.

3.

For the three fiscal years prior to the application, the applicant must also
provide certification describing the amount of charity care provided by the
applicant;

For the three fiscal years prior to the application, a certification of the
amount of charity care provided to Medicaid patients;

Any information the applicant believes is directly relevant to safety net
services,

The following table, Safety Net Information per PA 96-0031, lists the amount of charity
care provided by the applicant, including charity care provided to Medicaid patients.

Page 2 of 3

o

Safety Net Information per PA 96-0031
CHARITY CARE
Charity (# of patients) Year 2009 | Year 2008 | Year 2007
Inpatient 44 22 15
Qutpatient 536 170 173
Total 580 192 188
Charity (cost In dollars)
Inpatient 185,182 100,640 50,764
Qutpatient 620,332 217,676 181,955
Total 805,514 318, 316 232,719
7? bl Attachment-43
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Safety Net Impact Statement

Safety Net Information per PA 96-0031
MEDICAID
Medicaid (# of patients) Year 2009 | Year 2008 | Year 2007
Inpatient 46 77 44
Qutpatient 3,851 3,678 3,750
Total 3,897 3,755 3,794
Medicaid (revenue)
Inpatient | 3,106,607 | 2,202,132 | 2,020,708
Qutpatient | 5,385,906 | 4,573,659 | 3,269,103
Total 8,492513 | 6,775,791 | 5,289,811
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Charity Care Information

. The proposed project is for the discontinuation of the existing Hoopeston Community
Memorial Nursing Home and the establishment of a replacement facility.

Payor Mix

The payor mix of the replacement facility is expected to be the same as the payor mix of
the existing facility. Table 1 below represents the payor mix as submitted in the Long
Term Care Questionnaire for 2009 for the nursing home.

Table 1: 2009 Payor Mix by Number of Residents

Primary Payment Source Nursing Care Sheltered Total %

Medicare 1 N/A 1 1.4%
Medicaid 43 N/A 43 58.1%
Other Public 0 0 0 0.0%
Private Insurance 0 1.4%
Private Pay 29 0 29 39 2%
Charity Care 0 0 0 0.0%
Total Restdents 74 0 74 100%

. Consolidated Charity Care

The applicant owns or operates more than one facility, and reports charity care on a
consolidated basis. The consolidated charity care report is comprised of Hoopeston
Community Memorial Hospital and Hoopeston Community Memorial Nursing Home.

The applicant anticipates that the charity care expense and the ratio of charity care to net
patient revenue in the replacement facility will be similar to that of the existing facility.

The consolidated amount of charity care for the latest three audited fiscal years is
provided in Table 2, Consolidated Charity Care, below.

Table 2: Consolidated Charity Care
2009 2008 2007

1 | Net Patient Revenue 19,894,228 | 17,271,984 | 14,448,319
2 | Amount of Charity Care (charges) 2,526,706 637,272 465,438
3 | Cost of Charity Care 805,514 318,616 232,719

Ratio of Charity Care to Net Patient
4 | Revenue 13% 4% 3%

Ratio of the cost of Charity Care to Net
5 | Patient Revenue 4% 2% 2%

Page 1 of 2 R6S Attachment-44




Charity Care Information

Allocated Charity Care

The allocated amount of charity care for Hoopeston Community Memorial Hospital, for
the latest three audited fiscal years, is provided in Table 3, Hospital Charity Care, below.

Table 3: Hospital Charity Care

2009 2008 2007
I | Net Patient Revenue 17,588,566 | 15,128,796 | 12,361,163
2 | Amount of Charity Care (charges) 2,526,341 631,204 463,713
3 | Cost of Charity Care 805,149 312,548 230,994
Ratio of Charity Care to Net Patient
4 | Revenue 14.4% 4.2% 3.8%
Ratio of the cost of Charity Care to Net
5 | Patient Revenue 4.6% 2.1% 1.9%

The allocated amount of charity care for Hoopeston Community Memorial Nursing
Home, for the latest three audited fiscal years, is provided in Table 4, Nursing Home

Charity Care, below.
Table 3: Nursing Home Charity Care
2009 2008 2007
1 | Net Patient Revenue 2,305,662 | 2,143,188 | 2,087,156
2 | Amount of Charity Care (charges) 365 6,068 1,725
3 | Cost of Charity Care 365 6,068 1,725
Ratio of Charity Care to Net Patient
4 | Revenue 0.02% 0.28% 0.08%
Ratio of the cost of Charity Care to Net
5 | Patient Revenue 0.02% 0.28% 0.08%

Page 2 of 2
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OOPESTON

REGIONAL HEALTH CENTER

July 28, 2010

Facility Administrator
ASTA Care of Paxton
1240 N. Market Street
Paxton, 1L 60957

Dear Provider:

Around March 31, 2012 Hoopeston Community Memorial Nursing Home intends to relocate from its
present location at 701 E. Orange St. Hoopeston, 1L 60942 to a new location at Route 1 North (Across
from Anthem Chevrolet). Hoopeston Community Memorial Nursing Home will continue to provide
all of the same services available at the current location after the move to the new location. We do not
anticipate that there will be any disruption in service or any changes in the referral patterns for this
service in the community. In the Jast twenty-four months, Hoopeston Community Memorial Nursing
Home has treated approximately 75 patients as part of its Long Term Care program. While we do not
anticipate any need for additional capacity based on the relocation of the Hoopeston Community
Memorial Nursing Home to the new location, please advise whether you anticipate that your facility
will have available capacity to accommodate a portion or all of Hoopeston Community Memorial
Nursing Home caseload and whether any restrictions or limitations preclude your facility from
providing service to residents of the community.

Please respond to this request for information within 15 days of your receipt of this letter. If we do not

receive a response from you within 15 days, it will be assumed that you agree that the relocation of the
Hoopeston Community Memorial Nursing Home will not have an adverse impact on your facility.

Sincerely,
Harry Brockus

CEO
Hoopeston Regional Health Center

Hoopeston Community Charlotte Ann Russell Hoopestan Community Country Terrace
Memorial Hospital Medical Center Memorial Nursing Home Apartments
701 East Orange 801 East Orange 701 Fast Orange 705 East Orange
Hoopesion, IL 60942 Hoopeston, IL 60942 Hoopeston, I1. 60942 Haopeston, L 60942
Tel: 217 . 283 . 5531 Tel: 217 . 283 . 5644 Tel: 217 . 283 . 8247 Tel: 217 . 283 . 9215
Fax: 217 . 283 . 4062 Fax: 217 .283.7432 Fax: 217.283.6406 Fax: 217 .283 . 9215
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Notes

nrQuesT

Trip to 1240 N Market St

Paxton, IL 60957-4158
24.10 miles - about 32 minutes

« 701 E Orange St, Hoopeston, IL 60942-1801

1. Start out going WEST on IL-9 toward S 5TH ST. o ggg e
2. Turn RIGHT onto N RAILROAD AVE / US<45. Continue go 1.0 mi
@«' to follow US-45. fotal 23.9 mi
/\> go 0.0 mi
Q} 3, Turn LEFT onto E 500N RD. total 23.9 mi
s, go 0.2 mi
K_, 4. Turn LEFT onto N MARKET ST. tote) 4.1 mi
m 5.1240 N MARKET ST is on the LEFT. totaﬂ%g? m:

X 1240 N Market St, Paxton, IL 60957-4158
Total Travel Estimate : 24.10 miles - about 32 minutes
All rights reserved. Use subject ta License/Copyright | Map.Legend

Directions and maps are informaticnal only. Ve make no warranties on the accuracy of their content, road conditions ar route usability or
expeditiousness. You assume all risk of use. MapQuest and its suppliers shali not be liable to you for any loss or delay resuiting from
your use of MapQuest. Your use of MapQuest means you agree to our Terms of Use,

69 A2 - 8/2/2010
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Frome (217) 283-8246

rage 1 o1 1

Ship Date: 27JUL10
Shally Snyder Fedz::. ActWet 1018
Groarsd CAD: 101361981/NET 3060
701 East Orange Street
Invoice #
Hoopestan, LL 60942 Refarenca #
PO#
HERHEESIOE Dwﬂn %
SHPTO: (217) 283-8248 | Ship ID

Attn: Administrator
ASTA Care of Paxton

1240 N MARKET ST
PAXTON, IL 60957

—_ :

GND

3rd PARTY

417

il

(9612417) 8712053 15000199

#_____
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Har:x Brockus

From: TrackingUpdates@fedex.com
ent: Wednesday, July 28, 2010 1:56 PM
o: harry.brockus@hoopestoncmh.org
Subject: FedEx Shipment 971205315000198 Delivered

This tracking update has been requested by:

Company NWName: Shelly Snyder
Shelly Snyder

herry. brockus@hoopestoncmh. org

Name:
E-mail:

Qur records indicate that the following shipment has been delivered:

Ship (P/U) date:
Delivery date:
Sign for by:
Delivery location:
Service type:
Packaging type:
Number of pieces:

2010
2010 12:49 PM

Jul 27,
Jul 28,
ETITTLE
CHAMPAIGN, IL
FedEx Ground

Package

1

1.00 1b.

Weight:
.Iracking number: 97120531500018%

Shipper Information
Shelly Snyder

Shelly Snyder

701 East Orange Street

Recipient Information
Attn: Administrator
ASTA Care of Paxton
1240 N MARKET 5T

Hoopeston PAXTON
IL IL
us Us
60942 60957

Please do not respond to this message. This email was sent from an unattended
mailbox. This report was generated at approximately 1:54 PM CDT

on 07/28/2010.

To learn more about FedEx Ground, please visit our website at Ledax.com.

All weights are estimated.

To track the latest status of your shipment, click on the tracking number above,

This tracking uEEEEE’HEs been sent to you by FedEx on the behalf of the
Requestor noted above. FedEx does not validate the authenticity of the
requestor and does not validate, guarantee or warrant the authenticity of the
request, the requestor's message, or the accuracy of this tracking update. For
tracking results and fedex.com's terms of use, go to fedex.com.

‘hank you for your business.




OOPESTON

REGIONAL HEALTH CENTER

July 28, 2010

Facility Administrator

Country Health Nursing Center
2304 CR 3000 N Country Road
Gifford, IL 61847

Dear Provider:;

Around March 31, 2012 Hoopeston Community Memorial Nursing Home intends to relocate from its
present location at 701 E. Orange St. Hoopeston, 11 60942 to a new location at Route 1 North (Across
from Anthem Chevrolet). Hoopeston Community Memorial Nursing Home will continue to provide
all of the same services available at the current location after the move to the new location. We do not
anticipate that there will be any disruption in service or any changes in the referral patterns for this
service in the community. In the last twenty-four months, Hoopeston Community Memorial Nursing
Home has treated approximately 75 patients as part of its Long Term Care program. While we do not
anticipate any need for additional capacity based on the relocation of the Hoopeston Community
Memorial Nursing Home to the new location, please advise whether you anticipate that your facility
will have available capacity to accommodate a portion or all of Hoopeston Community Memorial
Nursing Home caseload and whether any restrictions or limitations preclude your facility from
providing service to residents of the community.

Please respond to this request for information within 15 days of your receipt of this letter. If we do not
receive a response from you within 15 days, it will be assumed that you agree that the relocation of the

Hoopeston Community Memorial Nursing Home will not have an adverse impact on your facility.

Sincerely,

@@wfm

Harry Brockus

CEO _
Hoopeston Regional Health Center

Hoopeston Community Charlotte Ann Russell Hoopeston Community Country Terrace
Memorial Hospital Medicat Center Memorial Nursing Home Apartments
701 East Orange 801 East Crange 701 East Crange 705 East Orange
Hoopesion, IL 60942 Hoopesion, IL 60942 Hoopeston, IL 60942 Hoopeston, 1L 60942
Tel: 217 . 283 . 5531 Tel: 217 . 283 . 5644 Tel: 217 . 283 . 8247 Tel: 217 . 283 . 9215
Fax: 217 .283.4062 Fax: 217.283, 7432 Fax: 217 .283 . 6406 Fax: 217,283 .9215
272
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MaPQUEST.

Trip to Country Health Nursing Home

2304 County Road 3000 N, Gifford,
L 61847 - (217) 568-7362
29.12 miles - about 35 minutes

Notes

« 701 E Orange St, Hoopeston, IL 60942-1801

taer 1. Start out going WEST on IL-8 toward S 5TH ST. go 12.4 mi
o &G o o oo
@ @ a.s“l:;usnislGHT onto 3100 N / US-136. Continue to follow 40 6.8 mi
m 4. 2304 COUNTY ROAD 3000 N is on the RIGHT. : go 0.0 mi

2304 County Road 3000 N, Gifford, IL 61847

Total Travel Estimate : 29.12 miles - about 35 minutes

Direclions and maps are informational anly. We make no warranties on the accuracy of their content, road conditions or route usability or
expeditiousness. You assume all risk of use. MapQuest and its suppliers shall not be lfable to you for any loss or delay resulting from
your use of MapQuest. Your use of MapQuest means you agree to our Terms_of Use

A?3
/
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From:  {217) 283-8246
Shelly Snyder

701 East Orange Strest

Hoopeston, IL 60942

Ship Date: 2TJUL10
ActWgt 1.0LB
CAD: 10136199 1ANET3060

vage 1 Of !

Invoice #
Reference #
PO#

Dept #

SHPTO:  (247) 283-8248
Attn, Administrator
Country Health Nursing Center

2304 COUNTY ROAD 3000 N
NORTH

GIFFORD, IL 61847

Stip 1D

ﬁ_.

GND

3rd PARTY

|

(9612417) 9712053 15000250
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Har:! Brockus

From: TrackingUpdates@fedex.com
ent: Wednesday, July 28, 2010 8:09 AM
o: harry.brockus@hoopestoncmh.org
Subject: FedEx Shipment 971205315000250 Delivered

This tracking update has been requested by:

Company Name: Shelly Snyder
Name: Shelly Snyder

E-mail: harry. brockus@hoopestonomh . org

our records indicate that the following shipment has been delivered:

Ship (P/U} date: Jul 27, 2010

Delivery date: Jul 28, 2010 B:06 AM
Sign for by: BSCHLUTER

Delivery location: CHAMPAIGN, IL
Service Lype: FedEx Ground
Packaging type: Package

Number of pieces: 1

‘ieight: 1.00 1lb.
Tracking number: 571205315000250

Recipient Information

Attn. Administrator

Country Health Mursing Center
2304 COUNTY ROAD 3000 N

Shipper Information
Shelly Snyder

Shelly Snyder

701 East Orange Street

NORTH
Hoopeston

GIFFORD
IL

IL
us

us
60942

61847

Please do not respond to this message. This email was sent from an unattended
mailbox. This report was generated at approximately 8:0% AM CDT

on 07/28/2010.

To learn more about FedEx Ground, please visit our website at fedex.com.

Al]l weights are estimated.

To track the latest status of your shipment, click on the tracking number above,
or visit us at Fadox.com.

This tracking update has been sent to you by FedEx on the behalf of the
Requestor noted above. FedEx does not validate the authenticity of the
requestor and does not validate, guarantee or warrant the authenticity of the
request, the reguestor’'s message, or the accuracy of this tracking update. For
tracking results and fedex.com's terms of use, go to Izd=zx.com.

.‘hank you for your business.

295
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OOPESTON

REGIONAL HEALTH CENTER

July 28, 2010

Facility Administrator
Danville Care Center
1701 N. Bowman Road
Danville, IL 61832

Dear Provider:

Around March 31, 2012 Hoopeston Community Memorial Nursing Home intends to relocate from its
present location at 701 E. Orange St. Hoopeston, 1L 60942 to a new location at Route 1 North (Across
from Anthem Chevrolet). Hoopeston Community Memorial Nursing Home will continue to provide
all of the same services available at the current location after the move to the new location. We do not
anticipate that there will be any disruption in service or any changes in the referral pattemns for this
service in the community. In the last twenty-four months, Hoopeston Community Memorial Nursing
Home has treated approximately 75 patients as part of its Long Term Care program. While we do not
anticipate any need for additional capacity based on the relocation of the Hoopeston Community
Memorial Nursing Home to the new location, please advise whether you anticipate that your facility
will have available capacity to accommodate a portion or all of Hoopeston Community Memorial
Nursing Home caseload and whether any restrictions or limitations preclude your facility from
providing service to residents of the community.

Please respond to this request for information within 15 days of your receipt of this letter. If we do not
receive a response from you within 15 days, it will be assumed that you agree that the relocation of the
Hoopeston Community Memorial Nursing I[Home will not have an adverse impact on your facility.
Sincerely,

Harry Brockus

CEO
Hoopeston Regional Health Center

Hoopeston Commaunity Charlotte Ann Russell Hoopeston Community Country Terrace
Memorial Hospital Medical Center Memorial Nursing Home Apartments
701 East Orange 801 East Orange 701 East Orange 705 Fast Orange
Hoopeston, 1L 60942 Hoopeston, IL 60942 Hoopeston, 1L 60942 Hoopeston, 1L 60942
Tel: 217 . 283 . 5531 Tel; 217 . 283, 5644 Tel: 217 . 283 . 8247 Tel: 217 . 283 . 9215
Fax: 217 .283 4062 Fax: 217 .283 .7432 Fax: 217 .283 . 6406 Fax: 217 .283 .9215
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Notes

MAPQUEST. —

Trip to Pine Village, IN
23.45 miles - about 29 minutes

ﬂ Hoopeston, IL

1. Start out going SOUTH on CR-24 toward £ PENNST. go 0:6 mi

2. Turn LEFT onto IL-8 {Crossing into INDIANA). g0 7.4 mi

@ 3. IL-9 becomes IN-26 / W COUNTY ROAD 1000 N. go 7.8 mi
@ 3 4 TumRIGHT onto US41S/IN-26 E. 9006 mi
5. Turn LEFT onto IN-26 / W COUNTY ROAD 50 N. 6.8 mi

- Continue to follow IN-26. 9o%®.

@ 6. Turn RIGHT onto IN-26 / IN-56. 4o 0.2 mi

@ 7. Turn RIGHT onto E LAFAYETTE ST. go 0.0mi
8. Welcome o PINE VILLAGE, IN. . go 0.0 mi

X Pine Village, IN 47995

Total Travel Estimate : 23.45 miles - about 29 minutes

All rights reserved. Use subject g LicensefCopyright | Map Legend

Direclions and maps are informational only. We make no warranties on {he aceuracy of their content, road-condifions or route usability or
expeditiousness. You assume all risk of use. MapQuest and its suppliers shall not be liable to you for any ioss or delay resulting from
your use of MapQuest. Your use of MapQuest means you agree to our Teans of Use

A7
Y
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QAaPQUEST,

Trip to Danville Care Center

1701 N Bowman Avenue Rd, Danville,
IL 81832 - {(217) 443-2955
25.93 miles - about 32 minutes

Notes

« 701 £ Orange St, Hoopeston, IL 60942-1801

w 1. Start out going EAST on IL-9 toward N 1550 RD E. go 3.6 mi
P i 2. Turn RIGHT onto 1900 E / CR-3. g0 6.1 mi
(7 3. Turn RIGHT onto E ATTICA RD / CR-14. go 0.5 mi
<41\ 4. Turn LEFT onto 1850 E / CR-3. go 3.0 mi
@ 5. Turn RIGHT onto 3200 N / CR-3. go 0.5 mi
o ' :
Q\’_; 6. Turn LEFT onto 1800 E / CR-3. Continue to follow CR-3. go 2.2 mi
B .
q/ 7. Stay STRAIGHT to go onto IL-119. go 0.8 mi
@& 8. Stay STRAIGHT to go onto 1800 N. go 1.3 mi
. @} 9. 1800 N becomes BOWMAN AVE. go 1.2 mi
A 400~

http://www.mapquest.com/print ' 8/2/2010




’7 Page 2 of 2

. @_,‘_} 10. BOWMAN AVE becomes 1800 E. go 6.1 mi
Q) 11. 1800 E becomes N BOWMAN AVE. g0 0.5 mi
[eno | 12. 1701 N BOWMAN AVENUE RD is on the LEFT. g0 0.0 mi

Danville Care Center - (217) 443-2955
1701 N Bowman Avenue Rd, Danville, IL 61832

Total Travel Estimate : 25.93 miles - about 32 minutes

All rights reserved. Use subject to License/Copyright |Map Legend

Directions and maps are informational only. We make no wamanties on the accuracy of their content. road conditions or roule usability or
expeditiousness. You assume all risk of use. MapQuest and its suppliers shalt not be liable to you for any loss or delay resulting from
your use of MapQuest. Your use of MapQuest means you agree 1o our Terms of Use
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From:  (217) 283-8246 Ship Date: 27JUL10
Shelly Snyder —H.GEW.%. ActWgt 1.0LB -
Defvery | GAD: 101361801ANET 3060 \-
701 East Orange Strest [qA
Tvoics A QU
Hoopaston, IL 60942 Reference # ﬁu
PO #
...ﬂ.-:-ha:..u Uo.un*
SHIPTO:  (217) 283-8245 | Ship ID

Attn: Administrator
Danville Care Center

1701 N BOWMAN AVENUE RD

DANVILLE, IL 61832
! A J | |

(9612850) 8712053 15000151 ‘

HOME 850 1

3rd PARTY of
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Harry Brockus

From: TrackingUpdates@fedex.com
ent: Wednesday, July 28, 2010 1:20 PM
o: harry.brockus@hoopestoncmh.org
Subject: FedEx Shipment 971205315000151 Delivered

This tracking update has been requested by:

Company Name: Shelly Snyder
Name: Shelly Snyder
E-mail: harrv.brockus@hoopostoncuh, oru

OQur records indicate that the following shipment has been deliverzed:

Ship ({P/U) date: Jul 27, 2010

Delivery date: Jul 2B, 2010 12:52 BM
Delivery location: CHAMPAIGN, IL
Service type: FedEx Home Delivery
Packaging type: Package

Number of pieces: 1

Weight: 1.00 1b.

rracking number: 971205315000157

Shipper Information Recipient Information
Shelly Snyder Attn: Administrateor
Shelly Snyder Danville Care Center
701 East Orange Street 1701 N BOWMAN AVENUE RD
Hoopeston DANVILLE

IL IL

us us

60942 61832

Please do not respond to this message. This email was sent from an unattended
mailbox. This report was generated at approximately 1:1% PM CDBT

on 07/28/2010.
To learn more about FedEx Ground, please visit our website at fedex.com.

all weights are estimated.

To track the latest status of your shipment, click on the tracking number above,
or visit us at fedex.com.

This tracking update has been sent to you by FedEx on the behalf of the
Requestor noted above. FedEx does not validate the authenticity of the
requestor and does not validate, guarantee or warrant the authenticity of the
request, the requestor's message, or the accuracy of this tracking update. For
tracking results and fedex.com's terms of use, go to fedcx.com.

Thank you for your business.

2! -1




REGIONAL HEALTH CENTER

July 28, 2010

Facility Administrator
Gilman Nursing Home
1390 S. Crescent Street
Gilman, IL 60938

Dear Provider:

Around March 31, 2012 Hoopeston Community Memorial Nursing Home intends to relocate from its
present location at 701 E. Orange St. Hoopeston, 1L 60942 to a new location at Route 1 North (Across
from Anthem Chevrolet). Hoopeston Community Memorial Nursing Home will continue to provide
all of the same services available at the current location after the move to the new location. We do not
anticipate that there will be any disruption in service or any changes in the referral patterns for this
service in the community. In the last twenty-four months, Hoopeston Community Memorial Nursing
Home has treated approximately 75 patients as part of its Long Term Care program. While we do not
anticipate any need for additional capacity based on the relocation of the Hoopeston Community
Memorial Nursing Home to the new location, please advise whether you anticipate that your facility
will have available capacity to accommodate a portion or all of Hoopeston Community Memorial
Nursing Home caseload and whether any restrictions or limitations preclude your facility from
providing service to residents of the community.

Please respond to this request for information within 15 days of your receipt of this letter. 1f we do not

receive a response from you within 15 days, it will be assumed that you agree that the relocation of the
Hoopeston Community Memeorial Nursing Home will not have an adverse impact on your facility.

Sincerely,

pote

Harry Brockus

CEO
Hoopeston Regional Health Center

Houopeston Community Charlotte Ann Russell Hoopeston Community Country Terrace
Memorial Hospital Medical Center Memorial Nursing Home Apartments
701 East Orange R0| East Orange 701 East Orange 705 Bast Qrange
Hoopeston, IL 60942 Iloopeston, L 60942 Hoopestun, IL 60942 Hoopeston, 1L 60942
Tel: 217 . 283 . 5531 Tel: 217, 283 . 5644 Tel: 217 . 283 . 8247 Tel: 217 . 283 . 9215
Fax: 217.283.4062 Fax: 217 .283.7432 Fax: 2i7.283 . 6400 Fax: 217 .283 . 92t5

A2 41




Page 1 of |

Il

Nofes

QAnpPQuUEST,

Trip to Gilman Nursing Home

1390 S Crescent 5t, Gilman, (L 60938 -
(815) 265-7208
39.30 miles - about 48 minutes

a 701 E Orange St, Hoopeston, IL 60942-1801

v 1. Start out going WEST on IL-9 toward S 5TH ST. go 1.3 mi
N 2. Turn RIGHT onto IL-1/ S CHICAGO RD / S DIXIE HWY. :
<l") G] Continue to follow IL-1. go 7.0 mi
A
(\43) 3. Turn LEFT onto CR-500 N / CR-10. _ go 4.8 mi
‘™ 4. Turn RIGHT onto CR-1800 E / CR45, go 8.6 mi
o
@3’ 5. Turn LEFT onto 1200N / CR-47. go 3.8 mi
e
.,
i 6. Turn SHARP RIGHT onto 1400E / IL49. g0 6.1 mi
r
7. Turn LEFT onto MAIN ST/ US-24. Continue to follow .
(ﬁb US-24. go7.7mi
[ ono | 8. 1390 S CRESCENT ST. - g0 0.0 mi

X Gilman Nursing Home - (815) 265-7208
1390 S Crescent St, Gilman, IL 60938

Total Travel Estimate : 39.30 miles - about 48 minutes

v ma——

All rights reserved. Use subject 1o License/Copyright [ Map Legend

Directions and maps are informational only. We make no warranties on the accuracy of their content, road conditions or route usability or
expaditiousness. You assume all risk of use. MapQuest and is suppliers shall not be liable 1o you for any loss or delay resulting from
your use of MapQuesl. Your use of MapQuest means you agree to our Terms of Use

A8 s
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From:  {217) 283-8246 Ship Date: 27JUL10
Shelly Snyder m@@. ActiWgt 1.0LB
CAD: 101351901ANET3060 ~
701 East Grangs Street i
G| = 3
Hoopaston, iL 60942 Refarence # A
PO# <t
Haahiebiras Uo.v:m
SHPTO: (217) 283-8248 . fShelD ,

Attn: Administrator
Gilman Nursing Home

1390 S CRESCENT ST

GILMAN, IL 60938 § 1 H ,
| i _

(9612417 8712053 15000205

GND 47 4
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Harry Brockus

__ L
From: TrackingUpdates@fedex.com
Sent: Wednesday, July 28, 2010 3:12 PM
To: harry.brockus @hoopestoncmh.org
Subject: FedEx Shipment 971205315000205 Delivered

This tracking update has been requested by:

Company Name: Shelly Snyder
Name: Shelly Snyder

E-mail: har rv.brockusfhoopesbongomh . ona
h E g

Our records indicate that the following shipment has been delivered:

Ship (P/U) date: Jul 27, 2010

Delivery date: Jul 28, 2010 2:27 PM
Sign for by: Signature on File
Delivery location: CHAMPAIGN, IL
Service type: FedEx Ground
Packaging type: Package

Number of pieces: 1

.FWeight: 1.00 1b.
racking number: $712053150400205

Shipper Information Reciplent Information
Shelly Snyder Attn: Administrator
Shelly Snyder Gilman Nursing Home
701 East QOrange Street 13%0 5 CRESCENT ST
Hoopeston GILMAN

IL IL

us Js

60942 60938

Please do not respond to this message. This email was sent from an unattended
mailbox. This report was generated at approximately 3:11 PM COT

on 07/28/2010.

To learn more about FedEx Ground, please visit our website at fadexn.com.

All weights are estimated.

Te track the latest status of your shipment, c¢lick on the tracking number above,
or visit us at fedex. con.

This tracking update has been sent to you by FedEx on the behalf of the
Requestor noted above. FedEx does not validate the authenticity of the
requestor and does not validate, guarantee or warrant the authenticity of the
request, the requestor's message, or the accuracy of this tracking update. For
tracking results and fedex.com's terms of use, go to fedex.com.

“hank you for your business.

285 1001




OOPESTON

REGIONAL HEALTH CENTER

July 28, 2010

Facility Administrator
Heartland

1001 E. Pells Street
Paxton, IL 60957

Dear Provider:

Around March 31, 2012 Hoopeston Community Memorial Nursing Home intends to relocate from its
present location at 701 E. Orange St. Hoopeston, IL 60942 to a new location at Route 1 North (Across
from Anthem Chevrolet). Hoopeston Community Memorial Nursing Home will continue to provide
all of the same services available at the current location after the move to the new location. We do not
anticipate that there will be any disruption in service or any changes in the referral patterns for this
service in the community. In the last twenty-four months, Hoopeston Community Memorial Nursing
Home has treated approximately 75 patients as part of its Long Term Care program. While we do not
anticipate any need for additional capacity based on the relocation of the Hoopeston Community
Memorial Nursing Home to the new location, please advise whether you anticipate that your facility
will have available capacity to accommodate a portion or all of Hoopeston Community Memorial
Nursing Home caseload and whether any restrictions or limitations preclude your facility from
providing service to residents of the community.

Please respond to this request for information within 15 days of your receipt of this letter. If we do not
receive a response from you within 15 days, it will be assumed that you agree that the relocation of the

Hoopeston Community Memorial Nursing Home will not have an adverse impact on your facility.

Sincerely,

Harry Brockus

CEO
Hoopeston Regional Health Center

Hoopeston Community Charlotte Ann Russell Hoopeston Community Country Terrace
Memorial Hospital . Medical Center Memorial Nursing Home Apartments
701 East Orange 801 Bast Orange 701 East Orange 705 East Orange
Hoopcston, L. 60942 Hoopeston, [L 60942 Hoopeston, IL 60942 Hoopeston, IL 60942
Tel: 217 . 283 . 5531 Tel: 217 . 283 . 5644 Tel: 217 . 283 . 8247 Tek: 217 . 283 . 9215
Fax: 217.283.4062 Fax: 217.283 . 7432 Fax: 217 .283 . 6406 Fax: 217,283 .9215

A8
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Notes

@anpQuesT.

Trip to Heartland Health Care Center |

1001 E Pells St, Paxton, L 60957 - (217)
379-4361 i
22.24 miles - about 27 minutes

« 701 E Orange St, Hoopeston, IL 60942-1801

1. Start out going WEST on IL-9 toward S 5TH ST.

m 2.1001 E PELLS ST is on the RIGHT.

X Heartland Health Care Center - (217) 379-4361
1001 E Pells St, Paxton, IL. 60957

Total Travel Estimate : 22.24 miles - about 27 minutes

All rights rese - subject 1o License/Copyright | Map Legend

go 22.2 mi
total 22.2 mi

go 0.0 mi
total 22.2 mi

.reclions anc maps are informational only. We make no warranties on the accuracy of their content, road conditions or route usability or
expeditiousness. You assume all risk of use. MapQuest ang its suppliers shall not be liable to you for any loss or defay resulting from

your use of MapQuest. Your use of MapQuest means you agree 1o gur Terms of Use

@
A8%

http://www.mapguest.com/print

Page 1 of |
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From:  (217)283-8246 .
Shelly Snyder

701 East Orange Strest

Hoopeston, L 60942

Ship Date: 27JUL10
Actigt 1.0LB
CAD: 101361591/INET3060

Pagelotl

Invoics #
Reference #

SHIPTO:  (217) 283-8246
Attn: Administrator
Heartland

1001 E PELLS ST
PAXTON, iL 60957

y \

o

L e

—
—

_
i L | |

(9612417) 9712053 15000175

GND 417

3rd PARTY

____
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A~/
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Harry Brockus

From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

TrackingUpdates@fedex.com

Wednesday, July 28, 2010 11:56 AM

harry. brockus@hoopestoncmh.org

FedEx Shipment 971205315000175 Delivered

This tracking update has been requested by:

Company Name: Shelly Snyder
Name: Shelly Snyder

E-mail: harry.brockusidhoonestonomh.org

Our records indicate that the folleowing shipment has been delivered:

Ship (P/U) date: Jul 27, 2010

Delivery date: Jul 28, 2010 11:53 AM
Sign for by: JVOGEL

Delivery lccation: CHAMPAIGN, IL

Service type: FedEx Ground
Packaging type: Package

Number of pieces: 1

.Weight: 1.00 1b.

Tracking number: 971205315000175

Shipper Informaticn
Shelly Snyder
Shelly Snyder

701 East COrange Street

Hoopeston
IL

us

60942

Recipient Information
Attn: Administrator
Heartland

1001 E PELLS ST
PAXTON

IL

Us

60957

Please do not respond to this message. This email was sent from an unattended
mailbox. This report was generated at approximately 11:56 AM CDT

on 07/28/2010.

To learn more about FedEx Ground, please visit our website at fedex.com.

All weights are estimated.

To track the latest status of your shipment, click on the tracking number above,
or visit us at fedex,cow,
This tracking update has been sent to you by FedEx on the behalf of the

Requestor noted above.

FedEx does not validate the authenticity of the

requestor and does not validate, guarantee or warrant the authenticity of the
request, the requestor's message, or the accuracy of this tracking update. For
tracking results and fedex.com's terms of use, go to fedex.com.

.Thank you for your business.

9




OOPESTON

REGIHONAL HEALTIH CENTER

July 28, 2010

Facility Administrator

Iroquois Memorial Resident Home
200 E. Fairman Avenue

Watseka, IL 60970

Dear Provider:

Around March 31, 2012 Hoopeston Community Memorial Nursing Home intends to relocate from its
present location at 701 E. Orange St. Hoopeston, I1. 60942 to a new location at Route 1 North (Across
from Anthem Chevrolet). Hoopeston Community Memorial Nursing Home will continue to provide
all of the same services available at the current location after the move to the new location. We do not
anticipate that there will be any disruption in service or any changes in the referral patterns for this
service in the community. In the last twenty-four months, Hoopeston Community Memorial Nursing
Home has treated approximately 75 patients as part of its Long Term Care program. While we do not
anticipate any need for additional capacity based on the relocation of the Hoopeston Community
Memorial Nursing Home to the new location, please advise whether you anticipate that your facility
will have available capacity to accommodate a portion or all of Hoopeston Community Memorial
Nursing Home caseload and whether any restrictions or limitations preclude your facility from
providing service to residents of the community.

Please respond to this request for information within 15 days of your receipt of this letter. If we do not
receive a response from you within 15 days, it will be assumed that you agree that the relocation of the
Hoopeston Community Memorial Nursing Home will not have an adverse impact on your facility.
Sincerely,

/? 6@%
Harry Brockus

CEO
Hoopeston Regional Health Center

Hoopeston Community Charlotte Ann Russell Hoopeston Community Country Terrace
Memorial Hospital Medical Center Memorial Nursing Home Apartments
701 East Orange 801 East Orange 701 East Orange 705 East Orange
Hoopeston, [L 60942 Hoopeston. IL 60942 Hoopeston, IL 60942 Hoopeston, IL 60942
Tel: 217 . 283 . 5531 Tel: 217 . 283 . 5644 Tel: 217 . 283 . 8247 Tel: 217 .283 . 9215
Fax: 217.283.4062 Fax: 217.283 .7432 Fax: 217 .283 . 6406 Fax: 217,283 .9215
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Page 1 of 2
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AP QUEST.

Trip to Iroquois Resident Home

200 E Fairman Ave, Watseka, IL 60970 -
(815) 432-7768
26.86 miles - about 36 minutes

Notes

a 701 E Orange St, Hoopeston, IL 60942-1801

stae 1. Start out going WEST on IL-9 toward S 5TH ST. go 1.3 mi
. 2. Turn RIGHT onto IL-1 / § CHICAGO RD f S DIXIE HWY. -
. <l';) Continue to follow IL-1. go 158 mi
1,3’) 3. Turn LEFT onto 1200N / CR-47. go 3.2 mi
r
s 4. Turn RIGHT onto 1980 RD E / CR-43. | g0 2.0 mi
(r 5. Turn RIGHT onto 1400N / CR43. g0 0.3 mi
(\‘1) : g;;;n LEFT onto CR-2000 E / CR-43. Continue to follow go 3.9 mi
(" 7. Turn RIGHT onto W JACKSON ST. go 0.2 mi
(/3) 8. Turn RIGHT onto S 4TH ST. g0 0.1 mi
T
P
. :‘\‘3} 9. Turn LEFT onto E FAIRMAN AVE. go 0.0 mi
K24( APP- ]

http://www.mapquest.com/print 8/2/2010




Page 2 of 2

go 0.0 mi

. oo | 10. 200 E FAIRMAN AVE is on the LEFT.

Iroquois Resident Home - (815) 432-7768
200 E Fairman Ave, Watseka, IL 60970
Total Travel Estimate ; 26.86 miles - about 36 minutes

Directions and maps are informational only. We make no warranties on the accuracy of their content, road conditions of route usability or
expeditiousness. You assume all risk of use. MapQues! and its suppliers shafl not be liable to you for any loss or delay resulting from
your use of MapQuest. Your use of MapQuest means you agree to our Terms of Use

292 4p0- |
8/2/2010
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From;  (217) 283-8245 EMMW Ship Date: 27JUL10D

e
Sl Snyder Groand mﬁnﬂw“%@wm@szﬂss n_u,
701 East Oranga Strest . Q.
O Invaice # ﬂ
Hocpeston, IL 60942 Reference #
PO#
L T Uw.vn%
SHIPTO:  (217) 283-8246 | Ship ID
Attn: Administrator
Iroquois Memorial Resident Home
200 E FAIRMAN AVE
WATSEKA, IL 60970 =. ‘_

L

(0642417) 9712053 45000238

GND 417 1

3rd PARTY . of
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Harg Brockus

A
From: TrackingUpdates@fedex.com
Sent: Wednesday, July 28, 2010 10:42 AM
To: harry.brockus@hoopestoncmh.org
Subject: FedEx Shipment 971205315000236 Delivered

This tracking update has been requested by:

Company Name: Shelly Snyder
Name : Shelly Snyder

E-mail: harry.brockusithogpestoncnh. org

Our records indicate that the following shipment has been delivered:

Ship (P/U) date: Jul 27, 2010

Delivery date: Jul 28, 2010 10:35 AM
Sign for by: GDENHEM

Delivery locaticon: CHAMPAIGN, IL

Service type:
Packaging type:
Number of pieces:

FedEx Ground
Package
1

.Weight: 1.00 1b.

Tracking number: $7120531500023¢

Shipper Information
Shelly Snyder

Shelly Snyder

701 East Crange Street
Hoopeston

IL

us

60542

Recipient Information

Attn: Administrator

Iroqueis Memorial Resident Home
200 E FAIRMAN AVE

WATSEKA

IL

us

60970

Please do not respond to this message. This email was sent from an unattended
mailbox. This report was generated at approximately 10:42 AM CDT

on 07/28/2010.

To learn more about FedEx Ground, please visit our website at fedax.com.

All weights are estimated.

To track the latest status of your shipment, click on the tracking number above,
or visit us at fedex.com.
This tracking update has been sent to you by FedEx on the behalf of the

Requester noted above.

FedEx does not validate the authenticity of the

requestor and does not validate, guarantee or warrant the authenticity of the
request, the regquestor's message, or the accuracy of this tracking update., For
tracking results and fedex.com's terms of use, geo to fedex.coin.

.Thank you for your business.

277
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OOPESTON

REGIONAL HEALTH CENTER

July 28, 2010

Facility Administrator
Knights Templar

450 E. Fulton Street
P.O. Box 49

Paxton, IL 60957

Dear Provider:

Around March 31, 2012 Hoopeston Community Memorial Nursing Home intends to relocate from its
present location at 701 E. Orange St. Hoopeston, 1L 60942 to a new location at Route 1 North (Across
from Anthem Chevrolet). Hoopeston Community Memorial Nursing Home will continue to provide
all of the same services available at the current location after the move to the new location. We do not
anticipate that there will be any disruption in service or any changes in the referral patterns for this
service in the community. In the last twenty-four months, Hoopeston Community Memorial Nursing
Home has treated approximately 75 patients as part of its Long Term Care program. While we do not
anticipate any need for additional capacity based on the relocation of the Hoopeston Community
Memorial Nursing Home to the new location, please advise whether you anticipate that your facility
will have available capacity to accommodate a portion or all of Hoopeston Community Memorial
Nursing Home caseload and whether any restrictions or limitations preclude your facility from
providing service to residents of the community.

Please respond to this request for information within 15 days of your receipt of this letter. If we do not
receive a response from you within 15 days, it will be assumed that you agree that the relocation of the

Hoopeston Community Memorial Nursing Home will not have an adverse impact on your facility.

Sincerely,

ot

Harry Brockus

CEO
Hoopeston Regional Health Center

Hoopeston Community Charlotte Ann Russell Hoopeston Community Country Terrace

Memorial Hospital Medical Center Memorial Nursing Home Apartments -

701 East Oranpe ROI East Orange 701 East Orange 705 East Orange
Hoopeston, 1L 63942 Hoopeston, IL 60942 Hoopeston, 1L 60642 Hoopeston, 1L 60942
Tel: 217 . 283 . 5531 Tel: 217 . 283 . 5644 Tel: 217 . 283 . §247 Tel: 217 . 283 . 9215
Fax: 217.283.4062 Fax: 217 .283.7432 Fax: 217 .283 . 6406 Fax: 217.283.9215

2498 AP~/




Page 1 of 1
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Notes

®rnrQuesT,

Trip to lllinois Knights Templar
Home
450 E Fulton St, Paxton, IL 80957 - (217)

379-2116
23.16 miles - about 30 minutes

« 701 E Orange St, Hoopeston, iL 60942-1801

- 0 22.6 mi

m 1. Start out going WEST on IL-9 toward S 5TH ST, to?al 528 mi
4 go 0.5 mi
@ 2. Tumn LEFT onto $ WASHINGTON ST. total 23.1 mi
. .

. go 0.0 mi
<:r;; 3. Turn RIGHT onto E FULTON ST. tota 23.2 mi
m 4. 450 E FULTON ST is on the LEFT go 0.0 mi
’ ’ fotal 23.2 mi

e — e— r— am—

lllinois Knights Templar Home - (217) 379-2116
450 E Fulton St, Paxton, IL 60957

Total Travel Estimate : 23.16 miles - about 30 minutes

All rights reserved. Use subject 1o License/Copyright |Map Legend

Directions and maps are informationat only. We make no warranties on the accuracy of their cortent, road conditions or route usability or
expeditiousness, You assume all risk of use. MapQuest and its suppliers shall not be liable to you for any loss or delay resutting from
your use of MapQuest. Your use of MapQuest means you agree 1o our Terms of Use

A% QP
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Shelly Sryder » ActWigt 1.018
by Sy Rooxe Debvery | CaD): 10136199 1ANET3060

701 East Orange Street m —_
Invgice # \
Hoopeston, IL 60942 wmmﬂaga # M
Dept # <
SHPTO: (217 283-8246 1 Ship ID
Attn: Administrator
Knights Templar
450 E FULTON ST

PAXTON, IL 60957 8 __ |
] ] _—

(8612850 9712053 15000182
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Harry Brockus

_
From: TrackingUpdates@fedex.com
.Sent: Wednesday, July 28, 2010 9:23 AM
To: harry.brockus@hoopestoncmh.org
Subject: FedEx Shipment 971205315000182 Delivered

This tracking update has been requested by:

Company Name: Shelly Snyder
Name: Shelly Snyder
E-mail: harry.brockusthoopestoncih, oty

Qur records indicate that the following shipment has been delivered:

Ship (P/U} date: Jul 27, 2010

Delivery date: Jul 28, 2010 9:10 RM
Sign for by: CKASPER

Delivery location: CHAMPAIGN, IL
Service type: FedEx Home Delivery
Packaging type: Package

Number of pieces: 1

ﬂeight: 1.00 1b.
racking number: 8712053150001R2

Shipper Information Recipient Information
Shelly Snyder Attn: Administrator
Shelly Snyder Knights Templar

701 East Orange Street 450 E FULTON ST
Hoopeston PAXTON

IL IL

us 0s

60942 60957

Please deo nct respond to this message. This email was sent from an unattended
mailbox. This report was generated at approximately 9:23 AM CDT

on 07/28/2010.

To learn more about FedEx Ground, please visit our website at fedex.com.

All weights are estiimated.

To track the latest status of your shipment, click on the tracking number above,
or visit us at [eodex,com.

This tracking update has been sent to you by FedEx on the behalf of the
Requestor noted above. FedEx does not validate the authenticity of the
requestor and deoes not validate, guarantee or warrant the authenticity of the
request, the requestor's message, or the accuracy of this tracking update. For
tracking results and fedex.com's terms of use, go to [edex. com.

.‘hank you for your business.

A8




OOPESTON

REGIONAL HEALTH CENTIIR

—
—
K,

July 28, 2010

Facility Administrator

Liberty Village / Hawthorne Inn
3222 Independence Drive
Danville, IL 61832

Dear Provider:

Around March 31, 2012 Hoopeston Community Memorial Nursing Home intends to relocate from its
present location at 701 E. Orange St. Hoopeston, IL 60942 to a new location at Route 1 North (Across
from Anthem Chevrolet). Hoopeston Community Memorial Nursing Home will continue to provide
all of the same services available at the current location afier the move to the new location. We do not
anticipate that there will be any disruption in service or any changes in the referral patterns for this
service in the community. In the last twenty-four months, Hoopeston Community Memorial Nursing
Home has treated approximately 75 patients as part of its Long Term Care program. While we do not
anticipate any need for additional capacity based on the relocation of the Hoopeston Community
Memorial Nursing Home to the new location, please advise whether you anticipate that your facility
will have available capacity to accommodate a portion or all of Hoopeston Community Memorial
Nursing Home caseload and whether any restrictions or limitations preclude your facility from
providing service to residents of the community.

Please respond to this request for information within 15 days of your receipt of this letter. If we do not
receive a response from you within 15 days, it will be assumed that you agree that the relocation of the
Hoopeston Community Memorial Nursing Home will not have an adverse impact on your facility.

Sincerely,
Lo iAo

Harry Brockus

CEO
Hoopeston Regional Health Center

Hoopeston Community Charlotte Ann Russel! Hoopeston Community Country Terrace
Memorial Hospital Medical Center Memorial Nursing Home Apartments
701 East Orange 801 East Orange 701 East Orange 705 East Orange
Hoopesion, [L 60942 Hoopeston, IL 60942 Hoopeston, 1L 60942 Hoopeston, IL 60942
Tel: 217 . 283 . 5531 Tel: 217 . 283 . 5644 Tel: 217.283. 8247 Tel: 217 . 283 . 9215
Fax: 217.283 4062 Fax: 217,283, 7432 Fax: 217.283 . 6406 Fax: 217.283.9215

A7 Aep- |




glislE]

®rapQuesT.

Notes

Trip to Hawthorne Inn-Nursing Care
3222 Independence Dr, Danville, IL 61832 -~

(217) 4311600

21.97 miles - about 31 minutes

a 701 E Orange St, Hoopeston, IL 60942-1801

1. Start out going WEST on IL-9 toward S 5TH ST.

2. Turn LEFT onto IL-1 / § CHICAGO RD/ S DIXIE HWY.

Continue to follow IL-1.

3. Turm LEFT onto E LIBERTY LN.

4. Turn LEFT ontc INDEPENDENCE DR.

5. 3222 INDEPENDENCE DR is on the LEFT.

€! Hawthorne Inn-Nursing Care - (217) 431-1600
3222 Independence Dr, Danville, IL 61832

Total Travel Estimate : 21.97 miles - about 31 minutes

Al rights reserved. Use subject to License/Copyright | Map Legend

Directions and maps are informational only. We make no warranties on the accuracy of their content. road conditions or route usability or
expeditipusness. You assume all risk of use. MapQuest and its suppliers shalt rot be liable to you for any loss or defay resulting from

your use of MapQuest. Your use of MapQuest means you agree to our Terms of Use

http://www.mapquest.com/print

300

go 1.3 mi

go 20.0 mi

go 0.5 mi

go 0.1 mi

go 0.0 mi

Page 1 of 1
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From:  (217) 283-8246

Shelly Snyder EMMW.

T04 East Qrange Streat n
Hoopeston, 1L 60942

Ship Date: 27JUL10
ActWgt 1.0LB
CAD: 101361991/INET3060

Page l ot}

Irvoice # B
Reference #

SHIPTO:  (217) 2838246
Attn: Administrator
Liberty Village/Hawthorne Inn

3222 INDEPENDENCE DR
DANVILLE, IL 61832

——re
asm———
MM

il

oou"%
| Ship 10

(9612417) 9712053 15000168
GND 417
3rd PARTY

1

20!
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Har:! Brockus

A ——

From: TrackingUpdates@fedex.com

Sent: Wednesday, July 28, 2010 12:39 PM

To: harry.brockus@hoopestoncmh.org

Subject: FedEx Shipment 971205315000168 Delivered

This tracking update has been requested by:

Company Name: Shelly Snyder
Shelly Snyder

harry.prockus@hoopestonunh, org

Name:
E-mail:

Our records indicate that the following shipment has been delivered:

Ship (P/U) date: Jul 27, 2010
Delivery date: Jul 28, 2010 12:07 PM
Sign for by: DEBRA
Delivery location: CHAMPAIGN, IL
Service type: FedEx Ground
Packaging type: Package
Number of pieces: 1
1.00 1b.

.Weight:
Pracking number:

471205315000168

Shipper Information

Shelly Snyder
Shelly Snyder

Recipient Information
Attn:
Liberty Village/Hawthorne Inn

Administrator

701 East Orange Street

3222 INDEPENDENCE DR

Hoopeston DANVILLE
IL IL

us us

60942 61832

FPlease do not respond to this message. This email was sent from an unattended
mailbox. This report was generated at approximately 12:39 PM CDT
on 07/28/2010.

To learn more about FedEx Ground, please visit our website at fedax.com.

All weights are estimated.

To track the latest status of your shipment, click on the tracking number above,
or visit us at fedex.com.

This tracking update has been sent to you by FedEx on the behalf of the
Requestor noted above. FedEx does not validate the authenticity of the
requestor and does not validate, guarantee or warrant the authenticity of the
request, the requestor's message, or the accuracy of this tracking update. For

tracking results and fedex.com's terms of use, go to fedex.com.

.Ehank you for your business.
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OOPESTON

REGIONAL HEALTH CENTER

July 28, 2010

Facility Administrator
North Logan Rehab
801 N. Logan Avenue
Danville, 11, 61832

Dear Provider:

Around March 31, 2012 Hoopeston Community Memorial Nursing Home intends to relocate from its
present location at 701 E. Orange St. Hoopeston, IL 60942 to a new location at Route 1 North (Across
from Anthem Chevrolet). Hoopeston Community Memorial Nursing Home will continue to provide
all of the same services available at the current location after the move to the new location. We do not
anticipate that there will be any disruption in service or any changes in the referral patterns for this
service in the community. In the last twenty-four months, Hoopeston Community Memorial Nursing
Home has treated approximately 75 patients as part of its Long Term Care program. While we do not
anticipate any need for additional capacity based on the relocation of the Hoopeston Community
Memorial Nursing Home to the new location, please advise whether you anticipate that your facility
will have available capacity to accommodate a portion or all of Hoopeston Community Memorial
Nursing Home caseload and whether any restrictions or limitations preclude your facility from
providing service to residents of the community.

Please respond to this request for information within 15 days of your receipt of this letter. If we do not

receive a response from you within 15 days, it will be assumed that you agree that the relocation of the
Hoopeston Community Memorial Nursing Home will not have an adverse impact on your facility.

Sincerely,

fot

Harry Brockus

CEO
Hoopeston Regional Health Center

Hoopeston Community Charlotte Ann Russell Hoopeston Community Country Terrace
Memorial Hospital Medical Center Memorial Nursing Home Apartments
701 East Orange 201 East Orange 701 East Orange 705 East Orange
Hoopesion, IL 60942 Hoopeston, L 60942 Hoopesion, IL 60942 Hoopeston, 1L 60942
Tel: 217 . 283 . 5531 Tel: 217 .283 . 5644 Tel: 217. 283 . 8247 Tel: 217 .283 . 9215
Fax: 217,283 . 4062 Fax: 217.283.7432 Fax: 217.283 6406 Fax: 217,283, 9215
203
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Page 1 of 1

a3

QAaPQuEsT,

Trip to North Logan Health Care

Center

801 N Logan Ave, Danville, IL 61832 - (217)
443-3106

24.47 miles - about 38 minutes

Notes

‘ﬁ 701 E Orange St, Hoopeston, IL 60942-1801

smun] 1. Start out going WEST on IL-9 toward S 5TH ST. go 1.3 mi
. @ ® éo':'];:]nulélf:'froﬁg:‘?flt: /'S CHICAGO RD/ S DIXIE HWY. | 00 214 m
{’é} ?O”Im” Rﬁm é);toA \\:\.'E \-N!NTER AVE / CR-20. Continue to G004 m
@ 4. Turn LEFT onto N LOQAN AVE. go 1.6 mi
oo 5.801 N LOGAN AVE is on the LEFT. 30 0.0 mi

North Logan Health Care Center - (217) 443-3106
801 N Logan Ave, Danville, IL 61832

Total Travel Estimate : 24.47 miles - about 38 minutes

All rights reserved. Use subject to License/Copyright | t4ap Legend

Directions and maps are informational only. We make no warranties on the accuracy of their content. road conditions or route usability or
expeditiousness. You assume all risk of use. MapQuest and its suppliers shalt not be liable to you for any loss or defay resulting from
your use of MapQuest. Your use of MapQuest means you agree o our Terms of Use
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_Mn”_r 6 Lﬂw 2638246 _..Gn—emlwﬁ. mw.._.& wnanemmmc:o

CAD: 10136199 1ANET3060
701 East Orange Strest n

Invoice #
Hoopastan, IL 60942 momhonno #

PO#

ML w4k _uﬁ.v»%

SHPTO: (217)283-8248 | Ship ID
Attn: Administrator
North Logan Reghab
801 N LOGAN AVE
DANVILLE, IL 61832 » H __

(0612417) 8712053 15000137

GND 417
3rd PARTY

of

3208
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Harry Brockus

From: TrackingUpdates@fedex.com
ent: Wednesday, July 28, 2010 9:28 AM
o: harry.brockus@hoopestoncmh.org
Subject: FedEx Shipment 971205315000137 Delivered

This tracking update has been requested by:

Company Name: Shelly Snyder
Shelly Snyder
harry.brockusihoopestoncmh. org

Name :
E-mail:

Cur records indicate that the following shipment has been delivered:

Ship (P/U} date: Jul 27, 2010
Delivery date: Jul 28, 2010 9:20 aM
Sign for by: HCPE

Delivery location: CHAMPAIGHN, IL
Service type: FedEx Ground
Packaging type: Package

Number of pieces: 1

.\:eight: 1.00 1b.
racking number: %71205315000137

Recipient Information
Attn: Administrator
North Logan Reghab

Shipper Information
Shelly Snyder
Shelly Snyder

701 East Orange Street 801 N LOGAN AVE

Hoopeston DANVILLE

IL L

Us us

60942 61832

Please do not respond to this message. This email was sent from an unattended
mailbox. This report was generated at approximately 9:26 AM CDT

on 07/28/2010.
To learn more about FedEx Ground, please visit our website at f[edex.com.

All weights are estimated.

To track the latest status of your shipment, click on the tracking number above,
or visit us at fsdex.com.

This tracking update has been sent to you by FedEx on the behalf of the
Reguestor noted above. FedEx does not validate the authenticity of the
requestor and does not validate, guarantee or warrant the authenticity of the
request, the reguestor's message, or the accuracy of this tracking update. For
tracking results and fedex.com's terms of use, go to fedex.com.

.‘hank you for your business,

30p




OOPESTON

REGHINAL HEEALTH CENTER

July 28,2010

Facility Administrator
Sheldon Health Care Center
170 W. Concord Street
Sheldon, IL 60966-8058

Dear Provider:

Around March 31, 2012 Hoopeston Community Memorial Nursing Home intends to relocate from its
present location at 701 E. Orange St. Hoopeston, IL 60942 to a new location at Route 1 North (Across
from Anthem Chevrolet). Hoopeston Community Memorial Nursing Home will continue to provide
all of the same services available at the current location after the move to the new location. We do not
anticipate that there will be any disruption in service or any changes in the referral patterns for this
service in the community. In the last twenty-four months, Hoopeston Community Memorial Nursing
Home has treated approximately 75 patients as part of its Long Term Care program. While we do not
anticipate any need for additional capacity based on the relocation of the Hoopeston Community
Memorial Nursing Home to the new location, please advise whether you anticipate that your facility
will have available capacity to accommodate a portion or all of Hoopeston Community Memorial
Nursing Home caseload and whether any restrictions or limitations preclude your facility from
providing service to residents of the community.

Please respond to this request for information within 15 days of your receipt of this letter. If we do not
receive a response from you within 15 days, it will be assumed that you agree that the relocation of the

Hoopeston Community Memorial Nursing Home will not have an adverse impact on your facility.

Sincerely,

ﬁé otk

Harry Brockus

CEO
Hoopeston Regional Health Center

Houpeston Community Charlotte Ann Russell Hoopeston Commuaity Country Terrace
Memorial Hospital Medical Center Memorial Nursing Home Apartments
701 East Orange 80! East Qrange 701 East Orange 705 East Qrange
Hoopeston, IL 60942 Hoopeston, IL 60942 Hoopeston, IL 60942 Hoopeston, 1L 60942
Tel: 217 . 283 . 5531 Tcl: 217 . 283 . 5644 Tel: 217 . 283 . 8247 Tel: 217 . 283 . 9215
Fax: 217.283.4062 Fax: 217,283, 7432 Fax: 217 .283 . 6406 Fax: 217 .283.9215
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Notes

%APQUEST.

Trip to 170 W Concord St

Sheldon, IL 60966-8058
29.67 miles - about 36 minutes

ﬁ 701 E Orange St, Hoopeston, iL 60942-1801

1. Start out going EAST on I1.-9 toward N 1550 RD E.
6‘) 2. Turn LEFT onto CR-41 / N 1950 RD E.
Q») 3. Turn LEFT onto COUNTY ROAD 000 N / CR-41 / 4300
’ N. Continue to foliow CR-41.

4. Turn LEFT onto CR-850 N/ CR-41 / CR-9.

l"\ 5. Turn RIGHT onto 2840 E / CR-41 / CR-9, Continue to
s follow CR-41.

(F’ (&7 6. Turn RIGHT onto 1800N / US-24. Continue to follow US-
G e

(P (53] 7. Tum RIGHT onto US-52.

s

.,
(.1)' B. US-52 becomes N 4TH ST.
(r;} 9. Tum RIGHT onto CONCORD ST.
 exo 10. 170 W CONCORD ST.

€Y 170 W Concord St, Sheldon, IL 60966-8058
. Total Travel Estimate : 29.67 miles - about 36 minutes

All rights reserved. Use subject to License/Copyright | Map Legend

Directions and maps are informational oniy. We make no warranties on the accuracy of their content, road conditions or route usability or

308

http://www.mapquest.com/print

go 4.1 mi
total 4.1 mi

go 2.0 mi
total 6.1 mi

go 9.7 mi
fotal 15.8 mi

go 0.4 mi
total 16.2 mi

go11.5mi
total 27.7 mi

go 1.6 mi
total 29.3 mi

go 0.0 mi
total 29.4 mi

go 0.3 mi
total 29.6 mi

go 0.0 mi
total 29.7 mi

go 0.0 mi
total 29.7 mi

APD- |

8/2/2010
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From  (217)283-8248

Shelly Snyder ﬂ&MMN.
701 East Orange Streat

Hoopaston, 1L £0942

UL MRS TS

Ship Date: 27JUL10
ActWat 1.0LB

CAD: 101361991ANET 3060

Page 1 o1 |

Invoice #
Referance #
PO#

Dapt #

SHIPTO:  (217) 283-8248
Attn; Administrator
Sheldon Health Care Center

170 W CONCORD ST

Ship 1D

SHELDON, IL 60966

1|

(9612850) 9712053 15000229

HOME 830
3rd PARTY

_____

of

APP-|
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Harry Brockus

From: TrackingUpdates@fedex.com
ent: Wednesday, July 28, 2010 2:41 PM
o: harry.brockus@hoopestoncmh.org
Subject: FedEx Shipment §71205315000229 Delivered

This tracking update has been requested by:

Company Name: Shelly Snyder
Name: Shelly Snyder

E-mail: harry. brockusfhoopestanonil. ory

Our records indicate that the following shipment has been delivered:

Ship (P/U) date: Jul 27, 2010

Delivery date: Jul 28, 2010 1:54 PM
Delivery location: CHAMPAIGN, IL
Service type: FedEx Home Delivery
Packaging type: Package

Number of pieces: 1
Weight: 1.00 1b.

racking number: 27120%31500022%

Shipper Information Recipient Information
Shelly Snyder Attn: Administrator

Shelly Snyder Sheldon Health Care Center
701 East Orange Streel 170 W CONCORD ST

Hoopeston SHELDON

1L IL

us us

60942 60966

Please do not respend to this message. This email was sent from an unattended
mailbox. This report was generated at approximately 2:40 PM CDT

on 07/28/2010.

To learn more about FedEx Ground, please visit our website at fedex.com.

All weights are estimated.

To track the latest status of your shipment, click on the tracking number above,
or visit us at [edexr. com.

This tracking update has been sent to you by FedEx on the behalf of the
Requestor noted above., FedEx does not validate the authenticity of the
requestor and does not validate, guarantee or warrant the authenticity of the
reguest, the requestor's message, or the accuracy of this tracking update. For
tracking results and fedex.com's terms of use, go to fedex..om.

Thank you for your business.




OOPESTON

REGIONAL HEALTH CENTER

July 28, 2010

Facility Administrator
VA-LTC

1900 E. Main Street
Danville, IL 61832

Dear Provider;

Around March 31, 2012 Hoopeston Community Memorial Nursing Home intends to relocate from its
present location at 701 E. Orange St. Hoopeston, IL 60942 to a new location at Route 1 North (Across
from Anthem Chevrolet). Hoopeston Community Memonial Nursing Home will continue to provide
all of the same services available at the current location after the move to the new location. We do not
anticipate that there will be any disruption in service or any changes in the referral patterns for this
service in the community. In the last twenty-four months, Hoopeston Community Memorial Nursing
Home has treated approximately 75 patients as part of its Long Term Care program. While we do not
anticipate any need for additional capacity based on the relocation of the Hoopeston Community
Memorial Nursing Home to the new location, please advise whether you anticipate that your facility
will have available capacity to accommodate a portion or all of Hoopeston Community Memorial
Nursing Home caseload and whether any restrictions or limitations preclude your facility from
providing service to residents of the community.

Please respond to this request for information within 15 days of your receipt of this letter. If we do not

receive a response from you within 15 days, it will be assumed that you agree that the relocation of the
Hoopeston Community Memorial Nursing Home will not have an adverse impact on your facility.

Sincerely,

Gostior

Harry Brockus

CEO
Hoopeston Regional Health Center

Houpeston Community Charlotte Ann Russell Hoopeston Community Country Terrace
Memorial Hospital Medical Center Memorial Nursing Home Apartments
701 East Orange 801 East Orange 701 East Orange 705 East Orange
Hoopeston, IL 60942 Hoopeston, 1L 60242 Hoopeston, 1L 60942 Hoopeston, iL 60942
Tel: 217 . 283 . 5531 Tel: 217 . 283 . 5644 Tel: 217, 283 . 8247 Tel: 217 283 . 9215
Fax: 217,283 4062 . Fax: 217.283 . 7432 Fax: 217 .283 . 6406 Fax: 217 .283.9215
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Page 1 of 2
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QAAPQUEST.

Trip to V A Medical Ctr-llliana

1900 E Main St, Danville, IL 61832 - (217)
554-3000
29.11 miles - about 41 minutes

Notes

@ 701 E Orange St, Hoopeston, IL 60942-1801

ﬁ 1. Start out going EAST on IL-9 toward N 1550 RD E. go 3.6 mi
. (ir:') 2. Turn RIGHT onto 1900 E / CR-3. ' go 6.1 mi
{6’;» 3, Turn RIGHT onto E ATTICA RD / CR-14. go 0.5 mi
@ 4. Turn LEFT onto 1850 E / CR-3. go 3.0 mi
(@) 5. Turn RIGHT onto 3200 N/ CR-3. go 0.5 mi
(‘3\) 8. Turn LEFT onto 1800 E / CR-3. Continue to follow CR-3. go2.2mi
@ [lig 7 Stay STRAIGHT to go onto IL-119. ' g0 0.8 mi
@ 8. Stay STRAIGHT to go onto 1800 N. go 1.3 mi
. <f) 9. 1800 N becomes BOWMAN AVE. | go 1.2 mi
s pPr-/
/4 8/2/2010

http://www.mapquest.com/print




. @fﬁ 10. BOWMAN AVE becomes 1800 E. go 6.1 mi
@ 11. 1800 E becomes N BOWMAN AVE. go 2.5 mi
o |
(A7 (@3¢ 12 Tum LEFT onto E MAIN ST/ US-136. go 1.1 mi
3 13. 1900 E MAIN ST. go 0.0 mi

V A Medical Ctr-llliana - (217} 554-3000
1900 E Main St, Danville, IL 61832

Total Travel Estimate : 29.11 miles - about 41 minutes

Allrights reserved. Use subject fo License/Copyright | Map_|egend

Directions and maps are informational anly. We make no wamanties on the accuracy of their content, road conditions or route usability or
expeditiousness. You assume all risk of use. MapQuest and its suppliers shall not be liabte to you for any loss or defay resulting from
your use of MapQuest. Your use of MapQuest means you agree to our Terms of Usa

®
3(3

http://www.mapquest.com/print
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From:  {217) 263-8245
Shelly Snyder

701 East Orange Streat

Hoopeston, IL 60542

Fed=z.

Groand

[G

DI Q26

rage 1 o1t

Ship Date: 27JUL10
Activgt 1.0LB
CAD: 10136180 1ANET 3060

Irwoics #
Refarence #
PO#

Dept #

SHPTQ: (217) 283-8246
Attn: Administrator
VA-LTC

1900 E MAIN ST
DANVILLE, IL 61832

 Stip D

TR _

Il

(9612417} 9712053 15000113

GND 417 1

I

3rd PARTY 1

|
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Harry Brockus

From:
ent:
o:
Subject:

TrackingUpdates@fedex.com

Wednesday, July 28, 2010 5:29 AM
harry.brockus@hoopestoncmh.org

FedEx Shipment 971205315000113 Delivered

Name:
E-mail:

This tracking update has been requested by:

Company Name: Shelly Snyder
Shelly Snyder

harry.brockus@hoopestoncmh. org

Cur records indicate that the following shipment has been delivered:

Ship (P/U) date:

‘ Delivery date:
Sign for by:
Delivery location:

Service type:
Packaging type:
Number of pieces:

Jul 27, 2010

Jul 28, 2010 9:32 AM
JKINGERY

CHAMPAIGN, IL

FedEx Ground

Package

1

1.00 1b.

‘:eight:
racking number: %71205315000113

Sheliy Snyder
Shelly Snyder

Hoopeston
IL

Us

60942

on 07/28/2010.

Shipper Information

Recipient Infermation
Attn: Administrator
VA-LTC

701 East QOrange Street 1%00 E MAIN ST

DANVILLE
1L

Js

61832

Please do not respond to this message. This email was sent from an unattended
mailbox. This report was generated at approximately 2:28 AM CDT

To learn more about FedEx Ground, please visit our website at f=sd2:x.com.
All weights are estimated.

To track the latest status of your shipment, click on the tracking number akove,
or wvisit us at fedex.cow.

Requestor noted above.

FedEx does not validate the authenticity of the

requestor and dces not validate, guarantee or warrant the authenticity of the
request, the requestor's message, or the accuracy of this tracking update. For
tracking results and fedex.com's terms of use, go to fedex.com.

.Yhank you for your business.

Z(5
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OOPESTON

REGIONAL HEALTH CENTLER

July 28, 2010

Facility Administrator
Vermilion Manor Nursing Home
14792 Catlin Tilton Road
Danville, IL 61832

Dear Provider:

Around March 31, 2012 Hoopeston Community Memorial Nursing Home intends to relocate from its
present location at 701 E. Orange St. Hoopeston, IL 60942 to a new location at Route 1 North (Across
from Anthem Chevrolet). Hoopeston Community Memorial Nursing Home will continue to provide
all of the same services available at the current location after the move to the new Jocation. We do not
anticipate that there will be any disruption in service or any changes in the referral patterns for this
service in the community. In the last twenty-four months, Hoopeston Community Memorial Nursing
Home has treated approximately 75 patients as part of its Long Term Care program. While we do not
anticipate any need for additional capacity based on the relocation of the Hoopeston Community
Memorial Nursing Home to the new location, please advise whether you anticipate that your facility
will have available capacity to accommodate a portion or all of Hoopeston Community Memorial
Nursing Home caseload and whether any restrictions or limitations preclude your facility from
providing service to residents of the community.

Please respond to this request for information within 15 days of your receipt of this letter. 1f we do not
receive a response from you within 15 days, it will be assumed that you agree that the relocation of the

Hoopeston Community Memorial Nursing Home will not have an adverse impact on your facility.

Sincerely,

ﬁwﬁ(/y

Harry Brockus

CEO
Hoopeston Regional Health Center

Hoopeston Community Charlotte Ann Russell Hoepeston Community Country Terrace
Memorial Hospital Medical Center Memorial Nursing Home Apartments
701 East Orange 801 East Orange 701 East Orange 705 East Orange
Hoopeston, 11 60942 Hoopeston. IL 60942 Hoopeston, IL 60942 Hoopeston, IL 60942
Tel: 217 . 283 . 5531 Tel: 217 . 283 . 5644 Tek: 217,283, 8247 Tel: 217 . 283 . 9215
Fax: 217 . 283 .4062 Fax: 217283 . 7432 Fax: 217 .283 . 6400 Fax: 217.283.9215
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iaE

?ﬂ APQUEST.

Trip to Vermilion Manor Nursing
Home

14792 Catlin Tilton Rd, Danville, IL 61834 -
(217) 443-6430
28.18 miles - about 45 minutes

Notes

a 701 E Orange St, Hoopeston, IL 60942-1801

suae| 1. Start out going WEST on IL-9 toward S 5TH ST. go 1.3 mi
. <€|3 () 2JumLEFTonlolLA/S CHICAGO RD/S DIXIEHWY. 40 22.5 mi
{Tfy @ 3. Turn RIGHT onto W FAIRCHILD ST/ US-136 / IL-1. go 0.3 mi
@ B 41 ErTonon SieerTsT/us-138/1Lt
(!:‘11\, 5. Merge onto [-74 W toward CHAMPAIGN. go 0.7 mi
?ﬁﬁ: 8. Take the G STREET exit, EXIT 214. go 0.1 mi
{‘4'-?} 7. Tum LEFT onto N G ST. ' g0 0.3 mi
(&) 8. Turn RIGHT onto W 5TH ST. go 0.5 mi
. @ 9. W 5TH ST becomes CATLIN TILTON RD. go 0.3 mi
3l _.
APP- [

8/2/2010

http://www.mapquest.com/print




Page 2 of 2

. B 10. 14792 CATLIN TILTON RD is on the LEFT. g0 0.0 mi

Vermilion Manor Nursing Home - (217) 443-6430
14792 Catlin Tilton Rd, Danville, IL 61834

Tota! Travel Estimate : 28.18 miles - about 45 minutes

All rights reserved. Use subjedt to License/Capyright }dap Legend
Direclions and maps are informational onty. We make no warranties on the accuracy of their content, road conditions or route usahility or

expeditiousness. You assume all risk of use. MapQuest and its suppliers shall not be lizhle to you for any loss or delay resulting from
yous use of MapQuest. Your use of MapQuest means you agree to our Terms of Use

3 APP-1
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From  {217) 283-8246
Shelly Sayder ﬂﬁmmw..
701 East Orange Street

Heopaston, IL 60342

HEaHlas

Ship Date: 27JUL10
ActWgt 1.0L8
CAD: 101361091NET 060

Page 1 of 1

Invoice #
Referance #
PO #

Dapt #

SHPTO:  (217) 283-8246
Attn: Administrator
Vermillion Manor Nursing Home

14792 CATLIN TILTON RD

Ship D

DANVILLE, IL 61834

GND

3rd PARTY

s ————

417

Il

(9612417) 9712053 15000267

I
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Harry Brockus

e S——

From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

TrackingUpdates@fedex.com

Wednesday, July 28, 2010 10:07 AM
harry.brockus@hoopestoncmh.org

FedEx Shipment 971205315000267 Delivered

This tracking update has been requested by:

Company Name: Shelly Snyder

Name:
E-mail:

Shelly Snyder .
harvy.brockus@hoopestonumh. org

Our records indicate that the folleowing shipment has been delivered:

Ship (P/U) date:
Delivery date:
Sign for by:
Delivery location:
Service type:
Packaging type:
Number of pieces:

2010
2010 10:04 AM

Jul 27,
Jul 28,
STROSPER
CHAMPATGN, IL
FedEx Ground
Package

1

Weight: 1.00 1b.
.l‘racking number: “/12053315000267

Recipient Information
Attn:
Vermillion Manor Nursing Home
14792 CATLIN TILTON RD

Shipper Information
Shelly Snyder

Shelly Snyder

701 East Orange Street

Administrator

Hoopeston DANVILLE
IL IL

Js us

60942 61934

Please do not respond to this message. This email was sent from an unattended
mailbox. This report was generated at approximately 10:06 AM CDT

on 07/28/20106.
To learn more about FedEx Ground, please visit our website at fedex.com.

All weights are estimated.

To track the latest status of your shipment, click on the tracking number above,
or visit us at fadex.com.

This tracking update has been sent to you by FedEx on the behalf of the
Requestor noted above. FedEx does not validate the authenticity of the

requestor and does not validate, guarantee or warrant the authenticity of the
request, the requestor's message, or the accuracy of this tracking update. For
go to L[edex.com.

tracking results and fedex.com's terms of use,

.Thank you for your business.




OOPESTON

REGIONAL HEALTH CENTLER

July 28, 2010

Facility Administrator

Watseka Rehabilitation & Health Care Center
715 E Raymond Rd.

Watseka, IL 60970

Dear Provider:

Around March 31, 2012 Hoopeston Community Memorial Nursing Home intends to relocate from its
present location at 701 E. Orange St. Hoopeston, IL 60942 to a new location at Route 1 North (Across
from Anthem Chevrolet). Hoopeston Community Memorial Nursing Home will continue to provide
all of the same services available at the current location after the move to the new location. We do not
anticipate that there will be any disruption in service or any changes in the referral patterns for this
service in the community. In the last twenty-four months, Hoopeston Community Memorial Nursing
Home has treated approximately 75 patients as part of its Long Term Care program. While we do not
anticipate any need for additional capacity based on the relocation of the Hoopeston Community
Memorial Nursing Home to the new location, please advise whether you anticipate that your facility
will have available capacity to accommodate a portion or ali of Hoopeston Community Memorial
Nursing Home caseload and whether any restrictions or limitations preclude your facility from
providing service to residents of the community.

Please respond to this request for information within 15 days of your receipt of this letter. If we do not

receive a response from you within 15 days, it will be assumed that you agree that the relocation of the
Hoopeston Community Memorial Nursing Home will not have an adverse impact on your facility.

Sincerely,
>
A }04’0 cM
J
Harry Brockus

CEO
Hoopeston Regional Health Center

Hoopeston Community Chariotte Ann Russell Hoopeston Community Country Terrace
Memorial Hospital Medical Center Memorijal Nursing Home Apartments
701 East Qrange 801 Easi Orange 701 East Orange 705 East Orange
Hoopeston. [L 60942 Hoopeston, IL 60942 Hoopeston, 1L 60942 Hoopeston, TL 60942
Tel: 217 . 283 . 5531 Tel: 217 . 283 . 5644 Tel: 217 . 283 . 8247 Tel: 217 . 283 . 9215
Fax: 217,283 .4062 Fax: 217, 283 . 7432 Fax: 217.283 . 6406 Fax; 217.283.9215

22 avt-/




Page 1 of |

9

=

MarPQuUEST.

Trip to Watseka Health Care Center

715 E Raymond Rd, Watseka, IL 60970 -
(815) 432-5476
25.77 miles - about 36 minutes

Notes

a 701 E Orange St, Hoopeston, IL 60942-1801

B 1. Start out going WEST on IL-8 toward § 5TH ST. ot }g i
& @ 2. Turn RIGHT onto IL-1 / § CHICAGO RD / S DIXIE HWY. go 22.2 mi
. ‘__,) Continue to follow IL-1. total 23.5 mi
’\> go 1.5 mi
Q) 3. Turn LEFT onto E WALNUT ST /IL-1/ US-24. ot 25,0 mi
Bmi

3 4. Turn RIGHT onto N 8TH ST. g0 0.6 mi

g 8T total 25.6 mi
Y 5. Turn LEFT onto E RAYMOND RD go 0.2 mi
_r ’ ' total 25.8 mi
[ewo | 6. 715 E RAYMOND RD is on the LEFT. oo e m

Cemn T m rere—— unmmeue. ottt . = .. ekt e —— . <t o v—— st ——

X Watseka Health Care Center - (815) 432-5476
715 E Raymond Rd, Watseka, IL 60970

Total Travel Estimate : 25.77 miles - about 36 minutes

Al rights reserved. Use subject to Ligense/Copyiight  |Map_Legend

Directions and maps are informational anly, We make no warranties on the accuracy of their content, road conditions ar route usability or
expeditiousness. You assume all isk of use. MapQuest and its suppliers shall not be liable io you for any loss ar defay resulting from
‘ iour use of MapQuest, Your use of MapQuest means you agree fo our Terms of Use

222
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Frem:  (217) 2838246

Shelly Snyder %..
701 East Orange Strest n
Hoopaston, IL 60842

Ship Date: 27JUL10
ActWgt 1.0LB
CAD: 101361991/INET 3060

Page 1ot

Invoice #
Reference #
PO#

Dapt#

SHPTO:  (217) 283-8246
Attn: Administrator
Watseka Rehab & Health Care Center

715 ERAYMOND RD
WATSEKA, IL 60970

| Ship D

GND
3rd PARTY

i

417

|

(9612417) 9712053 15000243

of

____.

APP-]
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Harﬂ Brockus

From: TrackingUpdates@fedex.com
ent: Wednesday, July 28, 2010 10:13 AM
o: harry.brockus@hoopestoncmh.org
Subject: FedEx Shipment 871205315000243 Delivered

This tracking update has been requested by:

Company Wame: Shelly Snyder
Name: Shelly Snyder

E-mail: harry, brockusBhocpestoncmh. oryg

Our records indicate that the following shipment has been delivered:

Ship (P/U) date: Jul 27, 2010Q

Delivery date: Jul 28, 2010 10:08 AM
Sign for by: JPETERSEN

Delivery location: CHAMPAIGN, IL

Service type: FedEx Ground
Packaging type: Package

Number of pieces: 1

Weight: 1.00 1b.
.I‘racking number: 7 12053150G00243

Shipper Information Recipient Information

Shelly Snyder Attn: Administrator

Shelly Snyder Watseka Rehab & Health Care Center
701 East Orange Street 715 E RAYMOND RD

Hoopeston WATSEKA

11 IL

Us us

60942 60970

Please do not respond to this message. This email was sent from an unattended
mailbox. This report was generated at approximately 10:13 AM CDT
on 07/28/2010.

A1l weights are estimated.

To track the latest status of your shipment, click on the tracking number above,
or visit us at fedex.com.

This tracking update has been sent to you by FedEx on the behalf of the
Requestor noted above. FedEx does not validate the authenticity of the
requestor and does not validate, guarantee or warrant the authenticity of the
request, the requestor's message, or the accuracy c¢f this tracking update. For

tracking results and fedex.com's terms of use, go to fedex.com.

.’Fhank you for your business.

S
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REGIONAL HEALTH CENTER

July 28, 2010

Facility Administrator
Colomial Manor

620 Warrington Avenue
Danville, 1L 61832

Dear Provider:

Around March 31, 2012 Hoopeston Community- Memorial Nursing Home intends to relocate from its
present location at 701 E. Orange St. Hoopeston, IL 60942 to a new location at Route 1 North (Across
from Anthem Chevrolet). Hoopeston Community Memorial Nursing Home will continue to provide
all of the same services available at the current location after the move to the new location. We do not
anticipate that there will be any disruption in service or any changes in the referral patterns for this
service in the community. In the last twenty-four months, Hoopeston Community Memorial Nursing
Home has treated approximately 75 patients as part of its Long Term Care program. While we do not
anticipate any need for additional capacity based on the relocation of the Hoopeston Community
Memorial Nursing Home to the new location, please advise whether you anticipate that your facility
will have available capacity to accommodate a portion or all of Hoopeston Community Memorial
Nursing Home caseload and whether any restrictions or limitations preclude your facility from
providing service to residents of the community.

Please respond to this request for information within 15 days of your receipt of this letter, If we do not
receive a response from you within 15 days, it will be assumed that you agree that the relocation of the
Hoopeston Community Memerial Nursing Home will not have an adverse impact on your facility.
Sincerely,

Harry Brockus

CEO
Hoopeston Regional Health Center

Hoopeston Community Charlotte Ann Russell Hoopeston Community Country Terrace
. Memorial Hospical Medical Center Memorial Nursing Home Apartments
701 East Orange 80! East Orange 701 East Orange 705 East Orange
Hoopeston, IL 60942 Hoopeston, IL 60942 Hoopeston, 1L 60942 Hoopeston, 1L 60942
Tel: 217 . 283 . 5531 Tel: 217 . 283 . 5644 - Teh: 217.283. 8247 Tel: 217 . 283, 9215
Fax: 217 . 283 . 4062 Fax: 217 .283 . 7432 Fax: 217.283. 6406 Fax: 217 .283.9215

325 APP- ]




CIlE

QAnPQuUEST,

Trip to Colonial Manor

620 Warrington Ave, Danville, IL 61832 -
(217) 446-0660
26.37 miles - about 40 minutes

Notes

« 701 E Orange St, Hoopeston, IL 60942-1801

o 1, Start out going WEST on IL-9 toward § 5TH ST.

2. Turn LEFT onto ILL.-1 7/ S CHICAGO RD / S DIXIE HWY.
Continue to follow IL-1.

@
3
9

3. Turn RIGHT onto W FAIRCHILD ST/ US-136 / IL-1.

3
&

4. Turn LEFT onto N GILBERT ST/ US-138 /IL-1.

&>

{f\rj} T 5 Turn RIGHT onto W MAIN ST/ US-150 W.

€

Q/\rﬂ 6. Turn RIGHT onto AVENUE G.
{5; 7. Turn RIGHT onto WARRINGTON AVE.
oo 8. 620 WARRINGTON AVE is on the RIGHT.

————

Colonial Manor - (217) 446-0660
620 Warrington Ave, Danville, IL 61832

Total Travel Estimate : 26.37 miles - about 40 minutes

Al rights reserved. Use subject fo License/Copyright | Man Legend

24

http://www.mapquest.com/print

go 1.3 mi

go 22.5mi

go 0.3 mi

go 1.0 mi

go 1.1 mi

go 0.0 mi

go 0.1 mi

go 0.0 mi

APP-|
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From:  (217) 283-8246
Shelly Snyder

701 East Qrange Street

Hoopeston, IL 60342

3
Grmund

HOMS251475

Ship Date: 27JUL1D
Aciigt 1,018
CAD: 101361854NET 3080

Page 1 of 1

Invoice #
Reference #
PO #

Dept #

SHPTO: (217)283-8246
Attn: Administrator
Colonial Manor

620 WARRINGTON AVE

Ship 1D

DANVILLE, IL 61832

(9612417) 9712053 15000144

GND 417
3rd PARTY

32+

of

ApP-{




Harry Brockus

From; TrackinglUpdates@fedex.com
.Sent: Wednesday, July 28, 2010 8:46 AM
To: harry.brockus@hoopestoncmh.org
Subject: FedEx Shipment 971205315000144 Delivered

This tracking update has been requested by:

Company Name: Shelly Snyder

Name:
E~mail:

Shelly Snyder

hat ry.brockusfhoopestoncmh, ong

Our records indicate that the following shipment has been delivered:

Ship (P/U) date: Jul 27, 2010
Lelivery date: Jul 28, 2010 8:42 AM
Sign for by: SPUCKETT

Delivery location: CHAMPAIGN, 1L
Service type: FedEx Ground
Packaging type: Package

Number of pieces:

1
1.00 lb.

Weight:
.[‘racking number: %71205315000144

Shipper Informaticn

Shelly Snyder
Shelly Snyder

701 East Orange Street

Recipient Informaticn
Attn:
Cecleonial Manor

620 WARRINGTON AVE

Administratcr

Hoopeston DANVILLE
IL IL

us Us

60542 61832

Please do not respond to this message. This email was sent from an unattended
mailbox. This report was generated at approximately 8:46 AM CDT

on 07/28/2010.

To learn more about FedEx Ground, please visit our website at L[odez.com.

All weights are estimated.

Te track the latest status of your shipment, ¢lick on the tracking number above,
or visit us at fedex.com.

This tracking update has been sent to you by FedEx on the behalf of the
Requestor noted above. FedEx does not validate the authenticity of the
requestor and does not validate, guarantee or warrant the authenticity of the
request, the requestor's message, or the accuracy of this tracking update. For

tracking results and fedex.com's terms of use, go to [cdex.com.

“hank you for your business.

APP- [




@8/0B4/2018 15:17 12173792472 PEDPLEF IRST PAGE 01/82

ILLINOIS KNIGHTS TEMPLAR HOME
450 EAST FULTQON, P.O. BOX 49
S PAXTON, IL 60957
(217) 379-2116
OFFICE FAX: (217) 37%-3000
NURSING STATION FAX: (217) 379-2586

FACSIMILE TRANSMITTAL SHEET

TO: FROM:

2 Mzﬂ/ Dj;}’)?cqu \ﬁx« #ujilu)
- ?U o Ragondllatth, o 3.

nAX NUM OTAL NQ. OB PAGES INCLUDING COVER:

017383 Y06

PH.ONE NUMRER

RE:

e B St Y I I
/ 777

O urceNT O ror rEvinw - L1 pLEASE COMMENT [ PLEASE RRPLY 0] PLEASE RECYCLE

{10

The information contained in this facsimile mesange is contidesed privileged and confidentin! and 12 intended for the sole use of the
addreseee lizted ahove. 1 you are not the addressee of the agent responable for delivering this informntion, be mware that any
dizclosure, duplication, distbution or wie of the contents is strictly probibited, 1f you received this communication in exrog, please
notify v immediately by ©ephone to acange for the retirn of this information 10 vs,

227
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PAGE 82/82
pa/04/2018 15:17 17173792472 PEOPLEFIRST

August 2, 2010

Hlineis Knights Templar Home
450 E. Fulton St
Paxton, 11 60957

admiss@ikth.com
To whom it may concern:

Congratulations on opening a new Nursing Center in the near future. In response to your
letter July 28, 2010 we would be happy to help out in any way we cah a3 you relocate.

At the time of your transition if we have open beds we are happy to hold residents for you
until you have a bed available.

Looking forward to workiog with you.

Sincerely.,

Mary Lou Kulow
. Admission Director

530 200 1




Harry Brockus

L _
From: Wesley Oswald [woswald@iroquoismemorial.com)
ent: Monday, August 02, 2010 7:37 AM
o: 'Harry Brockus'
Cc: Tom McCann'
Subject: Nursing Home
Attachments: ATT00007.txt; _AVG certification_.txt

We do not believe your new Nursing Home will have an adverse impact on us and we are certainly open to helping vyith
the transition if you need heip. Our ability to accept patients will be dependent on the number of empty beds at the time

the request is made.

Wes QOswald

Iroquois Memorial Hospital

200 Fairman Ave

Watseka IL 60970

815-432-7736
woswald@iroquoismemorial.com

This electronic message may contain information that is Proprietary, Confidential, or legally privileged or
protected. It is intended only for the use of the individual(s) and entity named in the message. If you are not an
intended recipient of this message, please notify the sender immediately and delete the material from your
computer. Do not deliver, distribute or copy this message and do not disclose its contents or take any action in
reliance on the information it contains.




CounTrY HEALTH
CARE CENTER

A A *4

CEEERIEN- -
. 2304 OR,3000 N Gifford, IL 61847
217-568-7362(phione)  217-568-7314(fax)

July 28, 2010

Dear Harry Brockus,

In response to your letter about your reconstruction: Congratulations on the new building.
We, the facility at Country Health would like to assist as needed. We however, are also
under construction ourselves. The facility has an estimated completion date of June,
2011. Our current census is down to 53 beds rather than our skilled 89 beds. We will
admit with out normal procedure of screening and gathering the appropriate information
as needed. Please contact us with any inquiries and we will assist with what we can.
Good Luck on you new project and again Congratulations.

Sincerley,

O e

Amy Jameson

Social Service Director
Country Health Inc.
2304 CR 3000 N
Gifford, IL 61847




5
Danville Care Center, Ltd

1701 N. Bowman Aveune Certified Health
Danville, lllinois 61832 Management, Inc.
August 2, 2010

Mr, Harry Brockus

CEO

Hoopeston Regional Health Center
701 East Orange

Hoopeston, IL. 60942

Dear Mr. Brockus,

Thank you for notifying our facility of your plans to relocate Hoopeston

. Community Memorial Nursing Home to its new location. We would be
happy to accommodate you with your needs for extra capacity if necessary
during your move. We currently have availability at both Danville Care
Center, our Long-term Care/Skilled Needs Facility, as well as within New
Focus Achievement Center, a Psychiatric Rehabilitation Facility.

Please contact me directly at (217) 649-3511 to place a referral, or if you
| need any further help with this matter. Congratulations and good luck with
’ your endeavor!

Sincerely,

Tara Rieman
Marketing Director
Danville Care Center/New Focus Achievement Center

Phone: 217-443-2955 « Fax: 217-443-0315 A’ pp_/
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Page 1 of 1

[x]

) |

M Notes
APQUEST. |
Trip to Wellington, IL
6.65 miles - about 10 minutes :
|
ﬁ Hoopeston, IL '
stan 1. Start out going NORTH on CR-24 toward E MAIN ST. go 0.4 mi
@ 2. Turn LEFT onto E THOMPSON AVE / ROAD 4200 N. go 1.0 mi
@ i‘.iL-11'um RIGHT onto IL-1 / N DIXIE HWY. Continue to follow go 4.5 mi
@ 4. Tum RIGHT onto CR-11. g0 0.7 mi
@ 5. Tum LEFT onto DONOVAN ST. g0 0.0 mi
Lo 6. Welcome to WELLINGTON, IL. go 0.0 mi

o S — ——_— C o e —— N — [

X Weliington, IL L0923
Total Travel Estimate : 6.65 miles - about 10 minutes
All rights reserved. Use subje Licensef right | Map Legend

Direclions and maps are informational only. We make no warranties on the accuracy of their content, road conditions or route usability or
expeditiousness. You agsume all risk of use. MapQuest and its suppliers shall not be liable to you for any loss or delay resulting from
your use of MapQuest. Your use of MapQuest means you agree 10 our Temns of Use

335 pPo- 4

http://www.mapquest.com/print 8/17/2010
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[

B

£

i

B

MAPQUEST.

Trip to Goodwine, IL

12.74 miles - about 16 minutes

« Hoopeston, IL

a Goodwine, IL
Total Travel Estimate : 12.74 miles - about 16 minutes

Notes

Page 1 of 1

1. Start out going NORTH on CR-24 toward E MAIN ST.

2. Turn LEFT onto E THOMPSON AVE / ROAD 4200 N.

3. Turn RIGHT onto IL-1 / N DIXIE HWY. Continue to follow

IL-1.

go 0.4 mi
total 0.4 mi

go 1.0 mi
total 1.5 mi

go 6.0 mi
total 7.5 mi

4, Turn LEFT onto CR-500 N/ CR-10.

go 4.8 mi
total 12.3 mi

5, Turn RIGHT onto CR-1800 E / CR-45.

6. Welcome to GOODWINE, IL.

go 0.5 mi
total 12.7 mi

go 0.0 mi
total 12.7 mi

Il rights.

d. Use sul

ct fo Lice

| Map Legend

Directions and maps are informational only. We make no warsanties on the accuracy of their content, road conditions or route usabllity or

expeditiousness. You assume all risk of use. MapQuest and its suppliers shall not be liable to you for any loss or delay resulting from
your use of MapQuest. Your use of MapQuest means you agree to our Terms of Use

http://www.mapquest.com/print

33

A PP -2

8/17/2010




Page 1 of 1

] | b | X

MAPQUEST.
Trip to Milford, IL |
12.29 miles - about 17 minutes
ﬁ Hoopeston, IL
1. Start out going NORTH on CR-24 toward E MAIN ST, go 0.4 mi
2. Turn LEFT onto E THOMPSON AVE / ROAD 4200 N. go 1.0 mi
@ iil;_"l"urn RIGHT onto IL-1 f N DIXIE HWY. Continue to follow g0 10.7 mi
@ 4. Turn RIGHT onto E JONES ST. go 0.0 mi
txb 5. Welcome to MILFORD, IL. go 0.0 mi

€ wiford, IL 60953

Total Travel Estimate : 12.29 miles - about 17 minutes

All rights reserved. Use subiect to License/Copyright | Map Legend

Directions and maps are informatiorial only. We make no warranties on the accuracy of thelr content, road conditions or route usability or
expeditiousness. You assume all risk of use. MapQuest and its suppliers shall not be fiable to you for any loss or delay resulting trom
your use of MapQuest. Your use of MapQuest means you agree to our Terms of Use

237 prp-2
http://www.mapquest.com/print 8/17/2010




Page 1 of |

B | B | ]

I Notes
MAPQUEST. 1
'I
Trip to Stockland, IL
16.02 miles - about 21 minutes ?
a Hoopeston, IL
1. Start out going NORTH on CR-24 toward E MAIN ST. go 0.4 mi
2. Turn RIGHT to stay on CR-24. go 4.4 mi
3. Tumn LEFT onto N 1950 RD E/ CR-41. go 1.0 mi

4. Turn LEFT onto COUNTY ROAD 000 N / CR-41/ 4300

. N. Continue to follow CR-41. go 3.7 mi
5. Turn LEFT onta CR-850 N / CR-41/ CR-9. go 0.4 mi

o T RIGHT ot 2840 €1 R /GRS, ooom

o a0 ooom

oo | 8. Welcome to STOCKLAND, IL. g0 0.0 mi

& Sstockland, IL 0767

Total Travel Estimate : 16.02 miles - about 21 minutes

All rights reserved. Use sublect to License/Copyright | Map Legend

Directions and maps are informational only. We make no warranties on the accuracy of their content, road conditions or route usability or
expeditioushess. You assume all risk of use. MapQuest and #ts suppliers shall fot be fiable to you for any loss or delay resulting fram
your use of MapQuest. Your use of MapQuest means you agree to our Jems of Use

338 49P-2
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MAPQUEST. -
A ¥a ;

|
Trip to East Lynn, IL |
8.09 miles - about 12 minutes

i
« Hoopeston, IL

sterm 1. Start out going SOUTH on CR-24 toward E PENN ST. go 0.6 mi

- 2. Turn RIGHT onto IL-9. g0 7.0 mi

@ 3. Turn RIGHT onto 770 EAST RD / MAIN ST/ CR-10/ 006 mi
& EAST LYNN RD. gou.om
. @ 4, Tumn RIGHT onto BROADWAY. go 0.0 mi

D 5. Welcome to EAST LYNN, iL. go 0.0 mi

& Eastiynn, L 40932

Total Travel Estimate ; 8.09 miles - about 12 minutes

il rights reserved, Use subject to License/Copyriaht | Map Legend

Directions and maps are informational onfy. We make no warranties on the accuracy of their content, road conditions or route usability or
expeditiousness. You assume all risk of use. MapQuest and its suppliers shall fot be liable to you for any foss or delay resulting from
your use of MapQuest. Your use of MapQuest means you agree to our Terms of Use

537 APP-2
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] | B | B4

' - q R Notes
MAPQUEST.
Trip to Claytonville, IL
14.79 miles - about 19 minutes 5
@ Hoopeston, il
STAST 1. Start out going NORTH on CR-24 toward E MAIN ST. go 0.4 mi
2. Turn LEFT onto E THOMPSON AVE / ROAD 4200 N. go 1.0 mi

|3L-.!I-l:’rn RIGHT onto IL-1 / N DIXIE HWY. Continue to follow g0 6.0 mi

4. Turn LEET onto CR-500 N / CR-10. g0 6.8 mi

@ &. Turn RIGHT onto COUNTY ROAD 1600E. go 0.5 mi

6. Turn LEFT. g0 0.0 mi

o 7. Welcome to GLAYTONVILLE, IL. go 0.0 mi

X ciaytonville, Il L0T2¢
Total Travel Estimate : 14.79 miles - about 19 minutes
Al rights feserved. Use subject 1o License/Copyright | Ma nd

Directions and maps are informational only. We make no warranties én the accuracy of their content, road conditions or route usability or
expeditiousness. You assume ali risk of use. MapQuest and its suppliers shall not be liable to you for any loss or delay resulling frotm
your use of MapQuest. Your use of MapQuest means you agree to our JTerms of Use

34D
APP-2
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Page 1 of 1

[ | x| (X

; Q L Notes
MAPQUEST.
Trip to Ambia, IN i
10.38 miles - about 14 minutes :
« Hoopeston, IL

smasn 1. Start out going SOUTH on CR-24 toward E PENN ST. go 0.6 mi

@ 2. Tum LEFT onto IL-9. go 7.4 mi

3. Turn LEFT onto IL-352 / N COUNTY ROAD 2250 E/

@ STATE LINE RD. Continue to follow IL-352 (Crossing into go 2.4 mi
- “  INDIANA).

4, Turn LEFT onto W ELM ST. go 0.0 mi
m 5. Welcome to AMBIA, IN. go 0.0 mi

€ Ambia,IN  479/7

Total Travel Estimate : 10.38 miles - about 14 minutes

All fights reserved, Use subject to License/Copyright | Map Legand

Directions and maps are informational only. We make no warranties on the accuracy of their content, road conditions of route usability or
expeditiousness, You assume all risk of use. MapQuest and its suppliers shall not be ltable o you for any ioss or delay resulting from
your use of MapQuest. Your use of MapQuest means you agree to our Tgrms of Use

341
APP-2
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MAPQUEST.
Trip to Talbot, IN g
16.78 miles - about 23 minutes
a Hoopeston, IL

e 1. Start out going SOUTH on CR-24 toward E PENN ST. 0 0.6 mi

@ 2. Turn LEFT onto {L-9. go 7.4 mi

3. Turn LEFT onto IL-352 / N COUNTY ROAD 2250 E /

@ STATE LINE RD. Continue to follow IL-352 {Crossing into go 7.7 mi
INDIANA).

@ 4. Turn RIGHT onto S COUNTY ROAD 700 W. go 1.1 mi

= 5. Welcome to TALBOT, IN. 0 0.0 mi

QX Tabot,IN #2959

Total Travel Estimate : 16.78 miles - about 23 minutes

Al riahts reserved, Use subje icense/Copyright | Ma nd

Diractions and maps are informational ohly. We make na warranties on the accuracy of their content, road conditions or raute usability or
expedliousness. You assume all risk of use. MapQuest and its suppliers shall not be liable to you far any loss or delay resulting from
your use of MapQuest. Your use of MapQuest means you agree to our Terms of Use

St
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% ||

M Q " Notes
APWVEST. |
i
Trip to Rossville, IL
7.22 miles - about 11 minutes
« Hoopeston, IL
st 1. Start out going SOUTH on CR-24 toward E PENN ST, go 0.6 mi

@ 2. Turn RIGHT onto IL-9. go 1.0 mi

3. Turn LEFT onto IL-1/ S CHICAGO RD / S DIXIE HWY. 0 5.6 mi
\ =124  Continue to follow IL-1, g0 5.

I 4. Turn LEFT onto CR-14. g0 0.0 mi

[cxo] 5. Welcome to ROSSVILLE, IL. g0 0.0 mi

X Rossville, I 0963

Total Travel Estimate : 7.22 miles - about 11 minutes

It rights res d.Use subject to License/Copyright | Map Legend

Directions and maps are informational only. We make no warranties on the accuracy of their content, road conditions or route usability or
expeditiousness. You assume all risk of use. MapQuast and its suppliers shall not be liable to you for any loss or delay resulting from
your use of MapQuest. Your use of MapQuest means you agres to our Terms of Use

343
APP-2
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Page 1 of |

. Q R Notes
MAPQUEST.
Trip to Cissna Park, IL
18.40 miles - about 24 minutes
« Hoopeston, IL
s 1. Start out going NORTH on CR-24 toward E MAIN ST. go 0.4 mi
@ 2. Turn LEFT onto E THOMPSON AVE / ROAD 4200 N. go 1.0 mi
@ ?l._-?lm RIGHT onto IL-1 / N DIXIE HWY. Continue to follow g0 6.0 mi
@ 4. Tun LEFT onto CR-500 N / CR-10. go 10.5 mi
5. Turn RIGHT onto S 2ND ST/ 1L-49. go 0.5 mi
exo 6. Welcome to CISSNA PARK, IL. go 0.0 mi

@ Cissna Park, IL.  H092¢

Total Travel Estimate : 18.40 miles - about 24 minutes

Al rightts resarved. Use_subiject to License/Copyright | Map Legend

Directions and maps are informational only. We make no warranties on the accuracy of their content, road conditions or route usability or
expeditiousness. You assume all risk of use. MapQuest and its suppliers shalt not be liable to you for any loss or delay resulting from

your use of MapQuest. Your use of MapQuest means you agree to our Terms of Use
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Notes

MAPQUEST.

Trip to Bismarck, IL
17.43 miles - about 26 minutes

a Hoopeston, IL

1. Start out going SOUTH on CR-24 toward E PENN ST. go 06 mi

@ 2. Turn RIGHT onto IL-8. go 1.0 mi

got.ttji;nuﬁ:fToﬁg:fllLLi 1 S CHICAGO RD /'S DIXIE HWY. g0 135 m
@ 4. Tum LEFT onto BISMM—RK RD.. ) go 1.5 mi
.‘M“W_S.I;I;I\'IAR-;(‘I;I-D_;;:omes HOLLOWAY ST. m | u._go—o; mi
A b funRCHTabSCHARIESWORTHSTIS
@ CHARLESWORTH AVE. go 00 mi
7. Welcome to BISMARCK, IL. go 0.0 mi

ﬂ Bismarck,IL & (¥4

Total Travel Estimate : 17.43 miles - about 26 minutes

All rights reserved. Use subiedt to License/Copyright | Map Legend

Directions and maps are informational only. We make no warranties on the acquracy of their content, road conditions or route usability or
axpeditiousness. You assume all risk of use. MapQuest and its suppliers shallnot be liable to you for any loss or delay resulting from
your use of MapQuesL Your use of MapQuest means you agree to our Terms of Use

3¢5
H#PP-2

hitp://www.mapquest.com/print 8/17/2010




MAPQUEST. |
Trip to Potomac, IL
18.24 miles - about 24 minutes '
« Hoopeston, IL

w 1. Start out going SOUTH on CR-24 toward E PENN ST. go 0.6 mi

@ 2. Turn RIGHT onto IL-9. go 7.0 mi

; 3. Turn LEFT onto 770 EAST RD / CR-10. Continue to .
follow CR-10. g0 10.7 mi
£ND 4, Welcome to POTOMAC, IL. go 0.0 mi

a Potomac,IL  (/§5¢

Total Travel Estimate : 18.24 miles - about 24 minutes

All rights_reserved. Use subject 1o License/Copyright | Map Legend

Directions and maps are informational onty. We make no warranties on the accuracy of their content, road conditions or route usability or
expeditiousness. You assume all risk of use. MapQuest and its suppliers shall not be liable to you for any loss or delay resulling from
your use of MapQuest. Your use of MapQuest means you agree lo our Terms of Use
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Q R— Notes
MAPQUEST.
Trip to Rankin, IL ,
13.10 miles - about 18 minutes
ﬁ Hoopeston, IL

sta] 1. Start out going SOUTH on CR-24 toward E PENN ST. go 0.6 mi

@ 2. Turn RIGHT onto IL-9. go 12.0 mi

@ 3. Turn RIGHT onto S MAIN ST / IL-49. go 0.5 mi

D 4. Welcome to RANKIN, IL. go 0.0 mi

X Rankin, Il £09Co
Total Travel Estimate : 13.10 miles - about 18 minutes
Ii_rights r . Use subjec! o License/Copyri | Map Legend
Directions and maps are informational only. We make no warranties on the accuracy of their content, road conditions or route usability or

expeditiousness. You assume all risk of use. MapQuest and its suppliers shall nat be liable to you for any loss or delay resulting from
your use of MapQuest, Your use of MapQuest means you agree to our Terms of Use

S¥7
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MAPQUEST.

Trip to Woodland, IL
20.79 miles - about 28 minutes

« Hoopeston, IL

Notes

Page 1 of 1

1, Start out going NORTH on CR-24 toward E MAIN ST.

go 0.4 mi

2. Turn LEFT onto E THOMPSON AVE / ROAD 4200 N.

go 1.0 mi

3. Turh RIGHT onto IL-1 / N DIXIE HWY. Continue to follow
IL-1.

go 16.9 mi

4, Turn LEFT onto 1400N / CR-40,

go 2.5 i

5. Welcome to WOODLAND, iL.

go 0.0 mi

a Woodland, IL 60774

Total Travel Estimate : 20.79 miles - about 28 minutes

All rights reserved. Use subject to License/Copyright | Map Legend

Directions end maps are informational only. We make no warranties on the accuracy of their content, road conditions or reute usability or
expeditiousness. You assume all nsk of use. MapQuest and its suppliers shall not be liable to you for any loss or delay resulting from
your use of MapQuest. Your use of MapQuest means you agree to our Terms of Use
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MAPQUEST. |
' wh L
Trip to Henning, IL
14.22 miles - about 21 minutes
35
« Hoopeston, IL
&= 1. Start out going SOUTH on CR-24 toward E PENN ST. go 0.6 mi

@ 2. Turi RIGHT onto IL-9. go1.0mi

@ g'oﬁ?i;nulgfgloﬁgﬁf&?‘ {5 CHICAGO RD / 8 DIXIE HWY. 90 5.6 mi
@ 4. Turn RIGHT onto CR-14. go 1.9 mi
. . e -
5. Turn LEFT onto 1300 E / CR-1. go 5.1 mi
6. Turh LEFT onto E LANE ST, . | F - — ﬁgow;;;;

Ho 7. Welcorhe to HENNING, IL. go 0.0 mi

@ Henning, IL  &/848

Total Trave! Estimate : 14.22 miles - about 21 minutes

Al right rved Use subject to 1 jcense/Copyri | Map_Legend

Directions and maps are informational only, We make ho wamranties o the accuracy of their conteft, road conditions or route usability or
expeditioushess. You assume all risk of use. MapQuest and its suppliers shall not be liable to you for any loss or delay resulting from
your use of MapQuest. Your use of MapQuest means you agree to our JTerms of Use

3¢9 ops
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MAPQUEST.

Trip to Alvin, IL
16.28 miles - about 21 minutes

Notes

Page 1 of 2

‘G! Hoopeston, IL

@ 1. Start out going SOUTH on CR-24 toward E PENN ST. go 0.6 mi
. Turn LEFT onto IL-9. go 3.9 mi
@ . Turn RIGHT onto 1900 € / CR-3, go 6.1 mi
I . Turn RIGHT onto E ATTICA RD / CR-14. go 0.5 mi
@ . Tumn LEFT onto 1850 E / CR-3. go 3.0 mi
@ . Tum RIGHT onto 3200 N / GR-3. g0 0.5 mi
. Turn LEFT onto 1800 E / CR-3, Continue to follow CR-3. go 1.5 mi
. . Tumn RIGHT onto W RAILROAD AVE. g0 0.1 mi
@ . Turn RIGHT onto OAX ST. g0 0.0 mi
[exo 10. Welcome to ALVIN, IL. go 0.0 mi
& awin, L L8
. Total Travel Estimate : 16.28 miles - about 21 minutes
All rights reserved. Use sublect to License/Copyright lMag Legend
25D APP *2
8/17/2010
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M A Q . L Notes
NAPQVEST.
Trip to Boswell, IN
20.10 miles - about 25 minutes
« Hoopeston, IL
12 1. Start out going SOUTH on CR-24 toward E PENN ST. g0 0.6 mi

2. Turn LEFT onto IL-9 (Crossing into INDIANA). go 7.4 mi

3. IL-9 becomes IN-26 / W COUNTY ROAD 1000 N. go 7.9 mi

£ 4. Tum LEFT onto US4 N, go 4.1 mi

6. Turn LEFT onto IN-352 / W COUNTY ROAD 600 S. go 0.1 mi

6. Turn LEFT onto N OLD US-41. go 0.0 mi

[cro 7. Welcome to BOSWELL, IN. go 0.0 mi

& Boswell,IN 4772/

Total Travel Estimate : 20.10 miles - about 25 minutes

Ali rights reservi se sublect o |icensed right | Map Legend

Directions and maps are informational only. We make no warranties on the accuracy of their content. road conditions or route usability or
expeditiousness. You assume all risk of use. MapQuest and ts suppliers shalt not be liable to you for any loss or delay resulting from
your use of MapQuest. Your use of MapQuest means you agree to our Terms of Use
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MAPQUEST. e —

Trip to Potomac, IL
18.24 miles - about 24 minutes

a Hoopeston, IL

stae] 1. Start out going SOUTH on CR-24 toward € PENN ST. go 0.6 mi

2. Turn RIGHT onto IL-9. go 7.0 mi

3. Turn LEFT onto 770 EAST RD /CR-10. Continue {o .
@ follow CR-10. go 10.7 mi
23 4. Weicome to POTOMAG, IL. g0 0.0 mi

€ Potomac,IL  4/86S

Total Travel €stimate ;: 18.24 mies - about 24 minutes

All rights reserved. | ubject to Lipense/Copyright | Map Legend

Directions and maps are informational only. We make nowarranties on the accuracy of their content, road conditions or route usability or
expeditiousness. You assume all risk of use. MapQuest and its suppliers shall not be liable to you for any {oss or delay resulting from
your use of MapQuest. Your use of MapQuest means you agree to our Terms of Use
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MAPQUEST. |
Trip to Armstrong, IL
23.80 miles - about 30 minutes
a Hoopeston, IL
= 1. Start out going SOUTH on CR-24 toward E PENN ST. go 0.8 mi
@ 2. Turn RIGHT onto IL-9. go 12.0 mi
Q 3. Turn LEFT onto S MAIN ST / IL49 { ROAD 270 €. 0090 mi
o/ \8d  Continue tofotiow H.-48. 90 =
4. Turn LEFT onto 3200 N g0 0.8 mi
41} 5. Stay STRAIGHT %o go onto 350 €. go 1.5 mi
6. Turn RIGHT onto GIFFORD AVE. g0 0.0mi
7. Welcome to ARMSTRONG, IL. 0 0.0 mi

a Armstrong, Il (/5/2

Total Travel Estimate : 23.80 miles - about 30 minutes

All tights reserved. Use subject to License/Copyright | Map Legend

Directions and maps are infermational anly. We make no warranties on the accuracy of their content, road conditions or route usabitity or
expeditiousness. You assume all risk of use. MapQuest and its suppliers shall not be liable to you for any loss or delay resulting from
your use of MapQuest. Your use of MapQuest means you agree to our Terms o{ Use
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MAPQUEST. o
Trip to Paxton, IL f
23.10 miles - about 30 minutes !
ﬂ Hoopeston, IL

erusn 1. Start out going SOUTH on CR-24 toward E PENN ST. o 0:6 mi

@ 2. Turn RIGHT onto IL-9. go 22.5 mi

o 3. Welcome to PAXTON, IL. g0 0.0 mi

& Paxton,IL 40954

. Total Trave! Estimate : 23.10 miles - about 30 minutes
All rights reserved. Use subiect to LicensefCopyright | Map Legend -

Directions and maps are informational only. We make no warranties on the accuracy of theircontent, road conditions or foute usability or
expeditiousness. You assume all risk of use. MapQuest and its suppliers shail not be liable to you for any Joss or delay resufting from
yaur use of MapQuest. Your use of MapQuest means you agree to our Temms of Use
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